
Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: (207) 475-1329 Fax: (207) 439-6806 
                                

      
KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL 

February 8, 2021 

6:00PM 

 

The public may submit public comments for the DISCUSSION agenda item via email, US Mail, 
or by dropping written comments in the Drop Box outside the Town Hall entrance.  Emailed 
comments should be sent to TownComments@kitteryme.org. 

The public may also participate in the meeting via Zoom webinar.  Register in advance for 
the webinar at https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_TOhO-NTHTgaIQ_0JB4lkbQ 
 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar. Webinar participants will be able to submit questions and comments during a public 
hearing.  
 
Comments received by noon on the day of the meeting will become part of the public record 
and may be read in whole or in summary by the Council Chair. 
 

      

1. Call to Order 

2. Introductory 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call   

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 

6. Town Manager’s Report   

7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes 

• November 9, 2020 

• November 23, 2020 

• December 03, 2020 – Special Meeting 

• December 14, 2020 
 

mailto:TownComments@kitteryme.org
mailto:TownComments@kitteryme.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_TOhO-NTHTgaIQ_0JB4lkbQ


Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

 

 
8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board - None 

9.          All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town    
             consultants or requested offices. 

            a.  (020121-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to receive a presentation from the         
                 Town Manager on the 2022-2026 Capital Improvement Plan.  

10.       PUBLIC HEARINGS –  

            a.  (020121-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on Title 8         
                 Property Maintenance.  

            b.  (020121-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing regarding the   
                 proposed Sewer Expansion on Route 236.                     

11.       DISCUSSION 

a.    The public may submit public comments in writing or raise their hand in the            
  webinar for the DISCUSSION agenda. 

b.    Chairperson will read written comments into the record. 

c.    Chairperson’s response to public comments. 

12.      UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

13.      NEW BUSINESS 

            a.  Donations/gifts received for Council disposition 

             (020121-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept a grant in the amount             
                $50,000 from the Stephen and Tabitha King Foundation to be deposited into the       
                new Rice Public Library Building account.  

 (020121-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a donation recognition 
 proposal from the Rice Public Library Corporation for: 

• Rosamond Thaxter Foundation 

• The Alvord Family in memory of Graham and Jean Alvord 

 



Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

 

          b.  (020121-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the 2022-2026 Capital          
                Improvement Plan in accordance with Town Charter Section 6.05 and Council  
 Policy, as presented. 

          c.  (020121-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept and endorse the fiscal   
 year 2022 Capital Improvement Plan budget in accordance with Town Charter  
 Section 6.04 (2) and Council Policy, in the amount of $1,588,900. 

          d.   (020121-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License     
                application from Kittery Food Truck Pod – Paved Paradise, located at 230 US  
 Route 1 Bypass, Kittery.   

          e.  (020121-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Special Activity                  
                Permit for Kittery Food Truck Pod – Paved Paradise, located at 230 US Route 1        
                Bypass, Kittery.  

          f.  (020121-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License   
                application from Tasty Thai located at 182 State Road, Kittery.   

         g.  (020121-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor   
 License application for Ore Nell’s BBQ located at 2 Badgers Island West, Kittery.    

         h.    (020121-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to accept the Annual Report from        
                the Kittery Community Center.   

           i.    (020121-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint a Councilor to interview       
                Maureen Bilodeau along with Chair Rich Demarco for an appointment to the   
      Parks Commission for a three-year term to expire 12/31/2023.        
 
          j.    (020121-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to discuss recommendations to the   
                Taylor Building and determine next steps. 
  
          k.   (020121-15) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a Public Hearing on   
                February 22, 2021 for mid-year transfers in accordance with Town Charter   
      Section 6.09.         
           
14.           COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 

 a. Communications from the Chairperson 

 b.   Committee Reports  

 



Due to the Declaration of a State of Emergency for the State of Maine and Town of Kittery, this 
meeting will be held remotely in accordance with LD 2167.  The meeting will be broadcast on 

Channel 22, Facebook, and live broadcast from the Town’s website. 

 

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION - None  

17. ADJOURNMENT     

         
Posted:  February 4, 2021 



 

 
Town Manager’s Report to the Town Council 

February 8, 2021 
 

 
1. Joint Land Use Implementation Project – The Implementation Committee for the JLUS Phase 2 

project met on Monday, February 1.  The Committee includes representatives from PNSY, Kittery, 
MDOT, NHDOT, SMPDC, Portsmouth, Eliot, York, Sanford, Rochester Planning Commission, and 
Congressional observers. 

The Committee reviewed and discussed the transit gap analysis for both public and private van pool 
service, ideal zones and characteristics for potential future multi-modal hubs (park-and-ride facilities), 
affordable housing gap analysis and groundwork for planning, and communications plan development.  
Attached is the project update flyer. 

2. Regional Climate Assessment – This is to provide an update on the Town’s collaborative climate 
adaptation efforts.  As a reminder, the Town has joined with five neighboring communities and SMPDC 
to work collaboratively on climate initiatives that benefit both Kittery and the region. 

SMPDC has completed the regional assessment and issued a report that compares common strategies for 
success, common barriers and challenges, and priorities.  The analysis identifies areas where we can 
share both resources and expertise to accomplish our objectives.  Attached is the Regional Climate 
Assessment report. 

The Town is also utilizing this collaborative to advance a community solar initiative that would gain the 
Town (and other partner towns) access to solar energy, generated by projects built elsewhere in Maine.  
The agreements are at least cost neutral and often produce savings on electricity costs while supplying 
renewable energy. 

3. Fiscal Year 2021 Q2 Report –  Please see attached. 

4. Upcoming Dates: 

• Heart Aglow Skate Event – Frisbee On Ice at the KCC, February 12 and 13 
• Town Hall Closed for Presidents’ Day – February 15 
• Taylor Building Reopen – February 16 
• Real Estate Taxes Due – February 16, Town Hall or Online 
• Mooring Renewals Open 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Kendra Amaral 
Town Manager 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
Office of the Town Manager 

200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 
Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 

kamaral@kitteryme.org  

 
 

 

mailto:kamaral@kitteryme.org




 

 
 

  

 

GETTING THERE FROM HERE:  

A BASELINE FOR ADVANCING CLIMATE ACTION IN 
SOUTHERN MAINE 

Regional Sustainability and                

Coastal Resilience Assessment 

REGIONAL SUSTAINABILITY 

AND RESILIENCE PROGRAM – 
Southern Maine Planning 
and Development 
Commission 
 

January 2021 

 

MEMBER TOWNS 

Kennebunk 

Kennebunkport 

Kittery 

Ogunquit 

Wells 

York 



 

1 
 

Contents 
Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Detailed Progress by Category .................................................................................................................... 3 

Lessons and Best Practices for Achieving Progress ............................................................................. 12 

Successful Strategies ................................................................................................................................... 12 

Barriers and Challenges ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Meaningful Progress through Regional Action ..................................................................................... 16 

Regional Priorities and Next Steps .......................................................................................................... 17 

Conclusion ..................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Appendix A: Indicators of Progress ......................................................................................................... 19 

Appendix B: Town Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessments ........................................ 23 

 

 

  



 

2 
 

Executive Summary 
 

The Southern Maine Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program was established in 2019 

when the towns of Kittery, Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, Ogunquit, Wells, and York sought to 

create a regional program to support their individual sustainability and coastal resiliency efforts. 

To establish a baseline of sustainability and coastal resilience efforts and needs in individual 

communities and the coastal York Country region, the Program conducted a comprehensive 

assessment of individual town and regional action undertaken to-date.  

Each of the Program’s six towns was evaluated on identical sustainability and resilience strategies 

within twelve categories, with strategies grouped into 22 indicators that reflect broadscale 

sustainability and coastal resilience goals that are relevant to this region. By comparing and 

synthesizing the results from the individual assessments of each town, the regional assessment 

identified: 

1. Common Strategies for Success that enable progress on actions. 

2. Common Barriers and Challenges that limit the towns’ ability to implement actions. 

3. Regional Priorities and Next Steps identified from common priorities among the 

towns’ future efforts that could benefit from a regional approach. 

Findings from the regional assessment are summarized below and expanded upon in the full-

length report. This analysis and the identified regional priorities will guide the future work of the 

SMPDC Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program. 

 

Regional Assessment Key Findings 

Strategies for Success: 

o Incorporating the action into town long-term planning priorities. Towns that have 

incorporated specific sustainability or resilience goals into their long-term plans are more 

likely to have made progress on those actions. 

o Having a committee that advises, directs, and champions efforts on the action. The 

towns that have formally established municipal committees with clear and documented 

charges have made more progress on related actions. 

o Outside funding is available for work on the action. When towns have access to and the 

ability to pursue grants or other funding sources, they are more likely to make progress on 

an action. 

o Community partners support the town’s efforts on the action. Local non-profits and land 

trusts play a key role in supporting town’s efforts by providing technical assistance, 

funding, and capacity. 



 

3 
 

 

Barriers and Challenges: 

o Lack of municipal staff expertise, capacity, and training on sustainability and 

resilience principles. This results in missed opportunities for sustainability and resilience to 

be incorporated into municipal projects and day-to-day operations. 

o Low Community Engagement/Participation. Towns with communities that are less 

engaged in sustainability and resilience initiatives have pursued fewer actions due to the 

lack of direction, support, and committee participation.  

o Insufficient outside funding. Strategies where there is limited access to outside funding 

tend to not be pursued as often as strategies where funding is readily available. 

o Lack of technical expertise and guidance. Many sustainability and resilience actions 

require new and specific expertise, which require guidance from state or regional sources. 

o Minimal State guidance and directives. To-date, little guidance, direction, or order has 

been issued or provided by State government to encourage, incentivize, and/or require 

action at the municipal level. 

o Limited municipal budgets. Towns struggle to find and allocate scarce financial resources 

to support sustainability and resilience actions. 

o Low prioritization of issues by municipal governing bodies. A lack of support for or 

interest in sustainability and resilience actions by the governing body can significantly 

hinder towns’ progress. 

o Resistance to regulatory approaches. Utilizing regulatory approaches for addressing 

climate impacts is a valuable tool for reducing climate impacts to people, property, and 

the environment, yet has largely been unemployed in the region.  



 

4 
 

Regional Priorities 

To expand upon individual town action, address barriers, and accelerate progress, many efforts 

would benefit from a regional approach. Potential regional priorities and next steps were 

identified based on common priorities and needs among the towns’ sustainability and resilience 

efforts.  

Regional Priorities include: 

1. Understand communitywide GHG emissions 

for our region to plan and take action on 

emissions reductions.  

2. Understand regional climate change 

impacts and developing a plan with 

specific strategies to address those 

impacts. 

3. Prepare for coastal hazards. 

4. Help local businesses be sustainable and 

resilient to climate change. 

5. Facilitate regional efforts to procure 

renewable energy for municipal 

operations. 

6. Provide technical assistance to support 

sustainable transportation efforts. 

7. Ensure municipal and regional climate 

change goals and priorities align with and 

support the State of Maine Climate Action 

Plan. 

8. Increase staff and committee capacity for 

addressing sustainability and resilience in 

municipal operations. 

9. Engage community members on local 

climate change, sustainability, and 

resilience issues. 

10. Work with committees and local non-

profits to collaborate on and promote 

local events and education campaigns 

11. Support watershed health. 

 

 

  

The work of Karina 
Graeter and Abbie 
Sherwin, co-leaders of 
the SMPDC Regional 
Sustainability and 
Resilience Program, was 
featured in Maine 
Won’t Wait: A Four-
Year Plan for Climate 
Action as an example of 
successful regional 
collaboration to address 

climate change issues.  



 

1 
 

Introduction 

 

The Southern Maine Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program (the Program) was established in 2019 

when the towns of Kittery, Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, Ogunquit, Wells, and York sought to create a 

regional program to support their individual sustainability and coastal resiliency efforts. Managed by the 

Southern Maine Planning and Development Commission (SMPDC), the Program works to foster more 

sustainable and resilient communities by leveraging regional collaboration to enhance the effectiveness of 

local government action.  

One of the primary objectives of the Program is to establish a baseline of sustainability and coastal 

resilience efforts and needs in individual communities and the coastal York Country region. To achieve that 

objective, SMPDC conducted a comprehensive assessment of individual town and regional action on 

sustainability and resilience undertaken to-date. Town assessments aid the municipalities with identifying 

specific priorities to help inform municipal planning, policies, and strategies. The regional assessment helps 

to identify and prioritize areas of current and potential regional collaboration on sustainability and 

coastal resilience issues. It also serves as a repository of information on individual towns’ past efforts to 

create a resource for all communities to draw from the knowledge and experiences of each other.  

To conduct the town assessments, Program staff developed a framework for municipalities to evaluate 

current and past sustainability and resilience initiatives, select suitable goals and actions, identify tailored 

objectives and strategies to advance municipal priorities, and access informational resources. Working with 

municipal staff and committee members, the framework was completed for each town, with existing 

planning and policy documents reviewed to 

identify current municipal priorities. Each town 

was evaluated on identical strategies within 

twelve categories, with strategies grouped 

into 22 “Indicators of Progress” that reflect 

broadscale sustainability and coastal 

resilience goals that are relevant to this 

region. Detailed descriptions of the Indicators 

of Progress are presented in Appendix A. A 

qualitative assessment of the towns’ progress 

on each indicator, ranging from “Not yet 

considered” to “Excelling”, was completed. 

Each town’s progress on sustainability and 

resilience action in individual town assessments 

was synthesized, presented in Appendix B.  

What is Resilience? 

 

Community resilience is the capacity of a 

community to absorb, withstand, recover from, and 

adapt to changing conditions and disturbances while 

sustaining key functions, structures, and performance. 

It involves all dimensions of a system, including social, 

built, and natural environments within a community. 

Coastal resilience refers specifically to disasters and 

events arising from coastal hazards such as sea level 

rise, increased flooding, more frequent and intense 

storm surges, and shoreline erosion. It can be 

achieved by minimizing vulnerabilities through 

adaptation and mitigation planning.  

Climate resilience is the ability to anticipate, 

prepare for, and respond to hazardous events, 

trends, or disturbances related to climate. Creating 

climate resilience consists of mitigation (i.e. 

greenhouse gas emissions reductions) and adaptation 

to climate change impacts. 

 

What is Sustainability? 
 

Sustainability is when a healthy 

environment, economic prosperity and 

social justice are pursued simultaneously to 

ensure the well-being and quality of life of 

present and future generations. 



 

2 
 

To conduct the regional assessment, Program staff compared and synthesized the results and findings of 

the individual town assessments. For each category, the relative progress of the towns on each indicator 

was assessed and actions frequently pursued by towns were examined. Staff investigated common factors 

that appeared to enable successful implementation of actions, and determined collective barriers and 

challenges that the towns faced. Through this process, common priorities for towns’ future sustainability and 

resilience efforts, as well as regional actions that could be taken to accelerate progress while addressing 

barriers that the towns face, were identified. 

Results of the regional assessment are shared in the following sections. First presented is a detailed 

analysis of regional progress on sustainability and resilience actions by category. Lessons and best 

practices for making progress across all categories, with specific examples from the towns, are then 

shared. The final section presents regional priorities and next steps that will guide the work of the 

Program. By harnessing the power of regional action to build upon individual town efforts, address 

barriers, and accelerate progress, the Program will strive toward a sustainable and resilient future for 

coastal York County. 

Category Indicator 

Climate 
o Establish a GHG emissions inventory, target, and plan 

o Assess vulnerability to climate change 

Coastal Hazards 
o Integrate coastal risk reduction measures in zoning and regulations 

o Incorporate future climatic conditions into land use requirements and municipal policies 

Economic 
Development 

o Promote and support sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses 

Energy 

o Reduce municipal fossil fuel consumption and implement municipal energy efficiency measures 

o Promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses 

o Support development of and access to renewable energy 

Land Ecosystems o Promote and practice environmentally-friendly and sustainable landscape approaches 

Leadership o Participate as an active member of a national/regional sustainability and resilience network 

Mobility 

o Promote and facilitate transit systems as well as bicycle and pedestrian networks 

o Adopt a complete streets policy 

o Support the electrification of the transportation system, leading by example with the municipal fleet 

Municipal 
Operations 

o Formally adopt sustainability and resilience goals, policies, and strategies 

o Establish local financing strategies for sustainability and resilience activities 

o Incorporate sustainability and resilience criteria in municipal expenditure policies 

Sustainable 
Communities 

o Connect residents to resources and services that support wellbeing and enhance community resilience 

o Actively engage community members in local climate, sustainability, and resilience issues 

Sustainable 
Development 

o Facilitate compact, mixed-use development that reduces environmental impacts and increases housing 

affordability 

Waste & Recycling o Deliver sustainable and affordable waste management services 

Water 
o Include Low Impact Development in performance and design standards 

o Establish and enforce progressive watershed protection measures 



 

3 
 

Detailed Progress by Category 
 

Climate 
Towns in the region have accelerated their work on climate action in the past decade. Progress addressing 

town greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions varies among the towns. Those towns with the longest standing 

energy-focused committees have made the most progress (York and Kennebunk). Committees supply 

volunteer time, expertise, and help to prioritize these issues with the town’s governing body. Kennebunk, 

Kennebunkport and York have hired college students and recent graduates to assist them with their GHG 

inventory efforts. To-date, towns have primarily funded climate mitigation (i.e. GHG reduction) planning 

internally, having received very little grant funding. York voters have approved $150k in funding for a 

Climate Action Plan, the development of which is starting soon. Towns would benefit from streamlined state 

or regional assistance on climate mitigation, with resources such as a GHG inventory framework, assistance 

on standardizing the data collection process, suggested or regionalized goals, and funding for climate 

action planning. 

Climate change adaptation has become a priority issue for the region as towns are already experiencing 

impacts, including extensive damage and flooding from recent storm events and more frequent nuisance 

flooding. All towns have taken initial steps to assess their vulnerability to climate change. Much of this work 

has occurred through grant funded projects, often overseen by partners from planning and research 

institutions such as SMPDC, Woods Hole Group, or the Wells Reserve. To-date, vulnerability assessments 

have been focused on coastal issues. There are several ongoing grant-funded projects, including: 

assessments of the economic and social impacts of sea level rise and storm surge; development of a 

regional economic resilience plan to prepare for sea level rise and coastal storms; development of a 

model coastal resilience ordinance; and design of erosion and sedimentation control standards that account 

for climate change impacts. Further, all of the towns have advanced flood modeling completed by Ransom 

Engineering. This assessment work is vital for understanding impacts and lays the groundwork for 

developing and initiating adaptation strategies and reducing vulnerabilities. The region would benefit 

from the synthesis of these various studies and their results as well as the institutionalization of the 

adaptation work to push climate adaptation action forward. 

  



 

4 
 

Coastal Hazards 
Evaluating and addressing coastal hazards and the risks they pose are priorities for all of the towns. The 

local and regional economies are heavily dependent on coastal areas and also highly vulnerable to 

hazards such as flooding and erosion. Economic centers that double as cultural hubs, such as Dock Square, 

Kennebunk’s lower village, and Long Sands, are at risk of coastal flooding, sea level rise, and beach 

erosion. Towns are at varying points on the spectrum of planning and action. 

While none of the towns explicitly integrate sea level rise or storm surge hazards in their zoning and 

regulations, each towns’ comprehensive plan makes mention of the need to address coastal flood hazards 

and several towns have entire chapters devoted to certain coastal hazards. Further, several municipalities 

are undertaking comprehensive plan update processes, offering a timely opportunity to incorporate 

specific land use measures to address coastal hazards and provide the enabling foundation for adopting 

regulations to reduce risks. Kittery, for example, has a coastal community resilience chapter that includes a 

strategy to review and revise Town codes to account for the impacts of sea level rise and climate 

adaptation.  

Some towns are beginning to account for climate change in land use codes and municipal policies. Most of 

the considerations are focused on coastal flooding and sea level rise. York and Kennebunkport require 

new structures within the regulatory floodplain to be elevated two feet above the base flood elevation 

(BFE) of the 100-year storm event, which provides more risk reduction for coastal structures than the state 

minimum of one foot above BFE. Wells also incorporated some flood risk reduction measures in its 

floodplain management ordinance, including more protective thresholds triggering compliance of 

development with floodplain development standards.  

The Town of Kittery considers climate change impacts in its long-term budgeting and capital improvement 

plan process. York’s stormwater design standards use higher storm frequencies than those required by 

state regulations. Additionally, several towns have discussed elevating roads vulnerable to flood hazards 

and Kennebunk and Kennebunkport have already elevated some roadway sections to reduce flooding. 

Kennebunk and York have integrated resilience measures in repair work to municipal seawalls and Wells is 

in the process of pursuing funding to repair and strengthen existing seawalls. Additionally, York, 

Kennebunk, Wells, and Kittery are involved in grant-funded projects led by SMDPC that are developing 

specific coastal adaptation and resilience land use and zoning strategies, which will be transferable to all 

the towns. 



 

5 
 

 

Economic Development 
Efforts in the region to promote and support sustainability and resilience 

action for local businesses have been somewhat limited. Kittery has 

begun to engage the business community through the KCAC, which 

requires two members to be representatives of local businesses, one of 

which must include aquaculture. Kennebunk and Kennebunkport 

participated in a Wells Reserve led project, “Decreasing Vulnerability 

for our Beach-Based Businesses”, which worked with local businesses to 

assess their ability to maintain operations during and after a disaster. 

The small towns in our region do not necessarily have the economic 

development capacity to lead this work, but they could benefit from and 

support a regional outreach and education effort to connect businesses 

to assistance on sustainability and resilience. The SMPDC economic 

development department and their EPA Brownfields assistance program 

is a potential partner for incorporating sustainability and resilience into 

economic development activities. 

 

Energy 
Town efforts in energy-related actions have been primarily focused on reducing municipal energy use and 

fossil fuel consumption. Singular energy efficiency projects are relatively easy for municipalities to 

undertake, due to clear and visible ties between reducing energy use and cost savings. With several 

rebates and grant programs available through Efficiency Maine Trust, there can be little upfront cost for 

small-scale upgrades. Thus, energy efficiency projects are seen as ‘low hanging fruit”, easily achievable 

and visible actions that can be highlighted by towns as action that benefits the town’s bottom line while 

simultaneously reducing climate impact. Upgrading streetlights to LEDs has been a priority for all 6 towns, 

all of whom have either completed or are in progress of completing upgrades. Energy efficiency upgrades 

are often incorporated into larger building projects, such as major renovations or new construction. Towns 

with energy-focused committees (Wells, Kennebunk, and York) have made the most progress. Towns could 



 

6 
 

benefit from direct technical assistance and funding for energy audits, renewable energy installations, and 

energy efficiency actions.  

Energy efficiency for residents and businesses has been less of a focus for the municipalities. Town energy-

related committees have done some outreach about other organization’s weatherization programs. The 

Maine Climate Action Plan Strategy B calls for Maine to “Modernize Maine’s Buildings: Energy-Efficient, 

Smart and Cost-Effective Homes and Businesses.” The towns will likely need support to provide 

weatherization outreach and to community members available through state programs. 

Since the Net Energy Billing Program and other state solar laws passed in 2019, all municipalities have 

started to actively consider solar electricity opportunities. York and Wells have installed roof-top solar on 

municipal properties and are exploring larger municipal solar efforts on underutilized land. Some of the 

towns are exploring a collaborative Net Energy Billing Credit Agreement procurement. York has, and 

Kittery is developing, ordinances permitting the development of small-, medium-, and large-scale solar. 

Work regarding both municipal and community solar development is 

generally led by town managers, planning departments, and town 

committees. Municipalities could benefit from technical assistance in 

the planning board process for solar developments to ensure that 

new solar developments have a positive impact on the community. 

Technical assistance for securing their own renewable energy 

resources, either through solar on municipal property or through the 

Net Energy Billing program would be beneficial.  

 

Land Ecosystems 
Promoting and practicing environmentally friendly and sustainable 

landscape approaches have been priorities for our municipalities for 

many years. As a result, Land Ecosystems is one of the categories 

where the towns have pursued the most actions. There are several 

factors that contribute to this sustained action. The towns 1) must 

manage their own lands and landscapes 2) frequently partner with 

several strong conservation groups or ecosystem-focused non-profits, 

and 3) have a strong nature-based tourism culture that supports the 

local economy. Much of this work is driven by dedicated and 

knowledgeable municipal staff, including members of the public works 

and planning departments. To-date, forest management work is the 

least prominent. This may become an important topic as the State 

develops plans or programs on forest management for carbon 

sequestration to meet state carbon neutrality targets. 

One common identified issue for towns is pesticide and fertilizer use by 

residents and businesses. There has been public education and outreach 

regarding this topic, but towns lack the capacity and authority to 

enforce community pesticide use regulations and could benefit from 

statewide guidance and support on this topic.  

 

Leadership 
All program towns have demonstrated commitment to leading their 

communities and the State in sustainability and resilience action. The 

establishment of the Regional Program is itself an example of the 



 

7 
 

leadership shown by each of the six towns. Most of the towns have partnered with universities and 

research groups to complete specific projects. Three of the towns have worked with students through the 

UNH Sustainability Fellow Program. Towns with committees are playing more active roles in regional and 

national sustainability and resilience networks. The towns will benefit from continuing and expanding 

collaboration through the Regional Program and working in partnership with other networks to share best 

practices and participate in peer learning. 

 

Mobility 
Efforts related to sustainable transportation vary greatly among the towns. In general, all towns aim to 

incorporate sidewalks and bike lanes where feasible to increase accessibility and safety. Towns such as 

York and Ogunquit with Bike and Pedestrian Committees have made more progress on promoting safe 

and accessible alternative transportation through bicycle and pedestrian planning and complete streets 

efforts. Only Ogunquit has adopted a Complete Streets policy, but both Kittery and York have identified 

it as a priority in municipal planning documents. Other towns such as Wells and Kittery have focused more 

heavily on transit systems. In general, municipal staff share that the lack of transit options is a barrier to 

alternative transportation for their community members.  

 

All the towns are in the beginning stages of supporting the electrification of the transportation system. 

Some have installed public EV chargers with the help of Efficiency Maine grants, and a few have started 

incorporating EVs into the municipal fleets. None have done regulatory work to ensure new developments 

support EV readiness. There is significant funding and technical expertise available to communities to 

promote municipal fleet and EV charging infrastructure, but the towns could use direct support to access 

resources and understand the regulatory implications of EV expansion. 

 

The towns have access to varying levels of regional funding and support for sustainable and resilient 

transportation initiatives. Kittery and York are part of the Kittery Area Comprehensive Transportation 

System Metropolitan Planning Organization (KACTS MPO), a committee responsible for planning and 

programming federally funded transportation projects. The KACTS MPO provides regional coordination, 

funding, and staff resources for transportation projects in the region. The remaining Towns in the region are 

supported by Maine Dept. of Transportation (MDOT) rural assistance funds, which are not necessarily tied 

to regional coordination. The SMPDC transportation department provides primarily staff support for the 



 

8 
 

KACTS MPO and administers the MDOT rural assistance funds in York County. This lends itself to future 

internal coordination between the SMPDC Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program and the SMPDC 

Transportation Department to increase regional action. 

 

Municipal Operations 
Towns are working to formally adopt sustainability and resilience goals, policies, and strategies. Much of 

this progress relates to whether or not towns have incorporated sustainability and resilience in their 

comprehensive plans or recently updated their plans to address such issues. Those towns that do have 

recent updates have all incorporated climate change and sustainability/resilience goals and strategies. All 

the towns except Kennebunkport have established a municipal committee to advise on sustainability 

resilience issues, although they are working with the town’s Conservation Commission to make climate 

change a part of their charge. None of the towns have a stand-alone sustainability or resilience plan. Both 

Kennebunk and York have joined the Global Covenant of Mayors on Climate and Energy. York is the only 

town to set a GHG reduction target. Kennebunkport has formally adopted climate change goals through 

the Board of Selectmen.  

Less work has been done to establish local financing strategies for sustainability and resilience activities. 

Some of the towns have used Power Purchase Agreements for solar systems and leases for financing EVs, 

and many have utilized grant funding wherever possible.  None of the towns currently have long-term 

budgeting or planning for energy efficiency upgrades, and none have specific funds set aside for 

reinvesting cost savings into sustainability or resilience initiatives (i.e. a green revolving fund). Kittery is the 

only town to begin considering sustainability and resilience criteria for its Capital Improvement Program. 

Towns could benefit from training and technical support on how to create long-term funding for 

sustainability and resilience work with municipal budgets and capital improvement plans. 

 

  



 

9 
 

 

Sustainable Communities 
The municipalities are successfully 

connecting residents to resources and 

services that support wellbeing and 

enhance community resilience. 

Generally, larger towns provide more 

services than smaller communities, due 

to larger municipal budgets. This is 

especially true with supporting access to 

local foods through sources like farmers 

markets or community gardens. 

Regional collaboration could help 

smaller communities connect residents to 

services in other towns.  

Each town has a vested interest in 

outreach and engagement on local 

climate and sustainability issues. For 

towns with strong committees and other 

local non-profits, there are many 

opportunities for residents to engage these issues. Kittery, Kennebunk, and York have grass-roots 

community groups that engage residents. However, little information is publicly available (e.g. through the 

town websites) about the towns’ efforts to promote sustainability and resilience through municipal 

operations. Increasing regional collaboration and communication could expand the reach of outreach and 

engagement efforts to all communities in the region and promote broader understanding of the towns’ 

efforts. 

 

Sustainable Development 
Progress varies among towns on sustainable development. Recent 

increases in development activity and decreases in housing 

affordability in southern Maine have led many towns to begin 

facilitating compact, mixed use development that reduces 

environmental impacts and increases housing affordability. Protecting 

greenfields and open space has been a priority for the towns for 

many years. This work is often done through development 

requirements, such as open space subdivisions, and partnerships with 

local conservation organizations. Affordable housing has been a 

particularly important issue in recent years, leading to the formation 

of an Affordable Housing Committee in Kittery and Kennebunk and 

zoning regulation changes in York to require affordable housing in 

new developments. Increased regional coordination on sustainable 

development could be achieved through partnering with the SMPDC 

Land Use Planning Department and the SMPDC EPA Brownfields 

assistance program. 

 



 

10 
 

Waste 
Each town in the region is responsible for its own waste management 

services. Waste and recycling have been top priorities for many of 

the towns. Towns have successfully used ordinances to influence 

resident behavior and increase recycling rates. Kittery and York have 

a mandatory recycling ordinance. Kennebunk has an ordinance 

banning single-use plastic bags, and language in the solid waste 

ordinance permitting curbside compost pickup. Some towns have a 

solid waste committee or recycling committee to advise the town on 

waste issues, while others do not. All the towns have struggled with 

the recent changes to the U.S. recycling market, particularly those 

towns that were paying for single-stream curbside recycling. 

Kennebunkport ceased their curbside recycling program until they 

could negotiate a new recycling contract. As with other services, the 

larger towns with more resources have more encompassing waste 

management services. Waste management efforts in all towns have 

focused on residential, not commercial waste. Outreach and education 

on waste tend to be limited to signage and mailers for most 

communities. Kennebunk and Kennebunkport have used MDEP grant 

funds to create lobster trap compost bin programs. A regional education and outreach campaign would 

help the towns encourage waste reduction, recycling and composting by residents, municipal staff and 

businesses.  

 

Water 
Managing stormwater and minimizing water quality impacts of development are top priorities for all the 

towns, especially in recent years as development pressure in the region has intensified. While towns’ 

interest in employing low impact development (LID) is growing, it is neither widely utilized nor broadly 

cited in towns’ land use requirements. The Town of York is the only one to require LID through its land use 

ordinance for development projects triggering site plan or subdivision review. York also incentivizes LID by 

allowing for increased impervious coverage in certain zoning districts if LID is utilized. York’s LID provision 

requires that developers submit proposed LID strategies for stormwater management but does not include 

any criteria or design standards for LID measures. Kittery is in the process of amending its land use 

ordinance to require LID for commercial land uses. Both Kittery and York are Municipal Separate Storm 

Sewer System (MS4) communities, and therefore have enhanced stormwater management requirements 

and programs that could serve as model examples for other towns. Encouraging and requiring the use of 

LID techniques regionally would help towns address water quality concerns and precipitation-based 

flooding events while providing ancillary resilience benefits, including climate mitigation through carbon 

sequestration by plants, restored aquatic habitat, reduced heat island effect by shading and minimizing 

impervious surfaces, improved groundwater recharge, enhanced neighborhood beauty, and increased 

property values. 

Watershed-based management is a challenging endeavor, as watershed boundaries seldom follow 

municipal borders or fall entirely within one town, lending the management style perfectly to a true 

regional approach. The six towns have made progress on a number of watershed protection efforts and in 

some cases, have collaborated on watershed-based projects. All towns continue to face development 

pressure and land use practices that contribute to polluted waters and environmental degradation. All six 

towns support land conservation efforts to protect water quality and watershed resources. The Rachel 

Carson National Wildlife Refuge has been a key player for conserving ecologically significant and 



 

11 
 

environmentally sensitive land in 

the region. Kennebunk and 

Kennebunkport recently 

participated in the Kennebunk 

River Watershed-based 

Management planning effort, 

actively implementing protective 

zoning measures for the Branch 

Brook Aquifer and are interested 

in pursuing improved stormwater 

management practices for water 

quality protection. Wells has 

strong protective measures for 

groundwater and aquifer 

recharge areas through its land 

use code.  

Kittery and York have 

implemented exemplary water 

quality protection measures, including wetlands and watershed protection ordinances, support for the York 

River Watershed Wild and Scenic designation process, and watershed-based restoration projects. York 

also has ordinances requiring the use of low impact development (LID), periodic pump out of septic 

systems, and open space subdivisions provisions requiring development designs centered around 

conserving open space, ecological features, and the natural environment. Kittery has implemented green 

infrastructure projects to manage stormwater runoff on municipal properties. Ogunquit has undertaken 

watershed protection measures and implemented green infrastructure and low impact development (LID) 

projects to reduce water pollution from stormwater runoff through the Ogunquit River Watershed 

Restoration Project. Working with neighboring communities, such as Wells, that have land within the 

Watershed to address ongoing water quality issues is of the utmost importance for the Town. 

  



 

12 
 

Lessons and Best Practices for Achieving Progress 

 

Successful Strategies 
Program municipalities have achieved success implementing a range of sustainability and resilience actions. 

While each towns’ individual efforts are detailed in the town specific Sustainability and Coastal Resilience 

Reports (Appendix B), this report outlines a summary of key activities and exemplary efforts in the six-

town region. Across the many actions undertaken, there are several common strategies and characteristics 

that appear to enable progress.  

Municipalities tend to make more progress on actions when: 

1. The action is incorporated into town long-term planning priorities. Towns that have 

incorporated specific sustainability or resilience goals into their long-term plans are more likely to 

have made progress on those actions. This is the case for many land ecosystem, sustainable 

development, and climate strategies.  

Examples: 

o The Town of Kittery’s comprehensive plan (updated in 2015) features a section on Coastal 

Community Resilience, with the goal to “Establish short, medium, and long term plans to 

address the effects of climate change…”. This goal led to the establishment of the Kittery 

Climate Adaptation Committee and efforts to assess Kittery’s vulnerability to climate 

change. Kittery’s comprehensive plan also incorporates sustainability as a guiding 

principle, evaluating each topic of the plan on how it aligns with sustainability principles. 

o The Town of York has an Energy Chapter in its comprehensive plan and incorporates 

sustainability as a key theme throughout the plan. The Energy Chapter has guided the 

work of the York Energy Efficiency Steering Committee and has led to many municipal 

energy efficiency and renewable energy projects.  

2. The town has a committee that advises, directs, and champions efforts. The towns that have 

formally established municipal committees with clear and documented charges have made more 

progress on related actions. Committees include those focused on topics such as climate, energy, 

sustainability, bicycle and 

pedestrian, affordable housing, 

or solid waste and recycling. 

Active and engaged 

conservation commissions can 

also drive action forward. The 

longevity and level of 

involvement of these committees 

influence the towns’ progress on 

different actions. Additionally, 

effective coordination with and 

support from the towns’ select 

boards and/or councils 

generally enables more success.  
Kittery municipal staff and committee members participate in a planning 
workshop to go through the Maine Flood Resilience Checklist. 



 

13 
 

 

Examples: 

o Both York and Kennebunk have had 

energy-related committees since the late 

2000s. These long-standing committees 

they have been able to make significant 

progress on the towns’ energy efficiency 

and renewable energy efforts. 

o The Town of Ogunquit established a 

Sustainability Committee in 2020. Because 

the committee is charged with addressing 

all sustainability issues, it provides 

flexibility for the committee to work on 

various sustainability and resilience actions.  

o The Town of Kittery established the Kittery 

Climate Adaptation Committee to advise 

the town on ways to make Kittery more resilient in the face of risks associated with 

warming temperatures and rising seas. The committee also has town subcommittees – Built 

& Natural Landscape Impacts subcommittee and Energy Efficiency subcommittee – to carry 

out detailed work on specific topics.  

3. Outside funding is available for work on the action. When towns have access to and the ability 

to pursue grants or other funding sources, they are more likely to make progress on an action. This 

is the case for energy efficiency projects (that are often supported by rebates), EV charging 

projects, climate vulnerability assessments, and watershed management efforts.  

Examples: 

o Ogunquit tapped into federal funding under section 319 of the Clean Water Act and the 

Maine Coastal Communities 

Grant Program for multiple 

projects to study pollutant 

sources, reduce bacteria levels, 

and improve water quality in the 

Ogunquit River Watershed. 

o All six towns are participating in 

grant-funded efforts to assess 

social and economic impacts of 

coastal storms and sea level rise 

and develop targeted and 

tailored adaptation and 

mitigation strategies. Much 

needed coastal vulnerability 

assessments and related 

resilience planning activities are 

Kittery has worked on the Spruce Creek Watershed Restoration 
project for over a decade with funding assistance from the 
Environmental protection agency under section 319 of the Clean 
Water Act. 

The Town of Kittery installed a two port Level 2 EV 
charging station at the Rice Library. 



 

14 
 

occurring through outside funding secured for 

the towns by SMPDC.  

o Through the efforts of its Energy Efficiency 

Committee, the Town of Kennebunk was able to 

install EV charging stations with grant funding 

from Efficiency Maine. 

4. Community partners support the town’s efforts. Local 

non-profits play a key role in supporting town’s efforts, 

particularly for land ecosystem, water, coastal hazard, 

and climate actions. They provide technical assistance, 

funding, and capacity that can make it feasible to act 

on sustainability and resilience issues. 

Examples: 

o All the towns have consistently worked with 

local land trusts to conserve and preserve land 

and local ecosystems. The Town of Wells, for 

example, works with its conservation commission 

and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Rachel 

Carson National Wildlife Refuge to conserve 

properties that are vulnerable to flooding or 

erosion hazards or have ecological significance which it acquires through tax foreclosure. 

o Kennebunkport partnered with SMPDC and the local nonprofit Kennebunkport Climate 

Initiative to advise the Board of Selectmen to set municipal climate change goals.  

o The Town of York has partnered with the York Land Trust and York Water District to 

conserve and protect land surrounding the Town’s drinking water source.  

 

Barriers and Challenges 

In addition to the common factors that enable success on sustainability and resilience efforts, there are 

several common barriers and challenges that limit the towns’ ability to implement actions, including: 

o Lack of municipal staff expertise, capacity, and training on sustainability and resilience 

principles. Most municipal staff are already stretched thin with existing workloads and job 

responsibilities and lack the capacity and the expertise to be able to adequately integrate these 

principles into their work. To date, there has been little to no sustainability and resilience training 

provided to municipal staff, elected officials, or committee members. This results in missed 

opportunities for sustainability and resilience to be incorporated into municipal projects and day-

to-day operations. This is particularly important for financing actions, which can be easier to 

budget for when part of a larger or ongoing effort.  

o Low Community Engagement/Participation. Towns rely on community members for direction, 

support, and committee participation. Towns with communities that are less engaged in 

sustainability and resilience initiatives, such as Wells and Ogunquit, have pursued fewer actions. 

Smaller towns often face a greater challenge engaging the community as they have limited staff 

capacity for outreach and fewer residents to volunteer on committees.  

The towns of Ogunquit and Wells partner with the 
Maine Audubon and other agencies to monitor the 
endangered species such as the Least Tern and 
Piping plover. 



 

15 
 

o Insufficient outside funding. 

Strategies where there is limited 

access to outside funding tend to not 

be pursued as often as those 

strategies where funding is readily 

available. This is often the case for 

Waste and Recycling efforts, for 

which more sustainable practices are 

often the more expensive option.  

o Lack of technical expertise and 

guidance. Many sustainability and 

resilience actions require new and 

specific knowledge. When 

municipalities do not have the 

technical expertise in house to 

undertake a sustainability or 

resilience action, they can turn to guidance from state or regional sources. However, these are 

often limited as well, such as guidance for renewable energy development and procurement, 

actions to support the electrification of the transportation system, and GHG inventories and climate 

action planning. As a result, municipalities have been less inclined to pursue these strategies.  

o Minimal State guidance and directives. To-date, little guidance, direction, or order has been 

issued or provided by State government to encourage, incentivize, and/or require sustainability 

and resilience action at the municipal level. With the recent efforts of the Maine Climate Council 

and release of the State Climate Action Plan, there should be more resources, support, and 

guidance being provided to towns and regions for advancing climate action. 

o Limited municipal budgets. Towns have finite financial resources and seemingly ever-growing lists 

of programs, services, and initiatives to fund. Finding and allocating scarce financial resources to 

support sustainability and resilience actions, which are largely new investments for towns and 

therefore can carry a sense of uncertainty, has been challenging.  

o Low prioritization of issues by municipal governing bodies. As with any elected body, 

municipal select boards and councils are subject to shifting political winds and priorities. A lack of 

support for or interest in sustainability and resilience action by the governing body can 

significantly hinder towns’ progress. 

o Resistance to regulatory approaches. Utilizing regulatory tools to address climate change is a 

strategy that has been discussed but not yet meaningfully pursued within the six towns. Community 

discussions about amending existing or developing new regulations can trigger hesitation, 

insecurity, and opposition. This is especially the case for regulations related to climate change, due 

to inherent uncertainty associated with exact future climate conditions and impacts, and 

longstanding support for individual property rights. Regulatory approaches that incorporate 

climate change are also relatively new and untested in Maine. Additionally, development of sound 

regulatory strategies grounded in science requires foundational information about anticipated 

climate impacts, local vulnerabilities, and effective measures for addressing those impacts. Towns 

are currently in the initial stage of gathering that information. 

  

When the Town of Ogunquit planted a new garden on the Marginal 
Way, they created a wildlife friendly design that is a Certified Wildlife 
Habitat by the National Wildlife Federation.  



 

16 
 

Meaningful Progress through Regional Action 
 

The SMPDC Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program is building upon towns’ individual progress on 

sustainability and resilience efforts through a collaborative regional approach to advance municipal 

action. Through this regional partnership, our towns have demonstrated a commitment to effective and 

meaningful climate action in order to help protect the places, natural resources, and way of life so valued 

by communities for future generations.  

For Program communities, some of the greatest obstacles to mitigating and adapting to climate change are 

the lack of capacity, strapped financial resources, and uncertainty about what actions to take to make 

progress on sustainability and resilience issues. A regional strategy is a unique and timely opportunity for 

addressing these obstacles and advancing efforts. By helping the towns communicate and work together on 

climate change initiatives, we are capitalizing on peer learning to share knowledge and experiences and 

leveraging resources for regional initiatives that have a broader impact. To build upon individual 

municipal action, address barriers, and accelerate progress, the Regional Program is focusing on three 

primary areas of action:  

1. Facilitating regional coordination, advocacy, and outreach. 

2. Collecting, synthesizing, and disseminating relevant information and tools. 

3. Providing expert support with research assistance and training. 

Potential regional next steps to increase the sustainability and resilience of Coastal York County are 

detailed below. Town-specific potential next steps are listed in the individual town reports (Appendix B). 

 

  

Solar panels on the roof of the Wells Town Garage reduce municipal electricity emissions and produce utility cost 
savings. 



 

17 
 

Regional Priorities and Next Steps 
 

 

•Develop a framework for communitywide GHG 
emissions for Maine Municipalities and use that 
framework to assess communitywide GHG emissions for 
all towns and the region.

1. Understand communitywide GHG 
emissions for our region to plan and 
take action on emissions reductions

•Assess social and economic vulnerabilities to coastal 
flooding, sea level rise, and storm surge and develop 
locally-tailored regulatory and policy strategies to 
enhance coastal community resilience. 

2. Understand regional climate 
change impacts and developing a 

plan with specific strategies to 
address those impacts

•Assess coastal hazard impacts and local vulnerabilities.

•Develop targeted and tailored land use strategies, 
policy measures, and funding mechanisms that address 
hazards and local vulnerabilities.

3. Prepare for coastal hazards

•Develop a regional sustainable and resilient business 
program to provide education, resources, and technical 
assistance to local businesses.

4. Help local businesses be 
sustainable and resilient to climate 

change

•Lead the Southern Maine Solar Collaborative to 
procure a common Net Energy Billing Credit 
Agreement for a group of Southern Maine towns to 
support Maine distributed solar development and 
reduce municipal energy costs.

5. Facilitate regional efforts to 
procure renewable energy for 

municipal operations

•Assist towns in supporting EV adoption through the 
development and delivery of a Municipal EV 
Readiness toolkit in partnership with regional 
transportation organizations.

•Collaborate with regional transportation organizations 
to ensure sustainability and resilience are integral 
parts of regional transportation efforts.

6. Provide technical assistance to 
support sustainable transportation 

efforts

•Facilitate a municipal workshop detailing the Maine 
Climate Action Plan and its impact on Southern Maine 
municipalities

7. Ensure municipal and regional 
climate change goals and priorities 
align with and support the State of 

Maine Climate Action Plan



 

18 
 

 

Regional Priorities and Next Steps (Continued) 

 

 

Conclusion 
Southern Maine municipalities are on the front lines of climate change. Our towns are already 

experiencing the impacts of increasingly intense and frequent storms, extreme weather events, and shifting 

environmental conditions. Strapped financial resources, lack of capacity, and limited technical support and 

guidance pose significant barriers for municipalities to understand and address climate change. 

Navigating the world of sustainability and resilience can be an overwhelming challenge for our 

communities struggling to balance issues of community planning, public welfare and safety, fiscal 

responsibility, and economic health. The Southern Maine Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program is 

helping our municipalities move the needle of climate action by leveraging resources, addressing barriers, 

and providing necessary resources and capacity. The Program is assisting towns with undertaking 

coordinated and impactful initiatives and providing a roadmap for achieving a sustainable and resilient 

future, helping towns with ‘getting there from here’.   

•Develop an educational program and outreach 
materials for municipal staff and committee members.

8. Increase staff and committee 
capacity for addressing 

sustainability and resilience in 
municipal operations

•Work with committees and local non-profits to 
collaborate on and promote local events and education 
campaigns. 

9. Engage community members on 
local climate change, sustainability, 

and resilience issues

•Work with committees and local non-profits to expand 
outreach and education on waste and recycling 
priorities. 

10. Work with committees and local 
non-profits to collaborate on and 

promote local events and education 
campaigns

•Pursue watershed-based management approaches and 
coordinated strategies for protecting water quality, 
natural resources, and the important activities and 
livelihoods that depend on them.

•Encourage and require low impact development (LID) 
measures to manage stormwater, improve 
environmental health, and mitigate climate impacts. 

11. Support watershed health



 

19 
 

Appendix A: Indicators of Progress 

 

To conduct the individual town assessments, each town was evaluated on identical sustainability 

and resilience strategies within twelve categories, with strategies grouped into 22 indicators that 

reflect broadscale goals that are relevant to this region. The categories and indicators are as 

follows: 

Climate 

Establish a GHG emissions inventory, target, and plan 

Reducing municipal and communitywide greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions are vital to limiting our 

towns’ contributions to climate change. Conducting a GHG emissions inventory, setting GHG 

reduction targets, and implementing a climate action plan are steps towns can take to ensure they 

are working toward a low carbon future. 

Climate change vulnerability assessment 

Our communities are already experiencing the impacts of climate change from rising sea levels, 

increases in extreme precipitation, and warmer temperatures. Assessing a community’s 

vulnerability to climate change and implementing adaptation strategies increases the town’s 

climate resilience. 

Coastal Hazards 

Integrate coastal risk reduction measures in zoning and regulations 

Coastal hazards such as strong storms, rising seas, and shoreline erosion pose significant and 

growing threats to the region’s coastal communities, where concentrated development of homes, 

businesses, and municipal infrastructure along the coastline make the area extremely vulnerable. 

Developing and implementing land use strategies and regulations that reduce risk in vulnerable 

areas protects people, property, and natural resources while enhancing community-wide 

resilience. 

Incorporate future climatic conditions into land use requirements and municipal policies 

Municipal policy making and land use decisions are generally undertaken with an eye toward the 

future. The impacts of decisions and policies made in the short-term are often not fully realized 

until the longer-term. Accounting for climate change and projected future conditions in municipal 

policies and land use decisions can help to ensure that decisions made today minimize 

vulnerabilities and protect community investments in the future. 

Economic Development 

Promote and support sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses 

Local businesses are vital to a thriving, sustainable economy. Municipalities play an important role 

in encouraging local businesses to be more sustainable and to be resilient to coastal and climate 

impacts through outreach and education. 



 

20 
 

Energy 

Reduce municipal fossil fuel consumption and implement municipal energy efficiency measures 

Municipalities are leading the effort to create a sustainable, low carbon future. Municipal efforts 

to reduce fossil fuel consumption through renewable energy procurement and energy efficiency 

measures also result in significant savings for municipalities and taxpayers, fostering economic 

sustainability.   

Promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses 

Energy efficiency efforts help reduce communitywide GHG emissions and save residents and 

businesses money on utility costs. Towns can encourage community members to undertake energy 

efficiency measures through incentives, regulatory changes, and outreach and education.  

Support development of and access to renewable energy 

Local renewable energy helps decrease communitywide GHG emissions and increase the 

resilience of the local energy system. Municipalities can support the development of renewable 

energy by adopting new codes and permitting practices, adapting building and development 

regulations, supporting renewable energy development on underutilized public and private 

properties, and conducting education and outreach programs for residents and businesses. 

Land Ecosystems 

Promote and practice environmentally-friendly and sustainable landscape approaches 

Sustainably managing land ecosystems promotes human and ecological health. Municipalities can 

support sustainable landscape approaches on municipal properties through community forest and 

landscape management strategies. Towns may also encourage environmentally-friendly 

landscape practices in the community through incentives, regulations, and education and outreach. 

Leadership 

Participate as an active member of a national/regional sustainability and resilience network 

Municipalities must work collaboratively to lead the way to a more sustainable and resilient 

future. Collaboration may involve reporting municipal data to regional or national efforts, 

creating regional plans to achieve sustainability and resilience, and partnering with local schools 

to undertake sustainability or resilience actions. 

Mobility 

Promote and facilitate transit systems as well as bicycle and pedestrian networks 

Abundant and safe alternative transportation options decrease GHG emissions and promote 

accessibility. Municipalities may support alternative transportation by increasing bike and 

pedestrian networks and collaborating to expand transit options. 

Adopt a complete streets policy 

Complete Streets are streets designed and built for all travelers, creating roads that are safer, 

more accessible, and encourage alternative forms of transportation that reduce GHG emissions. A 

Complete Streets policy establishes the foundation for ensuring that all streets in a community 

serve all users, either through new construction or redesign of existing streets.  



 

21 
 

Support the electrification of the transportation system, leading by example with the municipal fleet 

The broadscale adoption of Electric Vehicles (EVs) and the electrification of the transportation 

system are key to decreasing communitywide GHG emissions. Municipalities can lead by example 

by incorporating EVs into municipal fleets and installing public EV charging stations. They can also 

encourage EV infrastructure development through regulatory changes and development 

incentives. 

Municipal Operations 

Formally adopt sustainability and resilience goals, policies, and strategies 

Formally adopting goals, policies, and strategies can make sustainability and resilience priorities 

for the community and establish a foundation for future action. Doing so helps to incorporate these 

principles into the culture and day-to-day operations of the municipality. This may be done 

through a standalone sustainability plan or policy, or by incorporating sustainability and resilience 

as key themes in the town’s comprehensive plan.  

Establish local financing strategies for sustainability and resilience activities 

It can be a challenge for municipalities to find funding for sustainability and resilience actions. 

While some efforts can be funded through grant projects, long term success depends on 

establishing local financing strategies. Financing for efforts should be incorporated throughout the 

municipal budget. Towns can also use unique financing strategies like power purchase 

agreements, leases, energy saving performance contracts, and green revolving funds to pursue 

renewable energy and energy efficiency projects.   

Incorporate sustainability and resilience criteria in municipal expenditure policies 

Municipalities make many purchases and financial decisions each year. These decisions are an 

opportunity for the town to ensure that municipal decisions are made with sustainability and 

resilience in mind. Towns that incorporate specific criteria into municipal expenditure policies can 

work to align expenditures with the town’s sustainability and resilience goals and priorities.  

Sustainable Communities 

Connect residents to resources and services that support wellbeing and enhance community resilience 

The health and wellbeing of its residents are vital to a sustainable and resilient community. 

Municipalities can foster community resilience by being prepared for environmental and public 

health crises and by connecting residents to human services and local, healthy foods.  

Actively engage community members in local climate, sustainability, and resilience issues 

Community members play a key role in creating a culture of sustainability and resilience by 

taking action in their own homes and businesses and by providing support and input into municipal 

initiatives. Towns can enable individual and community action by actively engaging community 

members on local climate, sustainability, and resilience issues through education events, the town 

website, and other communication outlets.  

 



 

22 
 

Sustainable Development 

Facilitate compact, mixed-use development that reduces environmental impacts and increases housing 

affordability 

Sustainable development ensures that as towns grown and change, they do so in a way that 

reduces environmental impacts and increases community resilience. Municipalities can promote 

sustainable development through zoning and development regulations, affordable housing 

initiatives, partnerships with developers, and land use planning.  

Waste 

Deliver sustainable and affordable waste management services 

Sustainable waste management reduces the environmental impact of waste through reduction, 

reuse, and recycling. Municipalities are responsible for ensuring that residents and businesses 

have the ability to dispose of their waste properly. Municipalities can strive to operate their 

waste management services as sustainably as possible, and they can educate community members 

on the values of waste reduction, recycling, and composting.   

Water 

Include Low Impact Development in performance and design standards 

Employing practices that utilize and mimic natural processes lessens the detrimental impacts of 

development by protecting water quality, preserving habitat, creating green space, and reducing 

flood risk. By implementing low impact development (LID) principles and practices, stormwater can 

be managed in a way that reduces impacts of built areas and helps to improve community 

resilience today and into the future as precipitation patterns shift and intensify.  

Establish and enforce progressive watershed protection measures 

Water quality is a top priority for the State and southern Maine region, with implications for 

drinking water, public health, recreation opportunities, fishing activities, and tourism. Climate 

change can make it more challenging for communities to protect water quality, provide safe 

drinking water and wastewater services, and maintain healthy aquatic systems. Implementing 

watershed-based protection measures that address future climate impacts, including increases in 

temperatures and precipitation, habitat chances, and saltwater intrusion, can reduce stormwater 

runoff pollutant transport, protect upstream and downstream water quality, and preserve natural 

resources.  

  



 

23 
 

Appendix B: Town Sustainability and Coastal Resilience 

Assessments 

 

Assessment order: 

1. Kennebunk 

2. Kennebunkport 

3. Kittery 

4. Ogunquit 

5. Wells 

6. York 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

As a 2007 signatory of the U.S. Mayor’s Climate Protection Agreement, the Town of Kennebunk has long been committed 
to creating a sustainable and resilient community. As part of this commitment, in 2019 Kennebunk joined a coalition of six 
towns in coastal York County to create the Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program. The program aims to foster 
more sustainable and resilient communities in coastal York County by leveraging regional collaboration to enhance the 
effectiveness of local government action. To identify and direct sustainability and resilience efforts, the program is 
establishing a baseline of sustainability and resilience efforts and needs in individual communities and the Coastal York 
Country region. Through the work of the Select Board and the Kennebunk Energy Efficiency Advisory Committee (KEEAC), 
the Town has committed to significant climate change actions as part of the Global Covenant of Mayors for Climate and 
Energy. Residents and students in Kennebunk are actively engaged in sustainability and resilience issues through KEEAC, 
RSU 21 school district, and non-profit partners. 
 

Using the SMPDC Sustainability Progress Framework (SPF), Kennebunk was evaluated on many strategies within twelve 
sustainability and resilience categories. Strategies were grouped into 22 indicators, shown below. Kennebunk’s status on 
each progress indicator ranges from “Not Yet Considered” to “Excelling”. Explanations for each indicator and suggested 
next steps are detailed on the following pages. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Page 1 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Climate: Kennebunk has a long history of leading climate initiatives, signing the U.S. Mayor’s Climate Protection 

Agreement in 2007 and resigning in 2014. Kennebunk also joined the Global Covenant of Mayors for Climate and 
Energy (GCOM) in 2018.  Kennebunk completed a municipal greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory with the help of New 
School students in 2019 and completed a community-wide GHG inventory with the help of a UNH Sustainability Fellow in 
2020.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Standardize the municipal GHG inventory data collection process by tracking building energy consumption (i.e. with 
EnergyStar Portfolio Manager or through the finance department). 

• Work through KEEAC to establish a GHG emissions reduction target for municipal and/or community-wide emissions. 
• Conduct a climate change vulnerability assessment to evaluate non-coastal vulnerabilities. 

• Develop a Climate Action Plan with achievable actions to reduce community emissions and that incorporates climate 
adaptation measures. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Coastal Hazards: Kennebunk has taken steps to address coastal hazards, including integrating resilience 

measures in repair work to municipal seawalls and elevating vulnerable roads. The Town is participating in a regional 
grant project assessing and planning for the economic and social vulnerabilities associated with sea level rise and coastal 
flood events.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Include updated sea level rise projections, coastal erosion rates, and goals to address those hazards in the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan in order to enable policies and land use measures that protect people, property, and places.   

• Establish a coastal hazard overlay zoning district and accompanying development standards to ensure new and 

redevelopment in areas vulnerable to storm surge and future sea level rise are resilient. 
• Amend the floodplain management ordinance to incorporate enhanced flood risk reduction measures such as increased 

freeboard height requirements and accounting for cumulative improvement costs in the definition of substantial improvement 
and damage. 

• Pursue participation in the Community Rating System to reduce flood risk and flood insurance costs. 

Economic Development: Kennebunk  participated in a 2016-2018 project through Wells Reserve 

that focused business resilience with the Lower Village businesses. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Engage the business community on climate change and resiliency issues, potentially as part of SMPDC’s EDA grant-funded 
project on coastal economic resilience. 

• Support the establishment of a regional business sustainability award or recognition program. 

Energy: The Kennebunk Energy Efficiency Advisory Committee (KEEAC) was formed in 2006 to advise on ways for 

the Town to reduce municipal fossil fuel use and increase energy efficiency. Kennebunk completed energy audits of 
municipal facilities in 2016 and has been implementing simple energy efficiency measures including LED lighting upgrades 
and window inserts.  Kennebunk has partnered with Kennebunk Light and Power to support energy efficiency measures, and 
KEEAC promotes energy efficiency resources on its website. Kennebunk has begun supporting the development of 
renewable energy, adopting a Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) ordinance in 2011 and allowing for small wind 
energy systems as an accessory use in the zoning ordinance.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Complete the streetlight LED conversion project, collaborating with Kennebunk Light and Power. 

• Work through KEEAC to connect residents and businesses to energy efficiency resources and educate the community about 
renewable energy options. 

• Adopt a renewable energy ordinance prescribing the permitting, standards, and allowable use of renewable energy 
systems.  

Page 2 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Land Ecosystems: Kennebunk’s Dept. of Public Works strives to manage municipal landscapes sustainably, 

limiting irrigation and mowing and contracting with a pest services company that uses integrated pest management 
strategies. The Tree Committee actively works to plant trees in locations where they make a direct, positive impact on the 
community or act as a buffer to filter air and water, limit storm runoff, and stabilize soil. The Conservation Commission 
works to protect the town’s natural resources and to implement Kennebunk's Open Space Plan. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider adapting the subdivision and development codes to encourage sustainable landscaping in the community. 

• Encourage community-wide use of integrated pest management strategies through a pesticide policy and/or community 
education programs. 

• Work through the Conservation Commission, Tree Committee and partnerships with local non-profit organizations to educate 
the community about the value of trees, native plants, and sustainable landscaping. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Leadership: Through the efforts of the KEEAC and the Select Board, Kennebunk is an active member of ICLEI: 

Local Governments for Sustainability, and the Global Covenant of Mayors for Climate and Energy (GCOM).  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Publicly report Kennebunk’s community-wide GHG inventory as part of the GCOM commitment. 

• Work through KEEAC to actively participate in regional/state networks, such as by reporting local data to advance 
national and international sustainability efforts. 

• Share information about municipal leadership in sustainability and resilience broadly in the community and externally. 

Mobility: While Kennebunk has no formal Bike and Pedestrian committee, the Dept of Public Works strives to 

improve bicycle and pedestrian safety and infrastructure. Community Development, Planning & Codes is currently 
exploring options for identifying gaps and barriers to bike and pedestrian travel. The Town of Kennebunk, in partnership 
with York County Community Action Corporation (YCCAC), recently developed the Kennebunk In-Town Transportation 
(KITT) network, a flex-route bus service that increases access to transit. Kennebunk does not have a Complete Streets 
policy, but does try to incorporate complete street principles in road redesigns. The town has begun to facilitate the 
electrification of the transportation system. KEEAC is working to install public EV charging stations, and the town has 
purchased their first EV as the Fire Chief command vehicle. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Identify gaps in the bike and pedestrian networks and create a Bike and Pedestrian Plan to implement strategies for 
improving connectivity and safety. 

• Consider establishing a Complete Streets Policy to ensure access for all road users. 
• Continue to pursue public EV charging station installation and collaborate with businesses to develop EV infrastructure. 
• Establish a fleet purchasing policy to prioritize electric vehicles and continue exploring EV fleet opportunities. 

Municipal Operations: As part of the GCOM commitment, Kennebunk plans to create a climate action  

plan that will formalize sustainability and resilience goals and strategies. Kennebunk does not have regular financing 
strategies in place for sustainability and resilience activities outside of committee budgets. Sustainability and resilience 
criteria are not incorporated into Kennebunk’s municipal expenditure policies.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Ensure that sustainability and resilience are incorporated into the next Comprehensive Plan update. 
• Create a Climate Action Plan with goals and strategies for mitigating and adapting to climate change. 
• Budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment upgrades. 
• Integrate sustainability and resiliency into capital planning criteria. 

Page 3 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Communities: Kennebunk Social Services connects residents to vital community services 

while the Parks and Rec. Dept. Healthy Kennebunk program promotes community well being. Kennebunk is proposing the 
adoption of an Emergency Management Agency Ordinance that would enhance community resilience to environmental 
disasters and public health crises. Kennebunk has a weekly farmers’ market that increases access to local foods. The 
Community Garden Committee works to increase access to local foods by providing garden space and advice on 
growing.  The KEEAC frequently partners with local non-profits to engage community members in local climate, 
sustainability, and resilience issues.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Apply emergency management lessons from Covid-19 pandemic to increase community preparedness and resilience.  
• Host events educating the public about climate change and local impacts and how to reduce GHG emissions. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Development: Kennebunk strives to facilitate compact, mixed-use development, 

allowing for mixed-use in many land use zones, and working to implement the strategies in the Open Space Plan. 
Kennebunk has worked to redevelop underutilized properties such as in the Waterhouse Center Project. Kennebunk’s 
affordable housing committee works to improve the availability of affordable housing. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider revising and/or developing codes to promote sustainable building and site practices. 
• Explore incentives for green building in new construction and re-construction. 
• Identify sustainable development priorities in the Comprehensive Plan update. 

Waste & Recycling: Kennebunk has a Pay as You Throw (PAYT) trash program, and the fees go directly 

to paying for curbside trash and recycling. Kennebunk has contracted with We Compost It! to offer curbside composting to 
residents, designating the business as the acceptable residential compost  vendor in the Solid Waste Ordinance. 
Volunteers run the Treasure Chest, a swap shop at the transfer station to prevent the landfilling of usable goods. 
Kennebunk lead the state in discouraging single-use plastics, passing an ordinance banning single use plastic carry out 
bags in 2016 and an ordinance banning the release of balloons. Much of the education and outreach activities on waste 
and recycling have been coordinated through Casella. Kennebunk is also leading a lobster trap compost bin program 
promoting residential composting. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Provide recycling and composting infrastructure at public places. 
• Explore a construction and demolition recycling policy to keep C&D materials out of landfills and ensure they are recycled. 
• Continue to partner with the schools to promote education about consumption and waste. 
• Consider a mandatory recycling ordinance that applies to single and multifamily residences and businesses.  

Water: Kennebunk has implemented water quality protection measures in the Branch Brook aquifer area and 

Kennebunk River Watershed. The Town participates in the Kennebunk River Watershed Management effort and is 
interested in pursuing improved stormwater management practices. The Conservation Commission is exploring a wetland 
mitigation ordinance.   
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Enhance the Town’s existing land use regulations and policies by encouraging and/or requiring the use of low impact 
development and green infrastructure approaches for stormwater management for all development and redevelopment 
projects requiring site plan review.  

• Implement recommendations of the Kennebunk River Watershed Management Plan.  

• Collaborate with neighbor municipalities to pursue watershed protection and flood mitigation projects.  

• Complete an inventory of septic systems in Town to inform planning and water quality protection efforts.  

Page 4 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

As a quaint New England town with abundant natural resources and rich cultural heritage, Kennebunkport strives 
to foster a sustainable, resilient community for its residents, visitors, and ecosystems. In 2019, Kennebunkport 
joined a coalition of six towns in coastal York County to create the Regional Sustainability and Resilience 
Program. The program aims to foster more sustainable and resilient communities in coastal York County by 
leveraging regional collaboration to enhance the effectiveness of local government action. To identify and 
direct sustainability and resilience efforts, the program is establishing a baseline of sustainability and resilience 
efforts and needs in individual communities and the coastal York Country region. Kennebunkport is making 
climate change a key consideration in the Comprehensive Plan update, ensuring that sustainability and resilience 
will be priorities in future municipal initiatives.  
 

Using the SMPDC Sustainability Progress Framework (SPF), Kennebunkport was evaluated on many strategies 
within twelve sustainability and resilience categories. Strategies were grouped into 22 indicators, shown below. 
Kennebunkport's status on each progress indicator ranges from “Not Yet Considered” to “Excelling”. 
Explanations for each indicator and suggested next steps are detailed on the following pages. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Page 1 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Climate: Kennebunkport has started prioritizing climate change action in recent years. A municipal greenhouse gas 

(GHG) inventory was completed in 2019 with the help of a UNH Sustainability Fellow, and Kennebunkport is 
incorporating climate change impacts throughout all chapters of the new Comprehensive Plan. The Board of Selectmen 
approved town climate change goals and priorities in 2020. The Town is also partnering with the Kennebunkport Climate 
Initiative to engage students on climate action and to advance climate change dialogue and planning.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Standardize the municipal GHG inventory data collection process by tracking building energy consumption (i.e. with 
EnergyStar Portfolio Manager or through the finance department). 

• Measure and monitor GHG emissions for a community-wide GHG inventory. 

• Conduct a climate change vulnerability assessment to evaluate non-coastal vulnerabilities. 

• Develop a Climate Action Plan with achievable actions to reduce community emissions and that incorporates climate 
adaptation measures. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Coastal Hazards: Evaluating and adapting to the impacts of coastal hazards are priorities for 

Kennebunkport. The Town’s Dock Square area and beachfront neighborhoods already experience flooding and shoreline 
erosion issues. Kennebunkport has been working to address its risk to flooding from sea level rise, storm surge and 
extreme weather. The Town is elevating some of its roadways to reduce flooding and is participating in an EDA grant-
funded project assessing and planning for the economic and social vulnerabilities associated with sea level rise and 
coastal flood events. Kennebunkport also had advanced flood modeling completed by Ransom Engineering.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Include updated sea level rise projections, coastal erosion rates, and goals to address those hazards in the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan in order to enable policies and land use measures that protect people, property, and places.   

• Adopt a policy that limits or prohibits municipal funds being used for development in existing and potential future 
flood hazard areas, unless expressly for adaptation, mitigation, or resilience measures. 

• Consider establishing a coastal hazard overlay zoning district and accompanying development standards to ensure 
new and redevelopment in areas vulnerable to storm surge and future sea level rise are resilient. 

Economic Development: Kennebunkport participated in a 2016-2018 project through the Wells 

Reserve that focused business resilience with the Dock Square businesses. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Engage the business community on climate change and resiliency issues, potentially as part of SMPDC’s EDA grant-funded 
project on coastal economic resilience. 

• Support the establishment of a regional business sustainability award or recognition program. 

Energy: Kennebunkport has begun exploring municipal energy efficiency measures, such as LED lighting upgrades, 

attic insulation, and energy efficient technology in new buildings. The town is also exploring opportunities to participate in 
Maine’s Net Energy Billing Program to support solar development. Kennebunkport has not yet undertaken any efforts to 
promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses. Kennebunkport has started to support the development of 
renewable energy, passing a Property Assessed Clean Energy ordinance and installing solar panels on the fire station 
roof. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Complete the streetlight LED conversion project. 

• Continue exploring options for procuring solar electricity for municipal operations, including on and off-site options. 

• Work with non-profit partners to connect residents and businesses to energy efficiency resources and educate the 
community about renewable energy options. 

• Adopt a renewable energy ordinance prescribing the permitting, standards, and allowable use of renewable energy 
systems.  

Page 2 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Land Ecosystems: Kennebunkport’s Conservation Commission and Shade Tree Committee lead efforts to 

promote sustainable, environmentally-friendly landscaping in the Town. The Shade Tree Committee actively works to plant 
trees in locations where they make a direct, positive impact on the community. The Dept. of Public Works is pursing forest 
management plans for town owned lands to ensure climate resilience. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider adapting the subdivision and development codes to encourage sustainable landscaping in the community. 

• Encourage community-wide use of integrated pest management strategies through a pesticide policy and/or community 
education programs. 

• Work through the Conservation Commission, Shade Tree Committee and partnerships with local non-profit organizations to 
educate the community about the value of trees, native plants, and sustainable landscaping. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Leadership: Kennebunkport does not currently have a committee that leads sustainability and resilience efforts 

in town. Kennebunkport is a member of ICLEI: Local Governments for Sustainability. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Designate a town committee and/or staff members to lead municipal sustainability and resilience efforts. 

• Actively participate in regional/state networks, such as by reporting local data to advance national and international 

sustainability efforts. 

• Share information about municipal leadership in sustainability and resilience broadly in the community and externally. 

Mobility: While Kennebunkport has no formal Bike and Pedestrian committee, the Department of Public Works 

strives to improve bicycle and pedestrian safety and infrastructure. Bike and pedestrian planning was recommended in 
the 2012 Comprehensive Plan, but has not yet taken place. Kennebunkport does not have a Complete Streets policy, but 
does try to incorporate complete street principles in road redesigns. Kennebunkport is exploring opportunities for both EV 
fleet vehicles and public EV charging stations.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Identify gaps in the bike and pedestrian networks and create a Bike and Pedestrian Plan to implement strategies for 
improving connectivity and safety. 

• Consider establishing a Complete Streets Policy. 
• Pursue public EV charging station installation and collaborate with businesses to develop EV infrastructure. 
• Establish a fleet purchasing policy to prioritize electric vehicles and continue exploring EV fleet opportunities. 

Municipal Operations: As part of the Comprehensive Plan update, Kennebunkport is incorporating 

climate change impacts throughout the plan. Kennebunkport does not have regular financing strategies in place for 
sustainability and resilience activities. Sustainability and resilience criteria are not incorporated into Kennebunkport’s 
municipal expenditure policies.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Formalize climate change, sustainability, and/or resilience goals and plans for the Town. 

• Explore strategies such as PPAs, leases, and EPSCs to finance renewable energy systems and energy efficiency projects for 
municipal buildings. 

• Consider incorporating sustainability and resilience as themes in the Comprehensive Plan update. 

• Budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment upgrades. 

Page 3 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Communities: Kennebunkport’s Public Health Dept. services connects residents to vital 

community services that enhance wellbeing and promote community resilience. There is currently no farmers’s market or 
community garden in Kennebunkport that would enhance access to local foods. Kennebunkport frequently partners with 
Kennebunkport Conservation Trust and the Kennebunkport Climate Initiative to host education and outreach events on 
sustainability, resilience, and climate change for community members. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Apply emergency management lessons from Covid-19 pandemic to increase community preparedness and resilience.  
• Host events educating the public about climate change and local impacts and how to reduce GHG emissions. 
• Support the development of community gardens and increased access to local foods. 
• Develop online materials for the community about sustainability initiatives and other allied organizations and government 

agencies. 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Development: Kennebunkport is interested in ways to facilitate compact, mixed-use 

development that reduces environmental impacts and increases housing affordability. Open space preservation is a 
requirement of the subdivision regulations. Preserving and acquiring green space/open space was identified as a priority 
in the 2012 Comprehensive plan, as was promoting housing affordability. Kennebunkport has recently completed a 
Village Parcel master plan that recommends compact, affordable development on a parcel of land recently purchased 
by the municipality.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider revising and/or developing codes to promote sustainable building and site practices. 
• Explore incentives for green building in new construction and re-construction. 
• Identify sustainable development priorities in the Comprehensive Plan update. 
• Ensure that compact, affordable development is incorporated into the Village Parcel project. 

Waste & Recycling: Kennebunkport’s waste and recycling efforts are advised by the Solid Waste 

Committee, which also leads outreach and education efforts. The committee led a successful lobster trap compost bin 
program promoting residential composting. After disbanding curbside recycling due to escalating costs, Kennebunkport is 
re-starting a curbside recycling program in 2021. Kennebunkport partners with Kennebunk to offer disposal and recycling 
for items at the Kennebunk transfer station.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Provide recycling and composting infrastructure at public places. 
• Continue to explore opportunities for offering composting services for residents and businesses.  
• Continue to develop partnerships with the schools to promote education about consumption and waste. 
• Consider a mandatory recycling ordinance that applies to single and multifamily residences and businesses.  

Water: Kennebunkport protects water quality by supporting watershed conservation efforts, protective zoning for 

the Branch Brook Aquifer, and participation on the 2020 regional Kennebunk River Watershed Management project. 
Most properties are served by public water. The Town limits the use of pesticides and fertilizers on municipal property.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Implement recommendations of the Kennebunk River Watershed Management Plan.  
• Enhance existing land use regulations to require the use of Low Impact Development (LID) for stormwater management for 

all development and redevelopment projects, and develop associated performance standards and stormwater 
management criteria.  

• Adopt a policy that all municipal development projects will utilize LID techniques and green infrastructure. 
• Adopt a septic inspection and pump out ordinance to ensure proper functioning of systems and minimize potential 

detrimental impacts to water quality and the environment.  
• Incorporate wetland impact assessment requirement in land use requirements and enact and enforce policies that preserve, 

protect, and restore wetlands, including those smaller than the 10-acre threshold used for shoreland zoning. 

Page 4 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

The oldest incorporated town in Maine, the Town of Kittery has a long history of supporting the sustainability and 
resilience of its community. In 2019, Kittery joined a coalition of six towns in coastal York County to create the SMPDC 
Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program. The program aims to foster more sustainable and resilient communities by 
leveraging regional collaboration to enhance the effectiveness of local government action. To identify and direct 
sustainability and resilience efforts, the program is establishing a baseline of sustainability and resilience efforts and 
needs in individual communities and the Coastal York Country region. Kittery excels in waste management and watershed 
protection efforts. The Town is also making significant progress on climate change mitigation and adaptation initiatives, 
including establishing the Kittery Climate Adaptation Committee, incorporating climate resilience into the Comprehensive 
Plan, and conducting coastal flood vulnerability assessments. 
 

Using the SMPDC Sustainability Progress Framework (SPF), Kittery was evaluated on a variety of sustainability and 
resilience strategies within twelve categories, with strategies grouped into 22 indicators as shown below. Kittery’s status 
on each progress indicator ranges from “Not Yet Considered” to “Excelling”. Explanations for each indicator are detailed 
on the following pages. Also listed are suggested Next Steps for potential future sustainability and resilience efforts that 
reflect priorities identified by Town staff as well as efforts identified by regional program staff for the Town to consider. 

Page 1 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Climate: Kittery’s actions on climate are guided by the goals and strategies laid out in the Coastal Community 

Resilience section in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. The Town is undertaking its first municipal greenhouse gas (GHG) 
inventory in 2020 and has also begun to address vulnerability to climate change and its impacts. In 2019, Kittery 
established the Kittery Climate Adaptation Committee (KCAC) to advance the Town’s resilience to climate change. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Work with KCAC to complete municipal and community-wide GHG inventories and to establish a GHG emissions reduction 
target for municipal and/or community-wide emissions. 

• Assess non-coastal vulnerabilities to climate change. 
• Create a climate adaptation or resilience plan and begin implementing climate adaptation strategies. 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Coastal Hazards: The Town has recently undertaken several initiatives to evaluate and plan for coastal 

hazards, including completing the Maine Flood Resilience Checklist in 2020 and participating in an EDA grant-funded 
project assessing the economic and social vulnerabilities associated with sea level rise and coastal flood events. A UNH 
Sustainability fellow developed hazard assessment maps with different flooding/sea level rise scenarios and planning 
recommendations for the Town. Kittery’s Comprehensive Plan addresses coastal resilience, providing the enabling foundation 
for adoption of regulatory and policy actions to make the Town more climate resilient. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Establish a coastal hazard overlay zoning district, based on adopted sea level rise scenarios, and accompanying 
development standards to ensure new and redevelopment in areas vulnerable to storm surge and sea level rise are resilient. 

• Amend the floodplain management ordinance to incorporate enhanced flood risk reduction measures such as increased 
freeboard height requirements and accounting for cumulative improvement costs in the definition of substantial improvement 
and damage. 

• Incorporate future precipitation projections in land use regulations and amend ordinances to require the use of more robust 
storm frequencies (e.g., 24-hour rainfall of a 30-year storm event) for stormwater management and design standards.  

Economic Development: In partnership with the Portsmouth Navel Shipyard, Kittery undertook a 

Joint Land Use Study to address community growth and military readiness, with a primary objective to provide for 
sustainable growth in an economically, environmentally, and socially conscious manner. Kittery engages the business 
community on sustainability and resiliency issues through the KCAC, which requires two members to be representatives of 
local business, one of which must include aquaculture.   
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Engage the business community on climate change and resiliency issues, potentially as part of SMPDC’s EDA grant-funded 
project on coastal economic resilience. 

• Work through KCAC to support the establishment of a regional business sustainability award or recognition program. 

Energy: Reducing municipal fossil fuel consumption and implementing energy efficiency measures are both 

recommendations of Kittery’s comprehensive plan. Kittery completed an upgrade to LED streetlights in 2019. The KCAC is 
working to promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses. Kittery supported the development of renewable 
energy by adopting a Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) ordinance in 2011 and adding a solar stipulation for lot 
configurations to the Land Use and Development Code in 2015. The town is currently considering a solar energy 
ordinance prescribing the permitting, standards, and allowable use of roof-top and ground mounted solar. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Improve municipal energy efficiency by tracking building energy consumption (i.e. with EnergyStar Portfolio Manager), 
conducting energy audits of municipal facilities to identify opportunities for energy conservation, and continuing to  
implement energy efficiency measures as opportunities arise. 

• Work through KCAC to connect residents and businesses to energy efficiency resources and renewable energy options. 

• Work through KCAC to review and adopt the solar energy ordinance.  

Page 2 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Land Ecosystems: Kittery practices environmentally-friendly landscape practices through the public works 

Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program and the Spruce Creek Watershed Management Program. Kittery has begun 
incorporating sustainable landscaping standards into the Title 16: Land Use and Development Code. Kittery has hosted 
multiple outreach events to connect residents to sustainable landscaping information, such as Yardscaping workshops. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Continue working through Conservation Commission to connect residents to sustainable landscaping resources. 

• Continue incorporating sustainable landscape requirements into the Title 16: Land Use and Development Code. 

• Work through the Conservation Commission to encourage community-wide use of integrated pest management to reduce 
impacts from fertilizers and pesticides. 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Leadership: Kittery is playing an active role in leading sustainability and resilience efforts in Maine. Kittery’s 

sustainability and resilience activities are guided by the Kittery Climate Adaptation Committee (KCAC). Town Manager 
Kendra Amaral serves on the Maine Climate Council transportation working group, and Kittery joined ICLEI Local 
Governments for Sustainability in 2020. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Continue working through KCAC to actively participate in regional/state sustainability and resilience networks. 

• Share information about municipal leadership in sustainability and resilience broadly in the community and externally. 

Mobility: Kittery strives to facilitate transit systems and bike and pedestrian networks. The Town is in the process 

of developing a Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. Kittery has also worked to extend regional transit and will be further 
exploring alternative transportation opportunities as part of a Joint Land Use Study (JLUS) Implementation Grant in 
collaboration with the Portsmouth Naval Shipyard. A complete streets policy is recommended in the Kittery Comprehensive 
plan. Kittery installed a level 2 EV charging station at Rice Library and is exploring EV charging station incentive 
opportunities and EV fleet vehicle opportunities. Kittery is in the process of acquiring their first electric vehicle. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Complete the Bicycle and Pedestrian plan and begin implementing strategies.  

• Ensure alternative transportation projects and initiatives result from the JLUS implementation grant. 

• Begin developing a Complete Streets Policy. 

• Continue to pursue EV charging station installation at public sites. 

• Collaborate with businesses to develop EV infrastructure.  

• Establish a fleet purchasing policy to prioritize electric vehicles. 

Municipal Operations: Sustainability is a guiding principle of Kittery's Comprehensive plan and the 

KCAC is charged with addressing Kittery’s sustainability and resilience issues. Kittery strives to embed sustainability and 
resilience into existing operations, financial planning and expenditures. Kittery is in the process of incorporating 
sustainability criteria into their Capital Improvement Program. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Ensure sustainability and resilience criteria are successfully incorporated into the Capital Improvement Program.  

• Formalize sustainability and resilience goals and plans for the Town, as recommended by the Comprehensive Plan. 

• Explore strategies such as Power Purchase Agreements, leases, and Energy Savings Performance Contracts to finance 
renewable energy systems and energy efficiency projects for municipal buildings. 

• Budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment upgrades (i.e. boilers and chillers for heating and cooling, 
window, door and rooftop replacements, and modified ductwork). 

Page 3 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Communities: Kittery connects residents to vital community services that enhance 

wellbeing and community resilience through the Kittery Community Center and Kittery Welfare Assistance. The Town also 
has an Emergency Management Agency Ordinance to prepare for environmental disasters and public health crises.  
Kittery supports the Kittery Community Market to promote local food access, offering a space in the Kittery Community 
Center for the winter market. Kittery has begun working through the KCAC to engage residents on local climate, 
sustainability, and resilience issues. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Apply emergency management lessons from the Covid-19 pandemic to increase community preparedness and resilience.  

• Collaborate with partner organizations to support community gardens and increased access to local foods. 

• Host events educating the public about climate change and local impacts and how to reduce GHG emissions. 

• Develop online materials for the community about sustainability initiatives and other allied organizations and government 
agencies. 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Development: Kittery is undertaking a recodification of the Title 16: Land Use and 

Development Code to incorporate sustainable development principles and practices. It is addressing infill development, 
mixed use zoning, open space preservation, redevelopment of underutilized properties, transit-oriented development, 
and housing affordability. Kittery is also addressing housing affordability and transit-oriented development through the 
JLUS implementation grant. In 2020 Kittery approved a number of housing initiatives, establishing a housing reserve fund, 
creating a process to utilize the proceeds from the sale of tax-foreclosed properties for affordable housing, and formally 
establishing a Housing Committee to work on affordable housing initiatives.  

NEXT STEPS: 

• Continue addressing transit-oriented development and housing affordability through the JLUS implementation grant. 

Waste & Recycling: Kittery delivers sustainable and affordable waste management services. The town 

requires mandatory recycling for residents and at the transfer station. Municipal departments are also required to 
recycle. There is a Freebie Barn at the transfer station for donations, and curbside composting is available to residents 
and businesses. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Explore a construction and demolition recycling policy to keep these materials out of landfills and ensure they are recycled. 

• Continue to explore partnerships with the schools to promote education about consumption and waste. 

Water: An MS4 community and an active member of the Southern Maine Stormwater Management Group 

(SMSWG), Kittery has adopted enhanced stormwater management regulations and policies. The Town has implemented 
water quality protection measures through a wetlands conservation ordinance, the Spruce Creek Watershed project, and 
green infrastructure projects to manage stormwater runoff on municipal properties. The Town is currently amending its 
land use ordinance to require low impact development (LID) for commercial land uses. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Enhance the Town’s existing land use regulations and policies that encourage and/or require the use of low impact 
development and green infrastructure approaches for stormwater management for all development and redevelopment 
projects requiring site plan review.  

• Enact a pesticide and fertilizer ordinance. 

• Adopt a septic inspection and pump out ordinance to ensure septic systems, especially those in areas vulnerable to current 
and future flooding, function properly and to minimize potential detrimental impacts to water quality and the environment.  

Page 4 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

As the “beautiful place by the sea,” Ogunquit prides itself on its stewardship of natural resources. Ogunquit formed its 
Sustainability Committee in 2020 to advise on sustainability, climate adaptation and resiliency issues. In 2019, Ogunquit 
joined a coalition of six towns in coastal York County to create the SMPDC Regional Sustainability and Resilience 
Program. The program aims to foster more sustainable and resilient communities in coastal York County by leveraging 
regional collaboration to enhance the effectiveness of local government action. To identify and direct sustainability and 
resilience efforts, the program is establishing a baseline of sustainability and resilience efforts and needs in individual 
communities and the Coastal York Country region. Ogunquit excels in promoting sustainable and environmentally friendly 
landscape approaches, passing a Pesticide Ordinance in 2015 and using integrated pest management and low-impact 
practices to manage municipal landscapes. Ogunquit is also the only town in the region that has adopted a Complete 
Streets Policy to ensure safe access for all road users. 
 

Using the SMPDC Sustainability Progress Framework (SPF), Ogunquit was evaluated on many strategies within twelve 
sustainability and resilience categories. Strategies were grouped into 22 indicators, shown below. Ogunquit’s status on 
each progress indicator ranges from “Not Yet Considered” to “Excelling”. Explanations for each indicator and suggested 
next steps are detailed on the following pages. 

TOWN OF OGUNQUIT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Page 1 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Climate: Ogunquit has not yet begun measuring greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions for municipal or community-wide 

inventories. Ogunquit is beginning to assess the Town’s vulnerability to climate change, participating in a regional project 
assessing impacts of coastal climate-related hazards. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Complete municipal and community-wide GHG inventories. 

• Work with the Sustainability Committee to establish a GHG emissions reduction target for municipal and/or community-
wide emissions. 

• Assess non-coastal vulnerabilities to climate change. 

TOWN OF OGUNQUIT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Coastal Hazards: Known for its sandy beaches and quaint seaside village, Ogunquit has culturally and 

economically significant assets and areas that are already at-risk of coastal flooding and erosion. The Town is beginning 
efforts to evaluate and plan for coastal climate impacts, including participating in a grant-funded regional project 
assessing economic and social vulnerabilities associated with sea level rise and coastal flood events. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Assess social and economic  impacts of sea level rise, storm surge, and coastal erosion on people, property and the natural 
environment. 

• Continue and enhance efforts to incorporate climate resilience measures in repair activities and long-range planning for the 
Marginal Way and other coastal cultural assets.  

• Amend the floodplain management ordinance to incorporate enhanced flood risk reduction measures such as increased 
freeboard height requirements. 

• Include updated sea level rise projections, coastal erosion rates, and goals to address those hazards in the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan in order to enable policies and land use measures that protect people, property, and places.  

• Consider establishing a coastal hazard overlay zoning district and accompanying development standards to direct 
development away from high-risk areas and ensure new and redevelopment in vulnerable areas are resilient. 

Economic Development: Ogunquit has not yet taken specific actions to promote and support 

sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Engage the business community on climate change and resiliency issues, potentially as part of SMPDC’s EDA grant-funded 
project on coastal economic resilience. 

• Support the establishment of a regional business sustainability award or recognition program. 

Energy: Ogunquit is interested in municipal energy efficiency measures, and the Town has begun exploring 

opportunities such as LED street lighting upgrades and the installation of occupancy sensors. Ogunquit has not yet 
undertaken any efforts to promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses. Ogunquit has worked to support the 
development of renewable energy, passing a Property Assessed Clean Energy ordinance, and permitting small wind 
energy systems and freestanding PV solar panel systems as an accessory use in most zoning districts. The town is also 
exploring opportunities to participate in the Maine Net Solar Energy Billing program for solar development. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Work through the Sustainability Committee to connect residents and businesses to energy efficiency resources and educate 
the community about renewable energy options. 

• Conduct energy audits of municipal facilities to identify opportunities for energy conservation. 
• Explore opportunities for procuring renewable electricity for municipal operations, including roof-top solar and community 

solar farms. 

• Adopt a renewable energy ordinance prescribing the permitting, standards, and allowable use of renewable energy 

systems.  

Page 2 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Land Ecosystems: Ogunquit promotes and practices environmentally-friendly and sustainable landscape 

approaches though municipal operations and the work of the Conservation Commission and Marginal Way Committee. 
Ogunquit passed a Pesticide Use Ordinance in 2015 and uses integrated pest management and low-impact practices to 
manage municipal landscapes. A pollinator garden was planted as part of the Marginal Way Garden. Native 
landscaping is required in many cases throughout the Code of Ordinances when development disturbs vegetation. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Work through the Conservation Commission and Marginal Way Committee to continue to educate the community about the 
value of trees, native plants, and sustainable landscaping. 

• Continue to educate and encourage the community to use integrated pest management to reduce impacts from fertilizers 
and pesticides. 

• Strategically plant trees to act as a buffer to filter air and water, limit storm runoff, and stabilize soil. 

TOWN OF OGUNQUIT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Leadership: The Town has not yet participated as an active member of national and/or regional sustainability 

and resilience networks. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Participate in regional state, and/or national networks to plan for and achieve sustainability and resilience, such as ICLEI: 
Local Governments for Sustainability or the New England Municipal Sustainability Network. 

• Partner with local universities and schools to identify opportunities for research on sustainability and resilience issues. 
• Share information about municipal leadership in sustainability broadly in the community and externally. 

Mobility: Ogunquit has a Bike and Pedestrian committee that works to identify gaps in the pedestrian and bicycle 

networks including crosswalk lighting, dangerous intersections, and bike parking. Ogunquit adopted a Complete Streets 
Policy in 2020. Ogunquit has not yet explored ways to support the electrification of the transportation system. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Explore opportunities for EV charging station installation at public sites and collaborate with businesses to develop EV 
infrastructure. 

• Establish a fleet purchasing policy to prioritize electric vehicles. 
• Work with local transportation providers to expand service and service areas and increase ridership. 

Municipal Operations: In 2020, Ogunquit created the Sustainability Committee to advise the Select 

Board on sustainability, climate adaptation, and resiliency issues. Ogunquit does not yet have formal sustainability and 
resilience goals, policies, or strategies, nor does it have regular financing strategies in place for sustainability and 
resilience activities outside of committee budgets. Sustainability and resilience criteria are not incorporated into 
Ogunquit’s municipal expenditure policies.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Ensure that sustainability and resilience are incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan update. 
• Explore strategies such as PPAs, leases, and EPSCs to finance renewable energy systems and energy efficiency projects for 

municipal buildings. 
• Budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment upgrades. 
• Integrate sustainability and resiliency into capital planning criteria. 

Page 3 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Communities: Ogunquit has created a Covid-19 task force that is working to increase 

community resilience in response to the public health crisis. Ogunquit also began the Ogunquit Cares program that 
connects residents to vital community services that enhance wellbeing and community resilience. Ogunquit supports local 
food access through the Community Garden at Beach Plum Farm. The Sustainability Committee is exploring ways to 
engage the community on climate, sustainability, and resilience issues. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Take emergency management lessons from the Covid-19 pandemic to increase community preparedness and resilience. 
• Host events educating the public about climate change and local impacts and how to reduce GHG emissions. 
• Develop online materials for the community about sustainability initiatives and other allied organizations and government 

agencies. 

TOWN OF OGUNQUIT 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Development: Ogunquit is interested in ways to facilitate compact, mixed-use 

development that reduces environmental impacts and increases housing affordability. Preserving and acquiring green 
space/open space was identified as a priority in the FY21 budget committee workshop. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider revising and/or developing codes to allow mixed-use development, redevelop underutilized properties, and 
promote housing diversity and affordability. 

• Explore incentives for green building in new construction and re-construction. 

Waste & Recycling: Solid waste management efforts in Ogunquit were advised by the recycling committee, 

although this Committee appears to no longer be active. The Solid Waste Ordinance encourages, but does not require, 
recycling. Ogunquit currently does not offer curbside recycling or waste disposal. Ogunquit businesses and residents can get 
curbside composting from Mr. Fox compost in York. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Revitalize the Recycling Committee to advise the Select Board on ways to provide sustainable and affordable waste 
management services and educate residents and businesses on recycling, composting, and waste reduction. 

• Explore a PAYT trash program, as well as recycling alternatives to increase recycling and decrease trash. 
• Provide recycling and composting infrastructure at public places. 
• Develop a mandatory recycling ordinance that applies to single and multifamily residences and businesses.  

Water: Water quality is a priority issue for Ogunquit. The Town has undertaken watershed protection measures and 

implemented green infrastructure and low impact development (LID) projects to reduce water pollution from stormwater 
runoff through the Ogunquit River Watershed Restoration Project. Continuing to improve stormwater management and 
incorporating LID practices in land use regulations is an identified area of interest for the Town. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Enhance the Town’s existing land use regulations and policies by encouraging and/or requiring the use of low impact 
development (LID) and green infrastructure approaches for stormwater management for all development and 
redevelopment projects requiring site plan review.  

• Amend the Town’s pesticide to improve its efficacy and enforceability and adopt a fertilizer ordinance.  
• Consider adopting a septic inspection and pump out ordinance to ensure septic systems, especially those in areas 

vulnerable to current and future flooding, function properly and to minimize potential detrimental impacts to water quality 
and the environment.  

 

Page 4 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

As the “friendliest town in Maine”, Wells is committed to creating a thriving and healthy community for its residents, 
visitors, and ecosystems. As part of this commitment, in 2019 Wells joined a coalition of six towns in coastal York County 
to create the Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program. The program aims to foster more sustainable and resilient 
communities in coastal York County by leveraging regional collaboration to enhance the effectiveness of local government 
action. To identify and direct sustainability and resilience efforts, the program is establishing a baseline of sustainability 
and resilience efforts and needs in individual communities and the Coastal York Country region. Wells is working 
diligently to assess and adapt to coastal hazards and coastal climate change impacts. Through the work of the Wells 
Energy Advisory Committee, Wells has made substantial progress implementing municipal solar and promoting renewable 
energy development.  
 

Using the SMPDC Sustainability Progress Framework (SPF), Wells was evaluated on many strategies within twelve 
sustainability and resilience categories. Strategies were grouped into 22 indicators, shown below. Wells’s status on each 
progress indicator ranges from “Not Yet Considered” to “Excelling”. Explanations for each indicator and suggested next 
steps are detailed on the following pages. 

TOWN OF WELLS 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Page 1 

CATEGORY INDICATOR STATUS

Establish a GHG emissions inventory, target, and plan

Climate change vulnerability assessment

Integrate coastal risk reduction measures in zoning and regulations

Incorporate future climatic conditions into land use requirements and municipal policies

Economic 

Development
Promote and support sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses

Reduce municipal fossil fuel consumption and implement municipal energy efficiency 

measures

Promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses

Support development of and access to renewable energy

Land Ecosystems Promote and practice environmentally-friendly and sustainable landscape approaches

Leadership Participate as an active member of a national/regional sustainability and resilience network

Promote and facilitate transit systems as well as bicycle and pedestrian networks

Adopt a complete streets policy

Support the electrification of the transportation system, leading by example with the municipal 

fleet

Formally adopt sustainability and resilience goals, policies, and strategies

Establish local financing strategies for sustainability and resilience activities

Incorporate sustainability and resilience criteria in municipal expenditure policies

Connect residents to resources and services that support well being and enhance community 

resilience

Actively engage community members in local climate, sustainability, and resilience issues 

Sustainable 

Development

Facilitate compact, mixed-use development that reduces environmental impacts and 

increases housing affordability

Waste & Recycling Deliver sustainable and affordable waste management services

Include Low Impact Development in performance and design standards

Establish and enforce progressive watershed protection measures

Coastal Hazards

Water

Climate

Energy

Mobility

Municipal Operations

Sustainable 

Communities

Interested

Making Progress

Interested

Getting Started

Interested

Making Progress

Making Progress

Getting Started

Making Progress

Interested

Getting started

Interested

Getting started

Not yet considered

Almost There

Interested

Getting started

Getting Started

Making Progress

Interested

Interested

Getting Started



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Climate: Wells has not yet begun measuring greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions for municipal or community-wide 

inventories. Wells is participating in a Maine Coastal Communities Grant-funded project assessing the economic and social 
vulnerabilities associated with sea level rise and coastal flood events. In 2014 a New England Climate Adaptation project 
lead by Wells Reserve conducted a risk assessment evaluating Wells’ vulnerability to climate change. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Complete municipal and community-wide GHG inventories. 
• Work with the Wells Energy Advisory Committee (WEAC) to establish a GHG emissions reduction target for municipal and/

or community-wide emissions. 
• Create a climate adaptation or resilience plan and begin implementing climate adaptation strategies. 

TOWN OF WELLS 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Coastal Hazards: Known for its expansive barrier beach and coastal wetlands, Wells has sustained 

significant flood-related damage in the past and has been working to address its flood risk through a series of studies, 
including updated flood modeling. Wells has completed several initiatives to evaluate and plan for coastal hazards, 
including completing the Flood Resilience Checklist and participating in grant-funded projects examining the feasibility of 
a regional dredge to address shoaling in Wells Harbor, assessing the economic and social vulnerabilities associated with 
sea level rise and coastal flood events, and developing a model coastal resilience ordinance. The Town has already 
incorporated some flood risk reduction measures in its floodplain management ordinance. Wells has partnered with the 
Conservation Commission to use proceeds from sales of tax-foreclosed properties to purchase flood-prone land in town. 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Establish a coastal hazard overlay zoning district and accompanying development standards to ensure new and 
redevelopment in areas vulnerable to storm surge and future sea level rise are resilient. 

• Resume participation in the Community Rating System to reduce flood risk and flood insurance costs. 

• Incorporate future precipitation projections in land use regulations and amend ordinances to require the use of more robust 
storm frequencies (e.g., 24-hour rainfall of a 30-year storm event) for stormwater management and design standards. 

• Adopt a policy that limits municipal funds being used for development in flood hazard areas, unless expressly for 

adaptation, mitigation, or resilience measures. 

Economic Development: Wells has not yet taken specific actions to promote and support 

sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses.  

NEXT STEPS: 

• Engage the business community on climate change and resiliency issues, potentially as part of SMPDC’s EDA grant-
funded project on coastal economic resilience. 

• Support the establishment of a regional business sustainability award or recognition program. 

Energy: Reducing municipal fossil fuel consumption has been a priority for Wells and the WEAC. The Town has 

conducted a pilot project to replace current streetlight bulbs with more efficient LED bulbs. Wells installed solar panels at 
the Town Garage and at the Wells Sanitary District. The Town is currently developing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a 
power purchase agreement to procure solar electricity for municipal operations. Wells has not yet undertaken efforts to 
promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses. The Town has worked to support the development of renewable 
energy, passing a Property Assessed Clean Energy ordinance and facilitating the development of solar farms on 
underutilized town-owned properties.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Finalize and release the Request for Proposals for the municipal solar project and work with SMPDC to evaluate bids. 
• Work through the WEAC to connect residents and businesses to energy efficiency resources and educate the community about 

renewable energy options. 
• Adopt a renewable energy ordinance prescribing the permitting, standards, and allowable use of renewable energy systems. 

Page 2 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Land Ecosystems: Wells strives to practice sustainable landscaping by replacing turf with sustainable 

landscaping alternatives and use integrated pest management strategies for municipal landscapes to reduce impacts from 
fertilizers and pesticides. Wells also restricts residential/commercial pesticide application in the Aquifer Protection District. 
Since 1981, the Wells Conservation Commission has served to protect the town’s natural assets, establishing a land bank 
for residents to invest in the purchase of ecologically significant lands. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Work through the Conservation Commission and partnerships with local non-profit organizations to educate the community 
about the value of trees, native plants, and sustainable landscaping. 

• Consider adapting the subdivision and development codes to encourage sustainable landscaping in the community. 
• Encourage community-wide use of integrated pest management strategies through a pesticide policy and/or community 

education programs to reduce fertilizer and pesticide use. 

TOWN OF WELLS 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Leadership: Wells has not yet participated as an active member of national and/or regional sustainability and 

resilience networks. The Town frequently partners with Wells Reserve and local schools to research sustainability and 
resilience issues in the community. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Participate in regional state, and/or national networks to plan for and achieve sustainability and resilience, such as ICLEI: 
Local Governments for Sustainability or the New England Municipal Sustainability Network. 

• Share information about municipal leadership in sustainability broadly in the community and externally. 

Mobility: While Wells has no formal Bike and Pedestrian committee, the Public Works Department works to 

improve bicycle and pedestrian safety and infrastructure. The Wells Transportation Center is a hub for transit in coastal 
York County, and Wells coordinates with transportation partners to expand transit opportunities. The town does not have 
a Complete Streets Policy but has begun supporting the electrification of the transportation system by installing EV 
charging stations at public sites and leasing an Electric Vehicle as part of the municipal fleet. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider establishing a Bike and Pedestrian Committee to advise on strategies for improving connectivity and safety. 
• Consider establishing a Complete Streets Policy to ensure safe access for all users. 
• Continue to pursue public EV charging station installation and collaborate with businesses to develop EV infrastructure. 
• Establish a fleet purchasing policy to prioritize electric vehicles and continue exploring EV fleet opportunities. 

Municipal Operations: Wells has not yet formalized any sustainability and resilience goals, policies, 

or priorities. While the WEAC does work on some topics regarding sustainability and resiliency, these are not officially 
part of the Committee’s charge. Wells has taken advantage of different financing strategies for renewable energy 
projects, but the Town does not have regular financing strategies in place for sustainability and resilience activities outside 
of committee budgets. Sustainability and resilience criteria are not incorporated into the Town’s municipal expenditure 
policies.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Ensure that sustainability and resilience are incorporated into the next Comprehensive Plan update. 
• Budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment upgrades. 
• Integrate sustainability and resiliency into capital planning criteria. 

Page 3 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Communities: Many municipal departments link town residents with resources and 

services that support well being and enhance community resilience, including Emergency Management, Emergency Medical 
Services, Parks and Recreation, and Wells Volunteers. Wells supports local food access at the Wells Farmers Market.  The 
Town has not yet actively engaged community members in local climate, sustainability, and resilience issues. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Take emergency management lessons from the Covid-19 pandemic to increase community preparedness and resilience. 
• Work through the WEAC to host events educating the public about climate change, renewable energy, and energy 

efficiency. 
• Support and promote the development of a community garden and increased access to local foods. 

TOWN OF WELLS 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Development: Wells land use zoning allows for a diverse variety of housing types 

and emphasizes open space conservation. The Town is prioritizing commercial development in the new Transportation 
Center District to support the Wells Transportation Center and is supporting the redevelopment of an underutilized and 
contaminated landfill site and gravel pit for solar farms. There is currently no mixed-use specific zoning to promote 
walkability and neighborhood development.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Modify zoning and building regulations to facilitated mixed-use and infill development. 

• Explore incentives for green building in new construction and re-construction. 

Waste & Recycling: Wells has a Pay as You Throw program for trash to encourage recycling. The 

transfer station allows residents and businesses to dispose of hard to recycle items including electronics, construction 
debris, and bulky items. The Town does not currently have a recycling or solid waste committee. Residential composting 
services are not currently available in Wells. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider creating a Solid Waste Committee to advise the Select Board on ways to provide sustainable and affordable 
waste management services and educate the community about waste reduction, recycling, and composting. 

• Provide recycling and composting infrastructure at public places. 

• Develop a mandatory recycling ordinance that applies to single and multifamily residences and businesses.  

• Work to gain access to curbside composting services for residents and businesses. 

Water: Wells is served by the regional Water District KKW. Undeveloped parcels around the headwaters of the 

Webhannet River Watershed and conserved lands managed by the Rachel Carson Wildlife Refuge near the mouth of the 
River offer some protection of water quality within Wells. The Town’s land use regulations include groundwater protection 
districts and stormwater management measures for aquifer recharge areas.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 
• Enhance the Town’s existing land use regulations and policies by encouraging and/or requiring the use of low impact 

development and green infrastructure approaches for stormwater management for all development and redevelopment 
projects requiring site plan review.  

• Incorporate wetland impact assessment requirement in land use requirements and enact and enforce policies that preserve, 
protect, and restore wetlands, including those smaller than the 10-acre threshold used for shoreland zoning. 

• Enact a pesticide and fertilizer ordinance. 
• Complete an inventory of septic systems in Town to inform planning and water quality protection efforts.  
• Develop a septic inspection and pump out ordinance to ensure septic systems, especially those in areas vulnerable to current 

and future flooding, function properly and to minimize potential detrimental impacts to water quality and the environment.  

Page 4 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

The Town of York strives to incorporate sustainability and resilience into all aspects of the community. Sustainability is a 
key goal of the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. York defines sustainability as “a concept that recognizes the interrelatedness 
of the energy, environmental, economic, development, and civic health of the Town, and the importance of ensuring that 
future generations can share in the many of York’s resources that exist today”. In 2019, York joined a coalition of six 
towns in coastal York County to create the SMPDC Regional Sustainability and Resilience Program. The program aims to 
foster more sustainable and resilient communities in coastal York County by leveraging regional collaboration to enhance 
the effectiveness of local government action. To identify and direct sustainability and resilience efforts, the program is 
establishing a baseline of sustainability and resilience efforts and needs in individual communities and the Coastal York 
Country region. Through the work of the York Energy Efficiency Steering Committee, York has made significant strides in 
implementing energy efficiency and renewable energy for municipal operations. The Town has paved the way for 
renewable energy development with the adoption of the Sustainable Energy Efficient Buildings code. York also excels in 
watershed management practices and regulations.  
 

Using the SMPDC Sustainability Progress Framework (SPF), York was evaluated on many strategies within twelve 
sustainability and resilience categories. Strategies were grouped into 22 indicators, shown below. York’s status on each 
progress indicator ranges from “Not Yet Considered” to “Excelling”. Explanations for each indicator and suggested next 
steps are detailed on the following pages. 

TOWN OF YORK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Page 1 

CATEGORY INDICATOR STATUS

Establish a GHG emissions inventory, target, and plan

Climate change vulnerability assessment

Integrate coastal risk reduction measures in zoning and regulations

Incorporate future climatic conditions into land use requirements and municipal policies

Economic 

Development
Promote and support sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses

Reduce municipal fossil fuel consumption and implement municipal energy efficiency 

measures

Promote energy efficiency for residents and businesses

Support development of and access to renewable energy

Land Ecosystems Promote and practice environmentally-friendly and sustainable landscape approaches

Leadership Participate as an active member of a national/regional sustainability and resilience network

Promote and facilitate transit systems as well as bicycle and pedestrian networks

Adopt a complete streets policy

Support the electrification of the transportation system, leading by example with the municipal 

fleet

Formally adopt sustainability and resilience goals, policies, and strategies

Establish local financing strategies for sustainability and resilience activities

Incorporate sustainability and resilience criteria in municipal expenditure policies

Connect residents to resources and services that support well being and enhance community 

resilience

Actively engage community members in local climate, sustainability, and resilience issues 

Sustainable 

Development

Facilitate compact, mixed-use development that reduces environmental impacts and 

increases housing affordability

Waste & Recycling Deliver sustainable and affordable waste management services

Include Low Impact Development in performance and design standards

Establish and enforce progressive watershed protection measures

Coastal Hazards

Water

Climate

Energy

Mobility

Municipal Operations

Sustainable 

Communities

Almost There

Getting Started

Interested

Making Progress

Getting Started

Almost There

Making Progress

Excelling

Almost There

Getting started

Getting started

Making Progress

Interested

Not yet considered

Excelling

Almost there

Getting started

Almost there

Making Progress

Interested

Excelling

Excelling



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Climate: York has made significant strides towards understanding the Town’s greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, 

completing both municipal and community-wide GHG inventories. The Town has set targets to reduce community and 
municipal GHG emissions 50% by 2030 and 100% by 2050 and is beginning to develop a Climate Action Plan that will 
guide mitigation strategies. A climate change vulnerability assessment and climate adaptation strategies will also be part 
of the Climate Action Plan.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Standardize the municipal GHG inventory data collection process by tracking building energy consumption (i.e. with 
EnergyStar Portfolio Manager or through the finance department). 

• Develop a Climate Action Plan with achievable actions to reduce community emissions. 

• Conduct a climate change vulnerability assessment to evaluate non-coastal vulnerabilities. 

• Ensure that climate adaptation and community resilience are incorporated into the Climate Action and Comprehensive Plans. 

TOWN OF YORK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Coastal Hazards: Coastal hazards, especially storm surge and sea level rise, are of particular concern for 

York. The Town was the first in Maine to have a sea level rise chapter in its Comprehensive Plan and is committed to 
updating and refining the chapter in its forthcoming Plan update. York is participating in two projects assessing the 
economic and social impacts of storm surge and sea level rise and is working with DEP to evaluate the impact of its new 
seawall design on beach sediment dynamics.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Incorporate the most recent projections of sea level rise, precipitation, marsh migration, and shoreline change in the 
forthcoming Comprehensive Plan update. 

• Establish a coastal hazard overlay zoning district and accompanying development standards to direct development away 

from high-risk areas and ensure new and redevelopment in vulnerable areas are resilient. 
• Amend the floodplain management ordinance to incorporate enhanced flood risk reduction measures such as accounting for 

cumulative improvement costs in the definition of substantial improvement and damage. 
• Assess impacts of sea level rise and shoreline change on the Town’s beaches and subsequent impacts to the local economy. 

• Assess impacts of saltwater intrusion and groundwater rise caused by sea level rise on water supplies and infrastructure. 

Economic Development: York has not yet taken specific actions to promote and support 

sustainability and resiliency actions for local businesses.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Engage the business community on climate change and resiliency issues, potentially as part of SMPDC’s EDA grant-funded 
project on coastal economic resilience. 

• Support the establishment of a regional business sustainability award or recognition program. 

Energy: Reducing municipal fossil fuel consumption has been a priority for York and the York Energy Efficiency 

Steering Committee (YEESC). Since an energy audit in 2011, many energy efficiency projects have been completed 
including air sealing, insulation, lighting upgrades, and rooftop solar. York requires all new municipal buildings to meet 
energy efficiency criteria under Article 9: Sustainable Energy Efficient Buildings. The Town has done some work promoting 
energy efficiency for residents and businesses, such as supporting weatherization programs through York Community 
Service Association. York has undertaken several strategies to support the development of renewable energy, such as 
adopting a Property Assessed Clean Energy Ordinance, adopting ordinances that facilitate small windmill and solar 
installations on private property, and pursuing a municipal solar farm on underutilized town properties. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Finalize and release the Request for Proposals for municipal solar farms on the landfill sites. 

• Work through the YEESC to connect residents and businesses to energy efficiency resources and educate the community 
about renewable energy options. 

• Explore energy efficiency projects for municipal buildings with longer-term payback (e.g., windows, roofs, ductwork). 

Page 2 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Land Ecosystems: The York Conservation Commission leads efforts to promote and practice 

environmentally-friendly and sustainable landscape approaches in town. The Commission is currently focused on the 
Town’s beach trash policy, invasive plant strategies, a potential new pesticide policy, and proposing amendments to the 
Open Space Conservation Subdivision Ordinance.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Incorporate sustainable landscape approaches into municipal landscaping, such as: strategically planting trees to act as a 
buffer to filter air and water, limit stormwater runoff, and stabilize soil, manage lawns using natural products and low-
impact practices, use integrated pest management strategies for municipal landscapes to reduce impacts from fertilizers 
and pesticides, and use native and sustainable landscaping on municipal properties. 

• Encourage community-wide use of integrated pest management strategies through a pesticide policy or ordinance and/or 
community education programs. 

TOWN OF YORK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Leadership: Through the efforts of the Board of Selectmen and YEESC, York is an member of ICLEI: Local Govts. 

for Sustainability, Urban Sustainability Directors Network, and the Global Covenant of Mayors for Climate & Energy.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Partner with local universities and schools to identify opportunities for research on sustainability issues such as identifying 
climate change vulnerabilities, supporting local and sustainable food systems, and developing waste reduction strategies   

• Share information about municipal sustainability initiatives broadly in the community and externally through events, the town 
website, and active participation in sustainability and resilience networks. 

Mobility: York strives to facilitate alternative transportation. With the support of the Bike and Pedestrian 

Committee, the Town drafted and adopted a Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan in 2017 and actively pursues strategies to 
promote bike and pedestrian safety. York coordinates on regional transportation through the Kittery Area Comprehensive 
Transportation System (KACTS). York is also interested in facilitating the electrification of the transportation system, 
exploring opportunities for public EV charging station installation and electric fleet vehicles. The Energy Chapter of the 
Comprehensive Plan recommends the development of a Green Fleet Policy. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Continue to promote safe and secure walkability and sidewalks along Route 1 and in the Nubble and beach areas. 

• Ensure that Bike lanes or adequate shoulder space for bike safety is integral to all road projects. 

• Adopt a Complete Streets policy as recommended in the Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan. 

• Develop a Green Fleet Policy to prioritize the purchase of EVs and reduce municipal transportation emissions. 

• Investigate local transit needs and opportunities to support an aging population, such as demand-response transit. 

Municipal Operations: York formally adopted a sustainability goal in its current Comprehensive Plan 

(Goal 1.4) and is planning on incorporating sustainability as a key theme in the next Comprehensive Plan update. Many 
of the Town’s sustainability efforts are supported by work of the YEESC, Bike and Pedestrian Committee, and 
Conservation Commission. A town-wide Sustainability Policy has been drafted, but not yet approved. York does not have 
regular financing strategies in place for sustainability and resilience activities outside of committee budgets. Sustainability 
and resilience criteria are not incorporated into York’s municipal expenditure policies.  

 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Ensure York’s sustainability goals remain in the Comprehensive plan update and consider adding resilience as a key theme. 
• Explore strategies such as Power Purchase Agreements, leases, and Energy Savings Performance Contracts to finance 

renewable energy systems and energy efficiency projects for municipal buildings. 
• Budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment upgrades (i.e. boilers and chillers for heating and cooling, 

window, door and rooftop replacements, and modified ductwork). 
• Integrate sustainability and resiliency into capital planning criteria by evaluating each project for its influence on York’s 

environmental, economic, and social sustainability and for its resilience to coastal and climate change impacts. 

Page 3 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Communities: York partners with York Community Services Association to connect 

residents to vital community services that enhance wellbeing and community resilience, such as general assistance and 
family services. The Town supports local food access through the York (Gateway) Farmers’ Market and the York 
Community Garden. The Energy Steering Committee and private organizations lead many outreach and education events 
about climate, sustainability, and resilience issues. 

 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Take emergency management lessons from Covid-19 pandemic to increase community preparedness and resilience, such as 
revising emergency ordinances, policies and procedures and improving inter-municipal coordination and collaboration. 

• Support the acceptance of SNAP/EBT benefits and the York (Gateway) Farmers’ Market. 
• Develop online materials for the community about sustainability initiatives and allied organizations and govt. agencies. 

• Support the York Community Garden to increase accessibility and develop standards for use. 

TOWN OF YORK 

2020 Sustainability and Coastal Resilience Assessment  

Sustainable Development: York has made significant efforts to promote more affordable housing 

through the Zoning Ordinance, including a workforce affordable housing requirement in the development standards for 
subdivisions, provisions for converting buildings to affordable apartments, a York Village Affordable Elderly Housing 
Overlay District, and a Workforce Affordable Housing Overlay District. The Open Space Conservation Subdivision 
requirement serves to conserve environmentally important and ecologically significant features.  
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Consider revising and/or developing codes to promote sustainable building and site practices. 

• Explore incentives for green building in new construction and re-construction as recommended in the Comprehensive Plan 
Energy Chapter. 

Waste & Recycling: York provides curbside trash and recycling pick up to residents, as well as recycling 

services at the Town’s transfer station. The Town has taken a lead in discouraging single-use plastics, banning plastic bags 
in 2015 and banning polystyrene foam in 2019. York also has a mandatory recycling ordinance that applies to single 
and multi-family residences. The Recycling Committee leads outreach and education activities and is actively looking for 
opportunities for community composting programs. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Provide recycling and composting infrastructure at public places. 
• Explore a construction and demolition recycling policy to keep these materials out of landfills and ensure they are recycled. 
• Continue to explore community composting program (at the York Community Garden, transfer facility or through a third-

party) and education to residents and businesses. 

Water: As an MS4 community and active member of the Southern Maine Stormwater Management Group, York has 

adopted enhanced stormwater management regulations and policies. The Town has implemented a number of exemplary 
water quality protection measures, including wetlands and watershed protection ordinances, the York River Watershed 
project, and Cape Neddick River Watershed restoration and protection projects. The Town also has ordinances requiring 
the use of low impact development (LID), periodic pump out of septic systems, and open space subdivisions provisions 
requiring development designs centered around conserving open space, ecological features, and the natural environment. 
 

NEXT STEPS: 

• Enhance existing land use regulations requiring the use of LID for stormwater management for all development and 
redevelopment projects by developing performance standards and LID criteria.  

• Adopt an ordinance limiting and/or prohibiting the use of chemical pesticides and fertilizers. 
• Adopt a policy that all municipal development projects will utilize LID techniques and green infrastructure. 
• Incorporate future precipitation projections in land use regulations and amend stormwater design standards to address 

both peak flow and volume. 

Page 4 



 

 

TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806 
 
 

 
R E P O R T  T O  T O W N  C O U N C I L  

 
Meeting Date: February 8, 2021 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2021 Financial Update – Quarter 2 

Councilor Sponsor: N/A 

 
 
This is to provide the Council with an update on the Fiscal Year 2021 (FY21) finances at the 
close of Quarter 2 (Q2) of the fiscal year.    
 
Revenue 
Revenue projections are difficult to make at this time.  We focus on watching revenue activity, 
and identifying any unanticipated variations.  This year we have the added challenge of COVID-
19’s impacts on the economy and many of our revenue-generating activities.  We anticipated 
lower revenue as a matter of course, when developing the FY21 budget, and continue to watch 
for variation from projections as well as year-over-year analysis. 
 
Current revenue from Homestead exemptions is $310,771, $10,771 over projection.  We typically 
receive reimbursements from the State in the second half of the fiscal year, which will help offset 
other areas where revenue is coming in below projections. 
 
Excise tax is tracking is $30,000 ahead of the prior year.  Total collected year-to-date is 
$1,069,000, compared to approximately $1,038,000 for the same period in the prior fiscal year.  
Due to the extended deadline for registration renewals in the spring, some collections reflect 
revenue that, if not for COVID-19, would have been collected in the prior fiscal year.   
 
Code enforcement fees are ahead of projections, primarily due to the implementation of 
permitted housing projects such as the Huntington Run development.  Code Enforcement has 
collected 89% of their projected revenue, for a total of $199,960 through Q2.  High interest in 
residential development continues in Kittery; indicating that permit activity will remain steady in 
the second half of the fiscal year.   
 
Parking fee collections revenue reached 100% of projected revenue by the close of Q2, at 
$29,865.  The implementation of a full-time ACO made it possible to increase enforcement. 
 
Conversely, the KCC revenue remains down significantly, coming in at 3% of projection, 
approximately $27,499.  COVID-19 restrictions have effectively shut-down revenue generating 
activities at the KCC including theater rentals, classes and programs, and the preschool.  At the 
time the budget was set, the Town had not anticipated the hybrid School schedule and the role 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL -  MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2021 

2 
 

the KCC could play in supporting families with children K-5 for gap childcare in the School’s 
hybrid learning model.  This led to the indefinite closure of the preschool.  At the time of this 
report, York County had the highest positivity rate for COVID-19 in the state.  The likelihood of 
reopening revenue generating programs in the KCC in Q3 are extremely low. 
 
Sewer collections are starting to fall behind slightly.  Billings are at $1,088,575 for Q2 this fiscal 
year, falling behind the prior year Q2 billings by approximately $306,000.   Often, billing timing 
impacts how the revenue collection performs over same-period prior years.  The restrictions on 
restaurants and other businesses due to COVID-19 are proving to have an impact on flow and 
revenue as well. 
 
Expenditures 
We continue making year-end expenditure projections throughout the fiscal year.  This is 
particularly important as we respond to and absorb unanticipated costs that arise throughout the 
year. As a general note, projected spending is developed using spending cycle calculations, 
anticipated costs, and other methods as appropriate.  Projections are estimates only and may 
change as additional information becomes available or spending fluctuations occur over the 
course of the fiscal year.   
 
To date, COVID-19 related expenses have exceeded $400,000.  Thus far the Town has been 
successful in identifying grants to carry most of the pandemic related costs year-to-date.  State 
grants to municipalities ended in mid-December.  As noted above, York County is still being hard 
hit by the pandemic, and supplies and support resources continue to be needed despite the 
elimination of direct funding support from the state.  Careful attention is being paid to the federal 
and state discourse on COVID relief packages being considered. 
 
Based on projections, we remain on track for spending and budget controls so far this year.  We 
are watching a few departments for potential areas of exposure.  Staff reductions due to COVID 
quarantines, isolations, and childcare impacts are still being experienced throughout the 
organization, impacting both productivity and overtime. 
 
The Police Department’s projected deficit is growing to $151,000.  The Police Academy has been 
closed since mid-March 2020 due to COVID-19.  This has impacted how we staff shifts for the 
first part of the fiscal year.  The Academy is reopening which will make two officers unavailable 
for portions of the remainder of the fiscal year.  Long-term absences due to illness or injury have 
also impacted overtime.  To note, the Police Department has a total of 11 Patrol Officers 
covering seven days a week/24 hours a day.  Overtime is part-and-parcel of a Police operation, 
but due to our minimal staffing, an absence of any duration puts significant pressure on the 
overtime budget. 
 
Public Works is projected to have a deficit of approximately $78,000 as of Q2.  As in prior years, 
the DPW budget projections include a very conservative outlook on snow and ice operations 
spending.  The projection is adjusted throughout the winter, to reflect actual storm event activity.  
Additionally, we transitioned a slate of historically “seasonal” positions to two full-time positions.  
The employment market for seasonal laborers has been extremely challenging the past two years, 



REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL -  MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2021 

3 
 

and even more so this year, resulting in positions remaining unfilled.  Combined with ongoing 
intermittent absences due to COVID, the department’s capacity is hampered, and has resulted in 
the DPW Commissioner, Foreman, and Inspector performing mowing, road maintenance, 
plowing and shoveling as a means of helping make sure immediate needs are addressed.   
 
While the KCC revenue is down, so are KCC expenses.  The KCC is projected to have an 
operating surplus of $337,000.  Wages alone for preschool teachers made up approximately 
$300,000 in costs for the department.  The costs for the gap childcare staff, supplies, and 
materials are being covered by grants and will not impact the operating budget.  The Town’s 
annual revenue must at least cover the annual expenses.  Any savings achieved through the KCC 
operations will be nullified by the significant deficit in KCC revenue.   
 
Attachments 
Report through Q1:  

• General Fund 
• Sewer Fund 
• Other Funds  

 



 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      1
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

101110 ADMINISTRATION                     
_________________________________________

 
101110 64011  MANAGER SALARY       99,996           0      99,996      52,543.82            .00      47,452.18   52.5% 
101110 64014  TOWN CLERK SALARY       79,530           0      79,530      40,179.79            .00      39,350.21   50.5% 
101110 64017  CLERKS SALARIES      305,575           0     305,575     155,713.16            .00     149,861.84   51.0% 
101110 64018  HUMAN RESOURCES MA       61,482           0      61,482      30,954.60            .00      30,527.40   50.3% 
101110 64026  FINANCE DIRECTOR S      110,381           0     110,381      55,573.79            .00      54,807.21   50.3% 
101110 64027  CUSTODIAN WAGES       14,119           0      14,119       5,093.70            .00       9,025.30   36.1% 
101110 64030  OVERTIME        4,000           0       4,000          56.30            .00       3,943.70    1.4% 
101110 64031  SALARY & POSITION      165,000      75,000     240,000            .00            .00     240,000.00     .0% 
101110 65010  POSTAGE       13,000           0      13,000       6,804.86            .00       6,195.14   52.3% 
101110 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        9,000           0       9,000       4,213.94            .00       4,786.06   46.8% 
101110 65030  TRANSPORTATION        1,500           0       1,500            .00            .00       1,500.00     .0% 
101110 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN        1,000           0       1,000         615.66            .00         384.34   61.6% 
101110 65060  PRINTING        7,000           0       7,000            .00            .00       7,000.00     .0% 
101110 65080  LEGAL NOTICES/OTHE        3,000           0       3,000       1,121.52            .00       1,878.48   37.4% 
101110 65200  ELECTRICITY       15,000           0      15,000       4,831.95            .00      10,168.05   32.2% 
101110 65220  WATER          400           0         400          79.35            .00         320.65   19.8% 
101110 65230  FUEL OIL        4,200           0       4,200       1,262.56            .00       2,937.44   30.1% 
101110 65240  DUMPSTERS          625           0         625            .00            .00         625.00     .0% 
101110 65250  SEWER          325           0         325         149.52            .00         175.48   46.0% 
101110 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN       35,000           0      35,000      21,382.14            .00      13,617.86   61.1% 
101110 65400  LEGAL SERVICES       60,000           0      60,000       6,739.32            .00      53,260.68   11.2% 
101110 65410  COMPUTER SERVICES       45,000           0      45,000      17,563.43            .00      27,436.57   39.0% 
101110 65415  WEB PAGE        3,500           0       3,500       4,461.22            .00        -961.22  127.5%*
101110 65430  AUDIT SERVICES       17,500           0      17,500      11,350.00            .00       6,150.00   64.9% 
101110 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL       31,500           0      31,500      26,628.75            .00       4,871.25   84.5% 
101110 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD       16,500           0      16,500       3,704.74            .00      12,795.26   22.5% 
101110 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES        7,000           0       7,000       4,290.25            .00       2,709.75   61.3% 
101110 66020  BOOKS/SUBSCRIPTION        1,000           0       1,000       1,019.48            .00         -19.48  101.9%*
101110 66025  MAINE MUNICIPAL AS       13,500           0      13,500            .00            .00      13,500.00     .0% 
101110 66035  ABSTRACTS & LIENS        9,500           0       9,500       2,831.00            .00       6,669.00   29.8% 
101110 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE        2,500           0       2,500         278.56            .00       2,221.44   11.1% 

 
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION                   1,137,633      75,000   1,212,633     459,443.41            .00     753,189.59   37.9%

 
 

101115 TOWN COUNCIL                       
_________________________________________

 
101115 64001  COUNCIL STIPEND        4,000           0       4,000            .00            .00       4,000.00     .0% 
101115 65480  OTHER PROF SERV/CO        3,000           0       3,000          45.00            .00       2,955.00    1.5% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7fzJ85abczACwCr1N8he46ItpUGLRT/qvIpIFPP80mivz5%2BK2eXWSSaamnV1s2gG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=CviBGtEq/XLv5nKTNoKKRUItWcpiU3OCn7rDh0MFn4U48f%2B6zrkDJwNggPOT6wi0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=u60/zk7ZwR7shdZm8N7ymJ1gqgfM/V3T4mw2%2BMX/KYGiq5mFdKmpPX3Va0n9K5e9&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TdYLNauRrEI/dXdxiOC3JtD75l4Vl3CqfDRq1g0KAi/dKAhG44XtacHiRhog%2BWUc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=cXuJfSrB7VbzjeSBe5viJzeWAw287SBV15qWh/KGYGjfEVnG%2B/TNVMnTOf975Hv2&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kUsN9ym3BPf1j7TEkm44/flgF3gO3TMR%2BO5yGXkFjn7Q5ua0P9zbMN%2BmpSxCiP8w&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GFlH0yapQu2KjSvswFzyw6fOAbA%2B%2BIWKTzL3Ek65E0xcu9jxY%2BR%2BfWnUlcnkRo6Q&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Gnvxf/k3VEoP0u2ntyrCFxhWtMfxb54AvN2u%2B2GQQwwRKm3okQI4Y449gE%2BEmjaC&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8WrbVsOZidydGhCo9eusYRZU/uwpqipVg4scxuvSgKhLFUqPdVq%2BjwWfaWYnezWz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=G3wTYU9C5lq2kAWTdlXhBW%2BelKTDz2B1wKyR8OOIUqkx/GvMMOyjoxM4df11uxMu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BCgW9sshEMa2MRM8TLeBJxDRCcnj7fn8aTceDLW9HIjfoIwMRRMT6855Fv/karIu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UCWxDZESxmZOoJLvDFEXtEmvc4Bx/sjIwW0dN3cvkwLLPINjmCkqxAuj6N6MGvfh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6iGJNmW5AjWgjbHAWIukpCZsHMIRpEb5fUozBD5xPWAG/ozr3hvsa%2BNGdBLHfpIS&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Vw96JJ8eKbIlLPJRa3%2BZE2UoQmFBAN/7%2BKy0wEFj/1zo7nDISzRCtt983SZ6pLW3&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VASV1RdT0CRGL1PWO%2B6PD06niCP%2BjMjxWQmIcy/Vmcwg%2BFrzBSKbF7EYOLvg6PGG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ycb%2B8YYipFgPUWS%2BBS6VI/AwUk/JERVxgPXEOA1qM%2BX9chvGaBJXX1xsQhNITHYt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SevrhMHhBS1nRYQFF84Orq4I7dtBDeE2k43eI9hW1A08Tv24IkQo%2BAumg4XbOqYr&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=O/VTiBdW3hEQ2z1FLTF8duX%2BONlqocgxcahQuJx2g8gzCO7lxYDmR438vUUSS9YD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9EYH93K24UyRDlxO%2BfLyyLdiZj/vR9kd0FRdBCk4%2B/DYOxySfru4BwLf/b4iFoDp&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8/gd0ns18TRWtoGXIxydJUhAGL/Qq3pRscK3CunIC6/ey9PdL0PFYuThSjNxQeVK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Z0IujzV%2BcpZJWb%2BiO1PWjo5VxZJHzd2AIOC8AP2zNWDP2u9UCj97H0w2ujQm5Sk6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Qi8iMLeYhF4FKBJ2Uz44hZLRRNh6C0l9Dh4FjA1QetPNqhhRfzp1oIeonLj8Sk2t&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9OYbi53jWv%2B6UTE8EAih8CAT44tbprtbmSQVjDXwp500w8DI9u6oIwbNYeNqBpK5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BtapNOz/BE8khQxbSaFm8j8us%2BVwXxgA0HObYmL354UGnoZ2rQE%2BR7PO0Cnf0wOn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Jma/9dzFKATqe3y61mHC1u58Hi6FuBtc6m/rMEnE2suFFhtRc65bFLH6B0AVetnE&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SRz2bADLEYaJh0ddBcx8zlo2vw3r8duBjdHy8NxJenJLWRYcmwEXifSQgGoQsBGz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bCAtOVFDTTgltv6qkQTaYNwdYKuVVUVQJkuLKY4dtIKgVE7BUY4JLWNPDc3fbbp8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=t4vozKDXltZxqZox8t9ZxouUKDl86HKUBmEUXKpGXgC5OLaGaNVlE1BWV2kluQnX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=d/0QfL4Jsg1oJdfcENf0hQn/kYCqvEavouZwdtc3WYQbeQLzGZLZQ8GUfqfJetBH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qQbDD3ArqF9h3scNfeHXY36poys2ko1cSDo5LFmVU5Ypjzbj9vpPi0gUxS6G5OD1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Q3ANpT2RHXR2HIl8xH3YFsCZgQ6mOpylK44q%2By3sD3u%2B9%2B6zBNq1R700UHSNcmcM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6nrRXSCIXXheP%2BnzM3XO3rmV5ntFb%2BJidnGy1KWPob862WLcED3CNGP1oKfWqHU%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ETDsdeijDTwMdIl9Z6GGeTp/NEjPZSDdRK4T3MWCfJEVsPjLv%2BHrEJeh%2BURGDDeR&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      2
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101115 66037  COUNCIL EXPENSES          350           0         350            .00            .00         350.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL TOWN COUNCIL                         7,350           0       7,350          45.00            .00       7,305.00     .6%

 
 

101130 ELECTIONS                          
_________________________________________

 
101130 64020  PART TIME SALARIES        4,500           0       4,500            .00            .00       4,500.00     .0% 
101130 65000  ELECTIONS EXPENSES          800           0         800            .00            .00         800.00     .0% 
101130 65010  POSTAGE        2,000           0       2,000            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0% 
101130 65060  PRINTING        6,500           0       6,500            .00            .00       6,500.00     .0% 
101130 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        5,000           0       5,000            .00            .00       5,000.00     .0% 
101130 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          200           0         200            .00            .00         200.00     .0% 
101130 67510  OFFICE FURNITURE &        3,750           0       3,750            .00            .00       3,750.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL ELECTIONS                           22,750           0      22,750            .00            .00      22,750.00     .0%

 
 

101150 COUNTY TAX                         
_________________________________________

 
101150 65480  OTHER PROF SERVICE      935,000           0     935,000     935,483.62            .00        -483.62  100.1%*

 
TOTAL COUNTY TAX                         935,000           0     935,000     935,483.62            .00        -483.62  100.1%

 
 

101155 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING            
_________________________________________

 
101155 65000  TIF FINANCING PLAN       27,000           0      27,000      27,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCING             27,000           0      27,000      27,000.00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

101230 DEBT & INTEREST                    
_________________________________________

 
101230 68057  RUSTLEWOOD FARM -        6,407           0       6,407       6,407.20            .00           -.20  100.0%*
101230 68065  2006 FIRE STATION      115,000           0     115,000     115,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101230 68066  2010 PW SALT SHED       35,000           0      35,000      35,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101230 68067  2012 KCC BOND PRIN      275,000           0     275,000            .00            .00     275,000.00     .0% 
101230 68068  2015 CIP BOND PRIN      225,000           0     225,000     225,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101230 68069  KLT BRAVE BOAT HEA       11,741           0      11,741      11,740.84            .00            .16  100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=A7f3mq/w8a%2B1dorjkj1sk85jTSJX0tlDYePA5HQo8A/u2FbhFx5256UNQI4SAbO2&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=OpUm9rL9EMJ8prZm5sODNmV90CMXvs9JbmxLkz7xu0mQHzvU2U8E0kOWk40eQFa5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=pJ8g2d7N%2Bx6YYeHtIx%2BU5P4d0UCsJk8iqnspH4j3cBk4SZ9AgPJPZjJZAOT8R7Zy&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=D8BwRCewN%2BkTampdcPpksncCLLaLN37OUZTBGeIxu8w3J78cjwK4taESWoEZLjSR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vnSYUHSbk5HYp1Tcq4m3U1psRE6KIC%2B87Z%2BE94Rs0zqksWTRMyq9wIU/ofMRMmdR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4K6U6YbOq5FNOrZ/5RVecUngJLNT2RaHQhkfb7ZzfOhSUPFj5ghSyR8npNI%2BeuQc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VZYfU2WA2WtuYHc9JjgsQ/16Eq%2BGUfC/XO0zUrFTlvG45C8iF9GSvUteFGnF9hVU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dT/Bn6nPgLWu15A/ycriPZh6C6Qrp0qC7M0jZSPscADJv08bnBu46OKmdPW5fh7%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VGT0avd/05I9LJp%2BDbz8l43RZzjnRWtOl/vQXPZJI6Cx7O6L202XQAylLrnWX5XO&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=KHnQsuoT66sdTBVwiEtUDV8qcFwc%2BA3LOkLOTKFepIcxj0XV/DQgM4teiyynv5zv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=zllJFIM2zg7UJZBlfx%2BGjJSlj7B3lq%2BV297icIXpLBFomhFKNiGp65%2BMzQ2vqqTv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=m8CIq/K2IMRPbzWQ6zgSjO/TopsrY3lAOeoOSTa%2Bvfj7wt66Ae76U1FRwA%2Byn0Mm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=yM4kphCkDZgXFcklyMegfl6ZlMm8J/hsFTxguT9H1lD0nw2K9zPtAQzVPl4XLe0g&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=a6KqIP1%2B4Tagnf8oJyQ77szqacMJEdcJ1geEWsP6xTEVx1FZ%2BV2iaYzzUeSqIUZY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=moGZI5NbdgnvsDm/w2RQwPasbMiqk672wrpKFCBCoIAbuayLebgNJhr%2BOMHl4PLE&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XwC2leHQEUy0O1aTLraDAhm/DRWG8wJ22Ium5c2EaTRsyCLt5CJpkJ5qPPHs0VVF&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      3
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101230 68257  RUSTLEWOOD FARM IN        3,907           0       3,907       1,985.63            .00       1,921.37   50.8% 
101230 68265  2006 FIRE STATION       15,100           0      15,100       8,125.00            .00       6,975.00   53.8% 
101230 68268  2015 CIP BONDS INT       24,750           0      24,750      13,500.00            .00      11,250.00   54.5% 
101230 68269  KLT BRAVE BOAT HEA        6,349           0       6,349       3,214.03            .00       3,134.97   50.6% 
101230 68271  LIBRARY BOND INTER      100,000           0     100,000            .00            .00     100,000.00     .0% 
101230 68295  PWD BLDG/SALT SHED       13,503           0      13,503       6,981.25            .00       6,521.75   51.7% 
101230 68297  2012 KCC BOND INT       82,775           0      82,775      41,387.50            .00      41,387.50   50.0% 

 
TOTAL DEBT & INTEREST                    914,532           0     914,532     468,341.45            .00     446,190.55   51.2%

 
 

101310 POLICE                             
_________________________________________

 
101310 64002  POLICE CHIEF FT  S       97,138           0      97,138      50,640.68            .00      46,497.32   52.1% 
101310 64012  SERGEANTS SALARIES      321,381           0     321,381     166,178.83            .00     155,202.17   51.7% 
101310 64013  SCHOOL RESOURCE OF       67,448           0      67,448      32,927.29            .00      34,520.71   48.8% 
101310 64014  DETECTIVES SALARIE      138,153           0     138,153      69,190.96            .00      68,962.04   50.1% 
101310 64015  PATROLMEN SALARIES      685,333           0     685,333     362,315.75            .00     323,017.25   52.9% 
101310 64016  DISPATCHER SALARIE      291,714           0     291,714     146,307.90            .00     145,406.10   50.2% 
101310 64017  ADMINISTRATIVE ASS       94,534           0      94,534      47,336.48            .00      47,197.52   50.1% 
101310 64022  ANIMAL CONTROL OFF       67,276           0      67,276      33,390.45            .00      33,885.55   49.6% 
101310 64023  LIEUTENANT SALARY       79,207           0      79,207      39,814.76            .00      39,392.24   50.3% 
101310 64024  NIGHT DIFFERENTIAL       17,500           0      17,500       7,908.79            .00       9,591.21   45.2% 
101310 64027  CUSTODIAN WAGES       15,057           0      15,057       6,617.75            .00       8,439.25   44.0% 
101310 64030  OVERTIME      175,000           0     175,000     125,691.61            .00      49,308.39   71.8% 
101310 64033  SICK TIME BUY BACK        1,890           0       1,890            .00            .00       1,890.00     .0% 
101310 64034  PHYSICAL FITNESS S        4,900           0       4,900            .00            .00       4,900.00     .0% 
101310 65010  POSTAGE          530           0         530         435.18            .00          94.82   82.1% 
101310 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN       24,700           0      24,700      12,301.14            .00      12,398.86   49.8% 
101310 65030  TRANSPORTATION        2,800           0       2,800       1,400.00            .00       1,400.00   50.0% 
101310 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN       22,000           0      22,000       9,153.31            .00      12,846.69   41.6% 
101310 65060  PRINTING        1,400           0       1,400       8,747.16            .00      -7,347.16  624.8%*
101310 65080  LEGAL NOTICES/OTHE          700           0         700         141.28            .00         558.72   20.2% 
101310 65200  ELECTRICITY       15,000           0      15,000       6,442.60            .00       8,557.40   43.0% 
101310 65220  WATER          545           0         545         105.80            .00         439.20   19.4% 
101310 65230  FUEL OIL        5,400           0       5,400       1,683.38            .00       3,716.62   31.2% 
101310 65240  DUMPSTERS          750           0         750            .00            .00         750.00     .0% 
101310 65250  SEWER          300           0         300         199.36            .00         100.64   66.5% 
101310 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN       68,100           0      68,100      44,105.77            .00      23,994.23   64.8% 
101310 65310  VEHICLE MAINTENANC       31,000           0      31,000      11,789.78            .00      19,210.22   38.0% 
101310 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL       45,000           0      45,000      12,282.14            .00      32,717.86   27.3% 
101310 65470  DOG EXPENSE          750           0         750          85.00            .00         665.00   11.3% 
101310 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        4,200           0       4,200         664.34            .00       3,535.66   15.8% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VJB9Ro1taRyvJzI7I3UDBgkD%2BZWdOr7W591uo58%2BvgZNKfIdF6DpDwNy7iiWwR1G&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EpEo7WH4RCX56GDNPqJtd3/WIYYq9gRAQkYSOI1DmgWOpPKhnFb0F5b2NZdOIOyR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=F%2Biqfje5aSeJf5GGqiUuZWrUInyrksmVKOWweC/iuv2gLjbjODEHnyaGLC5VT4y1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=1po%2BOuSYQ9DAscwlcYTU8Q6iC91LAASlE%2Br2K0d/vLldviJXAUWxcwQbkfpOSlxN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=PT9A8VStFYOk4I7949OgdYY43g%2B9r9PrPIBkoNkPhHun6mFkEyS6kPjpi6DCtNU%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=b45gYNW4RL6iRiFVPzZUnLqOuzLQtLBynsGwjg7ivq/HPBP6exIL219dCT%2BGnDEn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gMjUfqasVo5a07jLWCIzSE30yHxkF9e5lkdUNuiNk4mDERnHyft1LzMwE5R5TSC8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=er3mtuWMpSfySFwsZulHBQU4KjEkDr9tPoLwzRWxRnW2GY18yH8G05f3tHMssb5f&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VYM2lrbCpr70Z0SbCKmzm8l%2BZzt3krtxx8smOjLX7Su1VakBvyCvOGj8MZjSYohV&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=HADfAJ1Y1u05oKz1COgTLAcGPw1djwgfIdlPj5g5VLtFjjHSlIbN27shTiK7JGpN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qTwMrumCcfLB%2B3ZHhtjsF0Htvpsha8S6Fb%2BEMLDgBmhnvX%2BDDK6CyhFr7tc5xHcD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dkAh0MA7nfE9Bw17ALMHcfHQnAS8W2oelYgFeH21Df16ea15FGVoV7HVrTWagQoT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7Q2nLORVcf%2B3FKcYFch8SdujW4Wxjo5INbMf05/eW8kYH7NOvj9WOWi6PpOt%2B%2BUz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=egEYjpFkuBMPwLGNKndAhK4wS8ERbl5eiJExGqQuX8knLQ6QRgD8vY1uMb5Rd/95&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=D3fVB9KTpbMDwAeZDHZMhg3afNAIoU%2BibB1Hf5Zd/Gyb5O0KJJgrXb2QrGtjd2Ob&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=D5qJtUoCEijxYyjawXZqICIo8jcmk7UWWNIaWYYsC86doxml85rhdjUetGwxBVkz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rLEUvGKlNOZWBeywrHEJGNe2drmn4zsNiJZ0pCWbKvmilsUVMZ%2BJ5Zefn%2BAw4JWa&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ePdm669Thvi1%2BcbA4zs/5EkeMDCQA6QoFlURRgVafiFQIL0CCX0OHamVoCpFAKep&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BwiZpRI2G3mA5Gu8FaJYGNUrEzh0712%2BeEMHvXgZFYK4TLn36hLYSIYSx/mQAtAR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6HYLjjaT4pHrtVRKbNN2p4lh9VQLnA4tC770v3B1E1jhQgSRbcpAZDKA9SwDX7wq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Pg1AwOGG0WZG2yOcoC2YbO2sr4v4piEj7N0mF%2BhaEqugpyI/nNu0aMtggGP9RiKg&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rOAyXlcUJzYMHFInSzhsVVm2Y6RxlxVGEigJH8Cxum8nikkRB54tzdMUwszmb6pt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XXm/fI/xmoQHyvA0QOUDPgCfu4dUI9s8IFO2oeGB3J8lJwktkvaKWoNfUSM%2B3mby&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tRzbNvt6WBmIXrxa99sBFp4B8xsimH7yqNDl41Zu2zKZwcNmCnkP2MQEVHRXHMv5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=HyjfATLvaL1tjCa5DAwZDrFIDLZuUy11X9XQMMrDBY/nCwF7dE3IO9tdyxGvjJ/s&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dLW7txs2GZH7EmN0BaRSMpVm/gnarAgMVd4LLseYvW7ooo6Ubj2/FLiv6BiSs2nk&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BT3rUHjAC1bCWic6d2fLRKULcP1yFAcsqkvCe4wfvj3M6iYFMWIxEftSYV4mVTfy&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=z38EWF%2BkmlueftfGliICMNQTdbdeoOhoUkPH0nPhenHKzzGvdrKc6Jqg6W/2iju6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=J0obb/iqVWA6FCHOgiAt8i%2B1uScUL6CdiUrCGwJ2pty7UkrHgHZcaQkbb9gfCs%2BN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UM3frjrkt9AsHJiJjGGOIpH3ZlyOxJvJkMq8cJnbL9mziKjkzJQiIqiTxF0CE2/y&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dcIOBfUvbzbu66A3ls1Kh94ts5m0r6suQ0iM/%2BOmUWTLT5rC%2Bz4KeiXZxaX01XXS&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Cz/hwPCK0HHZQmaVyZRc9WzJhbACoDaORyT2nADB2GCFARqEh%2BTj09i8Kpib4Spv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vUUV2LJTPxsuRLSINOUueLgXQxeYwnI896PbumIauoma90D6eEj0wkZb8N/YjT%2B5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6WLQcdJ9ygaLRUmtRyIlvSYh0nNM25FjI6yoFIrjNSpNb663p6O0F8I8P/Z/AiMT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2B9mAGCyUfm4w7AVDYEJIceOE1CPR%2BLSVJLkNWBGGXbF8MBkrUir%2BCP61x0ljuUt1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TMaKnfrL0Y61/YkzpZYQGHwt2oR7UNtpnqo2kQTabiS2aeIovcVHwprZeziFM0TY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=zdnF%2B/68DOOvcLlDVFNc7IAv75ShBAj/Sh%2B6hAugs/TO86FA2VZoHn9JvpufSn9m&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      4
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101310 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD        5,000           0       5,000            .00            .00       5,000.00     .0% 
101310 65521  UNIFORMS       18,500           0      18,500       5,347.66            .00      13,152.34   28.9% 
101310 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES        4,000           0       4,000       1,110.81            .00       2,889.19   27.8% 
101310 66020  BOOKS/SUBSCRIPTION        4,000           0       4,000       1,893.75            .00       2,106.25   47.3% 
101310 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES        5,100           0       5,100       1,223.34            .00       3,876.66   24.0% 
101310 66032  ARMORY SUPPLIES       17,000           0      17,000       7,304.03            .00       9,695.97   43.0% 
101310 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE        3,000           0       3,000       1,440.32            .00       1,559.68   48.0% 
101310 67510  OFFICE FURNITURE &        1,500           0       1,500       1,100.00            .00         400.00   73.3% 
101310 67517  BULLET PROOF VESTS        4,000           0       4,000         150.00            .00       3,850.00    3.8% 

 
TOTAL POLICE                           2,341,806           0   2,341,806   1,217,427.40            .00   1,124,378.60   52.0%

 
 

101320 FIRE                               
_________________________________________

 
101320 64003  FIRE CHIEF SALARY       90,125           0      90,125      45,537.42            .00      44,587.58   50.5% 
101320 64020  PART TIME SALARIES      133,925           0     133,925      55,959.35            .00      77,965.65   41.8% 
101320 64043  ON-CALL FIREFIGHTE       16,320           0      16,320      11,086.70            .00       5,233.30   67.9% 
101320 64095  ACCIDENT & HEALTH        2,072           0       2,072       2,072.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101320 65010  POSTAGE            0           0           0           1.15            .00          -1.15  100.0%*
101320 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        7,728           0       7,728       3,593.88            .00       4,134.12   46.5% 
101320 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN        2,235           0       2,235         793.89            .00       1,441.11   35.5% 
101320 65045  TRAINING        4,650           0       4,650       1,724.25            .00       2,925.75   37.1% 
101320 65046  HEALTH/PHYSICAL        2,618           0       2,618       1,200.00            .00       1,418.00   45.8% 
101320 65200  ELECTRICITY        8,688           0       8,688       3,094.84            .00       5,593.16   35.6% 
101320 65220  WATER          302           0         302         146.60            .00         155.40   48.5% 
101320 65230  FUEL OIL       17,000           0      17,000       3,834.74            .00      13,165.26   22.6% 
101320 65250  SEWER          400           0         400         200.00            .00         200.00   50.0% 
101320 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN       29,829           0      29,829      32,662.05            .00      -2,833.05  109.5%*
101320 65302  PROTECTIVE & SAFET        3,660           0       3,660         797.09            .00       2,862.91   21.8% 
101320 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL        7,185           0       7,185       3,603.69            .00       3,581.31   50.2% 
101320 65312  TIRES & TUBES        8,000           0       8,000       6,391.83            .00       1,608.17   79.9% 
101320 65330  RADIO MAINTENANCE        5,117           0       5,117       1,097.00            .00       4,020.00   21.4% 
101320 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        7,896           0       7,896       6,350.05            .00       1,545.95   80.4% 
101320 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD       15,390           0      15,390       5,736.41            .00       9,653.59   37.3% 
101320 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          672           0         672            .00            .00         672.00     .0% 
101320 66020  BOOKS/SUBSCRIPTION          200           0         200            .00            .00         200.00     .0% 
101320 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE          600           0         600         244.47            .00         355.53   40.7% 
101320 67500  FIRE CAPITAL OUTLA            0           0           0          59.58            .00         -59.58  100.0%*
101320 67505  EXTINGUISHER MAINT          500           0         500            .00            .00         500.00     .0% 
101320 67515  LANTERNS & BATTERI          200           0         200         207.09            .00          -7.09  103.5%*
101320 67520  OPERATING EQUIPMEN        8,000           0       8,000       2,704.30            .00       5,295.70   33.8% 

 
TOTAL FIRE                               373,312           0     373,312     189,098.38            .00     184,213.62   50.7%

 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UPnXD/sYT/f7QxGII0vIw9QiQ7NR1ZDh5hPGIn2ZsG09lDuX/vNcsSga50UT0kSK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=P7nKV5CbNKyKOWHnibQu5oYQ4Mczkt2bh17ib2nJuPas8Q6ZpW7a20A%2B7gWMplQG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Tmql7dJR5SjO8nBn/h6qNi4pqR3Q0pHlc3NGSrK/4l0WYt4drGdXPduF1wRjrNUt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tzRByf4zZCQGcuSfwlRJRSmNvjZm/vezhUndr/GIse23vOMJdovOMiQVGRjAD56P&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xy/GKg7uxi%2BTvbwsTqvr467JvtlR3ApLBZFfPe/25vVzAx1do6bV/YgORoVT2ufI&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8nWDuSqOCToSg5NTopnHkjFyS0orkNxFK/7A6oRK0trJqTK2wmd3%2BulC7s1zChul&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ifsul5MJ3fl0Ml4BZgrah3RbUmq/hRmxVhWMDJVzbEVfvJ5jZlkuqT38ylWx2imD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EZMKzTu5DB0FaIshOjuT6BFDf0lwUSkARHAK6KEzwzNuRfBkqYdj1/WNHX%2B9LXX5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4DyRQM1MTX5nARr0F9RPcWOaJ//7TyHkUD4Fs1GD1SRjaKXqq0l2djrdHsDGzk7J&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=H%2B4CmutqcRCeEc1lYmWvPpvwTecAbsgtxBbuzcPvz3/edPoIidlFoyNil4quaXla&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gnmjNXlSsAZoRmw0CVkhDT90p8vHE4kwwX2ApOIHw10MNRiN04%2BRAnKvhFKUgiyt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tk0%2BO6Iz6jvo0i0Qdgjfg%2BtxspnwHDY/kdeisvEn593S5JXfe22RIYHD6oMOCjtl&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/euqAJ37N2AJt6OMw%2BPQNVZN9x/xReYOZ%2BrEWYmdinma569K7%2BFTsTycnd05bsAn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=t1F3FBdMqGmdoD66xE8XDF42fQcNhhjHv4QUqw6QwSVlclQ7e5BK6fk0w7T/i/Ri&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bMN8ND82MkJFg6D8gAdYgtWeVpbHsFpnlVgz8jJU%2B/IB7D4tkrvBXbxswvldsfhG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dQiILAvGDBmlDNdvi6wLiUHXVsQxwWIrdGlaxJT8VscR8B3o7Xo500JQh49fphXR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=n7NGiIkdZ2jjreo3X/v0nzG62eEq5WYdm77z0%2BfXl3PwLxzIKAGs00cB8wVUEX8q&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=x7%2BIxYttUzla1YRD27%2B86ocf2kEzzBYZyEIvFp4b87EoPgER7PeOuOBGJBcyb2As&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9xtJgMlyHkgdm2sahYtcIC1oUDWg8pUwGGfWUJeBD0fqvxNpJq6zgu01m/XhSN24&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=obWtSQJ42shPoo7%2B%2B47ngPxrAWzmbfp5jzwnJWh7Bkfwbo6la5hahtudJZq2/2Zq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LqAnLuo62PRLEwk/hcbNhZigXCCrMBI%2B1FTFaimgumODKEq0dEP2qwIo5qigPNx7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7UqVWP%2BdAnnqBM5FFLRvK4KggLHcowSAZG0JqNPwOBbglognHlHFk08N0pGvT2Lc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=lsvLzq/wVASQWCkuZbH3A/afSSH1VF2vW2bvnulRxzoV/mKk1j5SaAydTxgMKJRA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=YnLlO6%2BsOr3kNS15CkQdyESVwuFgoiVVIdnEaVNUBW9aY7s6WF3ksU84AblebXFe&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=woJZOZEcC316p%2Bwh22lH26TowzW9ZMslZbnHj4dMWo8hIa4A%2Bbcu8sCs1HD7NuBd&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7I0ytwk1K/WInt5nvCNdXTV6X8WPhWw2EFEV7t2nikSLG4kZrJfQrbs83iBpTPKv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=guPI%2B%2BANQU1EznNNc%2BftnAsMcAJJhOvrxRLKLmg2WA2lNxh9IJnrqYdoA5S0NXjl&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=cPkFK1B1Wfkiel2wUod9LHchVGSfhK86DDIG1YJiRHEEd99mcfc6TBvdRw9BqjJd&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=DfOliyDa4oe31wMROWDsIkV6gK9Gy4MWzdqTsXQZMGbc42SYwlBFgPxcdgdsQLhC&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tN/0pKX5lZMabGc7ISkb8eFss1D23Yc3uTmgyaQLyuo//OQb/tzzFhSfF2vzfUdt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=it9Q4lapEfDjXTyPeMw%2BA0u3IwwIVlOIHK%2BZMvf5boMvEe9EZcTJI4GzJIp8lQXA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tki68pJwnGRO59PpJP1Wy%2BEDUKmo1tz9%2Be8i4TSD5m%2BJNjtr9PvyOvNB/%2BioYdvx&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WxHVTRC86FZGj2KRddTt101Mv4XnfnveT3aTQAazkOS4rZu4FlFAujAYbs6l3lRT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Yeeux3MdeMZ24zAW64VwMPqXbKIFK26Rd2AZ9GZYMq9Gt2U0y93OdheLxq9JtLjf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=55cBvogA6jiqo%2B2dOtoHQuR3s3bpLGUJlcsRfzzAuE4XOYG8PZSfwjqaZqAgb2Tw&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=oq9xwVWuHzvN1i87oB3v/6YRQayofa/ECJWE1daRXeapUWzoCUXN1R/TjKy75vRl&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      5
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

101330 STREETLIGHTS                       
_________________________________________

 
101330 65200  ELECTRICITY - STRE       45,000           0      45,000       6,355.39            .00      38,644.61   14.1% 
101330 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN       10,000           0      10,000       7,642.00            .00       2,358.00   76.4% 

 
TOTAL STREETLIGHTS                        55,000           0      55,000      13,997.39            .00      41,002.61   25.4%

 
 

101340 HYDRANT RENTALS                    
_________________________________________

 
101340 65300  HYDRANT RENT MACHI      262,000           0     262,000     255,149.44            .00       6,850.56   97.4% 

 
TOTAL HYDRANT RENTALS                    262,000           0     262,000     255,149.44            .00       6,850.56   97.4%

 
 

101410 HIGHWAY                            
_________________________________________

 
101410 64004  HIGHWAY 35% COMM S       34,094           0      34,094      17,603.17            .00      16,490.83   51.6% 
101410 64010  FULL TIME SALARIES      512,863           0     512,863     240,744.44            .00     272,118.56   46.9% 
101410 64015  ADMINISTRATIVE ASS       51,443           0      51,443      31,612.23            .00      19,830.77   61.5% 
101410 64029  OVERTIME - SNOW &       75,000           0      75,000      11,426.75            .00      63,573.25   15.2% 
101410 64030  OVERTIME        7,200           0       7,200      10,810.53            .00      -3,610.53  150.1%*
101410 65010  POSTAGE          500           0         500          94.08            .00         405.92   18.8% 
101410 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        4,200           0       4,200       2,794.15            .00       1,405.85   66.5% 
101410 65030  TRANSPORTATION          750           0         750          13.00            .00         737.00    1.7% 
101410 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN        4,000           0       4,000         216.52            .00       3,783.48    5.4% 
101410 65060  PRINTING          600           0         600         138.00            .00         462.00   23.0% 
101410 65080  LEGAL NOTICES/OTHE        1,000           0       1,000         113.46            .00         886.54   11.3% 
101410 65200  ELECTRICITY        4,100           0       4,100       1,641.47            .00       2,458.53   40.0% 
101410 65220  WATER        2,500           0       2,500       1,062.44            .00       1,437.56   42.5% 
101410 65230  FUEL OIL        7,000           0       7,000       1,461.31            .00       5,538.69   20.9% 
101410 65250  SEWER          350           0         350         200.00            .00         150.00   57.1% 
101410 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN       18,000           0      18,000       7,737.02            .00      10,262.98   43.0% 
101410 65302  PROTECTIVE & SAFET        3,000           0       3,000       2,027.33            .00         972.67   67.6% 
101410 65303  FACILITY SAFETY IN        1,250           0       1,250            .00            .00       1,250.00     .0% 
101410 65310  VEHICLE MAINTENANC       18,000           0      18,000      11,527.84            .00       6,472.16   64.0% 
101410 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL       52,000           0      52,000      18,910.35            .00      33,089.65   36.4% 
101410 65312  TIRES & TUBES        8,000           0       8,000       3,506.19            .00       4,493.81   43.8% 
101410 65450  TARRING & PATCHING       12,000           0      12,000      18,202.50            .00      -6,202.50  151.7%*
101410 65452  SALT      140,000           0     140,000      16,423.76            .00     123,576.24   11.7% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=57UatGQGtJYscRU8Aw2oNMss3FQw8BotzB/0XQd9n60JDiAcSkkD/TEN3yy%2BDSck&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RYsktMvFHw/97Nom2HbFdKg%2BNXSGcKpz9A5cRFBmdUddXBo9vAmFkvuiPZ8S5sNM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ndQa7tdpis509pwSETDW6epZqQhDvsnyzDgW0db6pOrLZ1ES457tUPIYszV%2BYVsM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=T9zhdJaoZyDw59g59Yz6gX35ecRGCAdHcAJQoJ3zHAALuI79H0O2jmN2E8ErC6OR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GrZBHiSeSLg%2BZlqJ/uI%2BS6f7GpFS2r7JJa/4kleRGjmXvIt68ndpskW21UQorsZo&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=pIZH1NAGGhTtS7upsWOiigDrnWg%2BFsKtZdx05ZqMSLXN9RqdmP2hj6cPUzFgxsex&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RJWxA7Oyj6kyZ1YMfg4uYE3SCIVaAU3d0fUg5aGW69ky6GN9FxSBrhl5xafR26Ig&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6FDQhkEcihQ9ofT2HV%2BYCSC5ZE8hbiFfE/%2BO0pKnQIbJ6wFq1Q1oviIWZKglWqNZ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fgNIjHHWpsS1si09w0fTzKwd1OAxsaiIS15nMwFwDIl5SNXQTogz5vxlhIIL/x6W&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SZUcXuBIoi%2Bh0n%2Bu65Ws9Lt5aIagtGL79f5AgvFmOX%2BbuC3NmihiMXrcShZNbA9z&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=swYaMdAHGm2YcwlhiR883O6VrDHdcs%2B6DOmptfvkLk5FeMkhylPIlk%2Bv2UU7vlIe&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Sj8Xk6jrs6zn6Sy5q8eZlKUoQqnCfImDLiJHiTnRX11Bd1mmW5Poe/Lc9GIlml4Q&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=KTTYlI0v/zW/utYOrGL7sDsN4cQGR8UC8%2BoKo4UPQHprxZnFRrzkDFiaC%2BRwTcsz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LQnJ99yfEHDpQbO6n3LO7DeokcqsNs1YJRDKsbRKh6W0vxyU9sY3te7eu4zgDXWE&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WvRRQgMxiD0X7zPSeL7ONBUItTgOcYUcgFohNM5VCULkmtCFCl7zbBQ3ayeFIPP0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LUh7GflFDPd0%2BRRQZC%2BupQUC1E4oqFHytYQm8y0G0XqBxJLjJbNAZ%2B7MVPQYrux6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=YYB/yXYd8pwk8ybYVZgmIgNEa2BbPE%2Bn4c07wIjLw3Dx/bEasmyk7iwaBAMngFQ8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=REVPpZtLxmFGyl3WSCrQkGniy5DK8TDhAoIaTRustOxpqJqmC33sFTquWW/yIPAo&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=oyBsH/aVs5sg%2BGBLtNoMbFdaogQdgNixrTPSSGc7at9HPJfiikHbM2WGH/Qu5j//&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gVvdq7JeW3JdK1QAitGx3dfge9L/9aJAh5DvkbVPjvyXKaYEOad61ahEQd5sZUp1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/iJWcbm4KgwF5vy9%2Bn5KwRGKQW3G05xoJKgcA3ll6VbOiNU2tDIt6N1ZCQ2ca6C6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kJ7V4cGQ6dHbmZ88PlM1qI2F31O3GxuEdkGTmTcI6rrGGSVPSFDKA9TAY37ydepm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EJrgJwUg9o7f2mi8GoUwueu8IsmMhh7KjZ9t3jmyRrY/g6vPw85kFLRWGq9DbdJU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=b5TWW91tYWEnBg3MiKvlXYT0wKd2IvbesrLPjaEdn30ldhqFi43RRv8O6g1kXCaq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=jboDo3MTCjMmvr5RL44wC5ee6rgbXJqwlcMeBBv0%2BCYldY3TyusFGYMoyTk1lGLK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7Lf7/oeXUo1wCCHTzvbD2wEBxeH5gZTayHYmqV0ZvGoB31kNmnPNxASD6dJZq312&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      6
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101410 65454  SAND        2,100           0       2,100         439.28            .00       1,660.72   20.9% 
101410 65456  GRAVEL & FILL        3,000           0       3,000       1,467.49            .00       1,532.51   48.9% 
101410 65458  DRAINAGE SUPPLIES        5,000           0       5,000       1,728.72            .00       3,271.28   34.6% 
101410 65460  SIGNS       10,000           0      10,000       5,405.81            .00       4,594.19   54.1% 
101410 65462  STRIPING       40,000           0      40,000      42,099.20            .00      -2,099.20  105.2%*
101410 65466  SNOW REMOVAL EQUIP       18,500           0      18,500      19,090.02            .00        -590.02  103.2%*
101410 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL       30,000           0      30,000      21,370.19            .00       8,629.81   71.2% 
101410 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD        6,500           0       6,500       7,061.46            .00        -561.46  108.6%*
101410 65501  OTHER PROF SVCS -            0           0           0       1,340.50            .00      -1,340.50  100.0%*
101410 65521  UNIFORMS        4,400           0       4,400       3,754.24            .00         645.76   85.3% 
101410 65522  C.D.L PROGRAMS          850           0         850         445.56            .00         404.44   52.4% 
101410 66009  SHOP SUPPLIES       16,500           0      16,500      17,963.85            .00      -1,463.85  108.9%*
101410 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          800           0         800         464.79            .00         335.21   58.1% 
101410 66011  HAND TOOLS          600           0         600         963.14            .00        -363.14  160.5%*
101410 66020  BOOKS/SUBSCRIPTION        1,000           0       1,000       1,244.75            .00        -244.75  124.5%*
101410 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES          400           0         400            .00            .00         400.00     .0% 
101410 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE        8,500           0       8,500       2,816.74            .00       5,683.26   33.1% 
101410 67514  PLANT EQUIPMENT        1,500           0       1,500            .00            .00       1,500.00     .0% 
101410 67518  RENTAL EQUIPMENT        3,000           0       3,000       6,438.78            .00      -3,438.78  214.6%*
101410 67520  OPERATING EQUIPMEN        2,000           0       2,000       1,983.79            .00          16.21   99.2% 
101410 67540  IMPROVEMENTS TO BL        2,000           0       2,000         787.87            .00       1,212.13   39.4% 

 
TOTAL HIGHWAY                          1,114,500           0   1,114,500     535,132.72            .00     579,367.28   48.0%

 
 

101520 GENERAL ASSISTANCE                 
_________________________________________

 
101520 65480  OTHER PROF SERVICE       65,000           0      65,000      20,924.66            .00      44,075.34   32.2% 

 
TOTAL GENERAL ASSISTANCE                  65,000           0      65,000      20,924.66            .00      44,075.34   32.2%

 
 

101530 PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE              
_________________________________________

 
101530 64020  PART TIME SALARIES          520           0         520         255.70            .00         264.30   49.2% 

 
TOTAL PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE                  520           0         520         255.70            .00         264.30   49.2%

 
 

101540 COMMUNITY AGENCIES                 
_________________________________________

 
101540 65479  FAIR TIDE        2,000           0       2,000       2,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 

 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=evUv5T2eHfT1Cv3OHbp7vx0KmX9r7RYHBvb3SnkePPmrk33H0dpU2jSjk3fI/TSr&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TI4D0CCUoyOH4ccdUTtjA54iSaDUTKXmd0e7F93dp/uFKdSZeSu3I4q11dkF4P1N&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Tb1XYrImPXGE39Ci7M09qcneST/s8cB2RoMQ7nSZQqJoag2Eq/62yPuuSZrWk5m6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WEnRyIfFO4Rzwp8IIGuyLi9oZokZ63R1Lw6PewIzF3d7jNAehCy8IPWr/uRh/Mnu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UYujc2IHIgDmDuoYS2h6dpNZuXzKdVY3aVVj2xzySJDfXwSqRhEJzEuFGUTIeTFA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=sH1/PIIXfKtEwzsPOOb9ILZGbvh86NNjweBo90jXEzcb3a6gwjZF9BPYZCng7VD8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dffWpdtF05Nsius8D3Z/fCNdXS3T7DmsUFRiLibCMPTKT7rw1WbYERnGS/TM1p0i&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=R5thgoIfk%2BAdxoiLmPMxusBGGB3dvp19mEDcL6nLu37/rTnKJU/OcghpSTDa6I4L&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=JafVLcltBY20LQ6HNAR550XH4VNssRsPXv99oFucY8pJnglmW5xL9/O0PM7Qrngj&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=wDtL4vIt%2Bcw63Gj%2BhoHLmBYG7OAmd3N2VzR9chQs3lCrIklntLayvuK5dFoq0wEb&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TxJsmAI7y8cSUfecjqEVbAwz3bZdNUg2eJbBjfBjZF%2B/XUirLdl9D4wbluTTcrzm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=CKpZjEyPiqC3YnWHJRHy7cU//jDh2/BnJ%2Bw%2BTNj08PUkkSbw042YWjOK5WrWa5V9&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=hE0nOJSb1sCr3X7UOD0pGO%2B94FKk9hXN%2BnFstw2jVfYG88b0uDz9I56kmWkkLjI7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xKAkJiS360uz1xWkujcuDm3dXpL6%2BZzQ6TgsF/t%2Bbm22uVvO6pqjlF01fAeSKt2Z&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=w79rc95PBSuIVnnbbNiL9IrX4oJzr3mtfWdTuRWc37EPe1xdsrjvG7htxKI/g9TU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fPm1uTAqLFtBlZ06pZTQsOS1TUwwALGlHtgIjALNNFAAo9T4QBV7g7X9Qa17MrSs&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=IsAu9IbvhN1VRfrgxWSNWdmjxO/AiJzsm0/S7yeEEocl6y3VRLU1b3/WPpGSpxuO&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bPRJNqCckFMav%2Bfqr3/pOAApvp9lhzTrIDUFWLBgNR7s136EVTtsTysupaJ5WTCw&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=wg8GQhDjjXehpkWjXf4fogzhZsi9AnLRIdYLPiCBglOLA7DC2uhxD/0E4hzjdXlY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=KqOLy5v/Q9icGQ2wgMohY/s1tVSrIZAAw7cP5ugpAaFP4jDMO/i70krIQJa0EqAG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=pxnZDLaATaLRJY4Gg6M3k%2BYpRe18ZxZLQrUiGVKHopVXC%2BnU7TkpsHh6q/S3IN%2Bp&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=PUYP4zwXUR84Oo7kn6yzGd%2BDCaHOoY3XapY1H6ZppjsI55DQV6OMHO6QqyqGBV8p&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LRI1IF4H0RX27gY7FnUj6e9w/l9QUgUnIS0HH12XFaWxddC8pFrYsJqHeMpEMhk%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=T604yZ6n%2B2iO3nYmoyNQsMyT189gkZxJwQRSwXdDtBk0rhg5RLVNtFVoAFPz/gTJ&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      7
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101540 65492  YORK COUNTY COMMUN        2,500           0       2,500       2,500.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101540 65497  SO MAINE AREA AGEN        1,400           0       1,400       1,400.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101540 65499  CROSSROADS HOUSE,        2,000           0       2,000       2,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL COMMUNITY AGENCIES                   7,900           0       7,900       7,900.00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

101720 PLANNING BOARD & BOA               
_________________________________________

 
101720 65010  POSTAGE          250           0         250         227.46            .00          22.54   91.0% 
101720 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN        1,000           0       1,000          90.00            .00         910.00    9.0% 
101720 65060  PRINTING          250           0         250          44.00            .00         206.00   17.6% 
101720 65080  LEGAL NOTICES & OT        1,000           0       1,000         783.32            .00         216.68   78.3% 
101720 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        2,000           0       2,000            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0% 
101720 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          150           0         150            .00            .00         150.00     .0% 
101720 66026  SMRPC MEMBERSHIP        5,685           0       5,685       5,685.00            .00            .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL PLANNING BOARD & BOA                10,335           0      10,335       6,829.78            .00       3,505.22   66.1%

 
 

101721 PLANNING / CODE                    
_________________________________________

 
101721 64005  CODE ENFORCEMENT S       70,702           0      70,702      35,285.98            .00      35,416.02   49.9% 
101721 64006  PLANNER SALARY       63,000           0      63,000      31,596.96            .00      31,403.04   50.2% 
101721 64010  DEVELOPMENT STAFF       40,126           0      40,126      20,127.63            .00      19,998.37   50.2% 
101721 64017  ASSISTANT PLANNER       21,000           0      21,000      12,478.12            .00       8,521.88   59.4% 
101721 64018  ASST CODE ENFORCEM       51,328           0      51,328      26,216.24            .00      25,111.76   51.1% 
101721 64030  OVERTIME            0           0           0          92.55            .00         -92.55  100.0%*
101721 64042  DIRECTOR OF PLANNI      100,052           0     100,052      50,547.73            .00      49,504.27   50.5% 
101721 65010  POSTAGE          700           0         700         831.81            .00        -131.81  118.8%*
101721 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        1,400           0       1,400         769.92            .00         630.08   55.0% 
101721 65030  TRANSPORTATION        1,800           0       1,800            .00            .00       1,800.00     .0% 
101721 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN        3,000           0       3,000         115.00            .00       2,885.00    3.8% 
101721 65060  PRINTING          650           0         650            .00            .00         650.00     .0% 
101721 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN        3,700           0       3,700       3,666.57            .00          33.43   99.1% 
101721 65310  VEHICLE MAINTENANC          300           0         300         114.02            .00         185.98   38.0% 
101721 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL          600           0         600         247.21            .00         352.79   41.2% 
101721 65400  LEGAL SERVICES        7,500           0       7,500            .00            .00       7,500.00     .0% 
101721 65410  COMPUTER SERVICES       25,635           0      25,635      23,371.00            .00       2,264.00   91.2% 
101721 65411  BOARD OF ASSESSMEN          200           0         200            .00            .00         200.00     .0% 
101721 65423  PERSONAL PROPERTY        6,000           0       6,000            .00            .00       6,000.00     .0% 
101721 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL      140,000           0     140,000      65,634.98            .00      74,365.02   46.9% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BwiRJ9rbFMDa1m0II6Fq5mDaIM3GxFLZtR7zhArqvmn21d9OSAchBW2fAA9PzNiH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=m6hpc5Q0dMD5nm6v56dxSkepqUVSxEKslLTiDLK2KVJeDnMTE2QdmyrVxf8vZURI&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UayPTsSxs0EzRcBiErqV1rm30BLBpB2weBn%2BF0zVAvSZ/F6FGhTXFMJuEjfgj/9T&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GHciokS4rUDXNyGlVBSxdx6aXMpkmPQ3i6Ff2lQR7vlBrLR4MDV3gZvjd9d7dczX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=PQT3yMEn5BHDiGDRlA3eHRAy%2BCqQr0swrl8On6jHy0A4VSRjsX7ammL/qM2BX2tt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=K6Tmig%2Bph23f3i2EgZRiMxdj5o5NKVhK4zv2eHsck3cVksqhN0mbUoSCVHUNr21x&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=b9tQJQkIW9bSebcPCF6JBMVD70FEZt3lKOj6wELs759P9Kq50xC81SUes/%2BYp5KG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=aWtkR62lX21ZmpXtTTQSNQpnGjxsHWQkL4LrbkfbX/8rgQC8FJc6UezCxLWmzGaK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AkEiVCYcrD5P5W/qhtDlJcDQlV6YqCV7ifep%2BjMX7hWI11yNwY1jYxrA7YvE0KGr&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Afzc2LwsT0V8WVEXVpiwP/N2AYOBbbz8S081UTtXyp49QbqdYSqtymAkcVaiNcIL&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=t7iVHyvMGQgGxNxGm6Ck2vn8i7/9o/wH7vrY1sA8a8iXA2m/2e4RQPy2t8J7KpES&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Cj8rzYQlM306oF5/1wVns7TrjQiPUPlIeAX2fd52uG3uq1wDZRsa8JqlvZKPmBxg&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=d4diinYPYnkEinXA6uZ7P5T22nmQpgNActRYIzuNw4%2Bhqw0dYAC/jiyNJ8oEDhxM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RQCuS5OuDIrFXwaDQVUq80yOpEinuPhATtUXNq7gxZw1t96rsKTIK/TOgqtjf9Gm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RlY2yEbiQ7tiSZMjxkD8AL7G%2BdaJxZJaSverVgUHRmJTpKIxoM0xBA39QkPfuvMf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=e1AWcxniSMa%2BGlHy4UZCU66YXkr1IqhIbzYoWSZFuWlXvIvMmrrRZ%2BVPM%2BkIKokI&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0Bieyi7f54jz1bTvB9ehtpZhv4%2BE3CtWmi21oMJScu/3N%2BKf3rbsP0vLQmfFVjiP&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=5ElM1C6mwZiDu6vVp3S6959e6Lz2mQOXcK885ebb0eausOE6mSz7B682CUMh2Qg5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=N8eG6I0%2BbNOcgs%2BZOi1XAK5tD3YR%2B5nMwjt%2BciXH9JVOGD471bDY1CPg2VJmu23Q&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6fCu9oBdXecDkOlapOlYjaHrFtlmhIKkDPesKJwtHrg8qbAJaCiOVoZm/m0d2oM0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=blGZWEF0X81eC0mNzASiWT3QJxcXecsrJ1faFzF%2Bf5iXqbOWHqy/BgJ9cuEXmtmc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EQ4%2BmkbC53fTh4tWq1ISvXyLjlMR2sQyKqcEJaWCP6oxlZgRdtDnl1orG9mxRDIt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=JbNo6PDu3MmK4wNXiQS6ZJmFPkO56Q1/xJk83UnPFdDUqvLXsUXK1BeKVMrXbqwD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rAKve4/ZHqbVSiXiJ3RhZDUnhyH9mPwzjKW1RX4fRf15gDKNEfC%2BiusYuTUci6aK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qeGUiRJhmbDUJZJV9j0pmZMCrdJKaO3gL%2BknhaPlyaYKUf6VdL4yNetscYPkia1n&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Z8oG8Ib1AkfpTqr4QOzgiU5KWHnd6S4mPODAhh94c5iclj53qWBn1eGdPqKekgd5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=JJNd3YGkszB/1hF0XHOK92UE00A3a2xQ8uG/i0uaIwPbqywY01dXeJrLTNZBQ5k7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=oAWB2i275wUZ58oZZIhKmQYbiD1tMhCgpnG37v0YEMzWTPsXOXTX/6Gjn2vso2iv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tYghwqnZZhrI9cidQjPb4c6SkDdAOW09Tsa%2BMUCujJjQtG5m7ofVehkG2ATSSias&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GlK1tle7ZAkrjYpaXy5pdKx0MoPleZq7miy6IANptwgevIBdF/lE1nnsJ1iO0i7D&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      8
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101721 65521  UNIFORMS          250           0         250            .00            .00         250.00     .0% 
101721 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES        1,000           0       1,000         136.07            .00         863.93   13.6% 
101721 66020  BOOKS/SUBSCRIPTION          500           0         500          33.27            .00         466.73    6.7% 
101721 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES          250           0         250            .00            .00         250.00     .0% 
101721 66035  ABSTRACTS & LIENS          400           0         400            .00            .00         400.00     .0% 
101721 67510  OFFICE FURNITURE &          500           0         500            .00            .00         500.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL PLANNING / CODE                    540,593           0     540,593     271,265.06            .00     269,327.94   50.2%

 
 

101730 IN TOWN PARKS                      
_________________________________________

 
101730 64007  PARKS 10% COMM SAL        9,741           0       9,741       5,029.54            .00       4,711.46   51.6% 
101730 64010  FULL TIME SALARIES       49,558           0      49,558      38,681.22            .00      10,876.78   78.1% 
101730 64020  PART TIME SALARIES       46,800           0      46,800      11,179.99            .00      35,620.01   23.9% 
101730 64030  OVERTIME        1,400           0       1,400          27.41            .00       1,372.59    2.0% 
101730 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN          100           0         100            .00            .00         100.00     .0% 
101730 65060  PRINTING          100           0         100            .00            .00         100.00     .0% 
101730 65080  LEGAL NOTICES/OTHE          150           0         150            .00            .00         150.00     .0% 
101730 65200  ELECTRICITY        1,538           0       1,538         626.31            .00         911.69   40.7% 
101730 65220  WATER        7,400           0       7,400       3,927.00            .00       3,473.00   53.1% 
101730 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN        2,000           0       2,000         829.51            .00       1,170.49   41.5% 
101730 65302  PROTECTIVE & SAFET          350           0         350         650.17            .00        -300.17  185.8%*
101730 65303  FACILITY SAFETY IN          625           0         625            .00            .00         625.00     .0% 
101730 65310  VEHICLE MAINTENANC        1,200           0       1,200            .00            .00       1,200.00     .0% 
101730 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL        5,500           0       5,500       1,153.06            .00       4,346.94   21.0% 
101730 65312  TIRES & TUBES        1,000           0       1,000         442.83            .00         557.17   44.3% 
101730 65457  LOAM & SOD        3,000           0       3,000            .00            .00       3,000.00     .0% 
101730 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL       30,000           0      30,000      22,348.00            .00       7,652.00   74.5% 
101730 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD        1,000           0       1,000         172.02            .00         827.98   17.2% 
101730 65521  UNIFORMS          800           0         800         800.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101730 66011  HAND TOOLS          150           0         150          77.11            .00          72.89   51.4% 
101730 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES          150           0         150            .00            .00         150.00     .0% 
101730 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE          500           0         500            .00            .00         500.00     .0% 
101730 67520  OPERATING EQUIPMEN        1,000           0       1,000         503.90            .00         496.10   50.4% 

 
TOTAL IN TOWN PARKS                      164,062           0     164,062      86,448.07            .00      77,613.93   52.7%

 
 

101735 FT FOSTER SEAPOINT & CRESCENT      
_________________________________________

 
101735 64007  PARKS 15% COMM SAL       14,611           0      14,611       7,544.23            .00       7,066.77   51.6% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BRBJjjsNZXmB/cyR53yS3eWrBUjoaabgmWUmlPDozrPrlJAFnOuLG4idO35CU8kq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=R64fZI1x72sP/E/WlhnRpvqAceTTYVzizcweUJItYAF32OOzIuzZAXnlc4MFu%2Bm6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=G%2Bpip73mvi4hcxCPplkBAKRlvco6OHjTjFWWLIJV/YXl7ZuYqA6s0e7e%2BMc6TCeh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ByDKFssdvLftEdquEOQIDPO3l3KGW3E2e3SjdPYMLMG1IW3s2/zExxUhbxzakSrh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WFsvACBCq6UoW4TOqvNRC1cLMqJwQ6RMZMAJr2%2Br0ADKGFd6GTIyFoLvBPk1t1J5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BwOh3BM%2Btlnx7BOZjKDrrZz9JlyldQNV%2BTZsDW9d7LXoZCXWxks2Dz%2BCLt3uMr2A&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BPJbX4b9/7Li6ko2GQueFmO6hvpCisKvTRIh/N/Jhe13x/WQvAu3nT6XiA2FW96b&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/pmi0bWPJFma4CkP4SaMLbTOALKGkAGWx8cHX75Ea8LbY7AMfOJ6FGMYPTi5LKwV&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=QFP%2Bvm/sNcYzCHLn6xT2scKPAuPOgOoY4DYtCN6%2Buxx8ru7NJ8Zcd1VDYgleu7FZ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/Z4C1liFkiHUTSOvcRpK8uteUCfrqUssaWSREqM%2Bldn10yY4HuAwwDw93%2Bdw1xeB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mN9NpU5h23EBbjaeZvV%2BZp%2BiGT13OZnwtlNx61G7jyE6YCf1qco92evCTz4A98t8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=NtERcLwxVxAXec3EA7V2YU7lXH3QKL6YmV%2BTRnALu0KAwF3mmfPUOZlLtdjMjj3N&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=cpP/6TGJ0XZK5/KK0jv%2BddAit/Y2ofV02UaWqoQCTXVzENZln8i0jBa1wjd7xUR5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SO05MnxPZjfi74P7omzbsSyKKYHFCFePWJ5wla8sxVhhXzr3mBFocWPJHLAKSPdi&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Aku12OOwu7dcjBLJz7CigsEmpRryTHH4fFqjrzmkV62fDawznftOfh3bfhiUnGnX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9qyNnMXsqhgwYqX/ZEW8U6NszezqJJuYZ8/Favyec3gZVVU4BDAHVBLnuq/YnmrR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rXbo0/sHU8ugu4e/dwJCa/g1BqlnMDUM331%2BMvG93OBaAfvihqg9NzSyNqYkhk0g&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=N744AxXqL5H6cQNGPoTj0ye3TdEela5dc5EoXCihkMXRrcrSv6jrLU/SE73QNGrn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9MeCgTnBT2Vw5doAGbtExmoprS%2BUZgbbKT040EIqC72NAwSX7Mfuw2HMkLirXKXn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=iLoyo6pxmdxvrxFbgB0zoo%2BGfgtRSETDZUVKGhk/WKE533n1DYTO9SHp1BaLh49H&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RKNhkkf8vr4lwEdF4liDVUqB0C/P8ZB9QDAwYIx6RAqzt/k7tsXRJCgUxqmb3LF6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=FIUtRb1/Gc4LnlIvUF8smWbAE5w0NCpf0RkMtMusw8Ri/1rD0QjaW5GuQU9jKSHO&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Zc%2BVFfzhf3fcEC2%2BSb26DWMIfV7xEK5P/k53dApZHpWetZ%2B0kQvNTPAYHR7wlxQu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=du9Fjq7YWDSDijG84OomYgKjHDIxsX%2BRahTNPn50Vho6qEqELdP85zkCcGkLg/vm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=axyC2w2Q5tHEoe4iqdy%2B4e%2BsNmgpvfT5H061Yw/Isil5KK8kjLlynDaWYDZKs9Z8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TRJYoqUGV8VVa0Xmb3dvh9IB1puzcCHUfC27%2BKuqx15aJZ5lvJtAP7PvdnSG%2Bsjn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=w3sSBDkA8P0P7amYqm1sIKtEjEqFbeQXsRhZMRPviz8WWMGuWUb9zPpUOwfHRiZK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bMz8l5d8roEr00nAk85mYSXWDsya6UovFEvD3KKaxALzB/0odJg2hTNpDca2XeXf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VdD4LfrbLwZttMY9Xv3O/0q1RqoYEyXFD8wyFqxErBi2pHs68MkPUdOMhr90W%2BRv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=75LxIKZoMJBKQYDy94B5m7YtrYzpILMWi5GrF9f/gNs%2B%2BnHliW80OK%2Be6WQS53Kn&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      9
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101735 64010  FULL TIME SALARIES       51,790           0      51,790      26,436.04            .00      25,353.96   51.0% 
101735 64020  PART TIME SALARIES       62,080           0      62,080      28,047.30            .00      34,032.70   45.2% 
101735 64030  OVERTIME        7,055           0       7,055       2,122.55            .00       4,932.45   30.1% 
101735 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        1,400           0       1,400         855.91            .00         544.09   61.1% 
101735 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN          100           0         100            .00            .00         100.00     .0% 
101735 65060  PRINTING        3,500           0       3,500         959.00            .00       2,541.00   27.4% 
101735 65080  LEGAL NOTICES/OTHE          200           0         200            .00            .00         200.00     .0% 
101735 65200  ELECTRICITY          513           0         513          93.32            .00         419.68   18.2% 
101735 65220  WATER          600           0         600            .00            .00         600.00     .0% 
101735 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN        1,500           0       1,500         163.79            .00       1,336.21   10.9% 
101735 65302  PROTECTIVE & SAFET          600           0         600         147.42            .00         452.58   24.6% 
101735 65303  FACILITY SAFETY IN          625           0         625            .00            .00         625.00     .0% 
101735 65310  VEHICLE MAINTENANC        1,200           0       1,200            .00            .00       1,200.00     .0% 
101735 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL        5,500           0       5,500         336.02            .00       5,163.98    6.1% 
101735 65312  TIRES & TUBES          700           0         700            .00            .00         700.00     .0% 
101735 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        4,000           0       4,000            .00            .00       4,000.00     .0% 
101735 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD        4,500           0       4,500       1,422.41            .00       3,077.59   31.6% 
101735 65510  PAINTING          400           0         400           8.26            .00         391.74    2.1% 
101735 65521  UNIFORMS          700           0         700         400.00            .00         300.00   57.1% 
101735 66011  HAND TOOLS          150           0         150          21.81            .00         128.19   14.5% 
101735 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES          900           0         900            .00            .00         900.00     .0% 
101735 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE        6,000           0       6,000            .00            .00       6,000.00     .0% 
101735 67520  OPERATING EQUIPMEN        1,200           0       1,200       1,218.00            .00         -18.00  101.5%*
101735 67575  SEAPOINT BEACH          200           0         200            .00            .00         200.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL FT FOSTER SEAPOINT & CRESCENT      170,024           0     170,024      69,776.06            .00     100,247.94   41.0%

 
 

101740 MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNTS             
_________________________________________

 
101740 65023  EPA STORMWATER 4 P       19,600           0      19,600       4,065.00            .00      15,535.00   20.7% 
101740 65025  COMPUTER REPAIR/RE       65,000           0      65,000      19,243.25            .00      45,756.75   29.6% 
101740 65455  MEMORIAL DAY ACTIV          700           0         700            .00            .00         700.00     .0% 
101740 68525  MOSQUITO/TICK CONT       38,580           0      38,580      38,580.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101740 69200  PSAP PAID TO YORK       35,000           0      35,000      31,359.25            .00       3,640.75   89.6% 

 
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNTS             158,880           0     158,880      93,247.50            .00      65,632.50   58.7%

 
 

101750 STATE/BANK FEES                    
_________________________________________

 
101750 65952  OVERAGE/SHORTAGE            0           0           0         -53.50            .00          53.50  100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bgb6TKquHw7EXFvfHKf9dF07mqsX/%2Bwr1fMGn9MhpzQRYjoh8muHHLu3nOzblixV&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=y4yg0CLfsS3tIDpK%2B9bVorsDNEHRtsoSU%2BFuyp%2BIUViREAeovKZ1EnldtQ2cPnpG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=HhxWlkJA2O4ZRT3PcBk3dtBXbpKTAVIKUVx3PPShihLk8cQtvfUKAVjcYgzMn7ox&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=k2MILomGQDUQ/l2M7FWNbxgPQYpHr9LfWl2UVKlSr9qZmsETgPWP02H34DUUVrXz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Aw/ttbl1biA5IfHOYPaUV6E%2BGE5lquAE7wjRNm7hYKC5BCCSl1hIbibTy3rKorZ2&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ST0RmcaTkdwXTMMk9GXI4SE/RDxL5ep8R%2BQi%2BdawRunWpl6%2B5AV4FlG8Db1QLw1s&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9Km5/NXqzPrEkAbFqLrGA0VPL5WbwE91uZHL3PE%2BzTwJ0J254t2v4WSVuI4h%2BWyX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=l7mn4C6EzBtj2dzHXIF%2BDySb576vFs3WvdKCtZ8Wa3E%2BWVZU9KxtG0ta0GDRy5fY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SR02Wjc7mr8eWh5B2%2BEnv6TA5AlRV8GtWOXCi3Fb6CvpthqyJfBJ1%2BmOiXCGaHSC&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bSv3UPWpG%2BnQDEaakiiLUpd1bh5Pi9Egp7rIfRPSgZ0pCaY6ioI3mZM7BjFSANdF&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=dER91di9bmGrG4Zwy6fqITqaFR%2BS2KGxaHOpNC1QOSLOSnqJaO02H/hGxPZT%2BeTg&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2/eYoUyAGpJHJXPt5xzQVuD4O4Cq7OqJshr8r/IrXQjCecZbeq2DDjs1EidGCvBp&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xA%2BGIbjtQWL8IFr4p%2B5MnaEoJc9ekPYvk2T1vwgrYmAFaKdUBWuR6YIhY3CeaKCF&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bAcIoxr90h6jzDJN2wJRjj1htqD1Iv/Qwv2Rei6PsMpHA1v2O/m0VnoRQcWaVDFl&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kz4aaMqtuGjwiuJZO12O8VvMoN1H6SeUiwCh6d2Jnis6tsfcQbrvmuLo%2BTfyrlIc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=C93YCOqRMUAy5HheTEcCNmSRMN0%2Bo3iDTIoME6l5IMCSdAo629at/Z75oWLh2zdT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AzcR8A6cigxY53sg9UEbUQk0kjE/UyhmJDG3ThAQ1FDDpgynbzWlu/Uoexvtbvh8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xYfLyssZ78NfCXAt2uCWu0qU7w/DsgWTECE06AP%2BzIuDidasQLoZDpquFaO2kJru&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=IKKVPHUUQ72pzHClDTOHbNdUU55DUCLJNDcry8Iuah4xyNzUQCZITdey9N6N12su&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LLjVyK2ZAHQmTYWPVSmAjWqmym0sTzjqxbLBsBN%2B8OoxQ72VNahvtFdf7KcHMMli&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=DiQHwCqfNRAGQdA35k2ZR3nag4j0VOgPe%2BccdT%2BtXyGlT0Gs7mYDSwJZ/dVrzCFZ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mlEg1iZIOU%2BM0qYCKXoxCIhng0P0pFt3/ZZBQa0YneK2HXJa0ds%2B3%2BAWRZst8jV6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=1sW%2BY7yPYhfNGosZ1i0XGI8dhupQoJ5pipZNBGROr/XiueQ6Ayae82Gzo3V4t7PL&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rOgI7EEvfuAfMWzFUFxonfSNsnKBu3ldQ6cCWJC8uMkBVj04w0o2tPTC82q9owNt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RN1paesMfXSXukFsQv/0lLh3bfJ5r%2BWljv8TuRLcF9r%2BvSq81YniEjeAY65OoUbf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=jqrMjs8hlpfsByr4Dfhql6GHajwrrlFS0%2B4y/fbHUAN3Yoizad5J7GqVP3jD4awd&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZPc%2BxToAPwL4lTOllmsOjt5A3Ka2Jcv%2Bo%2B15S0EKOWO9Z9qDxYQ/9avA0xE%2BurYw&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=v7nBlKy%2B18mtWy6Lren35imuk8JRbvZA8%2BzofZc/NF8qskXFVjzcrJcd5RfHWgQ/&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WefepLE5usyKuXd%2B8yDCjYqeI4T3G2d5gtntLWSq3e8QDWAkVHoaodwypQXOJfYC&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=s1%2ByQ0u8TEN7pUqPc8Oujnz2BN4wU7oVk7sD%2BGPfUwgizu5FOD2sF%2BmxRW7kCeld&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     10
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101750 65954  BANK FEES/CHARGES          600           0         600          37.69            .00         562.31    6.3% 

 
TOTAL STATE/BANK FEES                        600           0         600         -15.81            .00         615.81   -2.6%

 
 

101760 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN           
_________________________________________

 
101760 68750  CIP HOLDING DEDICA      530,000           0     530,000     530,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101760 68751  CIP DEPT CAPITAL R      625,500           0     625,500     625,500.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101760 68752  CIP CAP FUNDING RE      300,000           0     300,000     300,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN         1,455,500           0   1,455,500   1,455,500.00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

101810 LIBRARY                            
_________________________________________

 
101810 64010  FULL TIME SALARIES      195,233           0     195,233      98,515.71            .00      96,717.29   50.5% 
101810 65002  LIBRARY DIRECTOR       80,126           0      80,126      40,493.63            .00      39,632.37   50.5% 
101810 65003  LIBRARY PART TIME       10,140           0      10,140       3,716.13            .00       6,423.87   36.6% 
101810 65010  POSTAGE          400           0         400          52.44            .00         347.56   13.1% 
101810 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        1,200           0       1,200         801.97            .00         398.03   66.8% 
101810 65060  PRINTING          400           0         400            .00            .00         400.00     .0% 
101810 65200  ELECTRICITY        7,175           0       7,175       3,261.28            .00       3,913.72   45.5% 
101810 65220  WATER          600           0         600         146.60            .00         453.40   24.4% 
101810 65230  FUEL OIL        9,500           0       9,500       1,294.00            .00       8,206.00   13.6% 
101810 65250  SEWER        1,000           0       1,000         400.00            .00         600.00   40.0% 
101810 65338  E-BOOKS CHILDREN        1,000           0       1,000          55.00            .00         945.00    5.5% 
101810 65339  AV DVD CHILDREN/TE        1,100           0       1,100         642.61            .00         457.39   58.4% 
101810 65340  E-BOOKS        6,000           0       6,000       2,004.79            .00       3,995.21   33.4% 
101810 65341  AUDIO VISUAL/DVD       14,420           0      14,420       9,354.60            .00       5,065.40   64.9% 
101810 65342  LIBRARY COPIER EXP        3,400           0       3,400       1,620.03            .00       1,779.97   47.6% 
101810 65431  PROFESSIONAL DUES        1,000           0       1,000          55.00            .00         945.00    5.5% 
101810 65432  LIBRARY TECHNOLOGY       13,000           0      13,000       7,353.04            .00       5,646.96   56.6% 
101810 65433  LIBRARY PROGRAMS        2,480           0       2,480         843.54            .00       1,636.46   34.0% 
101810 65434  LIB PROG CHILD/TEE       10,000           0      10,000       4,552.71            .00       5,447.29   45.5% 
101810 65435  CONFERENCES & WORK          200           0         200          35.00            .00         165.00   17.5% 
101810 65480  OTHER PROF SERV -        1,700           0       1,700       2,048.60            .00        -348.60  120.5%*
101810 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD        6,000           0       6,000       5,449.39            .00         550.61   90.8% 
101810 65505  REPAIRS       13,000           0      13,000       3,637.89            .00       9,362.11   28.0% 
101810 65803  MISCELLANEOUS        1,650           0       1,650          89.86            .00       1,560.14    5.4% 
101810 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          700           0         700         926.12            .00        -226.12  132.3%*
101810 66012  LIB PROCESSING SUP        3,400           0       3,400       2,823.17            .00         576.83   83.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TDc4B9lmVy1y0vjcGfYJ88zvPr/4Mq4QU22GPfwls2CfDRvIj28tHr8JQR1fDWYb&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XJbXHc0RUD3uQkp0VxsvpqLw6bRgszaVzy%2BZO8vBqUZebZYtAMej0rP7RZr5dXGL&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=jfDD08N%2Bq2si9F5plXKU/TEefKgiwoJFggOdHNU1MvBEkwaoe/0YqBevj8xOeaaW&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Gjd8c%2BMcquw4x4Y7VrCJ1vOCSkS8O8JvQCMgQywB7QVA3k0s8GC2Fci3yStW83lM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=pO2VMgwYoc4P285iWmhKagWe517GQnh7ft4A56tAOH/YGbWZHHNifIarxzZTLuDh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8R4q5y4cBeH1QyAxkOWsonwi0foHTk8CC%2BJrB5VZdyEAbjsjFyh8PCCzv07AtBij&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=n4KFQFPBS1CHSdMLDuXYyVV1Axu3yxGIVu/rymebXJjLDLp4hwdSUL%2BglDXMLMyx&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=YAc%2BZP0LD7LW%2B/WchXsZRYf5x0Lr8GAtY41Lgn0R642h7penAKppVxR9GWiLgw1O&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=iSIKVOoD93U69G5JhxmL4B0vrVRIND8tVxpQletr75YKPAjpoTriHi7wquNknd68&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6l%2Bf4iT1HlgOQrPgWuObaN0WO2DJsAZzMOum78hq658hwTbkkoRURp9XlZtryon%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4MqVS1S7cdGUGgd/fqgIwfhIy7jeIkN6txWuqJPIAZEsTzdbvg9oKsGidIusOY9e&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kx8AMGUoOiXekCV/BO24wlwN4IO%2BklznPMjS1CeNXVlKkfL2D29rW5eqzY%2BqN2aK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=W36mvSE3upCO0yXk859YQHnO/pqkys09gECt7HC7dzkyLdhwJuCCzdjwAQumof38&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=u2qNC%2BShHhObEg8vJgeO4KAZpKdCBVS3FJ81Me8SggeqjaoU/Ddxn%2BFHP3ThLtnb&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ReXY8FxIQJ7HiDRJHPK9et7CrVy5xMAgzWg6PuKqVFpLDkDJBc7Kuryn80kt%2B4bS&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2a%2BSQzQf6VCAuDEOzeIeNybEk6DDYeejX4I9o%2BeNA2z3VAmbdqZ7XAKRgzaeNGhE&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xsc3SUpXvQSPgvyHvaWVQaXsal%2BcloO7IFZiHkmQoKw8ix%2BiBFj%2BHJh0ASaEo/iq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=f3gSZv%2BFcNhrF4bN6Tazdd6joT43y7UDhcHmYOthtGmm8ugroxxfVBc03ZrdYjON&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4VCkLL5kJBaCjzP9KaSxnutdiI9eU/U03M%2BZiT9Zjwz3URoxuC9Xyv/8lJgScXjR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2OA9Rzkf6gFHPEqIeeCpsg9K%2BT/kNxYdoSJh/5KFMCWbQ0uR0tsbsjE5ZVzIinxD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ss%2BEtjE9cc6/TJWGrg1JlunEMZRxK%2B7vXpC7%2BhlBtxte8M9AtY0iVWBP1c9UwmCU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=5nBzIzSUVq1fKGBJ1JUEZq9Uv42BKZ9YqRQA4NlpIEcW7cPYqY%2ByCTs9RToy52Wh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=uKCfX0cyI0Ho2Jh4ieLuM0LeqpkeDJb2vaSvwuIsYbe6sPaBeyAH//qt9sVOWJCf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ChjQNiL5KFF2nqUHmWt3MNJKSR4ZfYckGxPKi9MmtH7a66dpVLceNw60CBdx6hRE&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XYML5OPQdjIaT2EOGkjBo%2Bai97%2B2nKsNou1M6c7lOtoEP58IUaclu0qrJ426ud7v&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=e%2BgedsK/cihbWLxWVNiFzZ48Q%2BGT0oQqDBFVz0ZX8MCZwlxd8t8n92E0k/iLUW8i&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gYf3X7or%2B/QqvY0CDFphOOCEEqHpNJkmJkvRjtNzsmgHbGUpvgHRRrlV7bQX30Ot&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=1KhH82LAyo57LJ5rN1ef1drhQv7fMSeIK0QOSFG0G63lm/Lpw8Z3yVRskl1OxK4q&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=o68h43E4jF/t3WUGEBz9023jjd7EfuCW7RkTCljmMLHgG293lAH%2BaBWZDZRHN3sH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BanY92yu1QArD1tywVxINuaAyv3FQBh50ep2l2G5TlO5cK59GIt7TaJJwawhMsGE&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     11
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101810 66020  BOOKS/SUBSCRIPTION       37,249           0      37,249      16,371.58            .00      20,877.42   44.0% 
101810 66021  BOOKS CHILD/TEEN       14,550           0      14,550       8,700.71            .00       5,849.29   59.8% 
101810 67510  OFFICE FURNITURE &        2,000           0       2,000         587.12            .00       1,412.88   29.4% 

 
TOTAL LIBRARY                            438,623           0     438,623     215,832.52            .00     222,790.48   49.2%

 
 

101830 RECREATION                         
_________________________________________

 
101830 64008  RECREATION DIRECTO       81,428           0      81,428      41,440.56            .00      39,987.44   50.9% 
101830 64009  ASST DIRECTOR/GEN       59,627           0      59,627      29,897.20            .00      29,729.80   50.1% 
101830 64010  EARLY CHILDHOOD SU       42,920           0      42,920       2,445.89            .00      40,474.11    5.7% 
101830 64012  RECREATION SUPERVI       46,049           0      46,049      23,095.41            .00      22,953.59   50.2% 
101830 64013  ASST EARLY CHILDCA       35,313           0      35,313            .00            .00      35,313.00     .0% 
101830 64014  LEAD TEACHERS       61,235           0      61,235       1,626.63            .00      59,608.37    2.7% 
101830 64015  SPORTS COORDINATOR       38,089           0      38,089      19,039.66            .00      19,049.34   50.0% 
101830 64016  RECEPTIONISTS       63,250           0      63,250      21,670.13            .00      41,579.87   34.3% 
101830 64017  BOOKKEEPER/SECRETA       22,439           0      22,439      14,460.76            .00       7,978.24   64.4% 
101830 64020  PT SAFE SCHOOL YEA       30,500           0      30,500      20,119.21            .00      10,380.79   66.0% 
101830 64021  SAFE SUMMER SALARI       13,650           0      13,650            .00            .00      13,650.00     .0% 
101830 64024  FT CUSTODIANS       37,467           0      37,467      18,888.09            .00      18,578.91   50.4% 
101830 64025  PRE-SCHOOL STAFF S      162,556           0     162,556         567.85            .00     161,988.15     .3% 
101830 64027  CUSTODIAN WAGES       33,711           0      33,711      14,962.21            .00      18,748.79   44.4% 
101830 64028  THEATRE TECHNICIAN          250           0         250            .00            .00         250.00     .0% 
101830 64030  OVERTIME        4,500           0       4,500         950.42            .00       3,549.58   21.1% 
101830 64041  FACILITIES MAINT S       53,219           0      53,219      27,289.64            .00      25,929.36   51.3% 
101830 64060  FICA EMPLOYER SHAR            0           0           0         181.03            .00        -181.03  100.0%*
101830 65010  POSTAGE        1,215           0       1,215         310.08            .00         904.92   25.5% 
101830 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        3,450           0       3,450       1,932.33            .00       1,517.67   56.0% 
101830 65030  TRANSPORTATION       12,000           0      12,000         116.58            .00      11,883.42    1.0% 
101830 65060  PRINTING        8,500           0       8,500       1,719.47            .00       6,780.53   20.2% 
101830 65200  ELECTRICITY / UTIL       36,000           0      36,000      12,357.97            .00      23,642.03   34.3% 
101830 65220  WATER        3,322           0       3,322       2,126.77            .00       1,195.23   64.0% 
101830 65230  NATURAL GAS       34,000           0      34,000       3,375.65            .00      30,624.35    9.9% 
101830 65250  SEWER        3,300           0       3,300         635.29            .00       2,664.71   19.3% 
101830 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN        4,305           0       4,305       2,547.02            .00       1,757.98   59.2% 
101830 65310  VEHICLE MAINTENANC          250           0         250            .00            .00         250.00     .0% 
101830 65478  PROGRAM SERVICES        2,500           0       2,500         508.60            .00       1,991.40   20.3% 
101830 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        2,500           0       2,500         788.00            .00       1,712.00   31.5% 
101830 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD       14,500           0      14,500      13,237.55            .00       1,262.45   91.3% 
101830 65521  UNIFORMS            0           0           0         130.75            .00        -130.75  100.0%*
101830 65610  SAFE SCHOOL YEAR P        3,500           0       3,500       3,949.73            .00        -449.73  112.8%*
101830 65615  SAFE SUMMER PROGRA        3,000           0       3,000            .00            .00       3,000.00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SrqnWFGVL/5OdLOgTurZwqLI2UqkfryFHLzpUE9ZzgAsK5GeZRPVcNOq%2BUxIW4Iu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=3mqvSOWoaCelkbKHwpj2dZwn1JsEjwVWppCIx07m5UmemBzGXbWEaa13K8g1t6r7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=L7C%2BcN5Lt5sm5gTgtAC0TfL0cX%2BXycLtlvkfVVHL7XHSruzwc%2B96RZl%2ByY4hv7nf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LGKXX2g0iB9fADFStHW5zgmd2xzwe5VEiFC94NBf/9ghJ2/6VPRUfshh70mo40JG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/IrGsuMzHh6LcrGJu/wCW6PM8V1zEBZnJzdAhv5CrWbnVPww9UWd1hnjrUd1H8yh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=S41Oc9/psRQCzL7IdChPrbgQ82pdoYvRyo/qvGOCDJnSr2JVMK18wzYkkPy6HJbi&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0F15DF45%2Bw0ABgnVQ6ZYVX3LKtGbdko7BvqOO%2B0f9Mxuh7YN9XE4NXBqQEmdMjM7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UIyVJJlWXkdq%2B8sS10xKSVrgJ/FPk%2Bz75BRVC2cjZWAH/IVSlh0p0eqS3yhjHv1F&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4/sxu0udT%2Bz9B6U6v1lynkcmpLnKa%2BWvJ1YEbGn/wSzAX%2B03fyYx8EJbO/hJ5ETA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/9vOm2%2BRu9ALJjBju%2BJRrYjj/FVSNmsga6Z0ZKkDknVkPUf0JpzsjwD4YdXAok/P&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=og8mBWSocYpndk4pCGnUrfUOn%2BAr7U95Lg3tDd%2BY3WXBB/i6GWC32aHQw9ejA4uD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=PoXi1UEtyht4zHNbng%2BCthRJf1UkKTAc9eaxWy1Q1t8DXDnajjjglqqGPs2dxgPB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2B9zH0etxuTZBlg9trZuZc7Ge3glO8z2OeikLx2q7fDyCc%2BMufUQJrGW0YCbN4Pz1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=3HukI7krnN34SB5hXjt6GHGFJ%2BSjDbjS5ZNdB0jb6opjIM3U%2BNmsTQKYlf%2BF9O09&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=3bJqI/2lQ%2B%2BQKN2moVHjGKJZM35HSnoylciAmnXUR3KV5vBL245RRi7qBu5JAjCM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xcbj6U%2B74E7b/Ok6qzcylg/oY%2BwCxNTC2NoNWTNSc8QRWHCLyPSBVKui75AfUo2r&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=m81C0gR6bFJc0/1ZZHtbDnw8n1iEjLZ66yF2A1POBBYiylFYcoj8S/MxriVTvkmP&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=zbHkViCBFRaavE4mT6p0Jmh00NhEySMGb/SkhwbRbsqFIogGMVvZVUC7MHnHhYTR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=CBDaVYDIR56Pjg%2BRi2vRV1HpoRgkw/zu6ZXS2J6av/IpYKIEljN%2Bc%2B0BfOEtMQH8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=5Q0MFXjL/3JWYYmJZc79gZM0iLy6qcey8ZX3Y5ukS5XPa7LrXRMhsFJD3YnyeaX7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=CXaItBbN/unP9ZIMUp4AIne3XvBY1mTZQasoa1qMhfLJvpjRAXgc3LIeyyH8X4GB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qfGL%2BUyMFh9lruwU8fyhnPob35SRxFV54929pr1nCDoSxvVKL14VP9zUv9QxI8bs&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=hBJVoPHanOFqNH4pFwEPnF5rx9Qzcphh01wHI0YSVLY4z58JegItsMK2H8oHllwb&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2jTcM9yLUMpDJdYgZ5XQv9aUiWm4FLgIcXXoHZ81py67ICUwCYfQEC2wUyoZIdqB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SNKPS56veXz7/NXtrkwWCWE7zPRNmDjzwiUbxO0WwOKjp5ho%2BaZ5o/fXCyy%2BHDpX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VAkYdezcbIuOgliokRsNyloFgQD2xGkOure8g%2BCPEjFTA2ADR53ZEJKBNiQNtyXM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=L1m0x%2BzCS2mXjTIj/ywG8zdvNA//xKgVBt1Cp1eex8okdAk1FIjo05TlaN0bKDpe&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Qk/LFr8v0jm5A1X%2B4ERjn3%2BXY6OKxynSb5gN1%2B6t1KEc18pCKmasiE%2BjUL0%2BaY5X&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=51BsPxQ2eeOmXC0Ew51%2Bd0pJNz91/OowAtVN3bq/pJ7z/7jeicDUi%2B5eoZDBhi6M&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LYICZnxbqiwstlYrha4/1spWewjDNsZqadVZ6dVjiqfElKfq19ExFVmzoqF2%2ByNV&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=jDk8hPXMBPpNEFP%2BbowydrOiYNTiWNnyAZJRAbwpYK90SEVnRiaJ%2BtteCfWLCy4V&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=jwRMMCwb2qZdKR5CbJfZSgAn2fJorKcAmkVVEBjrQxlDFImwN5Mh/8gJqx7NLz45&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XC41rGRFtR9D%2Bhnc5zcu3o3KMPVGhTR8nYK%2BHAwNH0d6LhBvrFej7xFojdohjGuz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0Oi6JLsmOFaFL7HI/tLy7trgqtuyqMFzFEPJ/EQNq7yxpSMxlNGmltCbNkZJSCld&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Y9DCBEF1kL6RzZ5hBCH1VZcM393/j//RpApMRELnnfum7fc0lMMMc4xBSBawLEQz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=zpliGPue/E6se6U2ueOJzPqL4I8ZZvu/hVRLqVqgJ/C%2BVJqmJwJ1mJ0SSgM0h54U&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=x/skFr7p4n1lIsZp89fBFmtdbw285284e3L9wklTVKtd8jXCvOKqjMUmYIUIfOzB&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     12
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101830 65630  INSTRUCTORS-CONTRA       27,000           0      27,000       5,518.13            .00      21,481.87   20.4% 
101830 65640  SPECIAL EVENTS       13,500           0      13,500       4,628.15            .00       8,871.85   34.3% 
101830 65650  SENIOR PROGRAMS        1,500           0       1,500            .00            .00       1,500.00     .0% 
101830 65670  TEAM EXPENSE        6,750           0       6,750       1,325.61            .00       5,424.39   19.6% 
101830 65680  PRESCHOOL PROGRAM        8,000           0       8,000         447.26            .00       7,552.74    5.6% 
101830 65801  CONTRACTED SERVICE       49,000           0      49,000      32,157.37            .00      16,842.63   65.6% 
101830 65802  ANNEX UTILITIES        2,000           0       2,000            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0% 
101830 65803  MISCELLANEOUS        5,500           0       5,500         991.52            .00       4,508.48   18.0% 
101830 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES        3,000           0       3,000       1,190.55            .00       1,809.45   39.7% 
101830 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES        3,000           0       3,000          16.98            .00       2,983.02     .6% 
101830 66031  THEATRE SUPPLIES          750           0         750            .00            .00         750.00     .0% 
101830 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE       15,000           0      15,000       5,360.48            .00       9,639.52   35.7% 

 
TOTAL RECREATION                       1,053,545           0   1,053,545     332,006.53            .00     721,538.47   31.5%

 
 

101840 HARBORMASTER-K.P.A                 
_________________________________________

 
101840 64010  HARBOR MASTER FULL       57,927           0      57,927      30,027.19            .00      27,899.81   51.8% 
101840 64020  PART TIME SALARIES       14,100           0      14,100      10,815.50            .00       3,284.50   76.7% 
101840 65010  POSTAGE          250           0         250         132.68            .00         117.32   53.1% 
101840 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        1,100           0       1,100         851.57            .00         248.43   77.4% 
101840 65200  ELECTRICITY        1,800           0       1,800         650.32            .00       1,149.68   36.1% 
101840 65220  WATER          500           0         500         136.01            .00         363.99   27.2% 
101840 65240  DUMPSTERS/TRASH RE        1,000           0       1,000         513.00            .00         487.00   51.3% 
101840 65305  BOAT EQUIPMENT MAI        3,000           0       3,000       3,215.27            .00        -215.27  107.2%*
101840 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL        2,000           0       2,000         590.50            .00       1,409.50   29.5% 
101840 65452  SAFETY        1,000           0       1,000            .00            .00       1,000.00     .0% 
101840 65462  RIGGING       10,000           0      10,000       3,858.50            .00       6,141.50   38.6% 
101840 65463  SANITATION        3,500           0       3,500         602.68            .00       2,897.32   17.2% 
101840 65470  PROFESSIONAL  DEVE        1,000           0       1,000          37.13            .00         962.87    3.7% 
101840 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL        2,500           0       2,500       1,145.23            .00       1,354.77   45.8% 
101840 65500  MAIN BLDG/GROUNDS        6,000           0       6,000       2,117.13            .00       3,882.87   35.3% 
101840 65521  UNIFORMS        1,000           0       1,000            .00            .00       1,000.00     .0% 
101840 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          400           0         400         314.25            .00          85.75   78.6% 
101840 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE          500           0         500          11.69            .00         488.31    2.3% 

 
TOTAL HARBORMASTER-K.P.A                 107,577           0     107,577      55,018.65            .00      52,558.35   51.1%

 
 

101930 RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY         
_________________________________________

 
101930 64009  SOLID WASTE 40% CO       38,964           0      38,964      20,118.14            .00      18,845.86   51.6% 

 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=CUAvfY9ujqAT9viLBQI1ind8LKlNIGmH77vWTVAamB1Dj7913v34305qirgq6zGe&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EUOZX0HE/xTqfuBaHb%2BJc3hCSItUHr/iFDfCL4PIjazjKHxnK8rteUHtcvYEfxsQ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WkGH/cvT5U4LEYxuXMKsHB1XiHPQtU0vyPog6fxcdN9JyYamA0G2f2FbdiEWU/%2BB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EGVIq0O9BI7BgAy3Aq32cXa/cwsjnYmlg8hAXfMQeC4POVdath9ndmFu0WfDq3cY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ywIxRvirZR95sTrWEjuB2opKFGDUxCch%2BExcXV79kn5PPIbn6hgW98fVezWthdzs&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rQf6uUbo8itmyxWlCAs4aCBonZJH6R72S4IJfVn%2BFnZT2a1xHBGU4WP0vKlYorF4&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VY8RnJb/HE/zmvRY%2B6uju1bcJ5gfRzq4HaZ2%2BqfapSSWr0zQEDYhd%2BWM2AjVUbqD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bw5eALj016wDxI/7UPRXPgb5sWsUBVtFvhpCt4hTUfjR6nOUmPgkqt045aOrzL6g&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Nl1nclR1UBtd/t96EfLEShs/WGQXwqx9iVjCG1C5Vm7BDxrR9odUVHGtzmeaVKJ8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=h/ZaixrU4pzhdMI4kff4SASw79JaWSm3M24u3XSKY43fyUilofU%2BMdXrYQS%2BDc9j&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=u/WhCY2nFpBbRzExzvIj8oql4FT38Irxu6eW800Yt2nITwZoyLlSFY63JLWDRuc7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=M0N68DCwaypKUWd15DaLBbbELzmxXYoNtcE3KpzcMtsG4X5SK41mihZSWMoMYJeK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2eRY6a2G9kWxeiHgO9J4R6KXK622EKWTE5PvqyJoWmpATXRRMbfy0QdQcXrXGrM5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AYKYPgQJ4cvIMWXBvjwhD%2BCwlRjgOcg5tJOSFskIwZ5xE%2BkWYA%2BSfAguCoh9oJMo&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8V3Dmbn3dDYvep17ewWY1AOCTxV4IW31hYYjZucwXvLy6NoPwQ8jJD6g4rUwcoBn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=l7QvF2S6Mv6Q6jd/0cqc5lieRninm4afbin1DLptvSHxhKiUWlI2g7H1Rlculjep&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kzpkXeZoilcorVuSVzCAkoKkQ9xHe9AU%2B35aJgOVd3jrvIBcn30RFW9vSj375xl%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=H0qLbCk4tGbk%2BOtaejeyptPCIt%2Bmd05biHFLXiqTtZIXJ6jn1FAsllDgnAUOiWMN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=p9MuXYh%2Bnh/lRa3uAs86e86C0cM584tsBAMfSz%2B0yeKM43aXT01c7gRcE2lVjz4W&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8l14ZuYPIXbr9NGRBTPQuCKZ%2BEuZZq8xYPTWP6mSmI7DtuKcygGO%2BuZ5MECDbMDy&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qBp/m0PM3zjh3zHhikd1mwIo%2B74Ga38vBAfEiqPxHbqk3khmZouM23jIo3AzGDMH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BFsO3eKf4%2Bltx6WjPY0eYqbS5O93EFkjnZvkABTek6o54de6lK8kAiP8/JInOGiq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ACeMJAcjB%2BMcJfYvPJtACzNAyZxMdBma6Jjl2Vu%2By6E7I6iFUVcs8yaiYsewJhTD&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/QBFwYSg3e5t%2BS5nvRdWAO0YmSNJBgi6k447hkc83GJZmaet92dUYVM1aCYXc2/I&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZmrggP80Xd6eHg9ObvJDo7/zX4QpYaq8ulAuUJSaIU5asFTS3dkvK4o33mOM7Tn1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=txTVO/e0zZQSPiY0MJTzM0D8R3CyBUqbmuogeXq/vA4eIx6tv8QvnJ9BJEj7rXM7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RlWKW0Rt8doOKM5TH4dba7vr9TjDOPadHrbVyfCIMmMuuvvd0Msg%2BpLtSdpkc04A&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=oYluUaosjiL0S9DXf7d/IS3obYwEuHJEn0NoeCW/2DAqRk7IZkAy0wvvyvAwQCmh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=S0U9iglH%2BZyx7T90snEm6bcmGefb/goAKq/ShGsOulya5ui5L6O4ifKaBKz5UED0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=STxPeDAMReq%2B5kvxtqfw4lSsEZFqEcgucP9gQ/8vBl9LPnCd1m5MKM6suDYdnlys&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=iZEbJHWeK7r7jEuHXc2BtsgQuERxGbVG5GarsCS3jJ3zsoyw5L2s4ZHnxjYto7O9&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     13
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
101930 64010  FULL TIME SALARIES      173,637           0     173,637      85,375.28            .00      88,261.72   49.2% 
101930 64030  OVERTIME        8,500           0       8,500       4,151.86            .00       4,348.14   48.8% 
101930 65020  TELEPHONE & INTERN        2,000           0       2,000         446.21            .00       1,553.79   22.3% 
101930 65030  TRANSPORTATION          200           0         200            .00            .00         200.00     .0% 
101930 65040  EDUCATIONAL/MEETIN        1,000           0       1,000            .00            .00       1,000.00     .0% 
101930 65060  PRINTING        1,500           0       1,500       1,690.00            .00        -190.00  112.7%*
101930 65090  ZERO WASTE PROGRAM        2,500           0       2,500            .00            .00       2,500.00     .0% 
101930 65200  ELECTRICITY       11,275           0      11,275       6,425.23            .00       4,849.77   57.0% 
101930 65220  WATER          950           0         950         322.54            .00         627.46   34.0% 
101930 65230  FUEL OIL        1,230           0       1,230            .00            .00       1,230.00     .0% 
101930 65300  MACHINE & EQUIPMEN        3,500           0       3,500       8,299.31            .00      -4,799.31  237.1%*
101930 65302  PROTECTIVE & SAFET        1,000           0       1,000       1,083.24            .00         -83.24  108.3%*
101930 65303  FACILITY SAFETY IN        1,250           0       1,250            .00            .00       1,250.00     .0% 
101930 65311  GAS, GREASE, & OIL       12,000           0      12,000       2,492.57            .00       9,507.43   20.8% 
101930 65312  TIRES & TUBES        3,000           0       3,000         290.15            .00       2,709.85    9.7% 
101930 65480  OTHER PROFESSIONAL      270,500           0     270,500     126,030.86            .00     144,469.14   46.6% 
101930 65500  MAINTENANCE OF BLD        8,000           0       8,000       4,684.48            .00       3,315.52   58.6% 
101930 65521  UNIFORMS        2,000           0       2,000       2,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
101930 66009  SHOP SUPPLIES        6,000           0       6,000       3,414.31            .00       2,585.69   56.9% 
101930 66010  OFFICE SUPPLIES          250           0         250          23.09            .00         226.91    9.2% 
101930 66011  HAND TOOLS          200           0         200          41.99            .00         158.01   21.0% 
101930 66030  OTHER SUPPLIES          250           0         250            .00            .00         250.00     .0% 
101930 66040  JANITORIAL SUPPLIE        2,200           0       2,200         687.36            .00       1,512.64   31.2% 
101930 67516  PLANT EQUIPMENT MA       12,500           0      12,500         801.14            .00      11,698.86    6.4% 
101930 67553  ASPHALT SURFACE MA        7,500           0       7,500            .00            .00       7,500.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY         571,906           0     571,906     268,377.76            .00     303,528.24   46.9%

 
 

103000 SHARED EXPENSES - OTHER INSURA     
_________________________________________

 
103000 64060  FICA EMPLOYER SHAR      441,891           0     441,891     204,140.27            .00     237,750.73   46.2% 
103000 64070  WORKERS' COMP INSU      143,972           0     143,972      39,897.12            .00     104,074.88   27.7% 
103000 64090  RETIRED EMP MEDICA      226,535           0     226,535     103,672.24            .00     122,862.76   45.8% 
103000 64092  DISABILITY INSURAN       26,419           0      26,419      18,489.77            .00       7,929.23   70.0% 
103000 65101  MMA RISK POOL      183,124           0     183,124      92,372.55            .00      90,751.45   50.4% 
103000 65115  UNEMPLOYMENT COMPE        5,000           0       5,000      22,091.22            .00     -17,091.22  441.8%*
103000 65150  MISCELLANEOUS INSU        4,994           0       4,994       3,020.10            .00       1,973.90   60.5% 
103000 65210  UNION CENTRAL LIFE        3,320           0       3,320       1,268.87            .00       2,051.13   38.2% 

 
TOTAL SHARED EXPENSES - OTHER INSURA    1,035,255           0   1,035,255     484,952.14            .00     550,302.86   46.8%

 
 

103001 SHARED EXPENSE - HEALTH/DENTAL     
_________________________________________

 
103001 64090  MAJOR MEDICAL INSU    1,233,556           0   1,233,556     660,972.79            .00     572,583.21   53.6% 

 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qQsusZ0FDC1IT0TBfIF2Q49ZJDQDtTCQ3HLjrA2P09EAzQrIHdedKPn/pgfYaEIh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WJlX%2B7UUxNjiLvB9NDg1xt/LhVrvzcU8FACzzelV3hZgFVTjiQ7SaJewi1FW0BUu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=OJWu9MI/3ixH0Cp55Y6u1zBl5p61wr0CT0FnxnjntIdg73km6hF75jVD7QRuanD4&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=iHeSIOD5I9Ab34x6ITf4Q14LlT77EGnOSYxTFtfSfRIr3Qd2W2q%2Bwe8zHte3oHzi&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=OZpc1eD6rko0HRGfq1Zi6Mu9Ibkpen6zE2STtUgbNpKAh4mv0sLJbN7CYFwYl30c&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Zolk15Nm6O7pR3Cx0tJwlOD5OIFNiYwreT7CzETp72rE3Mglxo9egE2f4B/l4O2X&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=eUbUO8SR40OXpXTtdeEzmoebcAjh3Ci2UvC7LMSKCW%2BBtq0jJ%2BDLPmWh3nzFuMBo&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=lrpV25D5hRiqwZ4%2Bv9eDn4oFdAFMfzDydZJ57nK8jKA1AnPD3A2F4%2BoME/8Io7j9&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=/iP24gXeyGHgkS6bKj%2BDMAKVZUE1%2BjdP5sJZ9oOPPMBtx3O82OvSCzV%2BH%2B8hefLp&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BYXR575oFZu7WK7NeNeb7RizkdVfn9sh8nER8fU1ccEyN4tcSzkTe2vinfWJr4GA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=KhsBZLAZv%2BKJCEjwjqPqeZj5bcdaoakB0Bnvj1oBcmij7iysa8coJ/bCtJq4Kyfh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ccdy2OSbbFVuATY9qO7twYweNf5fNWomzn1i2MFy2f3UT7n8cJ88fqI8bTYf0Q8o&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=P%2BBEWx5DGFyzf5kUzvrwI/aq4FI75qdKmWfurD2TegoCEXjtluZC6bIBYy0waAR%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2kDptkj2%2BP7eDHbT/Wmd3Y70lbYpVGpl3KKzp/0GeZjBifRoIakpTrvToai5CIDT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VSvQWl2YQTjevnWCsuV0UaNtz254mrlTTj96MeojOipRmG7OulJTN1BIivPD5XVc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=YHKeRG5qbqG3jFwt0Mznz48Ih60qiSy5HIKaGTQjGyU8vDCBQHCW4tGuSX36hBTh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fEyoKb2DkqdtEZbhf8hj1ZQFupVvP5LowD0NGK717w4tHvx/pWXwwNY2IxUq4Gpy&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=SRdiDkmw4x0YhOHtNM99nr7e7qvnyshiPZjbBZ789oI5ni8tWXUKbdEwlHrrfxlV&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vwCM6r5qKvZZO9I%2BSiH6wZZwnlWH4HE/l2zcAFnCePduZ3q1RSCTP4rgp5hBy9%2Br&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=iVY7oIUccw5ux%2B/73JfbBh60kMCy4HeKAXwn1V%2B%2Bwum1L8zyhqGVY0OqSQXyFhrh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=2iMKWfI%2Bav4tmaEEoX38zI1nMQ4f1TSWtkNZG3g7PQ7FDaeSmaKn3OaHD8ahtYRG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=m1gMZK7nJalrPGZ8rIiii%2BeQUom0Bpy54262LiZs4BH6SXiLBa52aEO1O8DXS78t&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=P%2BKUx5WZiYjlhOl17FhLOVVWo/kG40%2B1hyhRV1kOnmZ23xKn%2BWstyV3yZbMobIgS&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xrFKLePM9MiX3El%2B5aWbgXmFLiPkiM8XA/S8A1YOHZPq4zOHLn5ENjLSIXFKusTd&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fb8OVJkQbANUNWBXmu4mRdNH6kLyoQlrlm2WZIJxkpMnGAZNRYiY9Xyo7GA8PN4P&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mjr77X7PXmFiOqbmBkHjJgUYa0oXZmjAfGNYZJcCxFMtXFhzgFxgZaQMK5pULnJC&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=FfpdPpSxopNs%2B7Xe7cjMRIvyiMEeGi9NdJukc8TU6mtELsX%2BmtA0ONw14TJ4B%2BwM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=HOrG7FWRz66cQMlH3XjbQi0dX8tEzq2zDRLxxflrnrgctZtfkdc4sjNJ1ThM33Wu&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=oCw/w0p44G5xwSfbUqgaN5jEg/WRfRUKoUtIl46YDQwbYjGQPuVLq2gxNHHrvrdi&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VpJY4NfsMC79yiJHm8%2BfwOIv%2BxEUcnA0iKH6oJrM8oLg2VQFYHeRsZf%2BScDQQ1bA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Jj91%2BOn0tuG4EgP0Ym6hRNr5cKOloZP7rF5wCxLUdIlD%2BjKOfhiTNV7mGskmD/hB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=aZjKBTCdoipqUeamc32%2B2InK46nAq4rSJggDxCWDCDd0baHirw4PtvE3GPODRSJ9&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Z/B2QqMXNzRl8vXWC49qP7ehAGKTVgW4iksbinUWBbPWCQw%2BMj%2BYSR%2Bp4Ic6ntdl&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=FS6eLjTc%2BE9%2BKpe0%2BPaiP63xL5JDw/UI90ltOJpVKM7awqwmgsyEpdJZCKSDQOMA&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     14
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
103001 64091  DENTAL INSURANCE       13,204           0      13,204       6,356.77            .00       6,847.23   48.1% 

 
TOTAL SHARED EXPENSE - HEALTH/DENTAL    1,246,760           0   1,246,760     667,329.56            .00     579,430.44   53.5%

 
 

103002 RETIREMENT                         
_________________________________________

 
103002 64050  MAINE STATE RETIRE      574,260           0     574,260     251,470.71            .00     322,789.29   43.8% 
103002 64051  ICMA EMPLOYER SHAR       29,351           0      29,351      14,517.63            .00      14,833.37   49.5% 

 
TOTAL RETIREMENT                         603,611           0     603,611     265,988.34            .00     337,622.66   44.1%

 
 

108000 ADULT ED                           
_________________________________________

 
108000 69480  ADULT EDUCATION FU       98,970           0      98,970      98,970.00            .00            .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL ADULT ED                            98,970           0      98,970      98,970.00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

1111 TOWN REVENUE                       
_________________________________________

 
1111 43001  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE  -10,223,033           0 -10,223,033 -10,323,224.96            .00     100,191.96  101.0% 
1111 43003  PROPERTY TAX ABATEME            0           0           0      14,769.21            .00     -14,769.21  100.0%*
1111 43004  PAYMENT IN LIEU OF T       -3,200           0      -3,200            .00            .00      -3,200.00     .0%*
1111 43006  EXEMPT STATE REIMB F     -300,000           0    -300,000    -310,771.00            .00      10,771.00  103.6% 
1111 43007  TREE GROWTH REVENUE       -2,750           0      -2,750      -1,359.68            .00      -1,390.32   49.4%*
1111 43031  EXCISE TAX AUTOMOBIL   -1,600,000           0  -1,600,000  -1,069,007.36            .00    -530,992.64   66.8%*
1111 43032  EXCISE TAX BOAT      -20,000           0     -20,000      -5,221.10            .00     -14,778.90   26.1%*
1111 43109  SIGN PERMITS       -2,000           0      -2,000        -825.00            .00      -1,175.00   41.3%*
1111 43110  CODE ENFORCEMENT FEE     -225,000           0    -225,000    -199,960.03            .00     -25,039.97   88.9%*
1111 43114  ADDITIONAL LAND USE       -3,000           0      -3,000      -2,825.00            .00        -175.00   94.2%*
1111 43115  PLANNING FEES (SUBDI      -10,000           0     -10,000      -2,503.00            .00      -7,497.00   25.0%*
1111 43120  TOWN CLERK FEES      -24,000           0     -24,000     -11,635.80            .00     -12,364.20   48.5%*
1111 43121  WILDLIFE AGENT FEE       -1,200           0      -1,200        -335.00            .00        -865.00   27.9%*
1111 43122  ANIMAL WELFARE AGENT       -1,600           0      -1,600        -485.00            .00      -1,115.00   30.3%*
1111 43130  TOWN REGISTRATION FE      -25,000           0     -25,000     -21,235.00            .00      -3,765.00   84.9%*
1111 43135  HWY PERMITS & FEES            0           0           0        -548.00            .00         548.00  100.0% 
1111 43140  SOLID WASTE PERMITS      -70,000           0     -70,000     -70,454.49            .00         454.49  100.6% 
1111 43145  SOLID WASTE RECYCLIN      -45,000           0     -45,000     -26,296.40            .00     -18,703.60   58.4%*
1111 43147  DINGHY FEES      -10,000           0     -10,000        -490.00            .00      -9,510.00    4.9%*

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fcWlQtAmCWOpH59/oQo5Ii52/L9snj8N3wO3hZaBXrBJ4p/RSi%2BNAg4541qu39lH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vmwWwX5yQ98faHDcU2b%2BCD0i4HCQaNe3pzAFRGI6V4F1KOsb5LfdSYsngt9A4yvw&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=sQbWE6KHgx%2BCUHbwBdbwsYllL9SRydGnmhPASVKOBMXij3GAAzHMf54zumCKMw1h&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=wYzmAWlbDd4qEYVpmVaVE6FPzI3QOs0lS44vzgjEg4dsiwsZUdy7cgboQn5UANh1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=8s5S9S3DR0YRjK0F0HQkFGTXbGwnGwYH9%2BQgYQ8zlvWpn4DFdHvDGvUkB4cFeWRJ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=V%2BxMZtn0BtnR0Mh4hCbyrAV87rbfBBr3ymHo5S33kWuQCBT0d7oPHMKpz/XYeY1D&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rtzdaiKIb6nowI3NfUuIJoA/gw0Dkw4rcLwbGBAmNuWyuTU3o1/nB36Cwjhl%2BD6I&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gYJnHvjDcj8qPq5zPiemRYYBsKr6zFHhHoowTImiUKbkhbEOGEKRiB3cZ7OG8oq7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=RYNyE9Arm02OFn8a2O1/sL5pu/PklBXBDQLNSG3SzBcJr%2BUdZDdrZGUyigh9Exwj&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kbAh/gv80hFrpawzu1U8R5pn48GibZxMvbDrUvC5ARY5J5mbGd%2BWerY0MvfuTNmc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=r/4rBnwW/n/FlyGcGw9iRityGY9Cd%2B0KxYtrJw4SZx%2BwfXJ7pHxZIicmkGfJxtIO&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=U0fAC1B3zNIhQhShGtWwZ1zX9BMUAFC7bwg8rs1kLy%2B/3NFp0TgIdeQcpg%2B%2BqlE0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xyS9sLJtIruIMObWnJJNK8BWIIWegywdb0FiG9PyY7D%2B/UXcBViYD6u/m5NPMwHm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=hKJLEOpmbg02Il8vrFi6vMRWHtduwrku48YzEtgTpU%2BMUgqr/aWKVvKieAeTbAn%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Sd3dMrlhv2AFbtr/xSMZSxsKGDXyHCOm5V1SOrGbAj6qKFio3/Y9i2UOuLZLSPxq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vnor%2BS9r1Qjo4XrR40JIjThna1f4r7C8DuMbNbo6AcpxnScQoKSo7KT4AE5Q8hff&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=FNmf85uHB2ZXN7hhErzDxuegBtIn1v/fq8Iw8rM%2BG2RpZLlm/4LdJ9uXZ8OUC5yT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BByFgANyKfbKgKvA8yF%2B42K4EFegW5f2Q5CATY1HYxgc5MGm8OSSwN9SH8a0aJ9u&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TcOh5SNx6keXw8maNprLMp8XcD4YeXRH/Z6LePXKRhIVhIUWHXoTfVHXFiIfLi0R&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2B9Jau0ZdGJWQDqr2Zh2kUDqKiGajflhDySuUbHog4%2B8H0OlR7TAVUF8r0v/7D/kF&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bLuihfB/xE8cH25omU%2BdWcqhNrnwVvbLDBVi2/FVsmkOERLtRMR64Nd%2B3VCRIhwh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=HIzA3HJfO4yjzUitLKAfg59oJHFy/kBTDgCsl1J1kcLVi/JPWyWLL158utV3zcs0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=PU734EP%2BERvoCRuHhNa3Cz4L%2BMW4HCRSh%2BU8/c8WXbK06itrx9sbpFGP5Dh2QMwg&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     15
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
1000     TOWN GENERAL FUND                  APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
1111 43148  TRANSIENT SLIP RENTA       -1,500           0      -1,500      -1,563.00            .00          63.00  104.2% 
1111 43149  KPA APPLICATION FEES         -500           0        -500        -625.00            .00         125.00  125.0% 
1111 43150  MOORING FEES      -80,000           0     -80,000     -41,345.60            .00     -38,654.40   51.7%*
1111 43151  LAUNCH FEE      -12,000           0     -12,000      -7,973.00            .00      -4,027.00   66.4%*
1111 43152  TRANSIENT MOORING       -2,500           0      -2,500      -1,495.55            .00      -1,004.45   59.8%*
1111 43153  WAIT LIST FEE       -1,100           0      -1,100         -40.00            .00      -1,060.00    3.6%*
1111 43154  HARBOR & WATER USAGE            0           0           0         -55.00            .00          55.00  100.0% 
1111 43156  PIER USAGE FEE       -1,000           0      -1,000        -450.00            .00        -550.00   45.0%*
1111 43157  MOORING LATE FEE            0           0           0        -250.00            .00         250.00  100.0% 
1111 43160  FORT FOSTER FEES     -175,000           0    -175,000    -176,936.50            .00       1,936.50  101.1% 
1111 43210  LIEN FEES       -7,000           0      -7,000      -6,435.85            .00        -564.15   91.9%*
1111 43220  PENALTY INTEREST      -38,000           0     -38,000     -30,942.54            .00      -7,057.46   81.4%*
1111 43221  LIBRARY FINES & FEES      -10,000           0     -10,000        -926.75            .00      -9,073.25    9.3%*
1111 43320  RECREATION FEES     -850,000           0    -850,000     -27,449.49            .00    -822,550.51    3.2%*
1111 43330  ANIMAL CONTROL       -4,000           0      -4,000        -960.00            .00      -3,040.00   24.0%*
1111 43335  POSTAGE            0           0           0         -22.45            .00          22.45  100.0% 
1111 43336  PHOTO COPIES         -200           0        -200        -115.50            .00         -84.50   57.8%*
1111 43351  ACCIDENT REPORTS       -3,000           0      -3,000      -1,291.00            .00      -1,709.00   43.0%*
1111 43352  PARKING TICKETS      -30,000           0     -30,000     -29,865.00            .00        -135.00   99.6%*
1111 43353  GUN PERMITS       -2,000           0      -2,000        -545.00            .00      -1,455.00   27.3%*
1111 43354  ELIOT DISPATCHING SE     -123,360           0    -123,360     -61,680.00            .00     -61,680.00   50.0%*
1111 43355  ORDINANCE FINES         -350           0        -350        -350.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
1111 43356  WITNESS FEES         -300           0        -300         -40.00            .00        -260.00   13.3%*
1111 43358  FALSE ALARMS         -880           0        -880        -440.00            .00        -440.00   50.0%*
1111 43359  AMBULANCE DISPTACH F      -16,000           0     -16,000      -4,000.00            .00     -12,000.00   25.0%*
1111 43410  MDOT HWY MAINTENANCE      -11,500           0     -11,500            .00            .00     -11,500.00     .0%*
1111 43420  STATE REVENUE SHARIN     -450,000           0    -450,000    -419,600.91            .00     -30,399.09   93.2%*
1111 43421  STATE PARK FEE REV S         -275           0        -275            .00            .00        -275.00     .0%*
1111 43443  RESTITUTION INCOME/U       -2,000           0      -2,000        -704.70            .00      -1,295.30   35.2%*
1111 43470  STATE OF MAINE GENER      -45,000           0     -45,000     -11,651.03            .00     -33,348.97   25.9%*
1111 43480  MARY SAFFORD WILDES      -25,000           0     -25,000      -6,250.00            .00     -18,750.00   25.0%*
1111 43510  INTEREST ON INVESTME      -45,000           0     -45,000      -6,339.39            .00     -38,660.61   14.1%*
1111 43530  MISCELLANEOUS REVENU      -15,000           0     -15,000      -4,364.27            .00     -10,635.73   29.1%*
1111 43540  SEWER DEPT RENT      -22,900           0     -22,900      -5,725.00            .00     -17,175.00   25.0%*
1111 43555  SNOWMOBILE/HANDICAP/         -655           0        -655            .00            .00        -655.00     .0%*
1111 43560  GMH HOUSING     -286,000           0    -286,000    -135,946.53            .00    -150,053.47   47.5%*
1111 43576  TRANSFER IN FROM OTH      -35,000           0     -35,000            .00            .00     -35,000.00     .0%*
1111 43580  USE OF CARRY FORWARD            0     -75,000     -75,000            .00            .00     -75,000.00     .0%*
1111 45020  MMA W/C DIVIDEND      -10,000           0     -10,000            .00            .00     -10,000.00     .0%*
1111 45025  SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFI      -47,741           0     -47,741     -55,274.39            .00       7,533.39  115.8% 

 
TOTAL TOWN REVENUE                   -14,920,544     -75,000 -14,995,544 -13,074,061.06            .00  -1,921,482.94   87.2%

 
TOTAL TOWN GENERAL FUND                        0           0           0  -4,572,335.73            .00   4,572,335.73  100.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES  -14,920,544     -75,000 -14,995,544 -13,074,061.06            .00  -1,921,482.94
TOTAL EXPENSES   14,920,544      75,000  14,995,544   8,501,725.33            .00   6,493,818.67

 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=81KdpvSNn7Ew77iM8NTay4g%2BMiiqmtU2JXcvS9wH2SxCwbHw4gXw3WDDIVWUGexs&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TEThh9ub6WxXWiAF30Hx4SJQaIRIuSg5CrexnD0NYDfCMUs8zOfyHEc24G0I7Ctv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mWyu9t7AlXE/i/0%2B/Y1bW2QztlS/1sjpa05FvrUH7i%2BdDQnLGi8CaxVk9Qg4Nyxe&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vhrN8Hx27ScRTUNrrfxxgBM8tk/99eolDCFKcBNxNrj64KIzLYzvn1Id%2BMw0h6NT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=uF52MnyEA6F0YzBpWnAecGV4bXd2b6m/SpHFP8Bq8PCOSIkudxbXdjBirfZq6m/1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=M3FOHgtshqU9t7KSnqHh0w/E6mj6brG2tNHlUsc5hqWsW7cLDyq5QzmAssGAbs/k&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WeyEQGGypx%2BCQPusWJiRJGmRHTsy49Pv42m%2Bnpkenf9aS8DDBD2%2BSxsCIFsupIWj&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=goPZyv6Zao43v%2BRNol9ydzs/HnrEVgZTKimNSpbIP54KBVVZZExF2V28nD/QnzaV&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=ONLNcvR3QbCTsCAYa9rSVG4MLREfn2lDVOqesKkLiCiutWYWaorX9KEMZra/K%2BQI&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AWG1V1%2B1vxDaCHk8qqcXXOhidBBVgmVnizFMUPxId908L/2wEqkvvlf7a0BXhBBl&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=vqZPZIv38T%2BFipYR36FzfYHtEk2jmgzhxNG4bGWclO8IvSS8d3Tb7U5HlTCC0Omm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qa7XCt8Vcmxlrg59tj0ZaFpCUPCkcLOp5aagFQlGSHyrKI%2B29rowQnD0PP%2BDS6vw&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=26mF2dM1Nsrj4NLB4%2BgaHbOp0FyozerI8UfESAdtDdzAqetMX6T%2B0BCvM5O9h6kT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=3xjniKofU0p4ct7C28mJEq1a8eNGV67gU0273TpNScF/waYUP62fNZNtoGCZvOuW&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=BTXzk%2B9ckc47mmQ%2Ba0WrXFA%2BjSEsU%2BcH/oZu6%2BaY/JVvfA2lLaRqKd2k/RuJRcZj&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4Sy06V8i/DxExiAJlsgks2j9TU61d8Y0Kbljf2pdVYAEuSdmkLCmANNlmV7H8nB6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=9CN3lMj6uzDsJdEQ6Ft5mQDcD3f4VLYLSM%2BywDiD%2B%2Br2%2B3ejfB7bGMu3iCMPeTso&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fJujow3GV0LU51YZD2TuE6F2Ok55h8xUNAPXu0pGg6FtZCkgklWWK19w48Le7/bH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6OerI2294rVyslaB0Jr1d21ncSDMZ73AG%2Bu48GktjaEXWuALmHrOvNRpl97yMMdW&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qQpxgWXRoCr6lwhLJplGn5QH6hzb4xIhv8DosX9QWXtBE1DSXxhVOWeBY1Ns1MKd&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=c4JZZEkqUTgbyRQSMVSKjWM870qi54n0TT4TovNdSQVJTyqYqgZCdV7SPt6TcWiY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tz0GqpzTrURmErebkQCSHMV8cnMiaMrHWAUEo/GviGI6X9lCVoR4MJC1zkhm73As&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fVOIkf5oThXmqGHXirju/p1D%2BN2dMGweIPvc7XkYdJZqPMyIzNeVSQXWBujEmV1l&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Whno1HOO7GKLkrFgLzfGcsceon%2B3FlIP4lfXFjBl3K0NI%2Bq3rLQwtJR6nGmmqFUn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qK%2ByFkzdfutxeHqPsAiKALQjVyX6ctL4dIlPq3O1TYStDYvSJuccfGhP0puAN7Mm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=TbpX%2BUqIgJ/rf1bALnCHwJ3dF3EG6D1qtQfYU0Rmd/Fs4mnupS7Cch3xOFNOEDoq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=a5WvhW%2Bj4B5za%2BSJykb8T%2BfZfRXfLZ8XKiEJGRa1W9qph5iNFrgkW4yH6GXuNZp3&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XJPjpaUsqEGwQRNsye9ybAp23BhIF6CiFF2k72YJhNsw/o3Aln%2BwlGeo%2BLrJy/j5&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=l8kcXztc499yKR5/n8uQu4uYCHtC4QqjYBIqpXOu2Bured3TgnTj%2BQVxOpOB1B2o&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WskejC%2BYFkO%2BcmsJoHn%2BeHkBKsDf%2BhfbiZO0woL56ZnjKPnzEppFu7WnAuQ/5y2W&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=321K1cdnA8G9PM3FUnL/K5gH%2BPLKDd8is7fteKO%2BJDSfpDskl5aQR2WHtaCZDBOw&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=D7t7eaGPj9Yr3aDYGNc4kWsy8PXF1g%2BE5j8e7Bm1w5mEv0HjI3fzAqmm4MD9exsp&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0gzfp5S41D1jkbX2GdTMSKrGvIq%2BoLdsINBFso9Nsz81X9aG3KgqBmtwzPBmtZL8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=lRaEXOep9CLnYC8ORt%2BwZehsuc%2Bz1AkTfx3acguNZW6smoW1hgVIReqjGezwIQhY&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=wmdVghtpAxxj20VPM6SFWddyCgNmWY3eeFDzG%2BJ1XddalZMPNjLR7h0NsNPzTBsU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=KOoL30IbHG0K7w1/6F3KUXTQ3yDLu7oZHFy/NbAl%2BzGv0m%2Bz%2BJQPtbM5WX0w7uSs&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AE3%2Bf1grbM576nYmYLtl6/WIk0yTLTmYs1IyY/RhozBtx1IA0M4JaRaP/7xcscbM&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UC4cier31QaA72eWyYZStdtIg1TBKuUaceFg8b53z7D5YpsjbnlPBQPBzEHsrnBN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VKjokpEIvGL16o4wgMjsz//k456vzdfTF3iFYNnPdjYwndiI1nmQCdtqY7PH6snx&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0vpzEaz/AM3c%2BuT2zQmPrBd8WrdaDrxDagkJ/d1TAiPZGBamSI59dVwWsmKETAau&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:32    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P     16
220pmoore           |YTD GF 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
GRAND TOTAL            0           0           0  -4,572,335.73            .00   4,572,335.73  100.0%

 
                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by PATRICIA MOORE **                                          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:56    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      1
220pmoore           |YTD SEWER 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
6000     SEWER FUND                         APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

6000 SEWER FUND                         
_________________________________________

 
6000 43003  SEWER ADJUSTMENTS            0           0           0         260.30            .00        -260.30  100.0%*
6000 43220  PENALTY INTEREST       -3,000           0      -3,000      -3,003.97            .00           3.97  100.1% 
6000 43360  SPECIAL CONTRACT REV      -10,200           0     -10,200      -6,910.10            .00      -3,289.90   67.7%*
6000 45001  PNSY REVENUE     -585,000           0    -585,000    -119,805.93            .00    -465,194.07   20.5%*
6000 45002  US NAVY HOUSING REV     -123,000           0    -123,000     -51,124.57            .00     -71,875.43   41.6%*
6000 45003  SEPTAGE REVENUE      -45,000           0     -45,000    -141,152.25            .00      96,152.25  313.7% 
6000 45004  TOWN OF ELIOT REVENU     -205,000           0    -205,000     -43,724.26            .00    -161,275.74   21.3%*
6000 45005  USERS QTRLY REVENUE   -1,500,000           0  -1,500,000    -679,859.20            .00    -820,140.80   45.3%*
6000 45006  EXPANSION ASSESSMENT      -50,000           0     -50,000     -35,570.17            .00     -14,429.83   71.1%*
6000 45007  SEWER INTEREST REVEN      -12,000           0     -12,000      -7,684.57            .00      -4,315.43   64.0%*

 
TOTAL SEWER FUND                      -2,533,200           0  -2,533,200  -1,088,574.72            .00  -1,444,625.28   43.0%

 
 

602702 SEWER LINES                        
_________________________________________

 
602702 64010  SEWER LINES LABOR       17,327           0      17,327       6,293.83            .00      11,033.17   36.3% 
602702 65480  LINES CONTRACT/PRO       28,000           0      28,000       4,686.45            .00      23,313.55   16.7% 
602702 65691  LINE SUPPLIES       12,000           0      12,000       1,142.94            .00      10,857.06    9.5% 

 
TOTAL SEWER LINES                         57,327           0      57,327      12,123.22            .00      45,203.78   21.1%

 
 

602709 PUMP STATIONS                      
_________________________________________

 
602709 64010  PUMP STATION LABOR       55,349           0      55,349      20,898.70            .00      34,450.30   37.8% 
602709 65015  PUMP STATION TELEP          600           0         600         289.82            .00         310.18   48.3% 
602709 65200  ELECTRICITY       50,815           0      50,815      14,180.44            .00      36,634.56   27.9% 
602709 65220  WATER        1,200           0       1,200         462.44            .00         737.56   38.5% 
602709 65315  PUMP STATION GENER        2,200           0       2,200            .00            .00       2,200.00     .0% 
602709 65467  PUMP STATION CONTR       45,000           0      45,000      12,454.05            .00      32,545.95   27.7% 
602709 65930  PUMP STATION ALARM        6,700           0       6,700       3,328.70            .00       3,371.30   49.7% 
602709 66300  PUMP STATION SUPPL        5,000           0       5,000         778.46            .00       4,221.54   15.6% 
602709 66320  PUMP STATION PARTS       20,000           0      20,000       2,663.44            .00      17,336.56   13.3% 

 
TOTAL PUMP STATIONS                      186,864           0     186,864      55,056.05            .00     131,807.95   29.5%

 
 

602715 PUMP STATION # 6 (PNSY)            
_________________________________________

 
602715 64010  PUMP STATION # 6LA       21,431           0      21,431       4,602.94            .00      16,828.06   21.5% 

 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=WEQMr74%2BLINJOz5AzFKdhBQzq6bbxCB0gVQ1bvvGRLF4sTwuGbOTYnViYxrGqt58&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xB%2BoxqC/nK30Q0A3gMrausdU%2BUT8uGa/s1397qOgG5N6Fqjjae%2B4D5AsUTkqNvOR&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=bADHVU6jvOdNylZmZAzBrngxqKtCV%2B4ZW0lib/yWuecDnifT%2BwZ4S8W43CKdrHy/&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xZY91Sgg1Ky%2BIBnw6L15PceYdRSfuG1DrceStR1Q6ns3rcU1JIRhy6rf0bFz5EEX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=nGPtIorA4WP48PmI9%2B4zgh0pWCjAU0fM2p6ab7PBeKtzX6DZaB5pwS5V2DkuBaxh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=FhjZDnWpRurT/%2Bt43wPlWq0Hrc46%2BlyTF/gCgYtHzuo2dV7GxyGT%2BJrmNltRprDP&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=37Dnp4hvl4Lnouf6jtD5290QbglLOm4zJmy0o0ASnu1KyffiUrxhDPXwSHfQlnhc&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=kgcCEfHyafEKSFaiMFHsnAUbgzb/Pt%2BSSEf3y73F8BM4pflK%2BTQd/XE7NSi7esE0&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=IDf4%2BvEXgQkhz1b0wxTGkK0D43ptMtbtR35tBvAeTULF%2BCLBkGi61c0k4Z1JCxsK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=f/syK/xISX7Dk992ADCuzzmv9Y0rTVfYz1lvjOYZEJzqt5k2MoqLdMu5JRh7ewnN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=EzkeHEYw6WWHBQJ6pQ3Ap0k0sRr3DFOlMjtDONb9aK0BSbpicnNx0oktqIosJLoA&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0rc8a1TkyuSNIKkcE53ofTOZfG9qvYPHP72sUZRwlolDTjd51TTQpwS6etxa0jk1&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=LNAbZ03zl3uKRbZKlFJh68aQi9vlBa0JF9AwhWdxahAIL2Ew87oubIuXqttM/oxU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UHuT4tgTtuuYjkVctKGdCNr9uDIqRKwu9/S84%2BY8/RsyKX%2BMxv3W7em4HjaweRgN&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=d8Nn7VQuLa3vf9b%2BE/xae7Bb7GZWNpWZe6SYWL%2Be/d/imBTBtNIhb9aJGBrzUXel&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ixvsi6V9RGIsAA4jZxDP93C1KacSPCPdwtHdzq8VutXX5XpsxB1D0VH14Dx4Ad6i&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qJy1Fn06j6UYIcsThspRipNzmKZftHVnO%2Bj15ab2Oe6o8K9ZE12g6MIbCJGgEF9h&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=A7Ob%2BaE9Hg/KV6xfwswrZp1bpS1X9UMHtuzy6xwyNe9TWqF2872SLBnHhrrc06vv&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UVtw9KKCNWyENxaG8dUu7fV7VCyqsgM/dXxNDjzepeBe8ZmNkLN4ST8NQ99YCZNy&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gWkvl9wgzLuYlsT0HknyQJB5npmOjtCIRZhH/Az8TbN2U4HE1Y3MvIjc646JMbLS&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mkjH9yA9YvzMf1Msmd5CtN8vz%2B0gk4QYpGYBOjctCujqp/NTZQPh2qyoWMmM6j8q&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=zf7bVL4CtnBAxETE4j7f4j9bYT4mC1BRjg9HV2r%2BmE0tUvyX0rk5%2BRpkoBiHXIrT&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UnCopoR9S3JlZOMXa3SAYmRECcZ6Jko0xuK5AtTvz4qy5zLOf4%2BQyFnJMu%2Bp2ndS&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:56    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      2
220pmoore           |YTD SEWER 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
6000     SEWER FUND                         APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
602715 65200  PUMP STATION # 6 E       15,000           0      15,000       3,343.34            .00      11,656.66   22.3% 
602715 65220  PUMP STATION # 6 W        1,000           0       1,000         264.50            .00         735.50   26.5% 
602715 65315  PUMP STATION GENER          800           0         800            .00            .00         800.00     .0% 
602715 65480  PUMP STATION # 6 C        8,000           0       8,000       2,993.25            .00       5,006.75   37.4% 
602715 65930  PUMP STATION # 6 A          300           0         300            .00            .00         300.00     .0% 
602715 66300  PUMP STATION # 6 S        1,000           0       1,000          34.17            .00         965.83    3.4% 
602715 66320  PUMP STATION # 6 P        6,000           0       6,000       1,249.69            .00       4,750.31   20.8% 

 
TOTAL PUMP STATION # 6 (PNSY)             53,531           0      53,531      12,487.89            .00      41,043.11   23.3%

 
 

602716 PUMP STATION # 7 (ELIOT)           
_________________________________________

 
602716 64010  PUMP STATION # 7 L       19,830           0      19,830       7,568.91            .00      12,261.09   38.2% 
602716 65200  PUMP STATION # 7 E        4,600           0       4,600       1,786.47            .00       2,813.53   38.8% 
602716 65220  PUMP STATION # 7 W          230           0         230         117.94            .00         112.06   51.3% 
602716 65315  PUMP STATION GENER          425           0         425            .00            .00         425.00     .0% 
602716 65480  PUMP STATION # 7 C        6,500           0       6,500       5,344.60            .00       1,155.40   82.2% 
602716 65930  PUMP STATION # 7 A          300           0         300            .00            .00         300.00     .0% 
602716 66300  PUMP STATION # 7 S          400           0         400            .00            .00         400.00     .0% 
602716 66320  PUMP STATION # 7 P        2,500           0       2,500          40.21            .00       2,459.79    1.6% 

 
TOTAL PUMP STATION # 7 (ELIOT)            34,785           0      34,785      14,858.13            .00      19,926.87   42.7%

 
 

602750 TREATMENT PLANT                    
_________________________________________

 
602750 64010  TREATMENT PLANT LA      138,414           0     138,414     102,020.03            .00      36,393.97   73.7% 
602750 64019  PLANT MAINT LABOR       53,460           0      53,460      12,186.11            .00      41,273.89   22.8% 
602750 64030  OVERTIME       40,000           0      40,000      12,783.14            .00      27,216.86   32.0% 
602750 64050  MAINE STATE RETIRE       31,760           0      31,760      16,423.57            .00      15,336.43   51.7% 
602750 64060  FICA EMPLOYER SHAR       24,056           0      24,056      12,246.85            .00      11,809.15   50.9% 
602750 65020  TREATMENT PLANT TE        3,800           0       3,800       2,039.04            .00       1,760.96   53.7% 
602750 65040  TREATMENT PLANT ED        5,000           0       5,000       1,340.00            .00       3,660.00   26.8% 
602750 65200  TREATMENT PLANT EL      110,000           0     110,000      41,191.32            .00      68,808.68   37.4% 
602750 65220  TREATMENT PLANT WA        5,000           0       5,000       2,115.46            .00       2,884.54   42.3% 
602750 65230  TREATMENT PLANT FU       16,000           0      16,000       4,667.19            .00      11,332.81   29.2% 
602750 65310  TREATMENT PLANT MO       48,000           0      48,000       4,135.02            .00      43,864.98    8.6% 
602750 65316  TREATMENT PLANT GE        2,240           0       2,240            .00            .00       2,240.00     .0% 
602750 65410  TREATMENT PLANT CO       12,000           0      12,000       4,697.25            .00       7,302.75   39.1% 
602750 65480  TREATMENT PLANT OT       60,000           0      60,000      31,629.62            .00      28,370.38   52.7% 
602750 65500  TREATMENT PLANT BL        5,000           0       5,000       2,162.84            .00       2,837.16   43.3% 

 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7iCqf8mBQmNaj%2B5dQ%2B7AZITDAT4Z1GST/MIVzWOUlr3Fsp3VswMpYxj85FDFTYb4&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=b4Cd/Wi1egepVm6yOR53yG5PLQn8Qy1FKhXDBhhhVvanhpVoG6et7OBoLDHEcjEB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0hnAhETvCjznXIqM/YBCd1WhKBAw55mE33PdEsTfHdFK6voX7wiReOEWyNVCUk6F&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AXfyrsO5iWCVfOf2dg/RbTSJsUdOu5XNe1fHab9K0J7yO3Zk8wQY0FJdhmAEOXbG&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BgQKfOxIHvvEq1gAqLKdW36GlTydrxxw6l3m/3/pI4sZlAR1ZzVv1ZGzHwkUrtWI&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=JCVdqsjrnwy%2BtChy87q0W1yocG8mXM/a66kjkgzTbumSstDYT8L0SD8o55h7zpXq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=yGDcn6yiigFVNzJN8Jun%2BZcMd9vPFy%2BXuuLgtTZhLBys8IJr1Ze/2l2W8z/MZp0O&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rGUpWPrcH70c3Y6mcujRKUsLJ8mElFhEwnjeezFKFMmSscvMXityLcUL1oFZubmx&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=fi2dXWXo7sdcBAjTjGK9af8rkk11CQB5pYUfugay2EtXni9NX1h%2B7Bdy1CGLmeuf&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=drSSAo1khSxiV3tPe72vXwrLJ87eDO9jYS08AzYGhtlPTgjQfXvkft/iFMfhEUxh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Im45RLmQRCMER%2BGI9G4QKko5abHqXr7Zm7lgGgeff/1K3WYd2pKLCvcmcMVbPgCh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mKzQNM9UcK06pDN3ZH8bPSFQAZn0MVjS50H56tzC11NBDhX9TYgNKoVnJsoTew7I&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=6txsZwxfgTQn3J9M0UL7GxuwpcJXFsjCnTlUEjQc4ipeZXJB0hUPLwMELGulvJcZ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=VO3wzAtdMT0nFAoRIFCCDkb7/4Mer3bHrbG3iWBu0h7HFrOxgPHig9nMG3gemSQn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=wZBsvSYJE/slYvE3bU2j9eERVXLuLy/RmbgnklhPopdMqSGZjVrDhLjxmjaRNcuW&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=YuiMI36USXGQcBAXEtLwa4pXAQTEAeGf1IdL1JZaWx00Q7TeEA86b0oIpYTVo5fr&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=sBEDtTe8zttBRocbQ5ort2zjFifQBZBB%2B9Nblw7cx8iLfbgJn6tyo1%2BHHR6t3FV7&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=DOtLnLUxmF9U9Z5lw5C%2B/006iZY49kzoQ9FOUmY0Z50MnLJz3tgHGa32hTPfFZVg&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=po%2B0PV8sS8WAXq5Pk1r1/JchvOSI/7HWrLa60ybVSM1JBXQl42PA5Q%2BkziTlAash&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=t1cU2yPYa%2B13Wzvikj0bY8YPy5PpjX7jPXVFB2QHnDAGfiPdeAHCR8FDo51ypP4e&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GqMZdiECZpJ8Idk9eGvgJoI0Q7wnRqnsLtL7pqrXdcBlL4KcZ2B3CVOuQem7xC4y&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=O9cO53TzhED5GlJTSs/ykI%2BuioROltaOa1sHtH3PD0tpLqk%2BUCL4H9LJnEyrVHX8&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=tMMi5/w/KlRqNLMe5hwTR8VE%2BbAk4KZqd35/DEayxzn2vze4a7Y18cfOjXxsWzO9&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=gZmaNPY0XPfeCCAUNIUR2%2Bz2FFeYbEjW/2nS55KrcAub4eSAjEtFqigsbf1TmxNJ&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=5nkujXh1oWMh/IgrNTRz6T1ugALcqN9E89H9v66CrHXLuj4D9wRXU0NsfqHVZBRm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Cy%2BuSNnJukJtkBA8mDNCLG0PERyFhpCMuhaSLH6sG9QfDH%2BkTJl%2BvcYXF%2B0jf3UX&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=h3rR39J8ZBfuPV5Y4EYTNFKEl06DI7FngsF2/JW0wqkG53M%2BZiOiLUd/3qpNZN5S&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=qXVyosG0XQKptvYd9YcNqb1RWQB634%2BaTkAJO3%2Bcpgpcg7IixENXpEXbWPb3MpMi&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=AThgSErA55yRnTl3MMOBvrGQ3MJqPydbH/xkB0s5tJO081CDma4DwpStFidnWkXK&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=xwqRbSvlTE33%2BQXnW8blhdOMITlLvkHwdFt0WSDTNUYReySRihR9fAny1nb7lK3D&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:56    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      3
220pmoore           |YTD SEWER 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
6000     SEWER FUND                         APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
602750 65700  TREATMENT PLANT EX            0           0           0         241.93            .00        -241.93  100.0%*
602750 65930  ALARMS        2,000           0       2,000         107.70            .00       1,892.30    5.4% 
602750 65955  TREATMENT PLANT SL      146,000           0     146,000      74,455.36            .00      71,544.64   51.0% 
602750 66010  TREATMENT PLANT OF        4,000           0       4,000       1,898.59            .00       2,101.41   47.5% 
602750 66300  TREATMENT PLANT SU       32,000           0      32,000       1,673.68            .00      30,326.32    5.2% 
602750 66340  LABORATORY CHEMICA       16,000           0      16,000       2,611.19            .00      13,388.81   16.3% 
602750 66400  TREATMENT PLANT RE        2,000           0       2,000         560.81            .00       1,439.19   28.0% 
602750 66410  TREATMENT PLANT RE       24,000           0      24,000       4,322.82            .00      19,677.18   18.0% 
602750 66420  TREATMENT PLANT TO       28,000           0      28,000       3,792.78            .00      24,207.22   13.5% 
602750 66450  TREATMENT PLANT CH      106,000           0     106,000      71,646.28            .00      34,353.72   67.6% 
602750 66520  TREATMENT PLANT SA       14,000           0      14,000       4,059.75            .00       9,940.25   29.0% 

 
TOTAL TREATMENT PLANT                    928,730           0     928,730     415,008.33            .00     513,721.67   44.7%

 
 

602760 SEWER GENERAL OPERATING            
_________________________________________

 
602760 64011  TOWN MANAGER SALAR       33,891           0      33,891      17,514.53            .00      16,376.47   51.7% 
602760 64012  SUPERINTENDENT SAL       97,138           0      97,138      50,172.64            .00      46,965.36   51.7% 
602760 64013  OFFICE CLERK SALAR       48,733           0      48,733      24,443.63            .00      24,289.37   50.2% 
602760 64031  SALARY & POSITION       14,120           0      14,120            .00            .00      14,120.00     .0% 
602760 64050  MAINE STATE RETIRE       15,175           0      15,175       7,426.03            .00       7,748.97   48.9% 
602760 64051  ICMA EMPLOYER SHAR        2,100           0       2,100       1,012.19            .00       1,087.81   48.2% 
602760 64060  FICA EMPLOYER SHAR       14,171           0      14,171       6,241.75            .00       7,929.25   44.0% 
602760 64070  WORKERS COMPENSATI       20,000           0      20,000       3,579.34            .00      16,420.66   17.9% 
602760 64090  MAJOR MEDICAL INSU      148,686           0     148,686      71,790.18            .00      76,895.82   48.3% 
602760 64091  DENTAL INSURANCE        1,406           0       1,406       1,304.96            .00         101.04   92.8% 
602760 64092  DISABLILTY INSURAN        3,927           0       3,927            .00            .00       3,927.00     .0% 
602760 65101  MMA RISK POOL       32,316           0      32,316      15,141.45            .00      17,174.55   46.9% 
602760 65350  INDIRECT COSTS       22,900           0      22,900       5,725.00            .00      17,175.00   25.0% 
602760 65430  AUDIT SERVICES        4,300           0       4,300       1,000.00            .00       3,300.00   23.3% 
602760 66035  ABSTRACTS & LIENS          500           0         500         152.00            .00         348.00   30.4% 
602760 68060  SEWER BOND INTERES      139,334           0     139,334      76,240.52            .00      63,093.48   54.7% 
602760 68062  SEWER BOND PRINCIP      626,620           0     626,620     462,636.22            .00     163,983.78   73.8% 

 
TOTAL SEWER GENERAL OPERATING          1,225,317           0   1,225,317     744,380.44            .00     480,936.56   60.8%

 
TOTAL SEWER FUND                         -46,646           0     -46,646     165,339.34            .00    -211,985.34 -354.5%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   -2,533,200           0  -2,533,200  -1,088,574.72            .00  -1,444,625.28
TOTAL EXPENSES    2,486,554           0   2,486,554   1,253,914.06            .00   1,232,639.94

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=4M0UoOeIpyThDSb1ubjxXyxSoasHxIw8eu1ox8nKWJklI/BaKFCTwhbzFASKsiqg&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GXu%2BIF67u3%2BI/bquypPH8eNHZExfLSO2dOkv/Xg1b4Rqmtox00waNCX%2BWCCPz5sP&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=jcepRjfkxcjhr3jNrN9vlLK1fg3ZknZix4TH47blND4IWOMlkrrABRbOW19T4wcq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=iWD39hdVVcwEIQ47gXbyr1Pq/auReQCdHEW3Im96OM7dHEN3Yovdf9wm4C42Xlqz&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=krgcRwkOn1g782eC4ynEJHxS4%2B3FoeW0oZvnhDp2ZzkVxwjJivdA7RhX6Dmn4FZ6&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=c8TCzgrKrbptU096wSyfUrtLbA2mTqil1ILTN/g6NyCuMPhM2RTXjssXuaH%2BJgKq&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BzeQiTQ0OVTveCmzV7gqJr9cY25fVHGxLPeUoOqZuUBaTRHtYpu70WPlzwclWMbB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=h7QMcEHA%2BaLJhQSLG1Obs7%2BfcxRq1/%2B7AvLu7d8b/iq1yNjjTo95w6nPYB312n32&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=mCXlUz7WvPPi8FJEnnu/9ZHXT3xqE7UpJ77%2BYUIYX2SVyCyshQ6aeM2TtMJpYvWb&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=Qmw1QRTAVEu%2BY/o9SfLXw90waOaDMuCmx0fVQcq5D1%2BhhVSZW27nocdTO49wUhAe&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=QF50/Ymjq8B513u%2BVTWqF93oMlTS7nKVlGTLcKGlgxd%2BeZpl%2BSFQ7u0bNIsJtjKh&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=R/BvJdjWUWLE694j%2Be8RSBMyeHbAj//RDm4aCLQEjwvKOJEz7dTsDxbP27TF620%2B&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=0tPSBYDUX2%2BpqyPtoRKpKq4C9iEiI%2B1MFQO0u4y4ZK/ZIpB00nVwoFfjb4pQTFBE&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=n%2BPzr3ra12HXhtig3q2cVlcLWXMgz8OUZRrj1UI4C83uAORXew/akL2ijr8pwJow&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7%2BgVGGrL89j/50e5ZuLnFehYsxvRomA8b450ge9SLEuePBQGwwV1tY2fWOXtH4Fm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=UBLt7v6G1hIWPMkXvB1zp/DVassGr%2B4F17/XpWrOs0Aj0yW0GSrowSjY/BnFwljB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=1I1ktT7MZXcjjDK3LpjKiOlrR07sT2EoIV/Js6kPGuxbzD36jZlg%2BE8Yp7wkFjIa&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=IRGW2QUxPOpQuWsEV4KNFPgq0ggBtxqKTEmQcJbaVinT8CFW42FuquNTjqzmgJcU&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rc7SbBIsv50njqNMRvnZvvS9ZelVHUr67JvmY0eBjCOjU%2B3OfKnCP7g8xVq9IpnB&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=NW5wKHEQMuNvde1/tviVpprHZ3g7IIeqz3E4s/aDwQ8jMETw%2B3aLb8Bb0IXE1uVt&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=XIPWnsnzEi/FWzxW/8nZcvxVSYckp4DpzErq/DvgYdiJVCiZaE0hwCboOfG5ORMd&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=HBU2bERr3To0Q4wf%2BksuPfwBX9RtZc348JiWrkukPc8KxgiyRr%2B5tijdxsh6BA0H&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=rA7xsbKOMGeetKikemkIAJepmYxlGnlNAMq245ol4H3vAAv3sOBtS7d7Ah1btnwH&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=7ymoxjGFw4nWtk4eJVZk3hkR/Ux7NZy8CNH5yDIMVFAj6lX%2BE9ckVHvADTcpeOWn&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=GUzyjuPmMUVnr6rXqv8XJ5MLjJqQRLe8XGd1Rtj/w3I%2BLFzyicV3DGQ9VQY5gwCm&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=T7Td0dPFUQYzTKk1KeR8%2BT0Q710OeE3sFpgYet5bROD0umr9j%2BrJl8MPxs81rP/P&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=eRmH2f6lokPg7S1xK%2B%2BkxLu1/eqPuC3J7nW4If0j9si0OSrXq%2BGkYy7pXWsbNyBy&
https://yvwlndash063.tylertech.com/sites/mu0220/LIVE/_layouts/15/DashboardMunisV6.3/PassThru.aspx?-E=h3wMBkwiB5COHR%2Btutc1z2JzfLzvzfQOJzEBtAa4JMrIi3yPR8/a%2BR9%2Bv4eydLX8&


 
 
 

01/07/2021 13:56    |TOWN OF KITTERY - LIVE |P      4
220pmoore           |YTD SEWER 12.31.20 |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2021 06
 

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
GRAND TOTAL      -46,646           0     -46,646     165,339.34            .00    -211,985.34 -354.5%

 
                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by PATRICIA MOORE **                                          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Kittery FISCAL YEAR 2021

Fund Balances - Capital Projects and Special Revenues

For the month ending December 30, 2020

Ending CIP

Fund New Fund Balance Transfers Appropriation YTD YTD Ending

Type # Account Name 6/30/2020 FY21 7/1/2020 Expense Revenue Fund Balance

Special Revenues (Grants, Designated Accounts, etc)  

SR 2005 Senior Tax Credit Program 55,000.00                   -                (51,000.00)                   4,000.00                        

SR 2006 FEMA Reimbursement 37,277.60                   37,277.60                      

SR 2012 Fire Hazmat Spill Recovery Fees 12,971.25                   12,971.25                      

SR 2014 Police Grants 517.32                        517.32                           

SR 2028 Ballot Machines 6,078.00                     6,078.00                        

SR 2032 ASA Applicant Code 2,665.33                     (10,208.71)                   4,465.00                       (3,078.38)                       

SR 2038 Kittery Block Party 1,595.34                     1,595.34                        

SR 2056 Concerts in the Park (3.09)                           (800.00)                        (803.09)                          

SR 2059 Conservation Comm 912.02                        (344.12)                        567.90                           

SR 2060 Wetlands Mitigation 53,343.00                   27,360.00                     80,703.00                      

SR 2063 Kittery Community Center (KCC) Donations 20,945.01                   (5,023.81)                     15,921.20                      

SR 2066 Police Forfeiture 9,128.59                     2,258.66                       11,387.25                      

SR 2068 Fort Foster Bench Donations 11,280.80                   (206.44)                        50.00                            11,124.36                      

SR 2069 Boating Infrastructure Grant (BIG) 1,583.71                     1,583.71                        

SR 2071 D.A.R.E 216.03                        216.03                           

SR 2074-67500 TIF District #1 -                                 

SR 2074-67503 TIF District #3 80,061.44                   27,000.00      (6,029.43)                     101,032.01                    

SR 2074-67502 TIF District #2 -                                 

SR 2086 Spruce Creek PH 5 Grant 1,072.19                     (10,107.74)                   6,943.34                       (2,092.21)                       

SR 2081 Channel 22 (PEG) Capital Funding 260,947.46                 (15,903.78)                   49,127.74                     294,171.42                    

SR 2082 KCC Playgrounds 64,718.36                   64,718.36                      

SR 2091/67500 FEMA Flood Maps Ins Rate Appeal -                              -                                 

SR 2091/43600 FEMA Flood Maps Ins Rate Appeal - Phase 2 -                              -                                 

SR 4001-67500/43600 State Aid to Roads General 632,668.76                 148,840.00                   781,508.76                    

SR 4001-67502/43602 Whipple Road Improvements 250,601.63                 250,601.63                    

SR 4001-67503/43603 Memorial Circle Improvements 47,760.34                   (42,208.68)                   5,551.66                        

SR 4001-67508/43608 Walker/Wentworth 200,305.40                 200,305.40                    

SR 4001-67509/43605 Government Street 16,094.50                   16,094.50                      

SR 4030 Public Safety Impact Fees 42,593.32                   (3,594.41)                     30,010.00                     69,008.91                      

SR 2093 LWCF Grant - Emery Field Phase 1 -                              -                                 

SR 2094 LWCF Grant - Emery Field Phase 2 83,570.00                   300,000.00           (12,825.00)                   370,745.00                    

SR 2210 Ogden KCC Grant (1,205.06)                    (1,194.94)       (2,400.00)                       

SR 2301 Billable Police Details 14,361.16                   (11,188.25)                   15,960.00                     19,132.91                      

SR 2303 Grant Supported Police Details (5,620.84)                    (2,937.72)                     2,379.43                       (6,179.13)                       

SR 2087 Joint Land Use OEA PH1 (451.93)                       (451.93)                          

SR 4124 Tax Acquired Properties (40,479.79)                  -                (3,698.05)                     (44,177.84)                     

I:\Kittery Finance Department ‐ Town and School\1TOWN\Manager and Finance Director Shared\FY21 Other Funds\06 Dec 20\Other Funds December 2020Other Funds (2)



Town of Kittery FISCAL YEAR 2021

Fund Balances - Capital Projects and Special Revenues

For the month ending December 30, 2020

Ending CIP

Fund New Fund Balance Transfers Appropriation YTD YTD Ending

Type # Account Name 6/30/2020 FY21 7/1/2020 Expense Revenue Fund Balance

SR 4125 Fort Foster Restoration (FEMA) 218,822.16                 -                218,822.16                    

SR 4126 KCC Visual Arts Com 2,024.20                     (210.00)                        550.00                          2,364.20                        

SR 5023 Library Donations 71,448.02                   (63,764.87)     (5,664.68)                     5,825.39                       7,843.86                        

SR 5500 MMA Grants 181.56                        (4,061.00)                     2,000.00                       (1,879.44)                       

SR 5501 Mass Transit Reserve Fund 115,000.00                 (32,500.00)                   82,500.00                      

SR 5502 Keep Maine Healthy Grant (1,914.38)                    (307,197.09)                 200,639.94                   (108,471.53)                   

SR 5503 CTCL Election Grant -                              (34,565.40)                   55,000.00                     20,434.60                      

SR 5024 Library Expansion Project - Construction -                              63,764.87      (17,147.86)                   46,617.01                      

Total Special Revenue 2,266,069.41              25,805.06      300,000.00           (577,422.17)                 551,409.50                   2,565,861.80                 

CIP Bonds  

CP 2036 Kittery Community Center Bonds 373.48                        373.48                           

CP 2085 2016 Municipal Projects 30,949.03                   30,949.03                      

CIP Programs

SR 2022 Compensated Absences 188,922.33                 (35,862.97)                   153,059.36                    

CP 2057 Open space 6,889.64                     -                6,889.64                        

CP 2078 Athletic Fields Master Plan (Design) 2,142.34                     2,142.34                        

CP 4002 Right of Way Reserve 755,317.40                 450,000.00           (504,022.90)                 18,206.18                     719,500.68                    

CP 4011 KCC Vehicle Reserve 25,121.00                   (2,071.34)                     23,049.66                      

CP 4012 Public Works Vehicles/Equipment 74,117.38                   361,000.00           (181,755.98)                 253,361.40                    

CP 4013 Fire Apparatus Reserve 195,591.14                 195,591.14                    

CP 4017 GIS/MS4 Compliance 40,320.31                   (34,227.89)                   6,092.42                        

CP 4018 KPA Boat Reserve 24,098.02                   (17,210.00)                   6,888.02                        

CP 4019 KCC Equipment Reserve 5,162.82                     5,162.82                        

CP 4020 Municipal Technology Reserve 25,229.76                   45,000.00             (14,977.39)                   55,252.37                      

CP 4022 Police Vehicle/Equipment 63,657.49                   147,000.00           (6,467.00)                     204,190.49                    

CP 4026 Records Preservation 10.13                          -                        10.13                             

CP 4027 Municipal Facility Reserve 121,782.50                 80,000.00             (16,272.00)                   185,510.50                    

CP 4031 Public Safety Base Station Radio Replace 20,845.45                   20,845.45                      

CP 4043 Parks Building & Grounds 37,850.05                   15,000.00             52,850.05                      

CP 4051 KCC Facility Reserve 8,545.86                     8,545.86                        

CP 4053 Pepperrell Cove Paving/Utilities 3,595.52                     (2,100.00)                     1,495.52                        

CP 4055 KPA Equpiment Reserve 59,037.30                   (896.14)                        58,141.16                      

CP 4056 Fire Dept Equipment Reserve 169,736.84                 44,000.00             (3,060.00)                     210,676.84                    

CP 4100 Fire Dept Facility Reserve  (was Boiler Replacements) 318.84                        13,500.00             13,818.84                      

CP 4110 PW Sign Shed 20.00                          20.00                             

I:\Kittery Finance Department ‐ Town and School\1TOWN\Manager and Finance Director Shared\FY21 Other Funds\06 Dec 20\Other Funds December 2020Other Funds (2)



Town of Kittery FISCAL YEAR 2021

Fund Balances - Capital Projects and Special Revenues

For the month ending December 30, 2020

Ending CIP

Fund New Fund Balance Transfers Appropriation YTD YTD Ending

Type # Account Name 6/30/2020 FY21 7/1/2020 Expense Revenue Fund Balance

CP 4116 KPA Facility Reserve (was Gov Pier) 12,888.50                   12,888.50                      

CP 4122 Zoning Recodification and GIS Upgrade 23,010.23                   (15,372.67)                   7,637.56                        

CP 4060 Rice Rehab/Expansion 224,314.57                 (193,623.44)                 30,691.13                      

CP 4123 LED Streetlight Conversion 40,763.58                   40,763.58                      

Total Capital Projects 2,160,611.51              -                1,155,500.00        (1,027,919.72)              18,206.18                     2,306,397.97                 

TOTAL GENERAL OPERATIONS 4,426,680.92              25,805.06      1,455,500.00        (1,605,341.89)              569,615.68                   4,872,259.77                 

Permanent Funds (Scholarship Funds/Trust Funds) -                        

PF 5001 Connie Samuels Beautification Fund 58,600.93                   58,600.93                      

PF 5002 Public Health 27,275.44                   (896.56)                        26,378.88                      

PF 5003 York Hospital Scholarship 16,161.40                   16,161.40                      

PF 5005 Lester Raynes Fund 9,228.16                     (765.90)                        8,462.26                        

PF 5007 Thresher Memorial Fund 9,262.79                     (1,999.78)                     2,050.00                       9,313.01                        

PF 5010 Kittery Education Scholarship Fund 4,827.38                     650.00                         4,978.73                       10,456.11                      

PF 5021 Cemetery 0.35                            0.35                               

Total Permanent Funds 125,356.45                 -                -                        (3,012.24)                     7,028.73                       129,372.94                    

Enterprise Fund (Sewer) -                        

ER 2900 Sewer Impact fees 640,634.06                 (44,445.29)                   63,400.00                     659,588.77                    

ER 2901 Sewer Betterment 139,862.55                 (3,863.57)                     57,000.00                     192,998.98                    

ER 2902 Sewer Safety Grants 2,997.86                     (2,971.22)                      26.64                             

ECP 4900 Sewer Vehicle Reserve 45,722.80                   45,722.80                      

ECP 4901 Sewer Capital Reserve 301,639.17                 (7,896.25)                     293,742.92                    

Total Enterprise Funds 1,130,856.44              -                -                        (56,205.11)                   117,428.78                   1,192,080.11                 

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS 5,682,893.81              25,805.06      1,455,500.00        (1,664,559.24)              694,073.19                   6,193,712.82                 

I:\Kittery Finance Department ‐ Town and School\1TOWN\Manager and Finance Director Shared\FY21 Other Funds\06 Dec 20\Other Funds December 2020Other Funds (2)



1 | P a g e  
 

KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL Unapproved Minutes 

November 9, 2020 

Remote Meeting 

6:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 1 

2. Introductory 2 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 3 

4. Oath of Office to Newly Elected Officials 4 

The Council thanked Councilor Brock for his many years of serving on the Town 5 

Council. 6 

Town Clerk. Karen Estee swore in Kenneth Lemont, and George Dow as newly elected 7 

Town Council members. 8 

5. Roll Call 9 

Councilors present: Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Jeffrey Thomson, Kenneth 10 

Lemont, George Dow, Cyrus Clark and Judith Spiller. 11 

6. The Kittery Town Council moves to elect a Chairperson for the ensuing year. 12 

Councilor Lemont nominated Councilor Thomson as Chair, seconded by Councilor 13 

Denault. 14 

Councilor Denault, Councilor Pelletier, Councilor Lemont, Councilor Spiller, Councilor 15 

Clark, and Councilor Dow voted for Councilor Thomson as Chair for the Town Council. 16 

Councilor Thomson abstained. 17 

Motion Carried 6-0-1 18 

7. The Kittery Town Council moves to elect a Vice Chairperson for the ensuing year. 19 

Councilor Denault nominated Councilor Lemont as Vice Chair, seconded by Councilor 20 

Clark. 21 

Councilor Denault, Councilor Pelletier, Councilor Thomson, Councilor Spiller, Councilor 22 

Clark, and Councilor Dow voted for Councilor Lemont as Vice Chair for Town Council. 23 

Councilor Lemont abstained. 24 

Motion Carried 6-0-1 25 

8. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 26 



2 | P a g e  
 

Chair Thomson moved to accept the agenda as presented, seconded by Councilor 27 

Spiller. 28 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 29 

9. Town Manager’s Report 30 

The Town Manager reported on: Election, Legion Pond, out of state registrations, adult 31 

entertainment, 2020 annual goals Q3 update. 32 

Upcoming dates: Town offices closed for Veterans day – November 11, Town offices 33 

closed for Thanksgiving – November 26, Letters to Santa – December 1-16, Kittery 34 

Community Center, Gingerbread house decorating (take home) – December 8, Kittery 35 

Community Center, and Dog registration deadline – January 31, Town Hall. 36 

10. Acceptance of Previous Minutes - None 37 

11. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board 38 

a. (110120-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to interview the following candidates for 39 

two (2) vacancies on the Board of Appeals for appointment of all terms to expire 40 

12/31/2023. The applicants are as follows: 41 

• Robert Kaszynski  42 

• Frederick Nohmer 43 

• Cameron Hamm 44 

• Robert Gray 45 

Robert Kaszynski did not attend the meeting, but the Council decided to give him the 46 

opportunity to attend the 11/23/2020 Council meeting where he would be considered for 47 

the Board of Appeals. 48 

The Council interviewed candidates Frederick Nohmer, Cameron Hamm, and Robert 49 

Gray and asked about their interest in wanting to be on the Board of Appeals, if they 50 

were committed to attending the meetings, know the responsibilities of this position, and 51 

would show the citizens of Kittery and the Town staff respect. The candidates stated 52 

they were willing to accept the responsibilities.  53 

The Council decided to only appoint one position at this meeting, due to the absence of 54 

Robert Kaszynski.   55 

Councilor Denault nominated Robert Gray, seconded by Vice Chair Lemont. 56 

Councilor Dow nominated Frederick Nohmer, seconded by Councilor Spiller 57 

Councilor Denault, Councilor Spiller, Councilor Clark, Councilor Pelletier, Councilor 58 

Dow, Vice Chair Lemont, Chair Thomson voted for Frederick Nohmer. 59 



3 | P a g e  
 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 60 

12. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town 61 

consultants or requested offices. 62 

13. PUBLIC HEARINGS 63 

a. (110120-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a new Liquor 64 

License application for Inizia LLC, for AJ’s Woodfired Pizza, 68 Wallingford Square, 65 

Kittery. 66 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 67 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 68 

b. (110120-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a new 69 

Victualer’s License for Inizia LLC, for AJ’s Woodfired Pizza, 68 Wallingford Square, 70 

Kittery. 71 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 72 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 73 

c. (110120-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a new 74 

Victualer’s License for Scott Choppa of 580 US 1 Bypass, Portsmouth NH, for Sunny’s 75 

Food Truck, located at Kittery Trading Post lot 301 US 1, Kittery. 76 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 77 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 78 

14. DISCUSSION 79 

a. The public may submit public comment in writing or raise their hand in the webinar for 80 

the DISCUSSION agenda 81 

b. Chairperson may read written comments into the public record 82 

Chair Thomson stated that a petition was received with 13 signatures for John Paul 83 

Jones Park, requesting the park be returned to the gateway and the center of Kittery as 84 

it once was. The petition was signed due to the traffic and the noise surrounding the 85 

park, and the residents were asking the Council for a resolution. 86 

Chair Thomson read an email from Jonel Leake, 9 Chauncey Creek Road, Kittery Point, 87 

ME. – Ms. Leake expressed concerns about the customer service employees at the 88 

Town Hall not wearing masks.   89 

c. Chairperson’s response to public comments 90 



4 | P a g e  
 

The Town Manager responded to Ms. Leake’s concerns by stating the Town follows the 91 

CDC guidelines and the States’ Executive order.  The Town Manager added that new 92 

plexi-glass barriers had been installed to give more protection. 93 

Councilor Clark mentioned the online services that are offered on the Town’s website as 94 

a good option for anyone who has a health concern. 95 

The Council and the Town Manager discussed different options to address the traffic 96 

concerns surrounding John Paul Jones Park. 97 

15. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 98 

16. NEW BUSINESS 99 

a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition. 100 

b. (110120-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to discuss Council Rules for the ensuing 101 

year. 102 

The Town Council discussed the Council Rules for the ensuing year. 103 

c. (110120-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to discuss appointments of Council 104 

members to standing and ad hoc committees. 105 

Capital Improvement Committee  106 

Charles Denault 107 

Climate Adaptation Committee 108 

Judith Spiller 109 

Kenneth Lemont 110 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation Committee   111 

Council Chairperson - Jeffrey Thomson 112 

Council Vice Chair - Kenneth Lemont 113 

Economic Development Committee  114 

George Dow 115 

Education Scholarship Selection Committee  116 

Charles Denault 117 

Jeffrey Pelletier 118 

Kittery Community Center Board of Directors  119 

Jeffrey Pelletier (Until 3/31/21) 120 



5 | P a g e  
 

Trustees of Trust Funds  121 

Chairperson - Jeffrey Thomson 122 

Kittery Land Issues Committee  123 

Judith Spiller 124 

Disbursement Warrant for Town Employee Wages (Primary, Secondary, Tertiary) 125 

Jeffrey Thomson 126 

Cyrus Clark 127 

Jeffrey Pelletier 128 

Disbursement Warrant for Town Expenses (Primary, Secondary, Tertiary) 129 

Cyrus Clark 130 

Charles Denault 131 

Kenneth Lemont 132 

School Warrant for General Disbursements (Primary, Secondary, Tertiary) 133 

Jeffrey Pelletier 134 

Jeffrey Thomson 135 

Cyrus Clark 136 

Taylor Building Committee  137 

Former Councilor Matt Brock - Serving as Council Rep 138 

Jeffrey Thomson 139 

Library Building Committee  140 

Charles Denault 141 

Jeffrey Pelletier 142 

Celebration Committee  143 

Jeffery Thomson 144 

Library Advisory Board  145 

Judy Spiller 146 

Housing Committee  147 

Former Councilor Matt Brock - Serving as Council Rep 148 



6 | P a g e  
 

d. (110120-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on 149 

amendments to Title 10 Love Lane One Way on November 23, 2020. 150 

The Town Manager gave an update on Title 10 Love Lane One Way. 151 

Moved by Councilor Spiller, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 152 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 153 

e. (110120-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the Memorandum of 154 

Understanding for Mutual Aid Assistance for Police and authorize the Town Manager to 155 

sign on the Council’s behalf. 156 

The Town Manager gave an overview of the Memorandum of Understanding for Mutual 157 

Aid Assistance for Police and authorize the Town Manager to sign on the Council’s 158 

behalf. 159 

Moved by Councilor Denault, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 160 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 161 

f. (110120-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint a Council Representative to 162 

meet with the Chair of the Climate Adaptation Committee to interview David Gibson for 163 

a term to expire 12/31/2023. 164 

Chair Thomson moved for Councilor Spiller to meet with the Chair of the Climate 165 

Adaptation Committee to interview David Gibson, seconded by Councilor Denault. 166 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 167 

17. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 168 

Councilor Denault congratulated Chair Thomson and Vice Chair Lemont, and thanked 169 

Councilor Spiller for being the Chair for the last two years. Councilor Denault also 170 

mentioned getting a left green arrow at Walker Street and Government Street that will 171 

allow citizens to break the traffic coming out of the base. 172 

Councilor Dow wanted to thank those residents who voted for him and expressed that 173 

he looks forward to serving. Councilor Dow asked if it would be possible to put some of 174 

the health and wellness hotlines on channel 22 for those who may be struggling. 175 

Councilor Pelletier wanted to thank Councilor Spiller for being a great leader the past 176 

two years. Councilor Pelletier thanked Councilor Spiller for serving as Chair for the past 177 

two years, and congratulated the Town Manager and Town Clerk for the success of the 178 

election.  Councilor Pelletier also congratulated Chair Thomson and Vice Chair Lemont, 179 

and welcomed Councilor Dow to the Town Council. 180 

Councilor Spiller welcomed Chair Thomson and Vice Chair Lemont to the leadership 181 

role of the Town Council and welcomed back Councilor Dow. 182 



7 | P a g e  
 

Councilor Clark wanted to congratulate Councilor Dow and Councilor Lemont on being 183 

elected to the Town Council. 184 

Vice Chair Lemont thanked Councilor Spiller for her leadership role the past two years, 185 

and thanked Chair Thomson for taking the leadership role in the coming year. Vice 186 

Chair Lemont also thanked the voters for re-electing him, and welcomed Councilor Dow. 187 

Vice Chair Lemont asked the Town Manager if she would give the Council an inventory 188 

of the properties the Town owns. 189 

18. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 190 

a. Communications from the Chairperson 191 

Chair Thomson reported on the number of new COVID-19 cases that were reported. 192 

Chair Thomson wanted to learn more about what makes the community function, 193 

understanding the municipal budget process. 194 

b. Committee Reports 195 

19. EXECUTIVE SESSION 196 

a. (110120-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to go into Executive Session pursuant 197 

to 1 MRS 405(6)(C) and (E) to consult with the Town Attorney to discuss a Credit 198 

Enhancement Agreement for 76 Dennett Road, where premature disclosures of the 199 

information would prejudice the bargaining position of the Council. 200 

Chair Thomson moved to go into Executive Session at 7:47 p.m., seconded by 201 

Councilor Pelletier. 202 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 203 

Chair Thomson moved to come out of Executive Session at 8:05 p.m., seconded by 204 

Councilor Pelletier. 205 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 206 

20. ADJOURNMENT 207 

Councilor Pelletier moved to adjourn at 8:06 p.m., seconded by Councilor Spiller. 208 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 209 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 

Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 

minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 

summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 

refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 



1 
 

KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL Unapproved Minutes 

November 23, 2020 

Remote Meeting 

6:00PM 

 

1. Call to Order 1 

2. Introductory 2 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 3 

4. Roll Call 4 

Councilors present: Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Chair Jeffrey Thomson, Vice 5 
Chair Kenneth Lemont, George Dow, and Judith Spiller. Councilor Absent: Cyrus Clark. 6 

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 7 

Chair Thomson moved to amend the agenda and postpone the approval of the June 8, 8 
2020 and June 15, 2020 minutes, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 9 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 10 

6. Town Manager’s Report 11 

The Town Manager reported on: Holiday parade and events, Fort Foster/Pocahontas 12 
parking, and Thanksgiving. 13 

Upcoming Dates:  Town Offices Closed for Thanksgiving – November 26 and 14 
November 27, Letters to Santa – December 1-16, Kittery Community Center, 15 
Gingerbread House Decorating (Take Home) – December 8, Kittery Community Center, 16 
and Dog Registration Deadline – January 31, Town Hall. 17 

7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes 18 

• June 8, 2020 - Postponed 19 

• June 15, 2020 – Postponed  20 

8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board 21 

a. (110220-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to interview the following candidates for 22 
one (1) vacancy on the Board of Appeals for appointment of all terms to expire 23 
12/31/2023. The applicants are as follows: 24 

Robert Kaszynski - Due to the two absences of Mr. Kaszynski, the Council decided to 25 
move forward with another appointment to the Board of Appeals.   26 



2 
 

Cameron Hamm (interviewed on 11-9-2020) - Councilor Spiller moved to approve 27 
Cameron Hamm’s appointment to the Board of Appeals, seconded by Councilor Dow. 28 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 29 

Robert Gray (interviewed on 11-9-2020) – No action taken 30 

9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town 31 
consultants or requested offices. 32 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 33 

 a. (110220-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on Title 10 Love 34 
Lane One Way. 35 

The Town Manager gave an overview of updated information regarding the Love Lane 36 
One Way. 37 

Nate Hios, 48 Love Lane Kittery, ME – Mr. Hios spoke on behalf of his partitioners at 38 
the Church of Christ in opposition of Love Lane being one way. 39 

Michael O’Keefe, 43 Love Lane Kittery, ME – Mr. O’Keefe spoke in approval of Love 40 
Lane being one way. 41 

Marcye and Glen Philbrook, 38 Love Lane, Kittery, ME – The Philbrooks spoke in 42 
approval of Love Lane being one way. 43 

Emily Bailey, 25 Love Lane, Kittery, ME – Ms. Bailey expressed her approval of turning 44 
Love Lane into a one-way street. 45 

Terry Enis, 46 Love Lane, Kittery, ME – Ms. Enis stated her family’s quality of life has 46 
improved since changing Love Lane into a one-way street. 47 

Joseph Watts, 27 Love Lane, Kittery, ME – Mr. Watts stated he was in favor of the 48 
change on Love Lane. 49 

Russell Plante, 14 Lyndon Way, Kittery, ME – Mr. Plante wrote that he was opposed to 50 
the changes of Love Lane. 51 

Chair Thomson stated there were 27 emails approving the changes to Love Lane and 3   52 
emails opposing the changes to Love Lane, stating the road should only be one-way 53 
from 4 a.m. to 7a.m.  Chair Thomson noted there were also a few emails expressing 54 
concern with the increased traffic to the roads surrounding Love Lane. 55 

Councilor Dow moved to approve Title 10 Love Lane One Way, seconded by Councilor 56 
Lemont. 57 

Councilor Spiller expressed her concern for individuals walking on Love Lane during the 58 
winter, and asked the Town Manager if there were any plans for this. 59 



3 
 

The Town Manager responded by stating the Town would work on striping, bollards, 60 
and pedestrian lanes. The Town Manager also said if this were to become a permanent 61 
one-way, the Town would look into doing a sidewalk project. 62 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 63 

11. DISCUSSION 64 

a. The public may submit public comments in writing or raise their hand in the webinar 65 
for the DISCUSSION agenda. 66 

Nate Hios, 48 Love Lane, Kittery, ME – Mr. Hios stated he respects the Council’s 67 
decision on Love Lane and asked if the Town could install directional signs for 68 
directions to the Church.    69 

Marcye and Glen Philbrook, 38 Love Lane, Kittery, ME – Ms. Philbrook thanked the 70 
Council for their decision on Love Lane. 71 

b. Chairperson will read written comments into the record. 72 

Kate Hartwig, Kittery ME – Ms. Hartwig expressed her approval of not selling passes at 73 
the Fort Foster gate. 74 

Shaye Robbins, 24 Heron Point Lane, Kittery Point, ME - Ms. Robbins wanted to 75 
recognize the improvements made at Fort Foster during the pandemic.  76 

c. Chairperson’s response to public comments. 77 

Chair Thomson responded to Ms. Hartwig and stated that he’s hoping 2021 will be a 78 
better year. Chair Thomson also commented that the Town’s online services have been 79 
very helpful through the pandemic. 80 

Chair Thomson responded to Ms. Robbins and stated that a number of her comments 81 
were addressed or were going to be addressed in this meeting corncerning the parking 82 
issues at Fort Foster, and dogs at Fort Foster.   83 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 84 

13. NEW BUSINESS 85 

a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition - None 86 

b. (110220-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the Standing Committee 87 
Appointments. 88 

Chair Thomson stated that the only change to the Standing Committee Appointments 89 
was Vice Chair Lemont is now on the Kittery Climate Adaptation Committee. 90 

Councilor Spiller moved to accept the Standing Committee Appointments, seconded by 91 
Councilor Dow. 92 



4 
 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 93 

c. (110120-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve Council Rules. 94 

Moved by Councilor Spiller, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 95 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 96 

d. (110220-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint the Animal Control Working 97 
Group. 98 

Chair Judith Spiller 99 

David Wrocklage 100 

Dianne Miller 101 

Christopher Grimms  102 

Mary Thron 103 

Michael Johns 104 

Ryan Bailey 105 

Sally Soule 106 

Moved by Chair Thomson, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 107 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 108 

e. (110220-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a Credit Enhancement 109 
Agreement for 76 Dennett Road and orders the Town Manager to execute the Credit 110 
Enhancement Agreement on behalf of the Town of Kittery. 111 

The Town Manager gave an overview of the Credit Enhancement Agreement for 76 112 
Dennett Road. 113 

Councilor Dow moved to approve the Credit Enhancement Agreement for 76 Dennett 114 
Road, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 115 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  116 

f. (110220-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal Liquor License 117 
application from The Black Birch located at 2 Government Street, Kittery. 118 

Moved by Councilor Denault, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 119 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 120 

g. (110220-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to adopt a Resolution Authorizing 121 
Redemption of the Town’s 2010 Bonds and the Issuance of Refunding Bonds in 122 
Principal Amount not to Exceed $3,960,000 and that an attested copy of said 123 



5 
 

Resolution be included with the meeting minutes. 124 

The Town Manager gave an overview of the Resolution Authorizing Redemption of the 125 
Town’s 2010 Bonds and the Issuance of Refunding Bonds. 126 

Councilor Dow moved to adopt, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 127 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  128 

h. (110220-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a Public Hearing on 129 
December 14, 2020 on Title – 2 Administrative Code – Paid Time Off. 130 

The Town Manager gave an overview on Title – 2 Administrative Code – Paid Time Off. 131 

Chair Thomson moved to schedule a Public Hearing on December 14, 2020, seconded 132 
by Councilor Spiller. 133 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 134 

i. (110220-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the appointment of David 135 
Gibson to the Kittery Climate Adaptation Committee for a three-year term to expire 136 
12/31/2023. 137 

Moved by Councilor Spiller, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 138 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 139 

j. (110220-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to authorize the Town Manager to close 140 
departments with the exception of essential personnel, the day after Thanksgiving, 141 
November 27, 2020, with the understanding that employees will use their personal 142 
accumulated time. 143 

Moved by Councilor Spiller, seconded by Councilor Dow. 144 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 145 

k. (1101220-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint a Councilor to interview 146 
Wanda Dorlean along with Chair, Bob Guay for an appointment to the KCC Board of 147 
Directors for a three-year term to expire 12/31/2023. 148 

Chair Thomson moved to appoint Councilor Denault, seconded by Councilor Dow. 149 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 150 

l. (110220-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to appoint a to interview Gerry Luke 151 
along with Chair, Bob Guay for an appointment to the KCC Board of Directors for a 152 
three-year term to expire 12/31/2023. 153 

Chair Thomson moved to appoint Vice Chair Lemont, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 154 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 155 



6 
 

m. (110220-14) The Kittery moves to appoint a Councilor to interview Rose Eppard 156 
along with Chair, Bob Guay for an appointment to the KCC Board of Directors for three-157 
year term to expire 12/31/2023. 158 

Chair Thomson moved to appoint Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 159 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 160 

14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 161 

Councilor Denault inquired about installing a left turning traffic light in the Foreside’s 162 
Wallingford Square by the Shipyard main gates, so the public could turn left safely due 163 
to the traffic from the Shipyard. 164 

Councilor Spiller received a complaint about the flag signs on Rte. 1 by Dunkin Donuts 165 
and she stated that it is a violation of the sign ordinance. 166 

Councilor Dow asked if the Town still had a cable review board, and Chair Thomson 167 
responded no. Councilor Dow also wanted to thank the Council for allowing him to 168 
include an article in the FY packet it was on Social Justice is the best way to realize 169 
through a Council Manager form of Government. 170 

Vice Chair Lemont asked about clamming at Spruce Creek and Brave Boat Harbor and 171 
stated it has been held up for three years and was only supposed to take two years for 172 
the upgrade for the Sewer Treatment Plant at Pierce Island. Vice Chair Lemont asked if 173 
the Town Manager had been able to check on the status. Vice Chair Lemont mentioned 174 
he could reach out to Marine Resources. The Town Manager stated it would be one 175 
year after the plant was fully operational. Vice Chair Lemont asked about Town-owned 176 
property, and if the Council was comfortable with the Town Manager looking into it. Vice 177 
Chair Lemont also mentioned that he had a complaint regarding the grass at Memorial 178 
Circle and wondered if there was a plan to take care of it due to safety issues. Lastly, 179 
Vice Chair Lemont spoke about extending the season at Fort Foster. 180 

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 181 

a. Communications from the Chairperson 182 

Chair Thomson stated that he was spoke prematurely at the last meeting in mentioning 183 
the Budgeting 101 Workshop, stating the Town Manager would be busy with the Library 184 
Bond and the workshop would be February 1, 2021. Lastly, he commented about this 185 
Thanksgiving being the toughest since the 2nd World War for the citizens, due to 186 
COVID-19.  187 

b. Committee Reports 188 

Councilor Dow reported on the EDC meeting. 189 

Councilor Spiller reported on the York River Study Committee. 190 

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION 191 



7 
 

a. (110220-15) The Kittery Town Council moves to enter into Executive Session with the 192 
Town Attorney in accordance with MRS Title 1 §405(6)(E) to consult on legal rights and 193 
duties of the Town Council where premature general public knowledge would clearly 194 
place the Town at a substantial disadvantage. 195 

Chair Thomson moved to go into Executive Session at 7:48 p.m., seconded by 196 
Councilor Spiller. 197 

Motion Carried 6-0-0 198 

Chair Thomson moved to come out of Executive Session at 8:19 p.m., seconded by 199 
Councilor Pelletier  200 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  201 

17. ADJOURNMENT 202 

Councilor Dow moved to adjourn at 8:19 p.m., seconded by Councilor Pelletier.  203 

Motion Carried 6-0-0  204 

 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 

Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 

minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 

summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 

refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 

 



 

1 
 

KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL Unapproved Minutes 

Remote Special Meeting 

Called by Chairperson Jeffrey Thomson 

December 3, 2020 5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 1 

2. Introductory 2 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 3 

4. Roll Call 4 

Councilors present: Charles Denault, Chair Jeffrey Thomson, Vice Chair Kenneth 5 

Lemont, George Dow, and Judith Spiller. Councilors absent: Jeffrey Pelletier, and Cyrus 6 

Clark. 7 

5. DISCUSSION – Discussion is limited to the matters on the agenda for this meeting 8 

only.  9 

a. The public may submit public comment in writing or raise their hand in the webinar for 10 

the DISCUSSION agenda - None 11 

b. Chairperson may read written comments into the public record - None 12 

c. Chairperson’s response to public comments - None 13 

6. NEW BUSINESS 14 

a. (120120-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to authorize the Town Manager to 15 

approve amendments to liquor licenses until the Maine State of Civil Emergency to 16 

Protect Public Health is rescinded or terminated, whichever comes first. 17 

The Town Manager gave an overview and the reasons for the authorization: the Town 18 

Council would be giving the Town Manager authorization to approve amendments to 19 

liquor licenses until the Maine State of Civil Emergency to Protect Public Health is 20 

rescinded or terminated, whichever comes first. 21 

Moved by Chair Thomson, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 22 

Motion Carried 5-0-0 23 

7. ADJOURNMENT 24 

Councilor Dow moved to adjourn at 5:05 p.m., seconded by Councilor Spiller. 25 

Motion Carried 5-0-0 26 

 



 

2 
 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 

Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 

minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 

summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 

refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

KITTERY TOWN COUNCIL Unapproved Minutes 

December 14, 2020 

Remote Meeting 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 1 

2. Introductory 2 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 3 

4. Roll Call 4 

Councilors present: Charles Denault, Jeffrey Pelletier, Chair Jeffrey Thomson, Vice 5 

Chair Kenneth Lemont, George Dow, Cyrus Clark and Judith Spiller.  6 

5. Agenda Amendment and Adoption 7 

Item 10. b. (120220-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a 8 

petition for enactment of an ordinance “License Ordinance for Marijuana 9 

Establishments” in accordance with Kittery Town Charter, Section 11.02, was removed 10 

from the agenda. 11 

Item 13.l. (120220-16) The Kittery Town Council moves appoint Wanda Dorlean, Rose 12 

Eppard, and Dr. Gerri Luke to the KCC Board of Director all terms are three years and 13 

will expire on 12/31/2023, was added to the agenda. 14 

6. Town Manager’s Report 15 

The Town Manager reported on: JLUS review, clamming, legislative cloture, marijuana 16 

petition, Commercial Street parking both sides, COVID staffing, and sidewalk projects. 17 

Upcoming Dates:  Santa Parade – Saturday, December 19, 2PM. Visit KCC website for 18 

route, Holiday Light Challenge – People’s Choice Vote, December 21 – 23, KCC 19 

Facebook Page, Town Hall Closed for Christmas Holiday – Thursday, December 24, 20 

Town Hall Closed for New Year’s Holiday – Thursday, December 31, and Dog License 21 

Renewal – January 31, Town Hall. 22 

7. Acceptance of Previous Minutes 23 

• June 8, 2020 - Revised 24 

• June 15, 2020 – Revised 25 

• June 22, 2020 26 

• July 13, 2020 Councilor Lemont stated line 92 should have been wishing Councilor 27 

Thomson a happy birthday not Councilor Pelletier. 28 



2 | P a g e  
 

Chair Thomson moved to approve the minutes of June 8, June 15, June 22, 2020 as 29 

written and July 13, 2020 as amended, seconded by Councilor Spiller 30 

Chair Thomson, Vice Chair Lemont, Councilor Pelletier, Councilor Denault, Councilor 31 

Clark, and Councilor Spiller voted to approve. 32 

Councilor Dow abstained. 33 

Motion Carried 6-0-1 34 

8. Interviews for the Board of Appeals and Planning Board 35 

a. (120220-1) The Kittery Town Council moves to interview and reappoint Charles 36 

Denault III to the Board of Appeals for a three-year term to expire 12/31/2023. 37 

Chair Thomson asked Charles Denault III, if he felt adequately supported by the Town 38 

staff in his role as a member of the Board of Appeals. Mr. Denault responded yes. 39 

Moved by Councilor Spiller, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 40 

Motion Carried 7-0-0  41 

b. (120220-2) The Kittery Town Council moves to interview and reappoint Russell White 42 

to the Planning Board for a three-year term to expire 12/31/2023. 43 

Chair Thomson asked Russell White if he felt adequately supported by the Town staff in 44 

his role as a member of the Planning Board. Mr. White responded yes. 45 

Moved by Councilor Spiller, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 46 

Motion Carried 7-0-0  47 

9. All items involving the town attorney, town engineers, town employees or other town 48 

consultants or requested offices. 49 

 a. (120220-3) The Kittery Town Council moves to authorize the Town Manager to work 50 

with the Housing Committee on applying to HUD for a Comfort Letter regarding 51 

affordable housing on 45 Woodlawn Avenue (aka Cole Street property/Emery Field) and 52 

to report back to Council on HUD’S response. 53 

The Town Manager and the Chair of the Housing Committee, Matthew Brock gave an 54 

overview of applying to HUD for a Comfort Letter regarding affordable housing on 45 55 

Woodlawn Avenue (aka Cole Street property/Emery Field) and to report back to Council 56 

on HUD’S response. 57 

Councilor Spiller stated initially she thought this was a great idea and supports 58 

affordable housing in Kittery, but she had concerns regarding green space as the area 59 

in question is densely populated. 60 



3 | P a g e  
 

Housing Committee Chair Brock responded to Councilor Spiller by stating that her 61 

questions are down the road questions, and encouraged the Council to apply for the 62 

Comfort Letter and then look at the options. 63 

Councilor Pelletier stated he was in support of sending the Comfort Letter but 64 

expressed concerns about construction in this area. 65 

Councilor Dow spoke in support of the Comfort Letter and the options it could bring. 66 

Chair Thomson spoke in support of the Comfort Letter. 67 

Councilor Denault expressed his concerns and stated he would be voting no. 68 

Councilor Lemont said he was in support of the Comfort Letter. 69 

Moved by Councilor Dow, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 70 

Motion Carried 5-2-0 71 

Chair Thomson, Vice Chair Lemont, Councilor Dow, Councilor Clark, Councilor Pelletier 72 

voted yes. 73 

Councilor Spiller, and Councilor Denault voted no. 74 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 75 

 a. (120220-4) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on Title 2 76 

Administrative Code – Paid Time off. 77 

The Town Manager gave an overview of Title 2 Administrative Code – Paid Time off. 78 

Moved by Councilor Dow, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 79 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 80 

b. (120220-5) The Kittery Town Council moves to hold a public hearing on a petition for 81 

enactment of an ordinance “License Ordinance for Marijuana Establishments” in 82 

accordance with Kittery Town Charter, Section 11.02. 83 

11. DISCUSSION 84 

a. The public may submit public comments in writing or raise their hand in the webinar 85 

for the DISCUSSION agenda. 86 

b. Chairperson will read written comments into the record. 87 

c. Chairperson’s response to public comments. 88 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 89 

13. NEW BUSINESS 90 

a. Donations/gifts received for Council disposition 91 



4 | P a g e  
 

b. (120220-6) The Kittery Town Council moves to reappoint the following Board and 92 

Committee members as follows, all terms are three years and will expire on 12/31/2023. 93 

• Alan Rindler – Board of Assessment Review 94 

• Joyce Tobey – Board of Trustees of Trust Funds 95 

• Christopher Perkins – Capital Improvement Committee 96 

• Richard Demarco – Parks Commission 97 

• Gale Turner – Parks Commission 98 

• Jeffrey Clifford – Economic Development Committee 99 

• Jeff Brake – Education Scholarship Committee 100 

Moved by Chair Thomson, seconded by Councilor Spiller. 101 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 102 

c. (120220-7) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal liquor license 103 

application from Weathervane Seafoods, 306 US Route 1, Kittery. 104 

Moved by Councilor Denault, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 105 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 106 

d. (120220-8) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal liquor license 107 

application from Robert’s Maine Grill, 326 US Route 1, Kittery. 108 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 109 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 110 

e. (120220-9) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal liquor license 111 

application from the 518 Noodle Bar, 518 US Route 1, Kittery. 112 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 113 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 114 

f. (120220-10) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal liquor license 115 

application from the Blue Mermaid, 10 Shapleigh Road, Kittery. 116 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 117 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 118 

g. (120220-11) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve a renewal liquor license 119 

application from Loyal Order of Moose #444, 76 US Route 1 Bypass, Kittery. 120 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 121 



5 | P a g e  
 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 122 

h. (120220-12) The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the renewal of a Special 123 

Activity-Amusement permit for Loyal Order of Moose #444, 76 US Route 1 Bypass, 124 

Kittery. 125 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 126 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 127 

i. (120220-13) The Kittery Town Council moves to extend the waiver of enforcement of 128 

certain provisions of Title 5.7 Sidewalk Sales until the expiration or termination of the 129 

State of Emergency. 130 

The Town Manager gave an overview of extending the waiver of enforcement of certain 131 

provisions of Title 5.7 Sidewalk Sales until the expiration or termination of the State of 132 

Emergency. 133 

Moved by Councilor Pelletier, seconded by Councilor Dow. 134 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 135 

j. (120220-14) The Kittery Town Council moves to schedule a public hearing on Title-16 136 

Outdoor Dining on January 11, 2021. 137 

The Town Manger gave an overview of Title-16 Outdoor Dining. 138 

Moved by Councilor Dow, seconded by Councilor Pelletier. 139 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 140 

k. (120220-15) The Kittery Town Council moves to discuss a draft of the 2021 Annual 141 

Goals. 142 

Chair Thomson stated that the draft looked good but he would like to add a few things to 143 

the back page. 144 

Under Town Assets and Infrastructure: Develop recommendations and (to add action 145 

plans) for the reuse or disposition of various town owned or tax‐acquired properties.  146 

Under Develop and Sustain the Professional Staff: Plan for addressing increasing 147 

demands for police, fire, (to add code enforcement) and public works services.  148 

Chair Thomson asked the Council if they would like to send suggestions and comments 149 

to the Town Manager and move ahead with adoption at the January 11, 2021 meeting, 150 

or have a workshop on January 25, 2021. 151 

Councilor Spiller suggested going ahead with the adoption at the January 11, 2021 152 

Council meeting. 153 

The Council was all in favor. 154 



6 | P a g e  
 

l. (120220-16) The Kittery Town Council moves appoint Wanda Dorlean, Rose Eppard, 155 

and Dr. Gerri Luke to the KCC Board of Director all terms are three years and will expire 156 

on 12/31/2023. 157 

Moved by Councilor Dow, seconded by Councilor Denault. 158 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 159 

14. COUNCILOR ISSUES OR COMMENTS 160 

Councilor Spiller wanted to wish everyone Happy Holidays. 161 

Councilor Denault stated that the lights are still out on the west side of Rte 95 and 162 

wondered if the Town Manager had heard back from MaineDOT. Councilor Denault also 163 

mentioned to the Chair the idea of having a workshop with the various boards and 164 

committees to make sure we are all in sync with all the ordinances and brainstorm some 165 

ideas about the application process. Councilor Denault wished everyone a Merry 166 

Christmas. 167 

Councilor Dow stated he completed his training with MMA, and he wished everyone 168 

Merry Christmas and Happy Holidays. 169 

Councilor Pelletier said Happy New Years and that it can’t come soon enough. 170 

Vice Chair Lemont spoke about the elections of the Trustees of the Kittery Water District 171 

being tied.  Vice Chair Lemont wanted to let the public know there would be another 172 

election and tell everyone to vote. He also wanted to wish everyone Happy Holidays.  173 

15. COMMITTEE AND OTHER REPORTS 174 

a. Communications from the Chairperson 175 

Chair Thomson stated he had a discussion with the Chair of the School Committee and 176 

they settled on a short Zoom meeting on Tuesday, January 5, 2021 to discuss the 177 

upcoming budget cycle.  The meeting will include the Council and School Committee 178 

Chairs, co-Chairs, the Town Manager and the School Superintendent.  Chair Thomson 179 

also wanted to wish everyone a Happy Holidays.  180 

b. Committee Reports 181 

Councilor Spiller wanted to give an update on the Animal Control Working Group and 182 

the Climate Adaptation Committee. 183 

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 184 

17. ADJOURNMENT 185 

Councilor Pelletier moved to adjourn at 7:27 p.m., seconded by Councilor Denault. 186 

Motion Carried 7-0-0 187 



7 | P a g e  
 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 

Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 

minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 

summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 

refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 



Capital Improvement Plan
Fiscal Years 2022 to 2026



Capital Improvement Committee

• Charles Denault, Council Member
• Eric Lemont, School Committee Member
• Jeff Clifford, Citizen Representative
• Chris Perkins, Citizen Representative
• Kendra Amaral, Town Manager
• Patricia Moore, Finance Director/Asst Town Manager
• Eric Waddell, School Superintendent



Process

Prioritize Projects

Consider Financial Capacity 

Evaluate Project Requests

Review Status of Approved Projects

Review & Update Policy



Policy & Program Update

• Policy amendment proposed to incorporate climate 
resiliency and climate change considerations.

• Added “Projects on the Horizon” for Kittery Port 
Authority; projects that are currently conceptual 
and higher cost than is supported by reserve 
approach.

• Incorporated detailed asset management plan for:
• Municipal Technology

• Police Vehicles



Overview
Pre‐COVID Proposal

FY21
Approved

FY21
Proposed 
FY22

Capital Requests $1,986,517 $1,455,500 $1,588,900

YE Transfers 0 190,850 TBD

Rev & Other Funds Offsets (35,000) (35,000) (35,000)

NET CIP $1,951,517 $1,576,350 $1,553,900

 ‐

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Combined CIP

Capital Town Debt School Debt



Pre‐COVID Plan

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

FY19 FY20 FY21* FY22* FY23* FY24* FY25*

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

CIP DEBT

*Bonds exclude Sewer debt; includes projected Library Project Debt

Debt Service
Capital 



Revised Plan

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

CIP DEBT

*Bonds exclude Sewer debt

Debt Service

Capital 



CIP Funding By Category

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

FY26

FY25

FY24

FY23

FY22

FY21

FY20

FY19

Bldg

Infrastructure

Land Improv

Regulatory

Tech

Vehicles & Equip



Holding Accts

• Right of Way funding supports 
ongoing implementation of 
Pavement Management Plan 
and builds some contingency 
for Rte 1 paving in FY23.

• Fire Apparatus ‐ rebuilding 
reserve for next replacements 
scheduled for FY26 ~  
$840,000. 

• Continue to build Municipal 
Facility reserve for planned 
future needs.



Other Holding Accounts
• Municipal Facility Reserve will rely on built up reserves for 
the FY22 program.

Municipal Facility Summary
Row Labels 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

AIR CONDITIONING 84,413$       
EMERGENCY POWER 92,882$          
EXTERIOR WALLS 30,951$       
FLOOR COVERINGS
HEATING SYSTEM 6,155$         
INTERIOR WALLS 24,761$       
POWER DISTRIBUTION
ROOF SYSTEMS 5,320$            
SITE UTILITIES
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT 50,423$        143,846$      
VENTILATION UNITS 3,658$         
UNPLANNED PROJECTS 20,000$           20,000$        20,000$         20,000$           20,000$        
FIRE PROTECTION 32,637$        
Total Est Projects 112,882$         220,362$      20,000$         25,320$           196,483$      



Reserve Accounts
• Most Reserve Accts were not funded in FY21 as a result of 
COVID‐19 budget impacts.  FY22 proposal starts to rebuild 
reserve plan to pre‐COVID levels.

• Multi‐year Technology Plan includes redesign of network 
architecture, transition to VoIP, equipment replacement.

• KCC equipment will be integral to service as community 
resumes normal activities post COVID‐19.
FY2022
Name Priority Status Dependency

BACKUP: Acronis CyberCloud Migration Medium Not Started

KWW Waste Water Virtualization/Network Rebuild Medium Not Startedffice 365 Government Community Cloud (GCC) Migratio

Domain Reorganization Low Planning Endpoint Security Enhancement

KPD Wireless Upgrade Medium Not Started

SECURITY: Harden Local servers With Department of Defense settings (STIGS) High Not Started New Hosts for Town Administration Office

New Network Switching - All locations Medium Not Started Domain Reorganization

HARDWARE: Police: Evidence PC (Isolated PC) Low Not Started

AUDIT: Business Continuity Review High Not Started Compliance: Upgrade Local Servers to Windows 2019

Upgrade/Replace Windows 7: Year 2 Critical Planning

HARDWARE: Obsolete/Out of Warranty PC Replacements High Not Started



Projects & Debt
Projects
• No new projects proposed for FY22

Debt
• Library Expansion and Renovation ~$350,000/annual

• 20 Year Bond

• Interest rate: 1.18% blended

• Refinance 2010 School and DPW bonds
• $640,000 savings over the next 10 years



On the Horizon

FY20 Unassigned Fund Balance $6,970,748

Policy 2.5 Months of Operating Costs $6,998,525

Surplus/(DEFICIT) ($27,777)



On the Horizon

* See notes in Capital Improvement Plan

Planned Funded Year COST

Unassigned 

Fund Capital

Annual 

Debt Grants

Senior Tax Circuit Breaker Ongoing $50,000 50,000$              ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          
Compensated Absences Ongoing $125,000 125,000$           ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          

In Evaluation Phase

Ambulance Relocation1 TBD $700,000 700,000$           ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          
Memorial Field2 ‐ Phase 1 TBD $1,000,000
Stevenson Sidewalk3 TBD $750,000
Removal of Cole Street Bldg TBD $80,000 ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          
TOTAL 875,000$           ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          

Requested

Dredge Pepperell Cove ‐ Engineering and Permitting 2022 292,000$              
Love Lane Sidewalks3 TBD 1,900,000             
TOTAL 4,897,000$            ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          

To Be Determined

To Be Determined
To Be Determined

To Be Determined



Conclusion

• FY21 CIP allocation was reduced to respond to COVID‐19.  
• Reserve approach is working, absorbing larger projects without 
impacting long‐term asset management while providing flexibility 
in lean years.  

• Protection of unassigned fund balance, long‐term planning, and 
reserve approach viewed favorably by Rating Agencies.

• Replacement schedules are gaining detail and predictability.
• Five Year CIP will slowly rebuild to resume stabilization.
• FY22 plan drivers:

• Rebuild reserve account funding incrementally

• Roads, facilities, technology



T O W N  O F  K I T T E R Y  

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM 

2022-2026 
      

 

 

 

 

 

CIP Committee 

Town Councilor – Charles Denault 

School Committee Member - Eric Lemont 

Citizen Representative - Jeff Clifford 

Citizen Representative - Chris Perkins 

School Superintendent - Eric Waddell 

Town Manager - Kendra Amaral 

Finance Director/Assistant Town Manager – Patricia Moore 
 
 
 
 
 
 

200  ROGERS ROAD 
KITTERY,  ME 03904  



i 
   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Town of Kittery is committed to maintaining a five‐year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), for the purpose of 
identifying and prioritizing investment in the Town's assets.  The assets included in the CIP are critical to delivering 
core services of the Town government and supporting the community’s goals and objectives. 
 
As a communication tool, the CIP informs the Town Council and the public about the Town’s efforts to plan for on‐
going management of assets including buildings, roadways, equipment, vehicles, technology, and records.  A 
properly developed CIP also guides the development of a debt plan, and identifies potential timing and bundling of 
higher cost investments for future bonding.  
 
COVID‐19 Impact on the Prior Year’s CIP 
By January of 2020, the CIP was refined to a point that annual funding requirements were projected to stabilize at 
approximately $1.95M each year through FY25.  This stable annual projection adequately funded planned projects 
and built reserves for future needs.  The stability of the annual CIP funding reduced pressure on the annual 
operating budget, and provided a relief valve in case the annual budget needed to be decreased in response to a 
financial or catastrophic emergency.  COVID‐19 proved to be such an emergency. 
 
The Town Council was cognizant of the economic impacts immediately effecting taxpayers at the early onset of the 
pandemic in June of 2020.  The Council directed that the FY21 general government budget, inclusive of capital 
funding, have no net increase over the prior year’s budget.  Accordingly, the FY21 CIP request was reduced from its 
proposed total of $1,986,167 to $1,455,500.  Despite the significant reduction in funding, the existing capital 
reserve balances allowed the town to implement its planned critical capital projects as scheduled. 
 
Fiscal Year 2022 CIP 
The Town currently holds $2.6M in capital reserves for planned and unplanned future needs associated with 
roadways, equipment, buildings, technology, and land improvements.  This “reserve” approach to funding capital 
allows the Town to make large purchases like a pumper truck in FY19 for $550,000 without requiring debt or 
deferring other equally important capital projects each year.   
 
The FY22‐FY26 CIP focuses on rebuilding funding to the pre‐COVID‐19 projected levels at a pace that is measured 
and appropriate, given the ongoing pandemic and its economic impact on taxpayers.  The proposed funding for 
capital in FY22 is $1,588,900, representing an increase of $133,400 over the previous year’s COVID‐19 adjusted 
funding.  For comparison, the pre‐COVID five‐year plan called for $1,951,167 to be funded in FY22.  The funding 
proposed for FY22 will be supplemented by a request for transfers of approximately $72,000 from remaining 
balances in completed project accounts to reserve accounts.   
 
Debt service will be $1,849,834, an increase of $165,329.  In January of 2021, the Town issued bonds to fund the 
Rice Library expansion and renovation project ($5M) and refund the 2010 bonds for the Mitchell and Shapleigh 
Schools and DPW Shed.  The refund of the 2010 bonds resulted in approximately $640,000 in savings over the 
remaining ten years of the debt; the FY22 savings will be approximately $64,000, split between the Town and 
School operating budgets.  The Library bond issuance was delayed due to COVID‐19.  The full debt service for this 
bond is incorporated into the FY22‐FY26 CIP.   
 
The FY22‐FY26 CIP projection reflects a measured approach to reestablishing a stable annual capital budget.  The 
Town will likely draw on existing capital reserve balances to complete projects in the near term as reserve account 
funding is rebuilt slowly over the next five years.  The Town is also actively seeking grants to offset costs and 
support the capital program.   
 



ii 
 

 

Funding for Holding Accounts is proposed to increase $98,000 from the prior fiscal year.  The Five‐Year Pavement 
Management Plan includes approximately $500,000 in road and drainage projects.  The town will also conduct its 
five‐year road condition assessment, which will be used to update the Pavement Management Plan.  This is the 
third year the CIP has a detailed Facility Management plan incorporated into it; and serves as the basis for the 
Municipal Facility Reserve account requests.  The priority project is to install a generator at Town Hall to prevent 
service disruption and loss of productivity during power outages.     
 
The Capital Reserve Accounts are projected to increase $335,400 in FY22.  A number of reserve accounts were not 
funded in FY21 to accommodate the Council’s COVID‐19 budget goal.  The FY22 plan restores reserve funding for 
most of the accounts including School’s KCC, Harbormaster (KPA), and Town Hall Records.   
 
There are no new Capital Projects proposed for FY22.  The next possible capital project is projected for FY24 and 
focuses on rehabilitation of Legion Pond.  The project will cost over $262,000 over six years (unadjusted for 
escalation), and was proposed in response to Council requests to bring the Pond back to a historic condition that 
supported neighborhood swimming and fishing.  
 
Included in this plan is the Town’s “on the horizon” list which includes potential projects or ideas that could impact 
the unassigned reserve fund, the capital program, or debt.  Also incorporated this year is the Kittery Port 
Authority’s “on the horizon” list which contemplates additional, large, capital project ideas. “On the horizon” 
projects reflect ideas that may not yet be vetted, prioritized, or approved. 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan process commenced with a review of the Town’s Capital Improvement Program 
policy.  The policy was updated this year to reflect the Town’s climate resiliency goals.  The capital request forms 
were updated to identify whether a project will reduce greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) and/or improve energy 
efficiency, and to identify whether an asset is susceptible to impacts of climate change and/or sea level rise. 
 
Department heads submitted their FY22‐FY26 requests and presented them to the CIP Committee. Through this 
process, the CIP Committee asked questions, sought additional information, and proposed amendments to the 
requests.  The CIP Committee then reviewed all of the requests as an assembled plan.  They evaluated the projects 
requested based on justification, priority, need, and impact on the Town's ability to deliver core services to both 
residents and businesses.  This report represents the culmination of their work and the proposed five‐year capital 
improvement plan. 
 
In summary, the FY22‐FY26 CIP includes: 
 Slow rebuild of the annual capital allocations to pre‐COVID‐19 levels.   
 Incorporate the Town’s climate adaptation goals into the policy and ensure the Town is making appropriate 

investments in assets vulnerable to environmental impacts of sea level change. 
 “Projects on the horizon” to enhance long‐term planning for use of unassigned reserve, capital funds, and 

debt.  Incorporated Kittery Port Authority “on the horizon” ideas into the plan. 

We wish to thank the Committee and the staff who participated in the development of the CIP.  Their insight, 
expertise, and consideration added significant value to the process.

 
   



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................................ i 

MANDATE.................................................................................................................................................................. 1 

DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 

COORDINATING COMMITTEE ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

PLANNING SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT POLICIES ............................................................................................................................. 6 

DEBT POLICIES ........................................................................................................................................................... 6 

FIXED ASSET POLICIES ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

PROCESS SUMMARY .................................................................................................................................................. 8 

CAPITAL PROJECT REQUESTS SUMMARY .................................................................................................................. 11 

DETAILED CAPITAL PROJECT REQUESTS .................................................................................................................... 14 

Right of Way  Reserve ........................................................................................................................................... 15 

Fire Apparatus Reserve ......................................................................................................................................... 18 

Open Space Reserve ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

Municipal Facility Reserve  ................................................................................................................................... 21 

DPW Vehicles and Equipment Reserve .................................................................................................................. 27 

MS4 Compliance ................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Parks Reserve ....................................................................................................................................................... 30 

School Facility Reserve ......................................................................................................................................... 31 

School Vehicle Reserve ......................................................................................................................................... 32 

School Equipment Reserve ................................................................................................................................... 33 

School Technology Reserve ................................................................................................................................... 34 

Fire Equipment Reserve ........................................................................................................................................ 35 

Technology Reserve .............................................................................................................................................. 36 

KCC Equipment Reserve ........................................................................................................................................ 38 

KCC Facility Reserve .............................................................................................................................................. 39 

Kittery Port Authority Boat Reserve   .................................................................................................................... 42 

Kittery Port Authority Equipment Reserve   .......................................................................................................... 44 

Kittery Port Authority Facility Reserve .................................................................................................................. 46 

Police Vehicle Reserve .......................................................................................................................................... 49 

Police Equipment Reserve .................................................................................................................................... 51 

Fire Facility Reserve .............................................................................................................................................. 52 

Records Preservation ............................................................................................................................................ 53 

Legion Pond Restoration ....................................................................................................................................... 54 

PROJECTS ON THE HORIZON .................................................................................................................................... 56 

APPENDIX A ‐ DEBT SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................................. 58 



 

APPENDIX B ‐ TAX ASSET DETAIL .............................................................................................................................. 62 

	
  



1 

 

MANDATE 

The Kittery Town Charter mandates a capital program as follows: 
 
“Sec. 6.05. Capital program” 
(1)  Submission to manager. The town manager shall prepare and submit to the council a 5‐year capital 
program at least 90 calendar days prior to the final date for submission of the proposed budget. 
 
(2)  Contents. The capital program shall include: 

(a)  A clear general summary of its contents; 

(b)  A list of all capital improvements which are proposed to be undertaken during the 5 fiscal years next 
ensuing, with appropriate supporting information as to the necessity for such improvements; 

(c)  Cost estimates, method of financing and recommended time schedules for each such improvement;  

(d)  The estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the facilities to be constructed or acquired; 
and 

(e) Recommendations to fund improvements in the established capital program dedicated reserve account; 
any proposed multi‐year capital bonds for voter approval; or any to be addressed as a separate budget line 
item to be fully funded in the ensuing fiscal year with voter approval.  Debt service for voter approved 
capital bonds and capital improvement program dedicated reserve funds are annual appropriations. 

(3) Capital program requirements approved by council to be entirely funded in the ensuing fiscal year, as a 
separate budget account line item outside the capital program dedicated reserve account, must be submitted 
to the qualified voters of the town after a public hearing, at a regular or special election, or town meeting as 
prescribe herein, and are obligated provided a majority of the legal votes cast in such election are in the 
affirmative. 
 
(4) The above information may be revised and extended each year with regard to capital improvements still 
pending or in process of construction or acquisition.” 
 
Overview 
One of the primary responsibilities of municipal government and school officials is to preserve, maintain, and 
improve a community’s stock of buildings, roads, parks, sewer facilities, machinery, apparatus and 
equipment. Planning for capital improvements is a matter of prudent financial management as well as sound 
development practice. 
 
Kittery’s capital improvement program (CIP) is to be a blueprint for planning capital expenditures and is one 
of the most important responsibilities of local government officials. It coordinates community planning, 
financial capacity and physical development and is a community plan for short and long‐range physical 
development in the form of capital purchases of equipment or facilities. It is intended to link the Town's 
comprehensive plan and fiscal plan to physical developments. 
 
The capital improvement program is a five‐year outlook that includes the upcoming year's proposed 
spending plan for capital items, the annual funding for reserve and holding accounts that support ongoing 
maintenance and/or projected future capital outlays, and projected capital expenditures and needed 
reserves for the four years beyond the capital budget.   



2 
 

 
The CIP goal is to insure sound fiscal and capital planning through effective leadership with the involvement 
and cooperation of all municipal departments. The CIP will support the following objectives: 
 

 Developing revenue policies for proposed improvements. 

 Determining budgeting methods for projects. 

 Promoting inter‐department coordination of projects within the town. 

 Informing the public of planned capital improvements. 

 Facilitating coordination between capital needs and the operating budgets. 

 Enhancing the community's credit rating, control of its tax rate, and avoid sudden changes in its debt 
service requirements. 

 Identifying the most advantageous means of financing capital projects. 

 Increasing opportunities for obtaining federal and state aid. 

 Relating public facilities to other public and private development and redevelopment policies and 
plans. 

 Focusing attention on community objectives and fiscal capacity. 

 Keeping the public informed about future needs and projects. 

 Coordinating the activities of neighboring and overlapping units of local government to reduce 
duplication. 

 Ensure public capital is resilient to environmental factors such as climate change and sea level rise. 

Under GASB 34, the town is required to capitalize and depreciate long‐term assets; including such items as 
equipment, real property, and infrastructure; and report this information in the town’s annual financial 
report. 

DEFINITIONS 

Accumulated Depreciation The total depreciation expense accumulated since the acquisition date of the 
fixed assets to the current fiscal year. 
 
Ancillary Costs Costs, in addition to purchase or construction costs, related to placing a fixed asset into its 
intended state of operation.  Normally, ancillary costs are to be included in the capitalized cost of a fixed 
asset.  However, minor ancillary costs, not measurable at the time a fixed asset is recorded in the 
department’s fixed asset inventory system, may be expensed.  
 
Construction in Progress A long‐term asset reflecting the cost of construction work undertaken, but not yet 
completed (usually a capital project). 
 
Capital Improvement Holding Accounts The accounting identifier line in the town chart of accounts grouping 
the CIP funds dedicated for replacement of assets with a cost above $25,000 and a life cycle greater than five 
years. 
 

kamaral
Highlight



3 
 

Capital Improvement Reserve Accounts CIP budget lines maintained by the departments for future demands 
for, repair, rehabilitation, or replacement, of fixed assets that cost between $5,000 and $25,000 and have a 
useful life more than five years. 

Capital Replacement Cost The figure calculated for replacement of an asset.  Capital replacement cost may 
be calculated based on original cost multiplied by the Schedule of Useful Life and an inflation factor, by 
current replacement costs multiplied by an inflation factor and the remaining Useful Life.   
 
Depreciation Method  For the purposes of implementing GASB 34, depreciation will be calculated using the 
straight‐line depreciation method. Straight‐line assumes that the asset will depreciate at the same rate each 
year of its useful life.  
 
Infrastructure Long‐lived fixed assets that are normally stationary in nature and can be preserved for a 
significantly greater number of years than most capital assets.  Infrastructure may include roads, bridges, 
dams, and similar fixed assets.  For capitalization purposes, the town only considers roads and bridges that 
are the town’s responsibility, to be infrastructure. Departments should maintain records for all infrastructure 
for asset management purposes but should not capitalize or report infrastructure that is not roads or 
bridges.  
 
Intangible Asset Intangible assets are long‐term assets that have no physical substance and are used in 
operations to produce products or services.   Intangible asset costs must be systematically allocated to 
expenses over their useful life through a process called amortization. 
 
Useful Life The length of time something is expected to last for its intended purpose. 
For depreciation purposes the useful life will be determined by departments using published guidelines from 
professional organizations and industries, available information for comparable assets used by similar 
government agencies, and internal information based on experience. 
 

COORDINATING COMMITTEE 

The Town Council establishes and appoints a Capital Improvement Committee composed of one (1) Town 
Council representative, one (1) School Committee representative, two (2) citizen representatives for three 
(3) year staggered terms, the School Superintendent or designee, the Finance Director, and the Town 
Manager.  
 
The Committee is to study proposed capital projects and improvements involving major tangible assets and 
projects which: 
 

1) are purchased or undertaken at intervals of not less than five years;  
2) have a useful life of at least five years; and  
3) cost over $25,000.  

 
The Town Manager, and any applicable boards and committees, including the Council and the School 
Committee will provide information concerning all anticipated projects requiring June Election voter action 
during the ensuing five years.   The Committee will establish the deadline and form in which information 
must be provided. 
 



4 
 

The Committee is to consider the relative need, impact, timing and cost of these expenditures and the effect 
each will have on the financial position of the town. No appropriation may be voted for a capital 
improvement unless the proposed capital improvement is considered in the Committee's report, or the 
Committee first submitted a report to the Town Council explaining the omission. 
 
The Committee will prepare an annual report recommending a Capital Improvement Budget for the next 
fiscal year, and a Capital Improvement Program including recommended capital improvements for the 
following four fiscal years. The report is submitted to the Town Council for its consideration and approval. 
Upon approval, the Town Council will submit the Capital Improvement Program to the Town Manager as 
required by the Charter.  The Town Manager will incorporate the Capital Improvement Budget into the 
proposed operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year.   
 
The Committee's report and the Council's recommended Capital Budget is to be published and made 
available in a manner consistent with budget materials distribution. The Committee submits its original 
report with the Town Clerk. 
   



5 
 

 
PLANNING SCHEDULE          

Timetable  Action 

Oct – Nov  Status of Previously Approved Projects 
      CIP Committee reviews status of previously approved projects. 
 

Nov – Jan  Solicitation, Compilation and Evaluation of Project Requests 
  Department Managers prepare and submit project requests. 
 

Dec ‐ Jan  Town's Financial Capacity 
  Town Manager prepares financial analysis. 
 
Financing Plan 

Town Manager assembles project list and supporting data; Reserve and depreciation 
account requests to CIP Committee with preliminary funding source 
recommendations. 

 

Jan – Feb  Project Prioritization 
  CIP Committee reviews and ranks requests. 
 
Capital Improvements Program Development 

CIP Committee prepares five‐year schedule of projects and makes recommendations 
on method of financing based upon financial analysis. 
 

Feb  Capital Improvement Program Presentation and Approval 
CIP Committee presents Capital Budget and Capital Program to the Town Council. 
Council reviews CIP and holds public hearing. Council approves prepared CIP, as may 
be adjusted/amended.   

Approved projects scheduled for upcoming year are submitted to the Town Manager 
for incorporation into budget. 
 
Council reviews Capital Budget and prepares recommendation for June Election 
Warrants. 
 

Jun  Election 
Voter approval of upcoming year's capital budget warrants and review of capital plan, 
followed by department head preparation for acquisition and development activities 
on July. 

 

   



6 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT POLICIES 

 The town will make all capital improvements in accordance with an adopted capital improvement 
program, except as may be necessary under the emergency provisions of the town charter. 

 The town will develop and enact an annual capital budget based on the multi‐year capital 
improvement program.  

 The town will maintain all its assets at a level adequate to protect the town's capital investment and 
to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

 The town will plan for environmental factors and variations, such as sea level rise and other impacting 
climate changes, and invest responsibly in infrastructure and infrastructure modifications to ensure 
the resiliency of the community, public operations, municipal assets. 

 The town will determine the most advantageous financing method for all new projects. 

 The town will maintain an unassigned fund balance (unencumbered surplus) at a minimum equal to 
two and a half months of current fiscal year operating budget inclusive of Town and School budgets. 

 The town will identify the estimated costs and potential funding sources for each capital project 
proposal before it is submitted to June Election Voters for approval. 

 Departments will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with development of 
the operating budget. Future operating, repair and maintenance costs associated with new capital 
improvements will be projected and included in operating budget forecasts. 

 Departments will project equipment replacement and maintenance needs of $5,000 or more for the 
next several years and will update this projection each year. From this projection, a schedule will be 
developed to establish/maintain budget capital improvement reserve accounts for replacement of 
fixed assets between $5,000 and $25,000 in original cost. 

 Departments will address annual operating, repair and maintenance (R&M), and materiel 
acquisition/replacement costs less than $5,000 in operating budgets. 

 The town will establish/maintain asset depreciation accounts in the capital improvement program.    

 The fund established for cable franchise fees shall be utilized to defray the capital and operating cost 
of providing public, education, and government access through local broadcast and streaming of local 
proceedings, meetings, events, and programs of interest to the community.  The fund balance shall 
not exceed $200,000 at the close of each fiscal year.  When the fund balance does exceed $200,000, 
the excess funds may be transferred to capital holding accounts or capital reserve accounts.  The 
Town Manager will recommend fund transfers to the Town Council in accordance with Charter and 
Town Ordinance. 

DEBT POLICIES 

 The town will confine long‐term borrowing to capital improvements or projects that cannot be 
financed from current revenues and/or reserves. 

 When the town finances capital projects by issuing bonds, it will pay back the bonds within a period 
not to exceed the expected useful life of the project. 

 The town annual capital budget and debt service appropriation will not exceed 15 percent of the total 
combined Town, School and Sewer operating budget. 

kamaral
Highlight



7 
 

 Total annual tax revenue supported debt service for will not exceed 8 percent of the approved annual 
combined Town and School budget. 

 Total general‐obligation debt will not exceed 2.5 percent of total property valuation, excepting as 
provided in state statutes. 

 Total annual sewer revenue supported debt service for general or revenue obligation debt will be as 
approved by Town Council. 

 Where possible, the town will use special assessment, revenues or other bonds, instead of general 
obligation bonds. 

 The town will not use long‐term debt for annual operations. 

 The town will maintain regulatory communications with bond rating agencies about its financial 
condition.  

 The town will follow a policy of full disclosure on every financial report and bond prospectus. 

 

FIXED ASSET POLICIES  

All assets meeting the definition of a fixed asset or intangible asset are to be considered an inventorial long‐
term asset and recorded in the town’s fixed asset inventory system.  Each department is responsible to 
account for all long‐term assets under its jurisdiction.  Such assets must be systematically and accurately 
recorded; properly classified; and adequately documented in their department’s asset inventory system.  All 
Departments will establish an internal control structure over long‐term assets that provide reasonable 
assurance of effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations.   

Asset Valuation 
Departments will record long‐term assets at historic cost or, if the cost is not readily determined, at 
estimated historic cost.  Cost includes applicable ancillary costs.  All costs must be documented, including 
methods and sources used to establish any estimated costs.   
 
Asset Classification 
Long‐term assets are categorized into the following classes: 

 Machinery & Equipment, 

 Real Property, 

 Infrastructure, 

 Technology, or 

 Construction in Progress. 

These categories are used for reporting cost and depreciation (or amortization) amounts.  
 
Capitalization 
For Inventory, Financial Reporting and Depreciation Purposes 
All long‐term assets with a cost equal to or greater than $5,000 and a useful life of greater than five years.  
 
Construction in Progress Capitalization: 



8 
 

A construction in progress asset reflects the cost of construction work undertaken, but not yet completed 
(frequently capital budget items).  For construction in progress assets, no depreciation is recorded until the 
asset is placed in service. 
 
When construction is completed, the asset should be reclassified, capitalized and depreciated.  
 
Depreciation/Amortization for Long‐Term Assets 
All long‐term assets (except for land, certain land improvements, and building in progress) identified in the 
capitalization policy, will be depreciated/amortized. The Town Manager will be responsible for calculating 
depreciation/amortization. 
 
Retention 
For each long‐term asset recorded in the town’s asset inventory system, evidential information to support 
estimated actual costs will be kept permanently and maintained until the asset is disposed of.  If the asset is 
disposed of during a fiscal year, documentation should be maintained until June 30 of that year for audit 
purposes. 
 
Annual Physical Inventory 
All departments will complete a physical inventory of their long‐term assets annually.  Long‐term assets 
greater than $5,000 and with a useful life of five or more years are to be included in the annual physical 
inventory conducted. 
 
Internal Controls 
All departments will establish internal controls over long‐term assets that provide reasonable assurance of 
effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations.   The major objective of the internal control over long‐term assets is accountability. 
 
Departments will have procedures in place so that assets are adequately safeguarded from loss or theft.  
 
Departments will establish and update their schedule of useful life for each asset or category of asset 
maintained by the department.  The useful life will be determined using published guidelines from 
professional organizations and industries, available information for similar assets used by comparable 
government agencies, and internal information based on experience. 
 

PROCESS SUMMARY 

Inventory of Existing Facilities 
The Town Manager will provide a complete inventory of all town and school properties and assets.  The 
inventory should include the year the asset was placed in service, assigned department as applicable, current 
condition, anticipated useful life, remaining useful life, and scheduled date for replacement. 
 
Status of Previously Approved Projects 
The Town Manager will provide a status of previously approved projects.  The update will should include for 
each active project or account the total available funding, spent year to date, projected remaining cost and 
highlighted anticipated overages, and anticipated completion date.  Projects or accounts with unspent funds 
not needed for the approved project should be identified for release or reallocation.  
 
Solicitation, Compilation, and Evaluation of Project Requests 



9 
 

The CIP Committee will solicit departmental recommendations for CIP projects. Each department submits 
requests which include a clear statement of the need and justification for the project, its costs, its net effect 
on the operating budget, and an implementation schedule. The Committee then evaluates each request by 
reviewing the project information provided and meeting with the requesting department head, if necessary. 
 
Based on its review, the Committee should summarize its findings in preparation for establishing the Capital 
Improvement Program. 
 
Town’s Financial Capacity 
With the assistance of the Town Manager, Finance Director, and School Superintendent or designee, the 
Committee should analyze the town's ability to afford major expenditures. This analysis should examine 
recent and anticipated trends in revenues, expenditures, debt and unfunded liabilities such as pension costs. 
The analysis should be included with the Committee's presentation of the capital budget and program to the 
Council. 
 
This financial analysis will permit the scheduling of funding sources for capital improvements to: 
 

 Keep the tax rate stable 
 Balance debt service and operating expenditures 
 Determine available debt capacity and acceptable debt service levels 
 Maximize intergovernmental aid for capital expenditures 

 
Project Prioritization 
Proposed projects are ranked in priority as objectively as possible. This is perhaps the most difficult aspect of 
the Committee's duties, although the adoption by the Town Council of Capital Improvement Budget Policies 
and Debt Policies can provide helpful guidance.  
The Committee should review each project utilizing a consistent set of criteria. The Committee should 
evaluate each project in relation to other projects and determine their relative importance. This will permit 
the Committee to establish project priorities based on both the community's goals and objective analysis. 
 
Capital Improvement Program Financing Plan 
Based upon the adopted debt and CIP policies and the assessment of the town's financial capacity, the 
Committee will recommend the method of financing each project. There are several ways to finance capital 
improvement projects. Some of the most common long and short‐term financing options are: 
 
Long‐Term Financing: 

1. General obligation bonds and, for municipal utility improvements only, revenue bonds. 
2. State and federal loans and grants. 
3. Setting aside money in the capital holding account to pay for all or a portion of a capital project. 

 
Short‐Term Financing and other Service Provision options: 

1. Appropriation of current revenue or reserves such as free cash. 
2. Short‐term debt such as bond anticipation notes and grant anticipation notes. 
3. Capital outlay expenditure exclusions 
4. Contracting/leasing provisions authorized by ordinance and Maine General Laws. 

 



10 
 

NOTE: The town may enter into a multi‐year contract for any period of time which services the best interest 
of the town; however, payment and performance obligations for succeeding fiscal years is dependent on the 
availability and appropriation of funds. 
 
Capital Improvement Program Recommendation 
Detailed Project Descriptions are prepared by the CIP Committee to reflect its final recommendation on each 
specific project. It presents all that is known about each project in a manner that is conducive to discussion 
and decision.  
 
The CIP Committee's completed report should be presented to the Town Council for review and adoption. 
The report will include a summary of the CIP Committee's recommendations for the upcoming year's Capital 
Budget and the following years' Capital Program as well as its analysis of the town's fiscal capacity. 
 
The Town Council will hold its own public hearing to present the CIP and solicit further citizen comment. The 
CIP hearing can be incorporated into the regular budget hearing. 
 
The entire CIP will also be presented at the public hearing held by the Council. This will demonstrate to the 
community that the Capital Budget is part of a long‐range plan to upgrade and maintain the town's 
infrastructure.  

 
The June Election voter's adoption of capital warrants informs the balance of the community of the 
commitment to plan for and fund the acquisition and/or development of capital improvements and/or 
acquisitions. 
 
Monitoring Approved Projects 
Once the June Election voters have approved the Capital Warrants and the fiscal year begins, departments 
are authorized to begin project implementation. Periodic reports by the Town Manager to the Council should 
indicate changes in the targeted completion dates, identify serious problems, and document the financial 
status of each project. Those reports may be based on project updates provided by the responsible 
departments.  
 
Capital Improvement Program Updates  
Subsequent annual updating of the Capital Program involves repeating the process to reflect new 
information, policies and proposed projects. The CIP Committee will review the policies and revise the entire 
CIP as necessary to reflect its most recent determination of the need and goals of the Town. After the first 
year has been budgeted, one year is added to the Capital Program and the remainder of the plan updated. 
This completes the CIP process. 
   



11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECT REQUESTS SUMMARY 

   



TOWN OF KITTERY CIP FY 2022-2026

YEAR

CAP 

TYPE

FUND

TYPE

FUND 

CODE DEPT Project Name TYPE  FY21 Approved 

 Balance as of

12‐31‐2020   FY22 Plan   FY23 Plan   FY24 Plan   FY25 Plan   FY26 Plan   5 YR Totals 

CAPITAL HOLDING ACOUNTS

HLDG CP 4002 DPW Right of Way Reserve Infrastructure  $                450,000  719,501$                  $                500,000   $               600,000   $               550,000   $               600,000   $                600,000   $              2,850,000 
HLDG CP 4013 FD Fire Apparatus & Vehicle Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    195,591                                        93,000                    150,000                    150,000                    250,000                     284,000                       927,000 
HLDG CP 2057 GG Open Space Reserve Land Improv                               ‐    6,890                                                      ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   
HLDG CP 4027 GG Municipal Facility Reserve Buildings                      80,000  185,511                                        35,000                    100,000                    100,000                    100,000                     100,000                       435,000 
HLDG CP 2078 GG Athletic Field Master Plan Land Improv                               ‐    2,142                                                      ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   

CAPITAL HOLDING ACCOUNTS TOTAL 530,000$                 1,109,634                628,000$                 850,000$                800,000$                950,000$                984,000$                 4,212,000$               

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNTS

RES CP 4012 DPW DPW Vehicles & Equipment Reserve  Vehicles & Equip  $                361,000  259,767$                  $                475,000   $               350,000   $               350,000   $               350,000   $                350,000   $              1,875,000 
RES CP 4017 DPW MS4 Compliance Reserve Infrastructure                               ‐    8,116                                             25,000                      40,000                      40,000                      40,000                       40,000                       185,000 
RES CP 4043 DPW Parks Reserve Land Improv                      15,000  52,850                                          10,000                      20,000                      20,000                      20,000                       20,000                         90,000 
RES CP SCH ED School Facility Reserve Buildings                               ‐    6,623                                             50,000                      50,000                      50,000                      50,000                       50,000                       250,000 
RES CP SCH ED School Vehicle Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    37,719                                                   ‐                        10,000                      10,000                      10,000                       10,000                         40,000 
RES CP SCH ED School Equipment Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    94,515                                          20,000                      20,000                      20,000                      20,000                       20,000                       100,000 
RES CP SCH ED School Technology Reserve Technology                               ‐    34,726                                          40,000                      40,000                      40,000                      40,000                       40,000                       200,000 
RES CP 4056 FD Fire Equipment Reserve Vehicles & Equip                      44,000  210,677                                        40,400                      60,400                      60,400                      60,400                       60,405                       282,005 
RES CP 4020 TM Municipal Technology Reserve Technology                      45,000  55,252                                          63,000                      70,000                      70,000                      70,000                       70,000                       343,000 
RES CP 4011 KCC KCC Vehicle Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    23,050                                                   ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   
RES CP 4019 KCC KCC Equipment  Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    5,163                                             30,000                      30,000                      30,000                      35,000                       35,000                       160,000 
RES CP 4051 KCC KCC  Facility Reserve Buildings                               ‐    8,546                                             30,000                      25,000                      25,000                      25,000                       25,000                       130,000 
RES CP 4018 KPA KPA Boat Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    6,888                                                      ‐                                 ‐                        25,000                      25,000                       25,000                         75,000 
RES CP 4055 KPA KPA Equipment Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    58,141                                          13,500                      25,000                      40,000                      45,000                       50,000                       173,500 
RES CP 4116 KPA KPA Facility Reserve  Infrastructure                               ‐    12,889                                            8,500                      15,000                      15,000                      15,000                       15,000                         68,500 
RES CP 4022 PD Police Vehicle Reserve Vehicles & Equip                    147,000  204,190                                      112,000                    140,000                    175,000                    190,000                     175,000                       792,000 
RES CP NEW PD Police Equipment Reserve Vehicles & Equip                               ‐    ‐                                                  10,000                      10,000                      15,000                      15,000                       15,000                         65,000 
RES CP 4100 FD Fire Facility Reserve  Buildings                      13,500  13,819                                          23,500                      25,000                      25,000                      25,000                       25,000                       123,500 
RES CP 4026 GG Town Hall Records Preservation Regulatory                               ‐    10                                                   10,000                      12,000                      12,000                      12,000                       12,000                         58,000 

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNTS TOTAL 625,500$                 1,092,941$              960,900$                 942,400$                1,022,400$             1,047,400$             1,037,405$              5,010,505$               
 $                335,400 

CAPITAL PROJECTS

2018 PRJ CP 4122 GG Zoning Recodification and GIS Upgrade Regulatory  $                             ‐  10,315$                    $                            ‐   $                            ‐   $                            ‐   $                             ‐   $                               ‐ 
PRJ CP 4053 KPA Paving and Pump Out Station ‐ Pepperrell Cove Infrastructure                               ‐    3,596                                                     ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   

2019 PRJ CP 4060 GG Rice Rehab and Expansion Design Buildings                               ‐    51,821                                                  ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   
2019 PRJ CP 4123 GG LED Lighting Conversion Infrastructure                               ‐    40,764                                                  ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   
2018 PRJ CP 2094 DPW Emery Field Phase 2 Infrastructure                    300,000  383,570                                                ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                                    ‐   
NEW PRJ CP NEW DPW Legion Pond Rehabilitation Land Improv                               ‐    ‐                                                           ‐                                 ‐                        68,000                      51,000                       43,000                       162,000 

CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL 300,000$                 490,066$                 ‐$                          ‐$                         68,000$                  51,000$                  43,000$                   162,000$                  

TOTAL ALL CAPITAL 1,455,500$              2,692,641                1,588,900$              1,792,400$             1,890,400$             2,048,400$             2,064,405$              9,384,505$               

Total Increase(Decrease) from Prior Year  $                133,400   $               203,500   $                 98,000   $               158,000   $                  16,005 
Proposed Fort Foster Fees
Proposed Use of PEG Surplus (Fund 2081)  $                 (35,000)  $                (35,000)  $               (35,000)  $               (35,000)  $               (35,000)  $                (35,000)  $                (175,000)

TOTAL ALL CAPITAL ADJUSTED 1,420,500$              2,692,641$              1,553,900$              1,757,400$             1,855,400$             2,013,400$             2,029,405$              9,209,505$               

Increase (Decrease) from Prior Year  $              (568,017)  $                133,400   $               203,500   $                 98,000   $               158,000   $                  16,005 



TOWN OF KITTERY CIP FY 2022-2026

YEAR

CAP 

TYPE

FUND

TYPE

FUND 

CODE DEPT Project Name TYPE  FY21 Approved 

 Balance as of

12‐31‐2020   FY22 Plan   FY23 Plan   FY24 Plan   FY25 Plan   FY26 Plan   5 YR Totals 

DEBT SERVICE

2016 TWN DEBT FD Fire Stations (refinanced 2006 Bonds) Buildings  $                130,100   $                127,800   $               125,500   $               118,250   $               116,050   $                113,713   $                  601,313 
2021 TWN DEBT DPW Public Works Department (Refunded 2010) Buildings                      48,503                       21,974                      21,058                      20,313                      19,825                       19,338                       102,508 
2012 TWN DEBT KCC Community Center Buildings                    357,775                     352,275                    346,775                    341,275                    335,088                     328,900                   1,704,313 
2014 TWN DEBT KLT KLT Rustlewood Other                      10,315                       10,315                      10,315                      10,315                      10,315                       10,315                         51,575 
2016 TWN DEBT KLT KLT Braveboat Other                      18,090                       18,090                      18,090                      18,090                      18,090                       18,090                         90,450 
2016 TWN DEBT DPW Road Improvements Infrastructure                    144,300                     141,700                    139,100                    136,500                    133,900                     131,300                       682,500 
2016 TWN DEBT KCC Community Center Annex Buildings                    105,450                     103,550                    101,650                      99,750                      97,850                       95,950                       498,750 
2021 TWN DEBT NEW GG Rice Proposed Expansion/Renovation1 Buildings                    100,000                     353,133                    337,230                    330,030                    322,830                     315,630                   1,658,853 
2013 SCH DEBT SCH Mitchell School  (refinanced 2002 bonds) Buildings                    220,500                     216,300                    212,100                               ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                         428,400 
2021 SCH DEBT SCH Mitchell & Shapleigh (Refunded 2010) Buildings                    460,672                     417,497                    400,093                    385,938                    376,675                     367,383                   1,947,586 
2016 SCH DEBT SCH School Various Buildings                      88,800                       87,200                      85,600                      84,000                      82,400                       80,800                       420,000 

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 1,684,505$              ‐$                          1,849,834$              1,797,511$             1,544,461$             1,513,023$             1,481,419$              8,186,248$               

Total Town and School Debt Service Increase(Decrease)  $                165,329   $               (52,323)  $             (253,050)  $               (31,438)  $                (31,604)
TOTAL CAPTIAL + DEBT 3,105,005$              3,403,734$              3,554,911$             3,399,861$             3,526,423$             3,510,824$              17,395,753$            

VARIANCE FROM PRIOR YEAR (450,392)$                298,729$                 151,177$                (155,050)$               126,562$                (15,599)$                 

SEWER DEBT 765,954$                 764,270$                 763,738$                691,937$                865,858$                865,858$                 3,951,661$               

Notes:

POLICY2  FY21   FY22 
2Policy compares FY22 CIP to FY21 budget projections. FY2021 Combined Town & School Operating Budget  $         33,592,921 

FY2021 Combined Town,  School and Sewer Operating Budget  $         36,079,475 
Capital as a % of Combined Budget (Town and School) 4.73%
Debt as a % of Combined Budget (Town and School)  Policy: 10%  5.51%
Capital & Debt as a % of Combined Budget (Town, School & Sewer)  Policy: 15%  11.55%
Capital & Debt as a % of Combined Budget (Town and School) 10.13%

Unassigned Reserve Fund Requirement for 2.5 Months (Town & School) 6,998,525$            
Unassigned Fund Balance as of 6/30/2020  $           6,970,748 

Surplus/(Deficit) Unassigned Reserve Fund: ($27,777)



14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DETAILED CAPITAL PROJECT REQUESTS



 

15 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4002):                  
 

 

Date:   November 11, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Kittery Public Works  Est. Funding Request:  $ 500,000 
Project Title:  Right of Way Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  Varies 
Contact:  David Rich     

Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):   Annually 
Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☒ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☒  No ☐ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $2,850,000  Town Funding Needed:   $ 500,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ 500,000  Comments:  State Compact Funds (for state roads only), Highway grant 
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $    Comments:         
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $        Comments:     
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?  Pavement Management Plan and condition study 
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year  Yes 
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 

$ 500,000  $ 600,000  $ 550,000  $600,000  $600,000  $ 2,850,000 
Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

We currently have 65 miles of roadway, 12 miles of sidewalk, and 5 miles of guardrails, 6 signalized 
intersections, 883 drainage basins and 26 miles of drainage pipe. The 5‐year pavement management 
plan projects over $2.6M in needs, (excluding sidewalk, drainage, and intersection improvements), and 
covers only 1/3 of the town’s road miles.   FY22 projects included $472,000 in paving, $82,000 in 
drainage, $80,000 in sidewalk repairs and $45,000 in fence, ROW cut backs, and guard rails.  FY22 will 
also include the next 5‐year pavement reevaluation and engineering, including reassessment of 
roadway conditions/ratings and updated prioritization of ROW projects by year based on updated 
condition analysis. 



Year Funding Source Project Street Segment From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Estimate Supplemental Estimate Police Estimate Project Estimate
2022 Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐01 GERRISH ISLAND LN CUTTS ISLAND LN State Aid 0.13 1,620.23 79.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $14,987.11 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,987.00

Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐02 CUTTS ISLAND LN KIMBALL LN State Aid 0.43 5,539.30 57.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $51,238.55 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $51,239.00
Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐03 KIMBALL LN EVENTIDE DR State Aid 0.07 870.99 70.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $8,056.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,057.00
Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐04 EVENTIDE DR SHEPHERDS WAY State Aid 0.19 2,492.52 65.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $23,055.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,056.00
Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐05 SHEPHERDS WAY SHORT FARM RD State Aid 0.18 2,377.42 70.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $21,991.17 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,991.00
Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐06 SHORT FARM RD GAILEY FARM LN State Aid 0.32 4,108.57 60.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $38,004.32 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,004.00
Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐07 GAILEY FARM LN SALT MARSH LN State Aid 0.28 3,581.74 52.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $33,131.11 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,131.00
Town BRAVE BOAT HARBOR ROAD BRAVE BOAT HARBOR RD‐08 SALT MARSH LN YORK TL State Aid 0.26 3,362.78 33.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $31,105.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,106.00

$221,571.00

Year Funding Source Project Street Segment From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR RSR Repair Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Estimate Supplemental Estimate Police Estimate
2022 Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐01 CHAUNCEY CREEK RD KEEN AVE State Aid 0.06 865.42 73.00   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $8,005.17 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $8,005.00

Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐02 KEEN AVE HALEY RD State Aid 0.17 2,408.11 55.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $22,275.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,275.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐03 HALEY RD MOORES ISLAND LN State Aid 0.18 2,604.70 64.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $24,093.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,093.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐04 MOORES ISLAND LN BELLAMY LN State Aid 0.19 2,624.48 60.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $24,276.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,276.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐05 BELLAMY LN COLEMAN AVE State Aid 0.13 1,835.83 65.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $16,981.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,981.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐06 COLEMAN AVE CROCKETTS NECK RD State Aid 0.22 3,165.87 51.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $29,284.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29,284.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐07 CROCKETTS NECK RD LAWRENCE LN  State Aid 0.26 3,687.51 45.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $34,109.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,109.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐08 SPARHAWK LN FOLLETT LN State Aid 0.09 1,218.33 49.32   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $11,269.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,270.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐09 FOLLETT LN SPARHAWK LN State Aid 0.09 1,276.10 49.32   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $11,803.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,804.00
Town PEPPERRELL ROAD PEPPERRELL RD‐10 SPARHAWK LN DUNCAN WAY State Aid 0.05 699.11 48.32   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $6,466.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,467.00

$188,564.00

Year Funding Source Project Street Segment From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Estimate Supplemental Estimate Police Estimate Project Estimate
2022 Town TENNEY HILL ROAD TENNEY HILL RD ‐01 CHAUNCEY CREEK RD FOG HOLLOW LN State Aid 0.42 5,395.52 50.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $49,908.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,909.00

Town TENNEY HILL ROAD TENNEY HILL RD ‐02 FROG HOLLOW LN GERRISH ISLAND LN State Aid 0.10 1,267.88 65.31   11/2"Overlay $9.25 $11,727.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,728.00
$61,637.00

Total Year 2022 $471,772.00

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2023 Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐03 RT 95 RAMP RIPLEY RD State Aid 0.11 3,240.24 75.32  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $40,503.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,503.00

Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐04 RIPLEY RD WILSON RD State Aid 0.05 1,662.61 74.32  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $20,782.63  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,783.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐05 WILSON RD COTTAGE WAY State Aid 0.09 2,640.56 69.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $33,007.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,007.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐06 COTTAGE WAY DEXTER LN State Aid 0.41 12,412.46 69.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $155,155.75  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $155,156.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐07 DEXTER LN HALEY RD State Aid 0.26 7,902.50 68.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $98,781.25  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,781.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐08 HALEY RD CUTTS RD State Aid 0.22 6,686.62 46.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $83,582.75  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $83,583.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐09 CUTTS RD LEWIS RD State Aid 0.30 9,047.71 59.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $113,096.38  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $113,096.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐10 LEWIS RD LEDGEWOOD DR State Aid 0.41 12,590.36 80.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $157,379.50  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $157,380.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐11 LEDGEWOOD DR IDLEWOOD LN State Aid 0.25 7,629.50 80.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $95,368.75  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $95,369.00
Town ROUTE 1 ROUTE 1‐12 IDLEWOOD  LN YORK TL State Aid 0.34 10,387.40 80.31  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $129,842.50  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $129,843.00

$927,501.00

Total Year 2023 $927,501.00

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2024 Town GRAY LODGE ROAD GRAY LODGE RD‐01 RT 103 WALKER AVE Accepted 0.02 319.41 83.00 1" Shim $6.00 $1,916.46  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,916.00

Town GRAY LODGE ROAD GRAY LODGE RD‐02 WALKER AVE HARRIS AVE Accepted 0.10 1,230.72 77.00 1" Shim $6.00 $7,384.32  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,384.00
Town GRAY LODGE ROAD GRAY LODGE RD‐03 HARRIS AVE BRIDGEVIEW TER Accepted 0.07 952.61 66.00 1" Shim $6.00 $5,715.66  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,716.00

$15,016.00 
Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate

2024 Town LEMONT LANE LEMONT LN WOODLAWN AVE PHILBRICK RD Accepted 0.13 1,253.97 73.00 1" Shim $6.00 $7,523.82  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,524.00
$7,524.00 

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2024 Town PINKHAM AVENUE PINKHAM AVE RT 103 HARRIS AVE Accepted 0.09 1,090.79 76.00 1" Shim $6.00 $6,544.74  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,545.00

$6,545.00 
Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate

2024 Town SCHOOL LANE SCHOOL LN RT 103 HAYLEY RD Accepted 0.08 479.51 72.00 1" Shim $6.00 $2,877.06  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,877.00
Town SCHOOL LANE SCHOOL LN RT 103 HAYLEY RD Accepted 0.14 2,471.69 73.00 1" Shim $6.00 $14,830.14  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,830.00

$17,707.00 
Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate

2024 Town GERRISH ISLAND LANE GERRISH ISLAND LANE‐01 ROUTE 103 CHAUNCEY CREEK ROAD Accepted 0.21 2,836.98 56.27  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $35,462.25  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,462.25
$35,462.25 

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2024 Town HARRIS AVENUE HARRIS AVE GRAY LODGE RD PINKHAM AVE Accepted 0.06 773.08 70.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $9,663.50  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,664.00

$9,664.00 



Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2024 Town JONES AVENUE JONES AVE‐01 GOVERNMENT ST RT 103 Accepted 0.05 571.85 56.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $7,148.13  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,148.00

Town JONES AVENUE JONES AVE‐02 RT 103 MAIN ST Accepted 0.08 952.32 66.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $11,904.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,904.00
Town JONES AVENUE JONES AVE‐03 MAIN ST CENTRAL AVE Accepted 0.04 442.16 82.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $5,527.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,527.00

$24,579.00 
Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate

2024 Town MAIN STREET MAIN ST‐01 GOVERNMENT ST E ST Accepted 0.05 617.37 63.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $7,717.13  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,717.00
Town MAIN STREET MAIN ST‐02 E ST RT 103 Accepted 0.05 618.83 58.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $7,735.38  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,735.00
Town MAIN STREET MAIN ST‐03 RT 103 OTIS AVE Accepted 0.12 1,535.76 68.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $19,197.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,197.00
Town MAIN STREET MAIN ST‐04 OTIS AVE JONES AVE Accepted 0.03 356.93 87.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $4,461.63  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,462.00

$39,111.00 
Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate

2024 Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐04 SHAPELEIGH RD RT 236 FRIEND ST State Aid 0.10 1,968.90 67.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $24,611.25  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,611.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐05 FRIEND ST WYMAN AVE State Aid 0.05 1,033.51 62.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $12,918.88  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,919.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐06 WYMAN AVE PHILBRICK RD State Aid 0.10 2,092.43 67.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $26,155.38  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,155.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐07 PHILBRICK RD WYMAN AVE State Aid 0.05 997.12 65.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $12,464.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,464.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐08 WYMAN AVE TILTON AVE State Aid 0.12 2,342.98 62.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $29,287.25  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $29,287.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐09 TILTON AVE NEWSON AVE State Aid 0.20 3,954.86 70.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $49,435.75  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,436.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐10 NEWSON AVE OLD FERRY LN State Aid 0.15 2,965.48 54.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $37,068.50  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,069.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐11 OLD FERRY LN TUDOR DR State Aid 0.09 1,779.09 63.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $22,238.63  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,239.00
Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐12 TUDOR DR BOWEN RD State Aid 0.11 2,198.07 59.00  1/2" Shim & 11/2"Overlay $12.50 $27,475.88  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,476.00

$241,656.00

Total Year 2024 $397,264.25

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐01 MEAD ST MACDOUGAL ST Accepted 0.1455438 2,561.57 74.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $32,019.63  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,020.00 
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐02 MACDOUGAL ST HALSTEAD ST Accepted 0.0994643 1,750.57 58.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $21,882.14  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,882.00 
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐03 HALSTEAD ST GOODRICH ST Accepted 0.036693 645.80 69.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $8,072.45  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,072.00 
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐04 GOODRICH ST DISMUKES ST Accepted 0.0392218 690.30 90.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $8,628.79  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,629.00 
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐05 DISMUKES ST CROMWELL ST Accepted 0.0519809 914.86 66.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $11,435.80  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,436.00 
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐06 CROMWELL ST BOUSH ST Accepted 0.0281084 494.71 81.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $6,183.84  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,184.00 
2025 Town MANSON AVENUE MANSON AVE‐07 BOUSH ST RT 236 Accepted 0.1852045 3,259.60 54.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $40,745.00  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,745.00 

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2025 Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐01 WENTWORTH ST RT 103 WILLIAMS AVE State Aid 0.1396121 2,784.80 59.94 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $34,809.95  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,810.00 
2025 Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐02 WILLIAMS AVE WILLIAMS AVE State Aid 0.0689842 1,376.01 67.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $17,200.07  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,200.00 
2025 Town WHIPPLE ROAD WHIPPLE RD‐03 WILLIAMS AVE SHAPELEIGH RD RT 236 State Aid 0.0608291 1,213.34 63.96 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $15,166.73  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,167.00 

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐01 RT 236 FRIEND ST Accepted 0.0755 1,151.63 54.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $14,395.34  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,395.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐02 FRIEND ST LEMONT LN Accepted 0.1018865 1,554.11 54.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $19,426.36  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,426.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐03 LEMONT LN CROSS ST Accepted 0.0536499 818.34 59.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $10,229.24  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,229.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐04 CROSS ST WAINWRIGHT AVE Accepted 0.0478629 730.07 68.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $9,125.86  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,126.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐05 WAINWRIGHT AVE BICKNELL ST Accepted 0.0380781 580.82 70.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $7,260.23  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,260.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐06 BICKNELL ST COLE ST Accepted 0.0389285 593.79 70.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $7,422.37  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,422.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐07 COLE ST DISMUKES ST Accepted 0.0412898 629.81 65.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $7,872.59  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,873.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐08 DISMUKES ST GOODRICH ST Accepted 0.0431938 658.85 68.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $8,235.62  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,236.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐09 GOODRICH ST HALSTEAD ST Accepted 0.0355481 542.23 69.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $6,777.85  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,778.00 
2025 Town WOODLAWN AVENUE WOODLAWN AVE‐10 HALSTEAD ST MANSON AVE Accepted 0.0481584 734.58 73.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $9,182.21  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,182.00 

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2025 Town OLD DENNETT ROAD OLD DENNETT RD‐01 DENNETT RD SILVER LAKE DR Accepted 0.1549427 1,999.79 61.90 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $24,997.43  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,997.00 
2025 Town OLD DENNETT ROAD OLD DENNETT RD‐02 SILVER LAKE DR SPINNEY WAY Accepted 0.2854123 3,683.72 56.90 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $46,046.52  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,047.00 
2025 Town OLD DENNETT ROAD OLD DENNETT RD‐03 SPINNEY WAY EMERY LN Accepted 0.0617853 797.44 68.90 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $9,968.03  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,968.00 

Total Year 2025 $377,084.00

Year Funding Source Project Segment Name From Street To Street Status Miles Square Yards RSR Repair Method Unit Cost Repair Estimate Contingency Estimate Sidewalk Cost Supplemental Cost Police Estimate Project Estimate
2026 Town WILSON ROAD WILSON RD‐01 RT 104 RYLE WAY State Aid 0.2739827 5,304.30 51.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $66,303.81  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $66,304.00 
2026 Town WILSON ROAD WILSON RD‐02 RYLE WAY MANSON RD State Aid 0.1525394 2,953.16 58.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $36,914.53  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,915.00 
2026 Town WILSON ROAD WILSON RD‐03 MANSON RD PETTIGREW RD State Aid 0.1456936 2,820.63 69.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $35,257.84  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,258.00 
2026 Town WILSON ROAD WILSON RD‐04 PETTIGREW RD DEVON WOODS DR State Aid 0.5158708 9,987.26 54.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $124,840.74  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $124,841.00 
2026 Town WILSON ROAD WILSON RD‐05 DEVON WOODS DR PICKERNELL LN State Aid 0.2375716 4,599.39 60.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $57,492.32  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $57,492.00 
2026 Town WILSON ROAD WILSON RD‐06 PICKERNELL LN ELIOT TL State Aid 0.5778592 11,187.35 55.95 1/2" Shim & 1 1/2" Overlay $12.50 $139,841.93  0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $139,842.00 

Total Year 2026 $460,652.00

5 Year Total $2,634,273.25



 

18 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP CODE (4013):                  
 

 

Date:     November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Fire Department  Est. Funding Request:  $93,000 
Project Title:  Fire Apparatus Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  25 
Contact:  Chief David O’Brien     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☒  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒   
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 927,000  Town Funding Needed:  $93,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $   Comments:    
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $ 20,000  Comments:     
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $   Comments:   
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $   Comments:   
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:   
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?     
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$93,000  $150,000  $150,000  $250,000  $284,000  $927,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

The fire apparatus reserve fund ensures capital is available to purchase replacement fire apparatus based 
on a 25‐year life span.  The attached amortization schedule is updated each year.  The schedule has been 
adjusted to reflect anticipated needs and to ensure the town is reasonably allocating funds each year to 
both short‐term and long‐term needs. 
 
The updated schedule results in sufficient funding through FY58 and covering over $8.6M in apparatus 
replacements. 



Fire Apparatus Replacement Schedule

FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY 35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 FY40 FY41

2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3%

0

195,591$            288,591$            438,591$           588,591$                838,591$             282,944$            632,944$                932,944$                 1,166,757$             777,834$                1,077,834$             835,797$                1,135,797$             32,467$                  332,467$                571,328$                855,328$                1,139,328$             1,423,328$             1,707,328$            

93,000$              150,000$            150,000$           250,000$                284,000$             350,000$            300,000$                300,000$                 300,000$                 300,000$                300,000$                 300,000$                300,000$                300,000$                284,000$                284,000$                284,000$                284,000$                284,000$                284,000$               

288,591$            438,591$            588,591$           838,591$                1,122,591$         632,944$            932,944$                1,232,944$             1,466,757$             1,077,834$             1,377,834$             1,135,797$             1,435,797$             332,467$                616,467$                855,328$                1,139,328$             1,423,328$             1,707,328$             1,991,328$            

Unit # Year Features

 Annual 

Reserve  Reserve Needed

straight line

Engine 5 2019 Pumper 22,656$         67,968$   

Rescue 3 2001 Heavy Rescue 27,000$         567,000$    $773,674

Command 2018 Command 6,875$           27,500$    $65,973 $79,136

Utility 8 2016 Pickup 1,400$           8,400$    45,138$                 

Forestry 4 2008 Pickup 2,300$           32,200$    $66,186

Engine 1 2005 Pumper 22,656$         385,153$    $688,923

Tank 6 2007 3000 Gallon Tank 12,280$         184,200$    $542,037

Ladder 2 2009 75 foot Qunit 30,000$         390,000$    1,324,195$            

125,167$      

Projected Expenditures ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   839,647$            ‐$   ‐$   66,186$                   688,923$                ‐$   542,037$                ‐$   1,403,331$            ‐$   45,138$                  ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

$288,591 $438,591 $588,591 $838,591 $282,944 $632,944 $932,944 $1,166,757 $777,834 $1,077,834 $835,797 $1,135,797 $32,467 $332,467 $571,328 $855,328 $1,139,328 $1,423,328 $1,707,328 $1,991,328

Total Available

Excess (Shortfall)

 Start of Year Balance 

Add: CY CIP

I:\Kittery Finance Department ‐ Town and School\1TOWN\CIP\FY22 CIP\Fire\FY21 Fire Apparatus 4013



 

20 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (2057):                  
 

 

Date:     November 10, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  3 
Department:  Administration  Est. Funding Request:  $ 0 
Project Title:  Open Space Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  N/A 
Contact:  Kendra Amaral, Town Manager     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Ongoing 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☐  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☐ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☒ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☐ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 0  Town Funding Needed:   $ 0 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:        
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:        
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$ 0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

This fund was established as a reserve account in the event the Town seeks to purchase and/or improve 
open space.  There are no anticipated open space acquisition or improvement projects anticipated in the 
next few years. 



 

21 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4027):                  
 

 

Date:     November 10, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Administration  Est. Funding Request:   $35,000 
Project Title:  Municipal Facility Reserve   Est. Useful Life (Years):  10‐30 
Contact:  Kendra Amaral, Town Manager       

Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☒  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $435,000  Town Funding Needed:  $35,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:        
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:   
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$35,000  $100,000  $100,000  $100,000  $100,000  $435,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details   

This reserve is for municipal facility repairs, equipment replacements, and facility rehabs. Projects will 
include major replacements such as roofs, HVAC/MEP systems, energy efficient upgrades, and expansion 
as needed.  Phase 1 of a facility assessment has been completed and includes a replacement schedule for 
many of the building envelope, interior, MEP, Life Safety and exterior systems.  Utilizing the reserve 
system, it is anticipated that the buildings will be able to be maintained on an ongoing basis without 
bonding.  This plan does not include full building replacement or expansions.  
There will be an accompanying transfer request of $40,353 from inactive capital accounts.  That will bring 
the total allocation to this reserve for FY22 to $75,353. 



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE

TOP LEVEL ‐ ANNUAL RESERVE ESTIMATES

2022‐2026 FACILITY MAINTENANCE RESERVE

 EST REPLACEMENT COST ESCALATED

Row Labels 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042

AIR CONDITIONING 84,413$        58,741$           166,385$         20,861$           31,577$           
EMERGENCY POWER 92,882$          
EXTERIOR WALLS 30,951$        15,005$          
FLOOR COVERINGS 32,685$           45,034$           
HEATING SYSTEM 6,155$          28,705$           4,568$             2,169$             35,245$           18,907$           5,361$              33,140$            108,367$         127,034$         
INTERIOR WALLS 24,761$       
POWER DISTRIBUTION
ROOF SYSTEMS 5,320$             36,073$           7,407$             206,988$         9,699$             111,998$         64,666$           466,360$         803,999$          207,489$          55,152$           
SITE UTILITIES
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT 50,423$        143,846$     
VENTILATION UNITS 3,658$          2,850$              3,024$             
UNPLANNED PROJECTS 20,000$           20,000$        20,000$         20,000$           20,000$         20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            20,000$            20,000$           
FIRE PROTECTION 32,637$        
Total Est Projects 112,882$         220,362$     20,000$         25,320$           196,483$      56,073$           96,394$           27,407$           231,556$         22,169$           113,986$         214,992$         131,998$         105,527$         20,000$           491,721$         98,174$           131,217$         823,999$          357,546$          106,729$         

Beginning Balance 205,863$         127,981$     7,619$           87,619$           162,300$      65,817$           159,744$         213,349$         335,942$         279,386$         432,218$         493,231$         478,240$         546,241$         640,714$         820,714$         528,993$         680,819$         799,603$          225,604$          118,057$         

CIP Allocation 35,000$           100,000$     100,000$      100,000$         100,000$      150,000$         150,000$         150,000$         175,000$         175,000$         175,000$         200,000$         200,000$         200,000$         200,000$         200,000$         250,000$         250,000$         250,000$          250,000$          200,000$         

End Balance $127,981 $7,619 $87,619 $162,300 $65,817 $159,744 $213,349 $335,942 $279,386 $432,218 $493,231 $478,240 $546,241 $640,714 $820,714 $528,993 $680,819 $799,603 $225,604 $118,057 $211,328



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE PROJECT COMPLETED  w/NEW USEFUL LIFE ADDED

TOP LEVEL ‐ ANNUAL RESERVE ESTIMATES EARLY FAILURE ‐ PULLED IN FOR REPLACEMENT w/NEW LIFE

2022‐2026 FACILITY MAINTENANCE RESERVE

Inflation Assumption 3%

CATEGORY SYSTEM ANTICIPATED END LIFE

REPLACEMENT COST 

TODAY 

 EST REPLACEMENT COST 

ESCALATED 

AIR CONDITIONING POLICE DEPT RADIO ROOM DMS‐3 2035 6,500$   10,431$   
AIR CONDITIONING POLICE DEPT SERVER ROOM DMS‐4 2035 6,500$   10,431$   
AIR CONDITIONING COMMUNITY CENTER CONDENSING UNIT CU‐2 2032 10,000$    14,685$   
AIR CONDITIONING COMMUNITY CENTER CONDENSING UNIT CU‐3 2032 10,000$    14,685$   
AIR CONDITIONING COMMUNITY CENTER CONDENSING UNIT CU‐4 2032 10,000$    14,685$   
AIR CONDITIONING COMMUNITY CENTER CONDENSING UNIT CU‐5 2032 10,000$    14,685$   
AIR CONDITIONING MUNICIPAL COMPLEX CU‐1 POLICE DEPT 2023 40,000$    45,020$   
AIR CONDITIONING MUNICIPAL COMPLEX CU‐2 POLICE DISPATCH 2023 35,000$    39,393$   
AIR CONDITIONING MUNICIPAL COMPLEX CU‐3 SCHOOL DEPT 2033 35,000$    52,941$   
AIR CONDITIONING MUNICIPAL COMPLEX CU‐4 COUNCIL CHAMBERS 2033 35,000$    52,941$   
AIR CONDITIONING MUNICIPAL COMPLEX CU‐5 TOWN HALL 2033 40,000$    60,504$   
AIR CONDITIONING TOWN HALL SERVER ROOM DMS‐1 2042 8,000$   15,789$   
AIR CONDITIONING COUNCIL CHAMBERS  A / V ROOM DMS‐2 2042 8,000$   15,789$   
AIR CONDITIONING DUCTLESS MINI SPLIT SYSTEMS
EMERGENCY POWER TOWN HALL CONNECTION PROJECT 2022 85,000$    92,882$   
EMERGENCY POWER POLICE DEPT.
EMERGENCY POWER TRANSFER SWITCHES
EMERGENCY POWER TRANSFORMERS
EMERGENCY POWER SERVICE WIRING
EXTERIOR WALLS TRANSFER STATION ‐ HOUSEHOLD WASTE 2069 50,000$    219,195$   
EXTERIOR WALLS TOWN HALL REAR EXIT DOOR # 102 2023 3,500$   3,939$  
EXTERIOR WALLS TOWN HALL REAR EXIT DOOR # 103 2023 5,500$   6,190$  
EXTERIOR WALLS SCHOOL DEPT REAR EXIT # 104 2023 3,500$   3,939$  
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT REAR EXIT # 107 2023 3,500$   3,939$  
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT SALLY PORT # 108 2023 3,500$   3,939$  
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT SALLY PORT OVERHEAD # 109 2023 500$   563$   
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT SALLY PORT OVERHEAD # 111 2023 500$   563$   
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT FRONT VESTIBULE # 113 2023 3,500$   3,939$  
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT FRONT VESTIBULE # 114 2023 3,500$   3,939$  
EXTERIOR WALLS MECHANICAL ROOM REAR ACCESS # 106 2028 5,500$   7,176$  
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT GENERATOR SHED # 110 2028 2,500$   3,262$  
EXTERIOR WALLS POLICE DEPT TRAINING ROOM # 112 2028 3,500$   4,567$  
EXTERIOR WALLS WINDOWS
EXTERIOR WALLS SCREENS

23



CATEGORY SYSTEM ANTICIPATED END LIFE

REPLACEMENT COST 

TODAY 

 EST REPLACEMENT COST 

ESCALATED 

EXTERIOR WALLS LOUVERS
FLOOR COVERINGS MUNICIPAL COMPLEX‐CARPETING 2028 25,050$    32,685$   
FLOOR COVERINGS MUNICIPAL COMPLEX‐VCT 2038 25,683$    45,034$   
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX LOOP HEAT CIRC P1‐B 2041 3,149$   6,034$  
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX LOOP HEAT CIRC P2‐B 2041 3,149$   6,034$  
HEATING SYSTEM POLICE DEPT SALLY PORT UH‐1 2023 2,735$   3,078$  
HEATING SYSTEM POLICE DEPT SALLY PORT UH‐2 2023 2,735$   3,078$  
HEATING SYSTEM PUBLIC WORKS ‐ TOWN GARAGE (SHOP) 2028 22,000$    28,705$   
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BOILER CIRC B‐2 2030 1,100$   1,523$  
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX DHW HEATING P‐3 2030 1,100$   1,523$  
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX DHW RECIRC BWP‐1 2030 1,100$   1,523$  
HEATING SYSTEM COMMUNITY CENTER P‐3 BOILER PRIMARY 2032 8,000$   11,748$   
HEATING SYSTEM COMMUNITY CENTER P‐1 BUILDING DISTRIBUTION 2032 8,000$   11,748$   
HEATING SYSTEM COMMUNITY CENTER P‐2 BUILDING DISTRIBUTION 2032 8,000$   11,748$   
HEATING SYSTEM PUBLIC WORKS ‐ OFFICE BUILDING 2033 12,500$    18,907$   
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX ‐ BOILER B‐1 2041 30,000$    57,483$   
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX ‐ BOILER B‐2 2041 30,000$    57,483$   
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BOILER CIRC B‐1 2031 1,521$   2,169$  
HEATING SYSTEM MUNICIPAL COMPLEX LOOP HEAT CIRC P2‐A 2037 3,149$   5,361$  
HEATING SYSTEM TRANSFER STATION ‐ HOUSEHOLD WASTE 2038 7,875$   13,809$   
HEATING SYSTEM TRANSFER STATION ‐ BALER BUILDING 2038 7,875$   13,809$   
HEATING SYSTEM  MUNICIPAL COMPLEX LOOP HEAT CIRC P1‐A 2038 3,149$   5,522$  
HEATING SYSTEM COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ EASTWING BOILER B‐1 2039 30,000$    54,183$   
HEATING SYSTEM COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ EASTWING BOILER B‐2 2039 30,000$    54,183$   
HEATING SYSTEM COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ MAIN BUILDING 2051 75,000$    193,131$   
INTERIOR WALLS PAINT ‐ TOWN HALL & SCHOOL DEPT 2023 22,000$    24,761$   
INTERIOR WALLS DOORS
INTERIOR WALLS DOOR TRIM
INTERIOR WALLS WINDOWS
INTERIOR WALLS WINDOW TRIM
INTERIOR WALLS WINDOW DRESSING
INTERIOR WALLS WALL TRIM
POWER DISTRIBUTION MAIN SERVICE ENTRANCE
POWER DISTRIBUTION POWER DISTRIBUTION PANELS
POWER DISTRIBUTION ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLES
POWER DISTRIBUTION LIGHT SWITCHES
POWER DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT BREAKERS
ROOF SYSTEMS TRANSFER STATION ‐ BALER BUILDING 2030 35,000$    48,448$   
ROOF SYSTEMS MEMORIAL FIELD ‐ PARKS GARAGE 2025 4,455$   5,320$  

24



CATEGORY SYSTEM ANTICIPATED END LIFE

REPLACEMENT COST 

TODAY 

 EST REPLACEMENT COST 

ESCALATED 

ROOF SYSTEMS PUBLIC WORKS ‐ STORAGE GARAGE 3 BAY 2027 28,477$    36,073$   
ROOF SYSTEMS NEW FREEBIE BARN 2029 2,499$   3,358$  
ROOF SYSTEMS OLD FREEBIE BARN 2029 3,012$   4,048$  
ROOF SYSTEMS TRANSFER STATION ‐ HOUSEHOLD WASTE 2030 114,533$   158,540$   
ROOF SYSTEMS FORT FOSTER ‐ NEW RESTROOM 2033 6,413$   9,699$  
ROOF SYSTEMS TRANSFER STATION ‐ UNIVERSAL WASTE BUILDING 2034 48,195$    75,086$   
ROOF SYSTEMS PUBLIC WORKS ‐ OFFICE BUILDING 2034 23,693$    36,912$   
ROOF SYSTEMS PUBLIC WORKS ‐ SALT / SAND BUILDING 2035 35,438$    56,867$   
ROOF SYSTEMS PUBLIC WORKS ‐ FRONT STORAGE GARAGE 2035 4,860$   7,799$  
ROOF SYSTEMS COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ MAIN BUILDING 2037 210,938$   359,107$   
ROOF SYSTEMS COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ GYMNASIUM 2037 48,000$    81,717$   
ROOF SYSTEMS COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ FITNESS 2037 15,000$    25,536$   
ROOF SYSTEMS MUNICIPAL COMPLEX 2040 212,625$   395,545$   
ROOF SYSTEMS PUBLIC WORKS ‐ TOWN GARAGE (SHOP) 2040 104,004$   193,478$   
ROOF SYSTEMS TRANSFER STATION ‐ BALER BUILDING 2040 115,560$   214,976$   
ROOF SYSTEMS COMMUNITY CENTER ‐ EASTWING 2041 108,287$   207,489$   
ROOF SYSTEMS FORT FOSTER ‐ PAVILION #1 2042 3,240$   6,394$  
ROOF SYSTEMS FORT FOSTER ‐ PAVILION #2 2042 10,125$    19,983$   
ROOF SYSTEMS FORT FOSTER ‐ STORAGE GARAGE 2 BAY 2042 7,290$   14,387$   
ROOF SYSTEMS PUBLIC WORKS ‐ REAR SIGN STORAGE GARAGE 2042 7,290$   14,387$   
SITE UTILITIES ELECTRICAL LINES
SITE UTILITIES COMMUNICATION LINES
SITE UTILITIES WATER LINES
SITE UTILITIES SEWER LINES
SITE UTILITIES NATURAL GAS LINES
SITE UTILITIES FUEL TANKS
SITE UTILITIES FIRE HYDRANTS
SITE UTILITIES STORM WATER DRAINS
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT PARKING LOT PAVING MUNICIPAL COMPLEX 2023 44,800$    50,423$   
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT PARKING LOT PAVING DPW 2026 63,760$    78,417$   
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT PARKING LOT PAVING COMMUNITY CENTER 2026 53,200$    65,429$   
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT SIGNAGE
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT CURBS
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT FIRE LANES
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT SIDEWALKS
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT STEPS, STAIRS
VEHICULAR & PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT HAND RAILS
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐2‐BLOWER MOTOR 2023 1,000$   1,126$  
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐3‐BLOWER MOTOR 2023 1,250$   1,407$  

25



CATEGORY SYSTEM ANTICIPATED END LIFE

REPLACEMENT COST 

TODAY 

 EST REPLACEMENT COST 

ESCALATED 

VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐4 ‐BLOWER MOTOR 2023 1,000$   1,126$  
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐5‐BLOWER MOTOR 2039 1,578$   2,850$  
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐1 POLICE DEPT‐BLOWER MOTOR 2041 1,578$   3,024$  
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐1 POLICE DEPT‐ACTUATOR
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐1 POLICE DEPT‐SPEED CONTROLLER
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐2‐ACTUATOR
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐2‐SPEED CONTROLLER
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐3‐ACTUATOR
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐3‐SPEED CONTROLLER
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐4 ‐ACTUATOR
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐4 ‐SPEED CONTROLLER
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐5‐ACTUATOR
VENTILATION UNITS AHU‐5‐SPEED CONTROLLER
FIRE PROTECTION MUNICIPAL BUILDING FIRE ALARM SYSTEM 2026 26,537$    32,637$   

26



 

27 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4012):                  
 

 

Date:   November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Kittery Public Works  Est. Funding Request:  $ 475,000 
Project Title:  DPW Vehicles and Equipment Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  10 – 25 years 
Contact:  David Rich     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):   Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $1,875,000  Town Funding Needed:  $475,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $    Comments:         
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $        Comments:     
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year  Yes      
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 

$475,000       $ 350,000  $ 350,000  $350,000  $350,000  $1,875,000 
Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

This fund is for replacement of DPW equipment and vehicles.  Attached is the inventory and the 
projected replacement schedule.  



Town of Kittery
New/Replacement Schedule and Estimated Costs
Public Works 2020
Vehicles and Equipment
Highway Division: Account Number: 4012

Unit  Year Purchased Cost Vehicle Make Vehicle Description 2022 Replacement 2023 Replacement 2024 Replacement 2025 Replacement 2026 Replacement 2027 Replacement 2028 Replacement 2029 Replacement 2030 Replacement 2031 Replacement 2032 Replacement 2033 Replacement 2034 Replacement 2035 Replacement

402 2017 154,800 Western Star dump truck w/Viking gear 239680
403 2017 154,800 Western Star dump truck w/Viking gear
404 2011 147,000 Freightliner  plow, wing, sander 220,000 
405 2017 82,500 Ford 550, 4WD, 3cy, SS dump, 9' plow 105,000 
417 2002 83,700 Freightliner dump truck w/Viking gear
417A 2020 182,600 Western Star dump/hitch plow/wing
418 2001 10,000 ford Crew cab ‐ 4 door 45,000 

407 2017 104,100 Ford 
550, 4WD, 3cy, SS dump, 10' plow, wingplow, wing, stainless 

sander/dump body
138,200 

408 2004 14,500 Chevy Dk green metallic, 4WD Ext Cab 50,000 
409 2001 154,800 Western Star dump truck w/Viking gear 239,680 
410 2014 58,500 Ford 350, 4wd, pick up utility body, 9' plow 82,345 
411 2012 20,000 Ford F150 4WD Pickup 50,000 
411A 2007 17,700 Kia Rondo LX
412 2011 125,900 Freightliner plow, wing, sander 220,000 
413 2017 82,500 Ford 550, SS dump, plow, crane,Sander 105,000 
415 2017 294,100 Elgin vacuum, street sweeper, serial #MV‐41070
416 2019 80,000 Ford F350, Diesel, 4x4, Pickup,Stainless plow, crane
406 2017 154,800 Western Star dump truck w/Viking gear 239,680 
419 2017 154,800 Western Star dump truck w/Viking gear
422 2014 103,000 Cat 4wd, loader/backhoe, 1 3/4 cy  125,000 
427 2019 190,700 CAT 930M, Small Wheel Loader
429 2018 179,000 MultiTrac Multihog Sidewalk Plow, 48"Hyd CX75 MT5T  ‐  SN: 3323
430 2020 31,000 Ford Explorer, 4 door eco boost
431 2007 2,400 Sweepster Sidewalk Sweeper walk behind
432 2018 151,500 Maclean sidewalk plow/mower/snow blower 185,250 
433 2005 PetroVend Fuel Pumps 1 & 2
438 2001 40,000 Sewer Equipment Culvert Cleaning Trailer, Diesel 100,000 
440 1994 4,000 Lincoln Welder with Trailer 5,000 
441 2017 3,000 Icorn Pro Trailer Utility trailer
444 2020 26,300 Chicago Compressor CPS185
445 2017 15,100 Wacker Paving Roller
447 1950 500 Unknown Parade Trailer
448 1980 1,000 Homemade Form Trailer 6000 lbs 5,000 
449 2017 17,800 Talb Equipment Trailer
453 2017 1,800 Wacker Wacker/Compactor
455 1974 2,000 ED Etnyre asphalt curb machine
457 2002 9,200 Salsco Mini Paver Sidewalks 60,000 
458 2001 3,300 Wacker Reversable Plate Compactor
491 1997 2,400 Sawtec Pavement Cutter 5,000 
506 2012 10,000 Load Max Equipment Trailer Low Bed
507 2006 24,000 Ford Van, E350
529 2012 3,800 Line Lazer Line Striping Machine 4,160 
533 2016 8,000 Bosch Vehicle Diagnostic Tool 15,000  16,000 
576 2013 5,000 Cat Lifter Sander Lifter 7,000 
579 2007 Unknown Reznor  Waste Oil Furnace 8,000 
591 2018 2,500 Jet Electric Chain Hoist
592 2017 2,200 Dip‐Pak Welder
594 2016 11,700 Bend Pak 2 Post Vehicle Lift
595 2010 23,000 Kohler 60KW Generator‐Diesel 60KW 29,620 
597 Unknown Unknown Dynamic 40 amp Plasma Cutter
598 2017 Unknown Hydro Tek Pressure washer, sand blaster 5,400 
599 2018 19,100 Spanco Spanco Crane two Ton

Salt Shed Doors
Storage Shed PW 3 Car Storage Shed 35,000 

610 (25) 1998 11,200 Motorola(25 units)Vehicle Radios (25 units)Vehicle Radios 2,250 
In‐Town Parks  and Fort Foster Division:

401 2017 97,900 Ford Diesel, 4x4, SS dump body, plow 105,000 
414 2017 79,000 Ford 550 4wd 3 cy, SS dump, plow 105,000 
420 2006 12,000 John Deere Z‐Track
421 2010 39,400 Kubota B3030 loader,mower,sweeper, tiller 53,000 
426 2017 16,200 Kubota Zero Turn Mower with Deck (Bagger)
426A 1999 14,200 Jacobsen 4wd fr mower  19,575 
428 2013 14,100 Kubota 2wd Zero Turn Mower (Bagger) 22,500 
436 2017 8,600 Udump Trailer Dumpbed Trailer with Leaf Vacuum 12,000 
446 2017 3,000 Icorn Pro Trailer Trailer
450 2000 5,000 Welsh trailer

Solid Waste Division:
423 2017 190,700 Cat 3.1cy GP Bucket, 3.25cyd Grapple bucket
424 2011 46,400 New Holland L185, skid steer 92,900 
425 2007 40,000 New Holland L185, skid steer 60,000 
437 1994 58,000 Read RD‐40B, screen all 130,000 
439 2016 67,300 Spector Live Floor Trailer ` 89,700 
442 1990 14,000 Morbark 290, chipper 50,000 
500 2015 297,100 International TR‐10N‐75 Auto Baler 502,530 
501 1991 41,000 MACHINEX baler conveyor 170,000 
503 2004 70,000 ACCURATE trash compactor 110,020 
504 1995 5,000 Unknown old compactor 27,000 
505 1978 3,000 Valdor air compressor 7,780 
510 1995 7,700 VALDOR glass surge hopper/vari spd convey
511 1995 8,600 PRODEVA glass transfer glass conveyor
512 1995 1,900 PRODEVA glass breaker
513 1995 15,000 ANDELA glass pulverizer
514 1995 5,200 PRODEVA can surge hopper/conveyor
515 1995 1,500 HOMEMADE portable inclined screen
516 1995 6,000 PRODEVA AA cross belt magnetic steel can convey
517 1995 20,600 DENS‐A‐CAN steel can densifier/biscuit maker
518 1995 5,400 PRODEVA sorting conveyor
519 1995 6,200 REM alum can flattener
520 1995 9,200 BSME alum can two yd compactor
521 1995 4,900 BSME alum can 40 cu. yd. roll‐off
522 1995 4,900 BSME HDPE 40 cu. yd. roll‐off

523 (12) 1980 3,000 (12)30YDOT  12‐30 cu.yd. roll off for storage  18,000 
524 2017 Hydro Tek pressure washer 5,325 
525 2004 11,000 Ameri Shredder Paper shredder 37,950

Cost 537,250$               339,370$                288,615$               283,742$                 245,900$                558,200$               43,500$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   345,410$                 719,040$                  100,000$                532,150$                
Trade‐In 20,000$                  ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

Total Cost 517,250$               339,370$                288,615$               283,742$                 245,900$                558,200$               43,500$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   345,410$                 719,040$                  100,000$                532,150$                
CIP Funding 475,000$               350,000$                350,000$               350,000$                 350,000$                350,000$               200,000$                  200,000$                 200,000$                 200,000$                   250,000$                 250,000$                  250,000$                250,000$                

Previous Year Balance 56,321$                  14,071$                  24,701$                 86,086$                   152,344$                256,444$               48,244$   204,744$                 404,744$                 604,744$                   804,744$                 709,334$                  240,294$                390,294$                
Remaining Account Balance 14,071  24,701$                  86,086  152,344$                 256,444  48,244$                 204,744  404,744$                 604,744  804,744$                   709,334  240,294$                 390,294  108,144$                



 

29 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4017):                  
 

 

Date:   November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  2   

Department:  Kittery Public Works  Est. Funding Request:  $ 25,000 
Project Title:  MS4 Compliance  Est. Useful Life (Years):  10‐20 
Contact:  David Rich     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):   Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☒ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☒  No ☐ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 185,000  Town Funding Needed:  $25,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $   Comments:  319, Healthy Community, PREP, Coastal Resiliency grants.   
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $    Comments:    
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $        Comments:     
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 

$ 25,000  $40,000  $ 40,000  $40,000  $ 40,000  $185,000 
Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

Through MS4 stormwater permitting requirements, the town is expected to evaluate stormwater 
infrastructure and track and remediate illicit discharges to the MS4. Evaluation of our infrastructure is 
done by site visits which require televising and sampling with some modifications to the infrastructure 
found inadequate requiring new infrastructure to be installed.   FY22 projects include the sampling and 
camera inspection of storm drains and pipes, and replacing basin insert cartridges. 

 
 

                                               



 

30 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4043):                  
 

 

Date:    November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  2 
Department:  Kittery Public Works  Est. Funding Request:  $ 10,000 
Project Title:  Parks Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  10‐20 
Contact:  David Rich     

Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):   Annually 
Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☒  No ☐ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 90,000  Town Funding Needed:  $10,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ 60,000  Comments:  Wetlands Mitigation Funds 
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $    Comments:         
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $        Comments:     
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 

$ 10,000  $ 20,000  $ 20,000  $ 20,000  $20,000  $90,000 
Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

Allocated funds are used for replacement/rehabilitation of field irrigation systems, fences, park buildings 
etc. as well as Fort Foster infrastructure including the pier, playground, tower bathroom roof, invasive 
plan, and supplemental reserve funding for future projects.    

The final phase of the Fort Foster pier deck replacement is planned for FY21.  

The FF Tower bathroom is in need of structural repairs to the roof.  Implementation of a comprehensive 
invasive plant management plan is planned for FY22, and includes both professional work and volunteer 
efforts.  The Town will seek to utilize Wetlands Mitigation funds to support the implementation of the 
plan. 



 

31 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (SCH):                  
 

 

Date:     November 22, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Kittery School District  Est. Funding Request:  $ 50,000 
Project Title:  School Facility Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  10‐30 years 
Contact:  Eric Waddell, Superintendent of Schools     

Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 
Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☐  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☐ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Climate Change/Sustainability:   Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise? Yes ☒    No ☐   

Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 250,000  Town Funding Needed:   $50,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:         
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$50,000  $50,000  $50,000  $50,000  $50,000  $250,000 
Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

All purchases through the CIP Facilities Reserve Fund are recommended to the Facilities, Finance, & Safety Committee by 
the Facilities Director and the Superintendent of Schools and require approval of the Kittery School Committee. Purchases 
from FY19 and FY20 have included a glass wall system for the Traip Academy library to facilitate small group work without 
disturbing other library patrons.  New cafeteria fixtures at Shapleigh School and Traip Academy, Traip Academy roof repair, 
cafeteria sound abatement at MPS, and upgrades to the science laboratories at Traip Academy.  FY21 CIP Facilities Reserve 
Fund projects will be presented to the Facilities, Finance, & Safety Committee by the superintendent and facilities director 
and recommended for approval to the full School Committee.  Projects will be prioritized using the District’s newly 
developed Maintenance, Facilities, and Equipment Inventory.  



 

32 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (SCH):                  
 

 

Date:     November 22, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  3 
Department:  Kittery School District  Est. Funding Request:  $  0 
Project Title:  School Vehicle Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  5 years 
Contact:  Eric Waddell, School Superintendent     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☐ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:   Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 50,000  Town Funding Needed:   $0 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:         
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$0  $10,000  $10,000  $10,000  $10,000  $40,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

This is a request for the annual allocation from CIP funding to replace the school maintenance vehicle and 
the 7‐passenger school van at the end of their useful life.  The maintenance vehicle is a 2014 Ford F‐250 
purchased in November, 2013.  Current mileage is 25,207.  The anticipated trade date will be eight to ten 
years from date of purchase (2023).   
The 7‐passenger van is a 2015 Toyota Sienna All‐Wheel Drive.  It was purchased in August, 2015. Current 
mileage is 67,000, and the anticipated trade year will be 2022 or approximately 120,000 miles.   
 
 



 

33 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (SCH):                  
 

 

Date:      November 22,2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Kittery School District  Est. Funding Request:  $ 20,000 
Project Title:  School Equipment Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  5‐10 Years 
Contact:  Eric Waddell, Superintendent of Schools     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☐  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☐ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:   Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise? Yes ☐ No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 100,000  Town Funding Needed:   $20,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:         
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$20,000  $20,000  $20,000  $20,000  $20,000  $100,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

This account is used to replace or upgrade equipment needs on an as‐needed basis as recommended by the District’s 
Facilities, Finance, & Safety Committee.  Recent purchases included the Shapleigh School sewer pumps, kitchen 
equipment, replacement curtains for the Traip Academy stage, grounds keeping equipment (the District stopped 
contracting out the work of property maintenance in the spring of 2019), large maintenance equipment like backpack 
vacuums and floor scrubbers, bleacher repairs, and a sophisticated badge maker to integrate proximity cards and photo 
ID credentials within the District for heightened security and safety.   The FY22 equipment purchases will be thoughtfully 
recommended to the School Committee using a newly developed facilities and equipment inventory managed by the 
Facilities Director and Superintendent of Schools.  



 

34 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (SCH):                  
 

 

Date:     November 22, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Kittery School District  Est. Funding Request:  $   40,000 
Project Title:  School Technology Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  5 years 
Contact:  Eric Waddell, School Superintendent     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☐  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☐ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:   Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $200,000  Town Funding Needed:   $40,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:         
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:          
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$40,000  $40,000  $40,000  $40,000  $40,000  $200,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

This reserve is available for unanticipated and/or essential technology needs which may include unanticipated 
repairs and/or replacement of outdated infrastructure or equipment.   Technology projects are presented by the 
Director of Technology and the Superintendent of Schools to the Facilities, Finance, & Safety Committee who then 
makes recommendations for funding to the full School Committee which must approve CIP Reserve Fund projects. 
FY20 and FY21 projects focused on equipment purchases (iPads, interactive white boards) and infrastructure 
improvements/upgrades (switches, network hardware, etc.).  FY21 is a ‘bridge’ year for the MLTI program.  The next 
MLTI contract will be in FY22.  The CIP School Technology Reserve Fund will be essential for the District to participate 
in the longstanding program in Maine.  



 

35 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP CODE (4056):                  
 

 

Date:     November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 

Department:  Fire Department  Est. Funding Request:  $40,400 
Project Title:  Fire Equipment Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  10 
Contact:  Chief David O’Brien     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☒ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒   
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 282,005  Town Funding Needed:   $ 40,400 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ 0  Comments:    
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $ 0  Comments:     
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $ 3,500  Comments:  annual test and certification and repairs 
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $   Comments:   
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:   
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?     
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$40,400  $60,400  $60,400  $60,400  $60,405  $282,005 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

This reserve funds the routine replacement of firefighter protective clothing, firefighter self‐contained breathing apparatus 
(SCBA), radios, and other higher cost equipment as needed.  Replacement of the SCBA’s is planned for FY23 an estimated to 
be $235,000.   

Portable radios were replaced in FY20 with the Police Dept.  Radios in the seven vehicles (apparatus, trucks, command 
vehicle) will be replaced in FY21 for approximately $35,000.  The communications tower will be upgraded at the Mitchell 
School to improve public safety coms in Kittery Point.  The tower will be funded through public safety impact fees (one‐
time fees), with the project being implemented in two phases in the spring and summer of 2021.  The remaining balance in 
the Public Safety Base Radio project (4031) of $20,845 will be transferred into this fund in FY21. 



 

36 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4020):                  
 

 

Date:     November 15, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Administration  Est. Funding Request:  $ 63,000 
Project Title:  Technology Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  5‐7 
Contact:  Kendra Amaral, Town Manager     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☒  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $343,000  Town Funding Needed:  $63,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:  Replacements are typically more energy efficient 
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:        
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?  Consultation with our IT provider. 
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$63,000  $70,000  $70,000  $70,000  $70,000  $343,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

The fund is for replacement of aging, failing, or obsolete hardware such as servers, desktops, firewalls, 
switches and routers, and cabling, replacement of software systems and licenses, and expansion of 
technology tools used in delivery of service.  The Technology Reserve also supports upgrades that improve 
efficiency and/or functionality and one‐time setup/initiation costs for new productivity software.   
There will be an accompanying transfer request of $7,637 from inactive capital account.  That will bring 
the total allocation to this reserve for FY22 to $70,637. 



Kittery Technology

Recommended Projects - Date Not Defined
Name Priority Status Dependency

Hardware: Harbor Cameras Medium Not Started

Phone System Review High Not Started

FY2021
Name Priority Status Dependency

SECURITY: Firewalls: Town Admin Critical Done

Hardware: Harbor WiFi Low In Progress

Office 365 Government Community Cloud (GCC) Migration Critical Planning

PHYSICAL: Library Site Move High Planning

SharePoint and Teams Implementation High Not Startedffice 365 Government Community Cloud (GCC) Migration

FUNCTIONALITY: Standardize Remote Work Process Medium Planning SECURITY: Firewalls: Town Admin

Endpoint Security Enhancement Critical Planning

New Hosts for Town Administration Office High Planning

SECURITY: Harden Local Servers With Department of Defense Settings (STIGS) High Not Started New Hosts for Town Administration Office

Compliance: Upgrade Local Servers to Windows 2019 High Not Started New Hosts for Town Administration Office

Network Segmentation Medium Not Started New Hosts for Town Administration Office

Obsolescence: Remove Untangled System High Planning

MS-ISAC Cyber-Security Program High Not Started

Upgrade/Replace Windows 7: Year 1 High Planning

FY2022
Name Priority Status Dependency

BACKUP: Acronis CyberCloud Migration Medium Not Started

KWW Waste Water Virtualization/Network Rebuild Medium Not Startedffice 365 Government Community Cloud (GCC) Migration

Domain Reorganization Low Planning Endpoint Security Enhancement

KPD Wireless Upgrade Medium Not Started

SECURITY: Harden Local servers With Department of Defense settings (STIGS) High Not Started New Hosts for Town Administration Office

New Network Switching - All locations Medium Not Started Domain Reorganization

HARDWARE: Police: Evidence PC (Isolated PC) Low Not Started

AUDIT: Business Continuity Review High Not Started Compliance: Upgrade Local Servers to Windows 2019

Upgrade/Replace Windows 7: Year 2 Critical Planning

HARDWARE: Obsolete/Out of Warranty PC Replacements High Not Started

FY2023
Name Priority Status Dependency

FUNCTIONALITY: Electronic Archive Low Not Started

HARDWARE: Obsolete/Out of Warranty PC Replacements High Not Started

FY2024
Name Priority Status Dependency

Security Revist Critical Not Started Task 12

HARDWARE: Obsolete/Out of Warranty PC Replacements High Not Started

37



 

38 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP CODE (4019):                  
 

 

Date:     November 10, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  2 
Department:  Kittery Community Center  Est. Funding Request:   $30,000 
Project Title:  KCC Equipment Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  5‐20  
Contact:  Jeremy Paul     

Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 
Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☒  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☒ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $160,000  Town Funding Needed:   $ 30,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:         Comments:   
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?    Comments:   
Future Costs & Operating Expenses 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:  See KCC annual operating budget 
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:  Updated equipment will attract more rentals and revenue 
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:   
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?  Cost estimates obtained 
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?     
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
30,000  30,000  30,000  35,000  35,000  160,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

This account funds replacement of fitness, custodial, kitchen, theatre, and playground equipment.  
 
The following projects are being considered for the next five years: Fitness room replacement machines 
and equipment.  STAR Theatre upgrade/expansion of sound capacity and upgrades to the theatrical light 
system.  Kitchen equipment nearing end of useful life and will be replaced including 60” stainless steel 
range, 2 convection ovens, walk‐in cooler and walk‐in freezer. Gymnasium sound system to expand its 
appeal and capabilities for events; and an all‐building intercom system to coincide with emergency 
management plans.  



 

39 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4051):                  
 

 

Date:     November 10, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1  
Department:  Kittery Community Center  Est. Funding Request:  $    30,000 
Project Title:  KCC Facility Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  10‐20 
Contact:  Jeremy Paul     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☐  Expanded Service  ☒  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☒  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☒  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $130,000  Town Funding Needed:   $ 30,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $0  Comments:  Playground donations, investigating grants for master plan 
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  0  Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $       Comments:  See KCC Annual operating budget 
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $        Comments:   
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:  Phase in as the account grows 
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?  RFP developed for master plan, cost estimates for building improvements 
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?    Yes 
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$30,000  $25,000  $25,000  $25,000  $25,000  $130,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

This account is for larger projects/maintenance of the KCC and the East Wing.  Project needs include: 
Replacement of some exterior doors and blown in insulation in the annex, improved insulation of the 
annex, and conversion of exterior and interior lighting to LED. 
 
The KCC Board of Directors are interested in developing a campus master plan to guide future 
development of the site including increasing parking, improving the ball fields, and replacing the 
playground.  The campus master plan will ensure outdoor amenities are ideally suited for the operation 
and the site conditions. 



 

TO: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 
CC: Patricia Moore, Finance Director 
FROM: Jeremy Paul, Director Kittery Community Center 
DATE: November 10, 2020 
RE: FY2022-FY2026 Capital Improvement Plan 

Please find the FY2022-FY2026 Capital Improvement Plan update and requests from the Kittery Community 
Center. 

FY21 Project Updates 
The replacement of the STAR Theater flooring was the major project in FY20.  The project was completed in 
February and we are very happy with the final product.  We are proud to have a floor that will last for many 
years. 

Through the help of State grants, we will be completing a major East Wing heating project. In reviewing the 
heating system of the East Wing, we found the current one pump system is in poor condition.  We will be 
installing two new heating system pumps, as two pump systems are now the standard in these types of 
buildings.  This will maintain redundancy so that we will always have circulation and will help save energy.  This 
will be beneficial as we continue to support the School Department in their returning children to the classroom.  
The East Wing houses the Shapleigh students who attend the gap care afterschool program. 

FY22-FY26 Project Requests 
The majority of these requests are carryovers from the previous requests. Given the current economic impacts 
of COVID on labor and materials, a 5% escalator was used on estimates obtained in the prior year. 

KCC EQUIPMENT RESERVE (CIP FUND 4019) 
This account funds replacement of fitness, custodial, kitchen, theatre, and playground equipment. We have 
reached out to the companies we have received pricing information from in the past and are still waiting for 
some updated prices. 

Fitness Equipment:  A number of fitness machines in the fitness suite were donated by York Hospital and are 
over 20 years old and nearing the end of their usefulness. Replacement cost for the equipment in our Fitness 
Suite is roughly $85,000.   Grant opportunities are being explored to offset the cost of the replacements. 

Kitchen Equipment: We are continually trying to increase our program offerings in our kitchen.   With that 
increased use, we are working to anticipate any possible replacement costs of essential equipment.  That would 
include a stove, convection ovens, and the walk-in refrigerator/freezer unit. One oven is currently not working.  
The cost to replace those pieces of equipment is roughly $21,000.   

STAR Theater Equipment:  The STAR is the crown jewel of the KCC and continues to host a wide variety of 
events and productions.  With over seven years of use, we are aware of the need to upgrade and expand the 
sound capacity and lighting system.  The cost for those items would be approximately $75,000, but can be 

Kittery Community Center
120 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

(p) 207-439-3800   •  (f)  207-439-1780
www.kitterycommunitycenter.org

Director  Jeremy Paul         
Assistant Director       Todd Henley 
Recreation Supervisor   Valerie Lachapelle 

40



phased in over time.   The priority, LED fixtures, would be $25,000.  We are working to develop a better theatre 
management/preventive maintenance program.  

Gym Sound System: Over the years, we have come to realize that we need a sound system in the gymnasium.  
We have had a number of rentals and other activities in the gym that could have benefitted from a sound 
system.  Conferences, lectures, tournaments that need announcements, special events, etc., that may not be 
able to be held in the theater could be held in the gymnasium.  We have had to improvise by bringing in a 
portable speaker with microphone for some events.  The cost to have a new sound system put in is 
approximately $50,000.     

Building Wide Intercom: The KCC currently does not have a building-wide intercom system to make 
announcements, alert the public to any safety issues, etc.  Any room that has a phone has the ability to be heard 
through the system, but any rooms, hallways, common areas, etc., that do not have a phone will not be able to 
hear any announcements being made.  In today’s day and age, being able to communicate effectively with as 
many people as possible is of the utmost importance. The cost to install this public address system is $14,700.  

KCC FACILITY RESERVE (CIP FUND 4019) 
Based on the unexpected project involving the STAR floor, we have reevaluated and reprioritized the other 
projects in this section.  

Replacement of Exterior Doors:  The KCC has 22 exteriors doors throughout the building.  For safety and 
security reasons, there is a need to replace exterior doors #6 and #7.  In addition, the three exterior doors to the 
theatre will need to be replaced.  The costs range from $9,500 to $11,500. 

Increased Parking at KCC:  With the number of events at the KCC continuing to grow, there is a dire need to 
expand/increase parking on site.  Larger voting turnouts often result in damage to the field, and there are some 
conferences that we are unable to have back due to the concerns over parking. The KCC BOD is working on a 
campus master plan that will include expanded parking.  As the plan and suggested locations for the additional 
parking are still in the works, we don’t see an immediate parking project coming forward and can afford to wait 
for more information. 

East Wing Project: As we evaluate the potential future use of the East Wing, we are working on a project that 
would add ventilation and air conditioning in that area. More specific details are being identified. 

With the East Wing housing a number of State licensed childcare programs, there is a need to keep that section 
warmer during the winter months.  Blown-in insulation would help meet that goal.  We need to undertake some 
further investigation to determine the feasibility and cost of the project.  Based on the pricing information given 
to insulate the East Wing, we have come up with a price tag of $30,000 to insulate the attic of the main KCC 
building.   

The benefits of insulating the building would be reducing energy costs, helping to prevent gradual damage 
caused by heat and moisture, providing better indoor air quality and indoor comfort, and having less wear and 
tear on existing HVAC systems.   

LED Lighting Conversion: Most of the interior and exterior lights at the KCC are standard bulbs.  Conversion to 
LED lighting both inside and outside will not only reduce annual electricity costs, it will also reduce the Town’s 
overall green house gas emmissions. 

41



 

42 
 

 
2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4018):                  
 

 

Date:     November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  3 
Department:  Harbormaster  Est. Funding Request:  $ 0 
Project Title:  Kittery Port Authority Boat Reserve    Est. Useful Life (Years):  7‐10 
Contact:  John Brosnihan     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 

Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $75,000  Town Funding Needed:   $0 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ TBD  Comments:  Seeking Port Security grant to replace HM primary boat      
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $  Comments:   
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:  Next purchase planned for 2027 if grant is unsuccessful 
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?         
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?          
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year  No 
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$0  $0  $25,000  $25,000  $25,000  $75,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

Annual funding for replacement of the Harbormaster boats approximately every 7‐10 years to reduce the 
cost of excessive maintenance and ensure maximum productivity and safety.  The main Harbormaster 
Boat was purchased new in FY17 and is a 21’ Surfside center console.  

The Skiff was replaced in the summer of 2020 and includes a new trailer and outboard. 

The main Harbormaster boat is proving insufficient for needs of the Harbormaster’s search, rescue, and 
enforcement operations.  Grants are being pursued to replace the boat for one that better suits the broad 
range of needs on Kittery’s waterways. 



Town of Kittery

Harbormaster 2019 2019

BOATS AND VEHICLES Escalation Factor:  3.0%

Property

 Year 

Purchased

Model 

Year  Cost 

Replacement 

Year Make Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

21' Boat 2017 2013 35,000$  2025 Surfside Hull 21 foot 44,337        
Outboard  2017 2013 13,000$  2025 Evinrude E‐Tech 115 115 HP Outboard 16,468        
Electronics Pkg 2020 2020 5,800$  2025 Garmin/Icom PS Radio/Radar/Gps 7,347           
Work Skiff 2020 2020 17,210$  2035 Maritime 1480 Skiff
Outboard  2020 2020 see Work Skiff above 2035 25 HP Outboard
21' Trailer 2017 2013 4,000$  2023 Came with Surfside Trailer 5,067           
Work Skiff Trailer 2020 2020 see Work Skiff above 2035 Maritime Trailer
HM Truck 2014 2014 20,000$  2025 Dodge Quad Cab Used 23,185        

Account Balance $6,888 $6,888 $6,888 $8,703 $33,703 $68,703 $2,983 $10,483 $17,983 $25,483 $32,983 $40,483 $47,983

Cost ‐                ‐                23,185         ‐                ‐              73,219         ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐               
Trade‐In $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP Funding $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500
Remaining Account Balance $6,888 $6,888 $8,703 $33,703 $68,703 $2,983 $10,483 $17,983 $25,483 $32,983 $40,483 $47,983 $55,483



 

44 
 

 
2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4055):                  
 

 

Date:     November 12, 2020    Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Harbormaster  Est. Funding Request:  $13,500 
Project Title:  Kittery Port Authority Equipment Reserve    Est. Useful Life (Years):  Varies 
Contact:  John Brosnihan     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☒  No ☐ 

Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $173,500       Town Funding Needed:   $ 13,500 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ 0  Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $ 0  Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $  Comments:       
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:        
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?        
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$13,500  $25,000  $40,000  $45,000  $50,000  $173,500 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details   

Annual funding to replace or rehab equipment that has reached the end of its service life.  The KPA/Harbormaster 
maintain 25 floats and 5 ramps all of which are of different age and level of wear. Kayak racks are being added to the 
Traip facility in the current fiscal year.  This will increase revenue and access to the water.  The KPA prioritized a regrid of 
the mooring field in the Back Channel which will be performed internally and improve navigation and available moorings. 

FY22 will continue float redecking efforts, replacement of damaged or worn Town moorings, and rehab of the hoist at 
Government Street.  Seeking grants (SHIP grant) to expand float system at Traip, expanding water access.   

The remaining balance in the BIG project (2069) with a balance of $1,583 will be transferred to this reserve. 



Town of Kittery

Harbormaster 2019

EQUIPMENT Escalation Factor:  3.0%

Property

 Year 

Purchased  Cost 

Replacement 

Year Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032
PEPPERRELL COVE

Float Replacement Various 40,000$  Annual Various 49,195             50,671             52,191             53,757             55,369             57,030             58,741            
Float Refurbishment Various 15,000$  Annual Various 16,391             16,883             17,389            
Transient Utilities 2014 78,000$  As Needed H20+Electricity
Mooring Replacement Various 5,000$  Annual Various 5,464               5,796               6,149               6,524              
TRAIP

Float Replacement UNK 10,000$  Annual Various 13,439             13,842            
Float Refurbishment UNK 10,000$  Annual Various 11,255             11,593            
Kayak Rack System NEW 6,000$  NA NEW
GOV ST

Wharf 2019 500,000$  2049
MISC 

Hoist Replacement (2)  Various 4,000$  As Needed 4,371               4,637               5,219              

Account Balance $37,811 $25,085 $21,947 $22,532 $67,532 $62,188 $61,517 $52,583 $40,387 $26,175 $24,145
Cost $26,225 $28,138 $39,415 $0 $55,344 $50,671 $63,934 $67,196 $69,212 $57,030 $58,741

Trade‐In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Cost $26,225 $28,138 $39,415 $0 $55,344 $50,671 $63,934 $67,196 $69,212 $57,030 $58,741

CIP Funding $13,500 $25,000 $40,000 $45,000 $50,000 $50,000 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000 $55,000
Remaining Account Balance $25,085 $21,947 $22,532 $67,532 $62,188 $61,517 $52,583 $40,387 $26,175 $24,145 $20,404



46 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP  FUND   (4116):

Date:   November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  2 
Department:  Harbormaster  Est. Funding Request:  $8,500 
Project Title:  Kittery Port Authority Facility Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  Various 
Contact:  John Brosnihan 
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐ 
Scheduled Replacement  ☒ Expanded Service ☐ Deemed Critical by Dept. ☒
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐ New Operation ☐ Regulatory Requirement ☐
Reduce GHG/Improv Energy Eff  ☐ Improved Efficiency/Procedures ☐ Other ☐
Health and Life Safety  ☒ New Revenue ☐
Project Description:  Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☒  No ☐
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $68,500  Town Funding Needed:   $8,500 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  Comments:  Will investigate grant funds to offset some costs 
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $  Comments: 
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $ .  Comments:        
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?  $    Comments:  FY20 annual revenues were ~ $42,000 
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project: 
What Planning Has Been Done for Project? 
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?  
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year 
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$8,500  $15,000  $15,000  $15,000  $15,000  $68,500 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

Funds request for replacement and additions to the Kittery working and recreational waterfront facilities to include 
wharf repair, pier replacement/repair as well as buildings and utilities replacement and repair.  

The Pepperrell Cove ramp received welding repairs to extend its useful life.  The Frisbee Ramp is undergoing repair to 
further extend its useful life and improve safety.  The parking lot was rehabilitated and repaved by DPW under a 
separate project number.  The work included reinforcing and replacing riprap and a complete grind and repave of the 
parking lot.  Pepperrell Cove Rider pilings that secure the floats will need replacement beginning in the next few years.  
The plan is to replace one every other year, beginning in FY22.   

The balance in the Pepperrell Cove Paving project (4053) of $1,495 will be transferred for this reserve. 



Town of Kittery

Harbormaster 2019 2019
FACILITIES Escalation Factor: 3.0%

Property

 Year 

Purchased  Cost 

Replacement 

Year Description 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032
PEPPERRELL COVE

Pepperrell Pier 1996 58,500$  2036 East Pier 
Transient Ramp 2014 35,000$  2034
Frisbee Pier 2012 450,000$  2052 West Pier
Frisbee Ramp1 UNK 18,000$  2022 21,493       
Frisbee Ramp2 2012 18,000$  2032 26,434       
Frisbee Ramp 3 UNK 13,000$  2029 17,471       
HM Office 1997 47,000$  2040
Wharf Utilities 2014 83,400$  2040
Rider Piling Replacement Various Various 12,500        12,500        12,500        12,500       
Seawall UNK
TRAIP

HM Shed 2020 6,500$  NEW
GOV ST

Govt.St.  Pier 2019 500,000$  2059
RICE AVE

Storage Bldg Unk 15,000$  2025 17,911
Account Balance $14,384 $10,384 $25,384 $27,884 $3,480 $5,980 $15,980 $13,480 $6,009 $16,009 $36,009

Cost $12,500 $0 $12,500 $39,404 $12,500 $0 $12,500 $17,471 $0 $0 $26,434
Trade‐In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP Funding $8,500 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $20,000 $20,000
Remaining Account Balance $10,384 $25,384 $27,884 $3,480 $5,980 $15,980 $13,480 $6,009 $16,009 $36,009 $29,575



Kittery Port Authority

Long‐Range Planning

On the Horizon KPA Priority Capital

Anticipated 

Cost

Regridding of back channel mooring field 1 N Operational cost
Dredge Pepperrell Cove

Engineering Study 1 30,250$           
Dredge (Not FNP) [approx 6 acres] 1 1 242,000$        

Harbormaster Boat House 2‐3 Y 50,000$           
Preserve waterfront access ? ? ?
Expand Pepperrell Cove
Engineering Study 3 Y 35,000$           
Construction 3 Y ?

Improve Rice Ave 3 Y 10,000$           

1. Assumes  $25/cubic yard

48



 

49 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4022):                  
 

 

Date:     November 11, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Kittery Police Department  Est. Funding Request:  $112,000 
Project Title:  Police Vehicle Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  3 ‐ 5 
Contact:  Chief Robert Richter     
Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☒  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 

Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $792,000  Town Funding Needed:  $112,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ 0  Comments:   Grants/rebates for hybrids 
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $ 0  Comments:  Auction surplus 
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $          Comments:         
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $           Comments:          
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:        
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?        
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?     
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year        
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$112,000  $140,000  $175,000  $190,000  $175,000  $792,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

The Police fleet is maintained at 13 vehicles.  Frontline vehicles are rotated to second line for administration, detective, 
and back‐up vehicles or traded‐in/auctioned.  The rotation of the vehicles is based upon mileage, operational condition, 
and the year of the vehicles.   

The FY20 vehicle replacements were purchased, still awaiting the delivery of one.  COVID has impacted supply and 
production chains and created a backlog for vehicle orders.  The FY21 vehicle purchases are also delayed.  These delays 
strain the ability to rotate front‐line vehicles and have the potential to require vehicles be replaced sooner than usual 
due to the added front‐line wear and tear.  FY22 proposal includes replacement of two front‐line cruisers.  The Town 
intends to transition to hybrid cruisers beginning in FY23.  The cost per vehicle will increase $7,000, though rebates may 
be available to offset the added cost. 



Town of Kittery

Police 2019 2022

VEHICLES Escalation Factor:  3.0%

Vehicle Model Year  Cost 

Replacement 

Year Make 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

Front Line Cruiser 2021 62,000$  3 YR Ford Explorer 65,776         71,875         78,540         85,822        
Front Line Cruiser  2021 62,000$  3 YR Ford Explorer 65,776         71,875         78,540         85,822        
Front Line Cruiser 2018 55,000$  3 YR Ford Explorer 55,000         67,749         74,031         80,896        
Front Line Cruiser 2018 55,000$  3 YR Ford Explorer 55,000         67,749         74,031         80,896        
Front Line Cruiser 2018 62,000$  3 YR Ford Explorer 63,860         69,782         76,252        83,323        
Front Line Supervisor 2021 62,000$  3 YR Ford Explorer 65,776         71,875         78,540         85,822        
Animal Control 2020 28,644$  2029 F150 Pickup  35,229       
Detective 2017 Rotation FL Ford Explorer
Detective 2017 Rotation FL Ford Explorer
School Resource Officer 2017 61,000$  Rotation FL Ford Explorer
Supervisor ‐ Admin 2018 50,000$  2023 Ford Explorer ‐ Admin Pkg 51,500        
Supervisor ‐ Admin 2019 50,000$  2026 Ford  Explorer ‐ Admin Pkg 56,275        
Spare Unmarked 2015 Rotation FL Ford Explorer
Motorcycle NEW 28,000$  2032 37,630         37,630        

Account Balance $0 $2,000 $26,640 $4,313 $58,814 $70,128 $29,503 $46,440 $99,959 $29,340 $32,548 $76,596

Cost 110,000       115,360       197,327       135,498       163,687       215,625       148,062       111,481      235,619       161,792       120,952       257,467      
Trade‐In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP Funding $112,000 $140,000 $175,000 $190,000 $175,000 $175,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165,000
Remaining Account Balance $2,000 $26,640 $4,313 $58,814 $70,128 $29,503 $46,440 $99,959 $29,340 $32,548 $76,596 ($15,872)



 

51 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP CODE (NEW):                  
 

 

Date:     November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Police Department  Est. Funding Request:  $10,000 
Project Title:  Police Equipment Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  Various 
Contact:  Chief Robert Richter     

Previously Presented?  ☒  YES  ☐   NO  If Yes, when? (FY):  FY19, FY20, FY21 
Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improv Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☒  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒   
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $65,000  Town Funding Needed:   $10,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $   Comments:    
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $   Comments:     
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $   Comments:   

Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $   Comments:   

Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:  Storage project proposed to start in FY25.  Replacement of other equip will be ongoing. 
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   

Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?     

Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$10,000  $10,000  $15,000  $15,000  $15,000  $65,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details            

Police utilize a variety of equipment in the course of conducting public safety work.  Equipment that is 
maintained and replaced by the department include a finger print machine, firearms and firearm 
storage equipment, cameras, radios, flashlights, and cruiser equipment.  Historically, the Town has not 
planned for the capital costs of replacing this equipment; resulting in the use of outdated equipment 
with inconsistent performance.   

Evidence storage and file storage is nearing maximum capacity.  A high‐density records storage system 
is needed to gain space without having to expand on the Police Dept facility.  Total project cost is 
approximately $40,000. 



 

52 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP CODE (4100):                  
 

 

Date:      November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  2 
Department:  Fire Department  Est. Funding Request:  $23,500 
Project Title:  Fire Facility Reserve  Est. Useful Life (Years):  100 
Contact:  Chief David O’Brien     
Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annual 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☒  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☐ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☒  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☐ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☒  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☒  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☒  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $123,500  Town Funding Needed:  $23,500 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $ 0  Comments:    
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $ 0  Comments:     
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $   Comments:   
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $   Comments:   
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:   
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?   
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?     
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year   
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$23,500  $25,000  $25,000  $25,000  $25,000  $123,500 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 

Our two fire stations were built in 2006‐2007.  They were designed to a 100‐year life cycle based on estimated town 
growth and estimated changes in fire apparatus and equipment.  The buildings were constructed to provide a long‐
term maintenance free exterior.  However, like all buildings, maintenance is needed to meet the expected life cycle 
and also enhance energy efficiencies as they are developed.  The past two FY years have funded high efficiency 
boiler replacement in both stations.  The Gorges Road Station is facing repair work to the concrete ramp in front of 
the apparatus bays and both stations will be in need of apparatus floor repair work in the near future.    
The Gorges Road should be expanded to house the ambulance service currently operating out of the Walker Street 
facility, and to prepare for eventual transition to a career firefighting force.  A warrant article is being prepared for 
that effort.



 

53 
 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP FUND (4026):                  
 

 

Date:     November 10,2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  1 
Department:  Administration  Est. Funding Request:  $ 10,000 
Project Title:  Records Preservation  Est. Useful Life (Years):  200‐300 years 
Contact:  Kendra Amaral, Town Manager     

Previously Presented?  ☒  Yes  ☐   No  If Yes, when? (FY):  Annually  
Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐  
Scheduled Replacement  ☒  Expanded Service  ☐  Deemed Critical by Dept.  ☒ 
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐  New Operation  ☐  Regulatory Requirement  ☒ 
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐  Improved Efficiency/Procedures  ☐  Other  ☐ 
Health and Life Safety  ☐  New Revenue  ☐ 
Project Description:    Photo (click image to insert): 

Restoration  of  Town  records  using  a  de‐acidification  process  to  remove  acid  from  the  paper,  mending/ 
laminating of the pages if necessary and re‐sewing and re‐binding the books. 
 
In addition to the marriage records, Selectmen/Council minutes dating back to the early 1960’s will also be 
addressed.    Restoring and preserving  Town  records  is  critical  as old  records were  instrumental  in Kittery 
winning the land dispute for the Portsmouth Naval Ship Yard back in 2000. 
 
This project is expected to be completed in FY26 with all historic records being preserved.  Thereafter, annual 
costs for preservation of new records will be incorporated into the annual operating budget. 
     

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Are the assets vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒ 
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $ 58,000  Town Funding Needed:   $ 10,000 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $        Comments:         
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $        Comments:          
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $   Comments:        
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?   $        Comments:        
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project:   
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?        
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?           
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year  Yes – In the past we have phased the project over 5 years at $10,000 per year 
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$10,000  $12,000  $12,000  $12,000  $12,000  $58,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details 



54 

2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT REQUEST FORM  CIP CODE (NEW):

Date:     November 12, 2020  Dept. Priority (1 of 3, etc.):  3 
Department:  Public Works  Est. Funding Request:  $0 
Project Title:  Legion Pond Restoration  Est. Useful Life (Years): 

Contact:  David Rich 
Previously Presented?  ☐  Yes  ☒   No If Yes, when? (FY): 

Project Type:  Check All That Apply ‐ 
Scheduled Replacement  ☐ Expanded Service ☐ Deemed Critical by Dept. ☐
Present Equipment Obsolete  ☐ New Operation ☒ Regulatory Requirement ☐
Reduce GHG/Improve Energy Eff  ☐ Improved Efficiency/Procedures ☐ Other ☒
Improve Public/Staff safety  ☐ New Revenue ☐
Project Description:  Photo (click image to insert): 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Climate Change/Sustainability:  Is the project vulnerable to climate change or sea level rise?  Yes ☐  No ☒
Project Financing: 
Total Project Cost:  $262,000  Town Funding Needed:   $0 
Amount and Type of Outside Funding Sources:  $  Comments:  Grant application was denied.  Seeking other grant options. 
Salvage Value of Existing Equipment?  $  Comments: 
Future Costs & Operating Expenses: 
Estimated Annual Cost of Operation & Maintenance  $   Comments: 
Estimated Net Effect on Operating Cost, Revenues, Staffing?  $  Comments: 
Project Planning: 
Proposed Start Date of Project: 
What Planning Has Been Done for Project?  DEP assessment and recommendations 
Is Funding Necessary for Further Plans/Estimating?  
Can the Project be Phased?   If yes, expenditure by year  Yes, project is phased over six years starting in FY24
FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26  Total 
$0  $0  $68,000  $51,000  $43,000  $162,000 

Please Provide and/or Attach Additional Project Details          

Legion pond has been degraded by invasive plants and nutrient overload.  The identified source for the 
nutrients is avian and decomposition of duckweed and submerged invasive plants.  The Town Council has 
asked for the pond to be prioritized for restoration to historic conditions. 
This project will focus on enhancement of the area and include permitting, invasive plant removal both 
uplands and pond skimming of duckweed, removal of debris, and reestablishment of fish populations once 
invasive plants are addressed. 



Legion Pond Invasive Species Management

Task YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR 6

Professional Services

         Monitoring‐ plants (invasives/ buffers)  6,265$              6,265$          6,265$           6,265$           6,265$           6,265$         
         Monitoring‐ water quality pre and post 9,890$              9,890$          9,890$           9,890$           9,890$           9,890$         
         Regulatory‐ permit app's/ compliance 3,370$              1,195$          1,195$           1,195$           1,195$           1,195$         
Integrated Vegetation Management (IVM)

         Design IVM Program 2,580$             
         Manual cutting/ pulling‐ buffers 3,770$              2,890$          2,890$           1,190$           1,190$           1,190$         
         Herbicide applications‐ buffers 3,890$              3,555$          2,580$           2,190$           1,995$           1,795$         
         Herbicide applications‐ aquatic 19,890$            12,230$        7,410$           3,790$           3,790$           3,790$         
        Pond skimming‐ duckweed removal (4) 15,955$            13,995$        11,995$         9,995$           7,995$           5,995$         
        Remove man‐ made debris  1,950$              560$              560$              560$              560$              560$             
TOTAL 67,560$            50,580$        42,785$         35,075$        32,880$         30,680$       

55



56 
 

 

 

 

PROJECTS ON THE HORIZON 
 

 

 

 



PROJECTS IMPACTING FINANCIAL POSITION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY22 ‐ FY26

FY21 Unassigned Fund Balance (Undesignated Reserve) $6,970,748
Policy Requirement (2.5 months of Town and School operating budgets) $6,998,525
Surplus/(Deficit)  ($27,777)

Planned Funded Year COST

Unassigned 

Fund Capital

Annual 

Debt Grants

Senior Tax Circuit Breaker Ongoing $50,000 50,000$              ‐$                ‐$             ‐$           
Compensated Absences Ongoing $125,000 125,000$           ‐$                ‐$             ‐$           

In Evaluation Phase

Ambulance Relocation1 TBD $700,000 700,000$           ‐$                ‐$             ‐$           
Memorial Field2 ‐ Phase 1 TBD $1,000,000
Stevenson Sidewalk3 TBD $750,000
Removal of Cole Street Bldg TBD $80,000 ‐$                ‐$             ‐$           
Legion Pond (grants still be pursued for project) 2024 $262,000 ‐$                    262,000$       ‐$             ‐$           
TOTAL 875,000$           262,000$       ‐$             ‐$          

Considered

Dredge Pepperell Cove ‐ Engineering and Permitting (incl.) 2022 272,250$               
Love Lane Sidewalks3 TBD 1,900,000             
TOTAL 4,877,250$            ‐$                ‐$             ‐$          

Notes:

1. Proceeds from the sale of Walker Street Station could replenish some of the reserves allocated to the project.  Requires a warrant article.
2. Memorial Field Phase 1 includes field renovation, lighting, and parking lot expansion.
3. Estimate based on length and anticipated complexity. 
4. Estimate based on broad assumption of acreage and prevailing cost for dredging in Maine.  Federal dredging may offset a portion of costs, but not 
    all as a good portion of the project will not be within the FNP.

To Be Determined

To Be Determined
To Be Determined

To Be Determined

59



 

58 
 

 

 
 
 

 

APPENDIX A ‐ DEBT SCHEDULE 

   



Year Issued Tax Funds

Project Municipal

Total Bonded Total
Princ Interest Princ Interest Princ Interest Princ Interest Princ Interest Princ Interest Princ Interest

2004 0
2005 0
2006 0
2007 83,742 83,742
2008 155,000 114,469 269,469
2009 155,000 107,881 262,881
2010 155,000 101,294 256,294
2011 155,000 94,706 11,675 0 0 261,381
2012 155,000 88,119 19,825 0 0 262,944
2013 155,000 81,338 35,000 19,475 275,000    126,775    692,588
2014 155,000 74,363 35,000 18,775 275,000 121,275 679,413
2015 155,000 67,388 35,000 18,075 275,000 115,775 4,034 670,272
2016 155,000 60,413 35,000 17,375 275,000 110,275 28,350 6,043 4,272 691,728
2017 125,000 42,213 35,000 16,675 275,000 104,775 233,000 42,830 6,076 4,239 6,318 891,126
2018 125,000 22,100 35,000 15,975 275,000 99,275 225,000 38,250 6,127 4,188 11,352 6,738 864,004
2019 115,000 19,700 35,000 15,231 275,000 93,775 225,000 33,750 6,199 4,116 11,463 6,627 840,861
2020 115,000 17,400 35,000 14,400 275,000 88,275 225,000 29,250 6,292 4,023 11,592 6,498 827,729
2021 115,000 15,100 35,000 6,981 275,000 82,775 225,000 24,750 6,407 3,907 11,741 6,349 808,011
2022 115,000 12,800 16,500 5,474 275,000 77,275 225,000 20,250 6,545 3,770 11,910 6,180 240,000 113,133 1,128,835
2023 115,000 10,500 16,500 4,558 275,000 71,775 225,000 15,750 6,701 3,614 12,101 5,989 240,000 97,230 1,099,717
2024 110,000 8,250 16,250 4,063 275,000 66,275 225,000 11,250 6,874 3,441 12,314 5,776 240,000 90,030 1,074,522
2025 110,000 6,050 16,250 3,575 275,000 60,088 225,000 6,750 7,063 3,252 12,550 5,540 240,000 82,830 1,053,947
2026 110,000 3,713 16,250 3,088 275,000 53,900 225,000 2,250 7,271 3,044 12,807 5,282 240,000 75,630 1,033,234
2027 110,000 1,238 16,250 2,600 275,000 47,025 7,502 2,813 13,088 5,001 240,000 68,430 788,947
2028 16,250 2,113 275,000 40,150 7,757 2,558 13,404 4,685 240,000 61,230 663,147
2029 16,250 1,625 275,000 32,588 8,032 2,283 13,763 4,327 240,000 54,030 647,897
2030 16,250 1,138 275,000 25,025 8,326 1,988 14,158 3,931 240,000 46,830 632,647
2031 16,250 650 275,000 16,913 8,642 1,672 14,585 3,504 240,000 39,630 616,847
2032 16,250 163 275,000 8,663 8,981 1,334 15,043 3,047 235,000 32,430 595,909
2033 9,338 977 15,531 2,558 235,000 30,080 293,484
2034 9,715 600 16,050 2,040 235,000 27,495 290,899
2035 10,111 203 16,597 1,493 235,000 24,793 288,197
2036 17,172 918 235,000 21,855 274,945
2037 17,779 311 235,000 18,683 271,772
2038 235,000 15,275 250,275
2039 235,000 11,633 246,633
2040 235,000 7,873 242,873
2041 235,000 3,995 238,995

TOTAL 2,660,000 1,032,774 494,250 203,506 5,500,000 1,442,650 2,258,000 253,430 150,000 60,328 275,000 93,111 ######## 923,113 19,367,662

2006/2016 Refund 2010/2021 Refund 2012 2016 2014A 2016
Municipal Debt - Tax Funds

Fire Stations PWD Frisbee - Com Ctr Roads/KCC Annex KLT Rustlewood KLT Braveboat

675,000/175,250 5,500,000 2,258,000 150,000 275,000

2021
Rice Library



Year Issued

Project

Total Bonded

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041

TOTAL

Tax Funds
MITCHELL & SHAPLEIGH School

Total
Princ Interest Princ Interest
215,000 264,367 479,367
215,000 158,694 373,694
215,000 151,906 366,906
215,000 144,719 359,719
210,000 137,813 347,813
210,000 130,725 340,725
210,000 123,375 333,375
210,000 116,025 114,465 440,490
210,000 108,150 194,375 512,525
210,000 99,881 325,000 191,125 826,006
210,000 40,399 325,000 184,625 760,024
210,000 32,130 325,000 178,125 745,255
210,000 28,980 325,000 171,625 10,308 745,913
210,000 25,830 325,000 165,125 86,000 15,560 827,515
210,000 22,628 325,000 158,625 85,000 13,850 815,103
210,000 18,900 325,000 151,719 85,000 12,150 802,769
210,000 14,700 325,000 144,000 85,000 10,450 789,150
210,000 10,500 325,000 69,969 80,000 8,800 704,269
210,000 6,300 313,500 103,997 80,000 7,200 720,997
210,000 2,100 313,500 86,593 80,000 5,600 697,793

308,750 77,188 80,000 4,000 469,938
308,750 67,925 80,000 2,400 459,075
308,750 58,663 80,000 800 448,213
308,750 49,400 358,150
308,750 40,138 348,888
308,750 30,875 339,625
308,750 21,613 330,363
308,750 12,350 321,100
308,750 3,088 311,838

0
0
0
0
0
0

4,220,000 1,638,120 6,330,750 2,275,605 821,000 91,118 15,376,594

2002/2013 Refund 2010/2021 Refund 2016
School Debt - Tax Funds

MITCHELL CIP Schools

6,525,000/3,405,7504,220,000 821,000



Year Issued

Project

Total Bonded

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041

TOTAL

Other Funds All Funds
Sewer Grand

Total Total
Princ Interest Principle Interest Princ Interest

0 479,367
0 373,694
0 366,906
0 443,461
0 617,281
0 603,606
0 589,669

213,624 7,083 148,452 56,454 425,613 1,127,484
206,541 3,541 149,937 56,528 416,548 1,192,016
265,038 19,879 151,436 38,761 475,113 1,993,707
65,959 11,570 152,950 37,246 267,726 1,707,162
66,919 10,571 154,480 35,717 267,687 1,683,214
67,921 9,440 156,025 34,172 267,558 1,705,198
68,967 8,336 157,585 32,612 377,865 199,810 845,175 2,563,816
70,059 7,215 159,161 31,036 379,594 122,147 769,211 2,448,317
71,197 5,889 160,752 29,444 383,410 118,332 769,024 2,412,653
72,381 3,182 162,360 27,837 387,262 114,478 767,499 2,384,379
71,482 2,535 163,983 26,213 391,155 110,586 765,954 2,278,233
70,474 1,859 165,623 24,573 395,086 106,655 764,270 2,614,103
70,646 1,155 167,279 22,917 399,057 102,684 763,738 2,561,247

168,952 21,244 403,067 98,674 691,937 2,236,397
170,642 19,555 573,589 102,072 865,858 2,378,880
172,348 17,848 579,354 96,308 865,858 2,347,305
174,072 16,125 585,177 90,485 865,859 2,012,956
175,812 14,384 591,058 84,604 865,858 1,877,892
177,571 12,626 596,998 78,663 865,858 1,853,380
179,346 10,850 602,999 72,663 865,859 1,828,868

609,058 66,603 675,661 1,613,608
615,179 60,482 675,661 1,583,408
621,362 54,299 675,662 969,146
627,608 48,053 675,661 966,560
633,915 41,747 675,662 963,858
640,286 35,376 675,662 950,606

0 271,772
0 250,275

1,381,208 92,254 3,268,766 566,145 10,393,077 1,804,721 17,506,171 52,250,427

Sewer Debt - Other Funds
1992, 2003 2010 2016

SEWER SRFSEWER SRF SEWER SRF

Refunded



 

62 
 

 

 

APPENDIX B ‐ TAX ASSET DETAIL 



2/2/2021 Capital Plan: Assets by Class and Type Report

ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/reportClassType.aspx?client_id=34 1/3

Home         ViewAssets         SearchAssets         Reports         Print         Logout          
 

User: Town of Kittery User          Kittery          State: ME          Fiscal Year End: 6/30/2020

 
  Town of Kittery (Gov. Activities)                       

Capital Plan: Assets by Class and Type                      
  Fiscal Year End: 6/30/2020                      

 

  Asset Class/Type   Total Original Cost      Total Replacement Cost        Annual Depreciation        Accumulated Depreciation    
Building Improvements
    Building $39,618.00 $0.00 $3,381.00 $29,476.00

    General $1,865,071.00 $0.00 $82,706.00 $638,847.00
        Subtotals $1,904,689.00 $0.00 $86,087.00 $668,323.00
 
Buildings
    Building $27,637,384.00 $3,013,610.00 $267,941.00 $20,195,152.00

    Buildings $13,770,662.00 $7,220,366.00 $463,951.00 $6,780,728.00
        Subtotals $41,408,046.00 $10,233,976.00 $731,892.00 $26,975,880.00
 
Construction in Progress
    Construction in Progress $382,517.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
        Subtotals $382,517.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 
Infrastructure
    Drainage System $29,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

    Infrastructure $2,229,222.00 $846,729.00 $90,073.00 $924,437.00

    Roads $10,408,589.00 $30,971,630.00 $202,443.00 $8,784,426.00
        Subtotals $12,666,811.00 $31,818,359.00 $292,516.00 $9,708,863.00
 
Land
    Land $10,950,906.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
        Subtotals $10,950,906.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 

http://ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/home.aspx
http://ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/assets.aspx
http://ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/assetSearch.aspx
http://ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/reports.aspx
javascript:window.print();
http://ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/include/sessionAbandon.aspx


2/2/2021 Capital Plan: Assets by Class and Type Report

ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/reportClassType.aspx?client_id=34 2/3

Land Improvements
    General $442,779.00 $159,408.00 $12,915.00 $408,906.00

    Land Improvements $1,760,855.00 $400,000.00 $83,276.00 $937,290.00
        Subtotals $2,203,634.00 $559,408.00 $96,191.00 $1,346,196.00
 
Machinery & Equipment
    Audio/Visual $27,572.00 $5,000.00 $3,939.00 $27,572.00

    Cafeteria Equipment $5,689.00 $0.00 $569.00 $1,138.00

    Communication Equipment $108,523.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

    Communications $0.00 $11,800.00 $0.00 $0.00

    Computer $203,094.00 $203,294.00 $329.00 $203,094.00

    Computers $90,825.00 $13,118.00 $3,217.00 $86,587.00

    Equipment $1,775,219.00 $0.00 $149,498.00 $989,393.00

    Fire Equipment $380,701.00 $219,652.00 $30,570.00 $260,897.00

    Heavy Equipment $617,913.00 $360,603.00 $19,136.00 $284,646.00

    Highway Equipment $942,508.00 $849,324.00 $45,034.00 $479,153.00

    Housekeeping/Maintenance $10,246.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

    Kitchen Equipment $107,229.00 $0.00 $3,034.00 $87,507.00

    Miscellaneous Equipment $443,478.00 $38,474.00 $40,336.00 $172,424.00

    Other $11,986.00 $0.00 $329.00 $9,680.00

    Photocopier $9,099.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,099.00

    Police Equipment $129,153.00 $122,088.00 $6,707.00 $94,006.00

    Radios & Pagers $81,010.00 $61,173.00 $7,081.00 $58,377.00

    Technology equipment $44,185.00 $0.00 $1,008.00 $2,015.00

    Telephone $61,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $61,000.00
        Subtotals $5,049,430.00 $1,889,526.00 $310,787.00 $2,826,588.00
 
Vehicles
    Equipment $26,074.00 $0.00 $2,967.00 $8,902.00

    Vehicle $3,371,849.00 $2,422,896.00 $147,219.00 $2,008,540.00

    Vehicle Accessories $16,921.00 $0.00 $2,171.00 $4,342.00

    Vehicles $1,718,389.00 $95,632.00 $214,511.00 $1,095,023.00
        Subtotals $5,133,233.00 $2,518,528.00 $366,868.00 $3,116,807.00
 



2/2/2021 Capital Plan: Assets by Class and Type Report

ams.rhrsmith.com/assetmanager/reportClassType.aspx?client_id=34 3/3

        Totals for Report $79,699,266.00 $47,019,797.00 $1,884,341.00 $44,642,657.00
 

 
User: Town of Kittery User         © Copyright 2003 • RHR Smith & Company, CPAs  • All rights reserved •                              



TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 
 
 

REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Date: January 25, 2021 

Updated:  February 8, 2021 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Title 8 Property Maintenance 

Councilor Sponsor: Chairperson Jeffrey Thomson 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The proposed amendments to Title 8.2 Property Maintenance were developed to address known issues 
with the existing ordinance’s unintended exceptions/loopholes, to enhance public safety protections as 
they relate to dangerous buildings, and to improve the Town’ ability to enforce the ordinance. 
 
The intent of this ordinance is to address significant property maintenance issues that directly impact the 
health, safety, welfare, natural environment, and property values of the Town and neighboring properties.  
The proposed amendment better defines junk and removes the loophole that allowed junk to be 
indefinitely defined as “usable” material by the property owner.  It also adopts a dangerous-building 
placard standard, used commonly throughout the nation.  Finally, the proposal strengthens the Town’s 
ability to issue and assess fines, and introduces an option that allows the Town and property owner to 
avoid time consuming and costly court proceedings through a “consent agreement” approach to resolving 
violations. 
 
It is important to note that the ordinance is not intended to impose a strict “better homes and gardens” 
aesthetic upon property owners, which generally leads to disproportionate action against low-income 
and/or elderly residents.  It is also not intended to divert municipal resources to resolving civil disputes 
between private property owners; at the taxpayers’ expense.  Civil disputes will still need to be resolved 
privately, by the disputing property owners, at their own cost. The Town staff will err on the side of 
caution when considering complaints that appear to fall into one of these categories, and will apply the 
standards consistently. 
 
The amendment was developed with direct assistance from the Town Attorney and conform to both state 
law and law court decisions addressing property maintenance enforcement throughout the state.  The 
proposal has been reviewed by the Planning and Development Department, Fire Chief, and Police Chief. 
 
PROPOSED TITLE 8 REVISIONS 
The Town has had mixed outcomes addressing dangerous, dilapidated properties over the years.  The 
challenges are due in part to the ordinance as written.  The proposed amendment is intended to address 
those challenges. 
 
The definition of Junk is being updated to eliminate the loophole that had allowed owners to claim 
“items” littering their property had a future purpose and therefore were not junk. The revised definition 



MEETING DATE: JANUARY 25, 2021 
UPDATED: FEBRUARY 8, 2021  

2 

sets a timeframe for which the owner must actively use or dispose of the item, ending the indefinite nature 
of the loophole. 

Structure maintenance has been added to address disrepair of buildings that lead to further structural 
deterioration, squatting, health hazards, and other safety issues that impact occupants, neighbors, and first 
responders.  The ordinance will require buildings to be secured with sides of a uniform material, a roof, 
and door and window closures. 

Vacant building placarding is being proposed for the ordinance. The placard system follows national 
standards and serves as a vital warning system for firefighters and other public safety personnel when 
called to respond to emergencies at vacant buildings that have inherent structural deficits. 

The violations and penalties amendment introduces the option for a local “consent agreement” approach 
that allows violations to be addressed without lengthy and costly legal proceedings in court. The 
amendment also sets a flat rate fine, consistent with the Town’s standing objective to streamline the 
violation process. 

The Town will continue to work with property owners to achieve compliance before taking punitive 
action; as is best practice in municipal code enforcement services. 

UPDATE 
Only minor edits have been made to correct grammatical and typographical errors. 

PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION 
Approve amendment as proposed. 

ATTACHMENTS 
• Draft Title 8 Property Maintenance Amendments
• Draft Title 8 Property Maintenance Enactment

 



DRAFT: January 25, 2021 
UPDATED: February 8, 2021 

 

1 
 

Chapter 8.2  
Property Maintenance  

1. AMEND Title 8.2.2 Definitions as follows: 

ABUTTING PROPERTY(IES)  1 
As used herein solely, any property with a portion of it falling within 150 feet of all the boundaries of a 2 
boundary line of a property in violation of this chapter. 3 

JUNK  4 
Includes dilapidated, discarded, junked or worn-out material(s) or objects, including but not limited to 5 
such as discarded, worn-out or junked plumbing heating supplies, electronic or industrial equipment, 6 
household appliances or furniture; discarded, scrapped and junked lumber; and old or scrap copper, 7 
brass, rope, rags, batteries, paper trash, rubber debris, waste and all scrap iron, steel and other scrap 8 
ferrous or nonferrous material.  An item meeting the categories above is presumed to be junk if it has 9 
remained on the ground for more than three months without being put to active use.  An item is not 10 
considered junk if it is placed in relation to construction or renovation of a structure for which an active 11 
town permit or approval exists, and is removed within three months from completion of construction or 12 
renovations. 13 

VACANT 14 
 Any previously inhabited building or structure which has been uninhabited for a period of 180 days or 15 
longer. 16 

2. AMEND § 8.2.4 grounds maintenance as follows: 17 

§ 8.2.4 Required grounds maintenance 18 
A. Required. All property grounds or parts thereof must be maintained in a condition free of any 19 
nuisance, unsafe or unsanitary conditions or accumulation of garbage, household trash, rubbish, junk, litter, 20 
worn or discarded plumbing, heating supplies, oil or propane tanks, old or scrap copper, brass, rope, rags, 21 
batteries, paper trash, rubber, building debris, waste and all scrap iron, steel, other scrap ferrous or nonferrous 22 
material, debris, scrap lumber, tires, automobile parts, worn-out or unused or inoperable machinery or parts 23 
thereof, glass, unused and/or inoperable appliances, worn and unused furniture, and more than two vehicles 24 
not bearing a valid motor vehicle inspection sticker and a valid motor vehicle registration.  25 

B. Storage allowed. Materials as listed in Subsection A above, intended for private use of the property 26 
owner, occupant or operator, may be stored on the grounds of the property as long as such material is 27 
screened from public ways and from abutting properties as provided in Subsection C herein and the material 28 
is not otherwise in violation with of any municipal ordinance or state statute. Private use does not include 29 
resale of the material.  30 

C. Screening. Where screening is required for the storage of material on property grounds, as provided in 31 



DRAFT: January 25, 2021 
UPDATED: February 8, 2021 

 

2 
 

this section, the following standards apply: 32 

(1) Screening may be accomplished by natural or man-made objects, plantings or fences, any of which 33 
must completely screen the stored material from view from any portion of any public way or abutting 34 
property throughout the entire calendar year. All screening must be located outside of the public way right-35 
of-way limits.limits of any public right-of-way. 36 

(a) Natural or man-made objects are interpreted to be: 37 

[1] Hills, gullies or embankments. Such man-made objects must be constructed to blend with the 38 
landscape, with loaming and seeding or other treatment as may be necessary to establish a natural 39 
appearance.  40 

[2] Buildings or other installations.  41 

[3] Combinations of above.  42 

(b) Plantings. Trees, shrubs or other vegetation of sufficient height, density and depth of planting or 43 
growth to completely screen the stored material may be used.  44 

(c) Fences. Fences will be so located and of sufficient height to completely screen the stored material. All 45 
fences must be an opaque wall or barrier, constructed and erected in a workmanlike manner and well 46 
maintained. Only sound, undamaged material, uniform in appearance, is acceptable.  47 

D. Use allowed. This section may not be construed to prevent uses of property grounds allowed by the 48 
Land Use and Development Code (Title 16), Garage Sales (Chapter 5.4), or Sidewalk Sales (Chapter 5.7) 49 
sections of the Town Code or any other state and/or municipal ordinance or statute, provided that all 50 
necessary permits or approvals, when required, are obtained and followed and all other related ordinance 51 
requirements are met.  52 

3. ADD § 8.2.7 Structure maintenance: 53 

§ 8.2.7 Structure maintenance 54 
The exterior of a structure visible from any public way or abutting property must be maintained in good 55 
repair, structurally sound, secure and sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, safety or welfare, 56 
or a substantial reduction of property values of abutting properties.  The following applies to any portion of a 57 
structure which is visible from a public way or abutting property: 58 

A. Permanent siding of uniform and water-resistant material must be applied to any exterior wall.  In the 59 
event that a property is found to be in violation of this requirement, the Code Enforcement Officer shall 60 
approve the material to be applied. 61 

B. Permanent covering such as shingles or standard metal roofing must be applied to the roof.  In the event 62 
that the property is found to be in violation of this requirement, the Code Enforcement Officer shall approve 63 



DRAFT: January 25, 2021 
UPDATED: February 8, 2021 

 

3 
 

the material to be applied. 64 

C. All entrances must be secured with functioning doors, which remain locked if the structure is vacant.   65 

D. There may be no broken windows. 66 

E. All structural elements including but not limited to foundations, roofs, stairs, porches, decks, balconies 67 
and cupolas must be securely installed and in generally good repair. 68 

F. Exception: A building deemed vacant and marked by the Town as such according to §8.2.8 may be 69 
secured via permanent means such as boarding, grating, or bars. 70 

4. ADD § 8.2.8 Vacant buildings and renumber subsequent subsections accordingly: 71 

§ 8.2.8 Vacant Buildings 72 
A. Warning Signs.  When the Code Enforcement Officer determines that a vacant or otherwise derelict 73 
building may pose a serious and immediate risk to public safety officials, including firefighters, emergency 74 
medical technicians, police officers or the like, who may be responding to an emergency call at such 75 
premises, the Code Enforcement Officer has the authority, in person or through agents, after providing 76 
written notice to the property owner or responsible party to enter into any such property to post highly visible 77 
signs on the building which indicate either the building is safe to enter with extreme caution or unsafe to 78 
enter as described below.   79 

(1) A red sign with a white “X” – fireground operations may be conducted only from the outside due to 80 
major interior hazards; or 81 

(2) A red sign with a single white diagonal line- fireground operations may be conducted from the interior 82 
with extreme caution due to interior hazards. 83 

B. Securing a vacant building. When the Code Enforcement Officer determines that a vacant or otherwise 84 
derelict building may pose a serious and immediate risk to the general public, the Town may take actions to 85 
secure the envelope of the structure to prevent unauthorized access, including but not limited to installing 86 
boarding, grating, or bars. 87 

C. Recouping costs incurred by the Town. The cost incurred by the Town for installing warning signs or 88 
securing a vacant or derelict building may be charged against the owner of the real estate upon which the 89 
building was or is located.   90 

5. AMEND §8.2 Enforcing authority as follows:  91 

§8.2.7 9 Enforcing Authority. 92 
This chapter is enforced by the Code Enforcement Officer (CEO), or designee or the Police Department. 93 

6. AMEND §8.2 Notice of violation and order of correction as follows: 94 

§ 8.2.8 10 Notice of violation and order of correction.  95 
When a violation of this chapter exists,Enforcement of this chapter shall be commenced by the Code 96 
Enforcement Officer  the CEO must notifying violator(s) by serving a notice of violation and order of 97 



DRAFT: January 25, 2021 
UPDATED: February 8, 2021 

 

4 
 

correction ("the notice") upon the violator(s). The notice must be in writing, describe the nature of the 98 
violation, and direct the violator(s) to take the action necessary to correct the violation, specifying the time 99 
period for correction as provided in § 8.2.10. The notice must also set forth the fine and/or penalty that could 100 
be imposed in the event that the violation exists as set out in the notice and is not abated and corrected within 101 
the time period set out in the notice. 102 

7. AMEND §8.2 Violations and penalties as follows: 103 

§ 8.2.11 12 Violations and penalties. 104 
A. When a violation of any provision of this chapter is found to exist and is not corrected within the time 105 
period set out in the notice of violation and order of correction, the Town Attorney and the CEO, upon 106 
direction from the Town Manager, are authorized to institute a land use citation and complaint pursuant to 107 
Maine Rules of Civil Procedure 80K, or any other legal or equitable process that may be appropriate and 108 
necessary for the enforcement of the provisions of this chapter, the same to be brought in the name of the 109 
Town.  110 

B. Prosecution of violations of this chapter may be waived if the violator(s) enter a consent agreement which 111 
the Town Manager has authority to execute on behalf of the Town.  Such consent agreement will provide for 112 
timely abatement of the violations.  The agreement may provide that the Town may enter the property to 113 
correct the violations and charge the related costs to the violator(s).  If any such charge remains unpaid after 114 
30 days from invoice, the consent agreement will provide that the Town may assess the costs of remediation 115 
to the owner or tenant as a special tax in accordance with 17 M.R.S. § 2853. 116 

BC. Any person (including tenants in retail businesses) being the owner or tenant of or having control or 117 
use of any building or premises who is found to be in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter is 118 
guilty of a civil violation.  and will be assessed a penalty of $250.  Each day any violation of this Chapter 119 
continues constitutes a separate offense.  The violator is subject to the fines and other sanctions and remedies 120 
provided by 30-A M.R.S. § 4452, currently including, without limitation, a penalty of $100 to $2,500 for a 121 
specific violation, injunctive relief, and attorneys' fees and costs. If the Town is authorized by law or by court 122 
order to enter the property to correct any violation, such remediation costs and related attorneys’ fees may be 123 
assessed against the violator as a special tax in accordance with 17 M.R.S. § 2853. 124 



KITTERY TOWN CODE –  

TITLE 8  

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 

 

DRAFT: January 25, 2021 

AN ORDINANCE relating to the municipality’s authority for Town governance to give due and 1 
proper attention to its many demands pursuant to the Town Charter, Federal law, and Maine 2 
Revised Statutes, and more particularly where set forth in Maine Revised Statutes Title 30-A, 3 
Municipalities and Counties. 4 

WHEREAS, the Kittery Town Council is authorized to enact this Ordinance, as specified in 5 
Sections 1.01 and 2.07(3) of the Town Charter; and 30-A MRS §3001, pursuant to its powers 6 
that authorize the town, under certain circumstances, to provide for the public health, welfare, 7 
morals, and safety, and does not intend for this Ordinance to conflict with any existing state or 8 
federal laws; and 9 

WHEREAS, the Town of Kittery’s Property Maintenance Ordinance seeks to set minimum 10 
standards for maintenance of property within the Town to protect public health, safety, welfare, 11 
the natural environment, and property values; and  12 

WHEREAS, the ordinance was last reviewed and amended by the Town Council in 2011; and  13 

WHEREAS, the Town has identified some deficiencies and areas needing clarification in the 14 
ordinance in order to ensure it serves its purpose effectively; 15 

NOW THEREFORE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 30-A MRS §3001, AND TOWN 16 
CHARTER §2.14, THE TOWN OF KITTERY HEREBY ORDAINS AMENDMENTS TO TITLE 17 
8.2, PROPERTY MAINTENANCE, OF THE TOWN CODE, AS PRESENTED. 18 

INTRODUCED and read in a public session of the Town Council on the ____ day of _______, 19 

20___, by:__________________ {NAME}   Motion to approve by Councilor 20 

__________________ {NAME},  as seconded by Councilor __________________ {NAME} and 21 

passed by a vote of _______. 22 

THIS ORDINANCE IS DULY AND PROPERLY ORDAINED by the Town Council of Kittery, 23 

Maine on the ______ day of _______, 20___, {NAME}, __________________ , Chairperson 24 

Attest:  {NAME}, __________________Town Clerk 25 



TOWN OF KITTERY 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1329 
 
 

REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Date: January 25, 2021 

Updated: February 8, 2021 

From: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 

Subject: Petition for Sewer Extension – Route 236 

Councilor Sponsor: N/A 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The developer of a car wash to be located at a parcel at the corner of MacKenzie Lane and Route 236 is 
seeking approval to extend the sewer main 2,000 feet north along Route 236 from its current terminus at 
Stevenson/Martin/Rte. 236 to their property.   The extension has not been engineered yet, rather the 
applicant is trying to determine if the extension would be allowed before advancing to the design and 
costing stage. 
 
Given certain conditions and considerations, this extension can be beneficial to both the property owner 
and the abutting property owners.  The conditions and considerations would include that the applicant pay 
for the project directly, that the project be a gravity line that meets all of the town’s design and 
performance standards for a public sewer main, and that the main be turned over to the Town upon 
completion, among other terms. 
 
PROPOSED EXTENSION 
The applicant has received Planning Board approval for the development of a car wash on parcel 28-25D.  
Attached is the Staff Report to the Planning Board regarding the project.  It was approved with plans for a 
septic system for wastewater capture and treatment.   
 
Since receiving Planning Board approval the applicant approached the Town about a possible sewer main 
extension up Rte. 236 to their site.  The Town has no plans to undertake a sewer expansion project at this 
time.  In accordance with Title 13, the applicant is exercising their right to seek an expansion at their own 
expense through a petition to the Council. 
 
The proposed extension could impact approximately 17 parcels that lay along the proposed line (possibly 
fewer due to available connection exemption in §13.1.1.11).  There is sufficient capacity in the collection 
and treatment infrastructure to accept the wastewater produced by the applicant and the abutting benefited 
properties (current and anticipated future uses).  The proposal does not negatively impact capacity of the 
sewer service.  The proposal does have the potential to add value to the properties along the extension, 
enhance environmental protections, and increase development opportunities.  
 
If approved, the applicant would then engage in a design process to determine whether or not to proceed 
with the project.   
 



MEETING DATE: JANUARY 25, 2021 
UPDATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2021 

  2  

The proposed extension should be built as a gravity main and sized accordingly to accept flow from 
potential future connections.  The extension will take up valuable real estate in the underground utility 
corridor along Rte. 236 and should therefore be built to benefit not only the applicant but the abutting 
properties’ current and future uses. 
 
The proposed extension should be turned over to the Town as a public asset.   The Town will assume all 
ongoing maintenance and replacement costs, and will collect all metered flows through the main in 
perpetuity.  
 
Per Town Attorney, the abutting parcels would be required to connect to the sewer main and pay the 
respective impact and entrance fees to the Town.  This connection requirement can be postponed until the 
existing septic system servicing each property exceeds 20 years old.   Requirements and exemptions to 
connect are specified in §13.1.1.11. 
 
Per Town Attorney, the Town is not obligated to recoup the costs of the installation on behalf of the 
applicant, through a betterment assessment.  The Town is required to assess a betterment, however this 
can be simply the corresponding change in value that access to a public sewer utility affords.  Typically, 
access to a public sewer utility increases the value of property on average 7% and 10%.   
 
UPDATE 
The staff and applicant met, prior to the February 8 Council meeting, to discuss their proposal for a force 
main rather than a gravity line.  The staff disagree that a 2” main would sufficiently serve the future 
development of the corridor, however we do acknowledge that a force main approach is viable if designed 
appropriately to accommodate the anticipated future growth.  
 
The Council has asked whether the staff recommend the petition for approval.  Access to the sewer utility 
along 236 is generally desirable.  The Town of Eliot’s recent votes on their sewer expansion confirm that 
they do not intend to connect down Rte. 236 to the Kittery line; therefore, any expansion on Rte. 236 will 
be solely on the Kittery side of the town line.  Utilizing a force main approach will require property owners 
to install and maintain individual pumps at each property.  Regardless of the approach (force main or 
gravity) the property owners will need to connect, and in some cases perform a directional bore under Rte. 
236 to reach the line.   
 
Approval, if deemed appropriate by the Council, should be made only under certain conditions.  Below is a 
proposed draft motion and conditions.   
 
The Kittery Town Council moves to approve the petition for extension of sewer service on Route 236 to MacKenzie Lane with 
the following conditions: 

• Applicant must bear the full cost of the design, permitting, and installation of the extension (“the 
project”).  Applicant will not be reimbursed for the cost of the extension by the Town or by the 
benefiting property owners. 

• Applicant must build a sewer line to the Town’s existing sewer main, in accordance with design 
and performance standards set by the Sewer Department, and in a manner that supports current 
and potential future development of the benefiting properties. 

• Applicant must legally transfer the assets to the Town within 30 days of the completion of the 
project. 

• Benefited property owners will receive a 90-day notice to connect upon transfer of the assets to the 
Town.  The Town will automatically grant deferrals for any property where their septic system is 
less than 20-years old per Title 13; however, abutting benefited properties must be permitted to 



MEETING DATE: JANUARY 25, 2021 
UPDATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2021 

  3  

connect to the project during construction, if they so desire.  Those qualifying for an exemption 
will be notified accordingly. 
 

PROPOSED SOLUTION/RECOMMENDATION  
Schedule a public hearing to consider the matter.   
 
The Staff recommend approval of the application with the following conditions: 
• Applicant must bear the full cost of the design, permitting, and installation of the extension (“the 

project”).  Applicant will not be reimbursed for the cost of the extension by the Town or by the 
benefiting property owners. 

• Applicant must build a sewer line to the Town’s public sewer main in accordance with design and 
performance standards set by the Sewer Department. 

• Applicant must legally transfer the assets to the Town within 30 days of the completion of the project. 
• Benefited property owners will receive a 90-day notice to connect upon transfer of the assets to the 

Town.  The Town will automatically grant deferrals for any property where their septic system is less 
than 20-years old per Title 13; however, abutting benefited properties must be permitted to connect to 
the project during construction, if they so desire.  Those qualifying for an exemption will be notified 
accordingly. 

• Benefited property owners will be required to obtain a connection permit, and pay permit fees, 
entrance and impact fees to the Town in accordance with Title 13 and Appendix A. 

• Benefited properties along the extension will be reviewed by the Town Assessor upon completion of 
the project and have a valuation adjustment accordingly. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Petition for Sewer Extension 
• Staff Report for Planning Board  
• Town Attorney opinion on impact to abutting properties 
• Title 13 











 
 
 

PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Route 236 M28 L25D 
 
  Page 1  
Final Site Plan Review   

 

Town of Kittery Maine 
Town Planning Board Meeting 

September 24 , 2020 
 
ITEM 1  –Route 236 / MacKenzie Lane – Final Site Plan Review 
Action: Continue to a subsequent meeting; approve or deny plan Owner/applicant Robert T. Brennan, Jr. 
requests consideration of a final site plan for a 1,672 sf 1-story building proposed for a car wash on a 
324,233 sf lot located at the corner of Route 236 and MacKenzie Lane (Tax Map 28, Lot 25D) in the 
Commercial (C-2) Zone. Agent is Ryan McCarthy, Tidewater Engineering, Inc. 
  
PROJECT TRACKING 

REQ’D ACTION COMMENTS STATUS 

NO Sketch Plan Review None. N/A 

YES Site Visit July 7, 2020 HELD 

YES Determination of 
Completeness/Acceptance June 25, 2020 ACCEPTED 

YES Public Hearing July 23, 2020; August 27,2020 HELP 

YES Final Plan Review and Decision September 24, 2020 PENDING 
Plan Review Notes reflect comments and recommendations regarding applicability of Town Land Use Development Code, and standard 
planning and development practices. Only the PB makes final decisions on code compliance and approves, approves with conditions or denies 
final plans.  Prior to the signing of the approved Plan any Conditions of Approval related to the Findings of Fact along with waivers and 
variances (by the BOA) must be placed on the Final Plan and recorded at the York County Registry of Deeds.  PLACE THE MAP AND 
LOT NUMBER IN 1/4” HIGH LETTERS AT LOWER RIGHT BORDER OF ALL PLAN SHEETS.   As per Section 16.4.4.L - 
Grading/Construction Final Plan Required. - Grading or construction of roads, grading of land or lots, or construction of buildings is prohibited 
until the original copy of the approved final plan endorsed has been duly recorded in the York County registry of deeds when applicable.  

 
Background 
 

The Planning Board (“Board”) has accepted the preliminary plan as complete at their June 25, 2020  
Meeting and now is charged to review the final plan submission. The proposed development is a 1,672 sf  
24-hour two-bay car wash on an existing vacant lot located in the Commercial C-2 zone. The proposal 
includes four vacuum bays, one parking space for an employee who will service the business periodically 
and queuing space for 8-12 cars. 
 

On June 25, 2020, the Board was first introduced to the plan. The questions and topics emanating from 
that meeting were as follows: 

 

1. Installation of bathroom facilities and type of disposal system to be installed; 
2. widening MacKenzie Lane to include a turn lane onto Route 236;  
3. backlit signage and its permissibility; 
4. extent and constitution of the wetland along MacKenzie Lane; and 
5. the operation and maintenance of the business and site.  

 

Subsequent to the June 25, 2020 meeting, the Board held a site walk to orient itself with the site elements. 
Major topics stemming from that site walk regarded the following: 
 

1. The site’s traffic flow and circulation; 
2. Location of, and proximity of utilities and natural features to the road; 
3. Location and constitution of the wetland along MacKenzie; 
4. Natural features to remain, removed and replaced on the site. 

 
 
 

ITEM 4 



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 2  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

The Planning Board opened the public hearing at their July 23, 2020 meeting. The applicant, responding to 
Town staff comments from the June 25, 2020 meeting, designed a conceptual ‘road expansion’ depicting 
the widening of MacKenzie Lane to accommodate a right-hand turn lane onto Route 236. Before proceeding 
to an advance design, the applicant sought a preliminary endorsement from the Board to proceed with the 
road expansion without doing an comprehensive traffic study. The Board agreed with the condition that the 
remaining comments from the Department of Public Works enumerated in an email correspondent, dated 
July 23, 2020, be satisfactorily resolved. Other issues that were raised during the hearing regarded the soil 
composition and its ability to support the proposed building, appurtenant infrastructure as well as the 
stormwater design component and the permissibility of backlit signage and whether or not a bathroom is 
required by local and state code. Otherwise, the Board found the site plan to be in a satisfactory state. Due 
to the pandemic, the Board decided to continue the public hearing to the August 27, 2020 meeting so as to 
give the public more time to provide comments and the applicant adequate time to provide revise the plan. 
 

At the August 27, 2020, meeting, the Board approved a preliminary site plan as they found the proposed 
plan resolved all the comments generated at the June 25, 2020 July 23, 2020 and site walk meetings with 
the exception of a few outstanding issues. To wit, the Board directed the applicant to dig further into the 
history of the site’s usage and its soil characteristic to confirm: (1) the quality of the soils, and (2) the soil’s 
ability to support the proposed infrastructure. Furthermore, the applicant was directed to submit a proposal 
for an alternative waste disposal system that would comply with state and local regulations, as a bathroom 
would be required for employees to use, and to confirm whether or not the drainage swale along MacKenzie 
Lane is considered a wetland.  
 

Staff Review and Comments 
 

An updated plan set was submitted on September 3, 2020 that incorporated revisions as discussed at the 
August 27, 2020 meeting. The applicant is proposing to remove and most of the existing fill that the 
proposed structures will resided over with appropriate and clean material. CMA suggested that the applicant 
go further by removing more fill than proposed to ensure that all the soil the structures touch will be clean, 
which seems appropriate and reasonable given the goal is to make the site as less contaminated as possible. 
 

As regards the ditch in questioned along MacKenzie Lane, it appears, based on its characteristics, that its 
essence indeed is a ditch and not a wetland, considering that it is 12 ft. in width and functions as a 
conveyance of water into the wetland north thereof. Turning to the waste disposal system, the applicant is 
proposing to install a incinerating toilet that will be used for employees only. Code Enforcement contacted 
the state to see if this type of system would be permissible in such a development and according to the state 
regulations, deference is given to the Local Plumbing Inspector in such cases. Conceptually, Code 
Enforcement agrees that this type of system may be permitted and more detail will need to be provided at 
the time a building permit is applied for. As for the water from the bathroom sink, Planning staff inquired 
and confirmed with the Local Plumbing Inspector that the water would be permitted to flow into the 
proposed holding tank storing the effluent from the car wash and an addition holding tank is unnecessary. 
 
Recommendations 
 
This application appears to be complete and equipped for final site plan approval as planning staff and 
CMA agree that most of the characteristics of the site’s design is satisfactory to move forward. The Board 
should present any remaining inquiries it may have for the applicant and discuss any additional conditions 
to be added if a vote to approve is considered. If the Board decides to vote for approval, the following 
conditions, in addition to the normally applied conditions, are recommend to be appended to the vote: 
 

1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall execute and record at the York County 
Registry of Deeds an easement with the Town of Kittery to widen the easement for Mackenzie Lane. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a revised site plan, to be 
reviewed and approved by the Town’s consultant engineer, that depicts and directs the excavation 



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 3  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

and removal of the existing soils between the foundation walls under the building and the volume 
of material between the bottom of the wash water tanks and native soils, and replaced with clean 
granular soils, as described in a review letter by CMA Engineers Inc., dated September 16, 2020.  

Recommended motions 
 

Below are recommended motions based on how the Board would like to proceed. Again, procedurally, the 
Board needs to vote to continue, approve, approve with conditions, or deny.  
. 
 

Vote to continue 
 

Move to continue the final site plan application dated March 5, 2020 and last revised on September 3, 2020  
from owner/applicant Robert T. Brennan, Jr., for a 1,672 sf 1-story building proposed for a car wash 
on a 324,233 sf lot located at the corner of Route 236 and MacKenzie Lane (Tax Map 289, Lot 
25D) in the Commercial (C-2) Zone with the conditions as enumerated in ‘Recommendations 
section of the Planner’s Review Notes, dated September 24, 2020. 
 

Vote to approve 
 

Move to approve the final site plan application dated March 5, 2020 and last revised on September 3, 2020  
from owner/applicant Robert T. Brennan, Jr., for a 1,672 sf 1-story building proposed for a car wash 
on a 324,233 sf lot located at the corner of Route 236 and MacKenzie Lane (Tax Map 289, Lot 
25D) in the Commercial (C-2) Zone with the conditions as enumerated in ‘Recommendations 
section of the Planner’s Review Notes, dated September 24, 2020. 
 

Vote to deny 
 

Move to deny the final site plan application dated March 5, 2020 and last revised on September 3, 2020 
from owner/applicant Robert T. Brennan, Jr., for a 1,672 sf 1-story building proposed for a car wash 
on a 324,233 sf lot located at the corner of Route 236 and MacKenzie Lane (Tax Map 289, Lot 
25D) in the Commercial (C-2) Zone.



 
 
 

PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Route 236 M28 L25D 
 
  Page 4  
Final Site Plan Review   

 

KITTERY PLANNING BOARD         UNAPPROVED  
FINDINGS OF FACT                                         M28 L25D 
for 
Route 236 / MacKenzie Lane 
Site Plan Review 
 
Note:  This approval by the Planning Board constitutes an agreement between the Town and the Developer incorporating the 
Development plan and supporting documentation, the Findings of Fact, and all waivers and/or conditions approved and required 
by the Planning Board.  
 
WHEREAS: Owner/applicant Robert T. Brennan, Jr. requests consideration of a final site plan for a 1,672 
sf 1-story building proposed for a car wash on a 324,233 sf lot located at the corner of Route 236 and 
MacKenzie Lane (Tax Map 28, Lot 25D) in the Commercial (C-2) Zone. Agent is Ryan McCarthy, 
Tidewater Engineering, Inc. 
 
Hereinafter the “Development”. 
 
Pursuant to the Plan Review meetings conducted by the Planning Board as duly noted in the Plan Review 
Notes dated September 24, 2020; 

 
 
And pursuant to the Application and Plan and other documents considered to be a part of the plan review 
decision by the Town Planning Board in this Finding of Fact consisting of the following (Hereinafter the 
“Plan”). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, based on the entire record before the Planning Board as and pursuant to the applicable 
standards in the Land Use and Development Code, the Planning Board makes the following factual findings 
and conclusions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTION COMMENTS STATUS 

Sketch Plan Review None. N/A 

Site Visit July 7, 2020 HELD 
Determination of 
Completeness/Acceptance June 25, 2020 ACCEPTED 

Public Hearing July 23, 2020; August 27,2020 HELD 

Final Plan Review and Decision September 24, 2020 APPROVED 



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 5  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

5 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

Action by the board shall be based upon findings of fact which certify or waive compliance with all the 
required standards of this title, and which certify that the development satisfies the following requirements: 

A. Development Conforms to Local Ordinances. 
Standard: The proposed development conforms to a duly adopted comprehensive plan as per adopted 
provisions in the Town Code, zoning ordinance, subdivision regulation or ordinance, development plan or land 
use plan, if any. In making this determination, the municipal reviewing authority may interpret these ordinances 
and plans. 
Finding: The site plan application for a car wash development with associated utilities conforms to 
applicable Title 16 standards with the waivers and conditions of approval included herein. 
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

B. Freshwater Wetlands Identified. 

Standard: All freshwater wetlands within the project area have been identified on any maps submitted as part 
of the application, regardless of the size of these wetlands.  

Finding: All wetlands have been identified and no impacts are proposed. 
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

C.  River, Stream or Brook Identified. 

Standard: Any river, stream or brook within or abutting the proposed project area has been identified on any 
maps submitted as part of the application. For purposes of this section, “river, stream or brook” has the same 
meaning as in 38 M.R.S. §480-B, Subsection 9. 

Finding: No rivers, streams, or brooks have been identified on site.   
Conclusion: This standard is not applicable. 

 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

D. Water Supply Sufficient. {and} 

Standard: The proposed development has sufficient water available for the reasonably foreseeable needs of 
the development. 

E. Municipal Water Supply Available. 

Standard: The proposed development will not cause an unreasonable burden on an existing water supply, if 
one is to be used. 

Finding: The proposed development will not adversely impact the municipal water supply as indicated in a 
letter, dated March 3, 2020 from the Kittery water district. 
Conclusion: This standards appears to be met. 

 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 6  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

6 
 

F. Sewage Disposal Adequate. 

Standard: The proposed development will provide for adequate sewage waste disposal and will not cause an 
unreasonable burden on municipal services if they are utilized. 
Finding: The proposed car wash will use an alternative waste disposal system that does not require a septic 
system, leach field nor any associated subsurface infrastructure. 
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
 

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

G. Municipal Solid Waste Disposal Available. 

Standard: The proposed development will not cause an unreasonable burden on the municipality’s ability to 
dispose of solid waste, if municipal services are to be used. 

Finding: The proposed car wash is not connecting into the Town’s sewer system. 
Conclusion: This standard is not applicable. 

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

H. Water Body Quality and Shoreline Protected. 

Standard: Whenever situated entirely or partially within two hundred fifty (250) feet of any wetland, the 
proposed development will not adversely affect the quality of that body of water or unreasonably affect the 
shoreline of that body of water. 

Finding: The proposed car wash is not located in the Shoreland or Resource Protection Overlay Zones.   
Conclusion: This standard is not applicable. 

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

I. Groundwater Protected. 

Standard: The proposed development will not, alone or in conjunction with existing activities, adversely affect 
the quality or quantity of groundwater. 

Finding: The proposed car wash will not adversely affect groundwater as the gray water from the wash 
station will be collected, held and pump from a holding tank, and the non-point source runoff from the 
parking lot will be collected and treated by stormwater infrastructure.  
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

J. Flood Areas Identified and Development Conditioned. 

Standard: All flood-prone areas within the project area have been identified on maps submitted as part of the 
application based on the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps and 
Flood Insurance Rate Maps, and information presented by the applicant. If the proposed development, or any 
part of it, is in such an area, the applicant must determine the one hundred (100) year flood elevation and flood 
hazard boundaries within the project area. The proposed plan must include a condition of plan approval 
requiring that principal structures in the development will be constructed with their lowest floor, including the 
basement, at least one foot above the one hundred (100) year flood elevation. 



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 7  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

7 
 

Finding: There are no flood-prone areas present.  
Conclusion: This standard is not applicable.  

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

K. Stormwater Managed. 

Standard: Stormwater Managed. The proposed development will provide for adequate stormwater 
management 
Finding: The proposed car wash is located on a 7.44-acre lot with a designed stormwater collection and 
treatment infrastructure that will provide for adequate stormwater management.  
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
 

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

L. Erosion Controlled. 

Standard: The proposed development will not cause unreasonable soil erosion or a reduction in the land’s 
capacity to hold water so that a dangerous or unhealthy condition results. 

Finding: The contractor is following MDEP best management practices for erosion and sedimentation 
control with site work for the car wash  
 
Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 

 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

M. Traffic Managed. 

Standard: The proposed development will: 
1. Not cause unreasonable highway or public road congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to the use 
of the highways or public roads existing or proposed; and 

2. Provide adequate traffic circulation, both on-site and off-site. 

Finding: The increase in vehicular traffic generated by the car wash is mitigated by two elements: site 
design and the widening of MacKenzie Lane. Specifically, the site’s layout is designed to allow for 11 
cars to queue while waiting to use the car wash facility, and (2) the widening of MacKenzie Lane will 
permit an increase rate of access for right-hand turning traffic onto Route 236, thereby mitigating the 
queuing of the left-hand turning lane onto Route 236. 
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
 

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 
N. Water and Air Pollution Minimized. 

Standard: The proposed development will not result in undue water or air pollution. In making this 
determination, the following must be considered: 
 

1. Elevation of the land above sea level and its relation to the floodplains; 
2. Nature of soils and sub-soils and their ability to adequately support waste disposal; 
3. Slope of the land and its effect on effluents; 
4. Availability of streams for disposal of effluents; 
5. Applicable state and local health and water resource rules and regulations; and 



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 8  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

8 
 

6. Safe transportation, disposal and storage of hazardous materials. 
Finding:  
1. All proposed development is located outside of a Flood Hazard Area. 
2. Addressed in the previous standard on waste disposal. 
3 thru 4. Not applicable to the proposed development. 
5 thru 6. The applicant shall follow all state rules and regulations on removing gray water and any other 
hazardous byproducts from the site. In summary, the proposed car wash will not result in undue water or air 
pollution.   
 
Conclusion: This standard appears to be met.  

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

 
O. Aesthetic, Cultural and Natural Values Protected. 

Standard: The proposed development will not have an undue adverse effect on the scenic or natural beauty of 
the area, aesthetics, historic sites, significant wildlife habitat identified by the department of inland fisheries 
and wildlife or the municipality, or rare and irreplaceable natural areas or any public rights for physical or 
visual access to the shoreline. 

Finding: During the initial investigation of the property, the applicant discovered there was a New England 
Cottontail Rabbit sighting on the property located on the northwest portion of the lot, far away from the 
proposed car wash location. Considering the proximity between the proposed development and the sighting 
location of the cotton tail, it appears the car wash will not have an adverse impact on the location of that 
sighting. The applicant has reached out to Maine Inland Fisheries and Wildlife and has yet to receive a 
response on the locations significance. The proposed car wash appears it will not impact any significant 
aesthetic, cultural or natural values that require protection.   
 

Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

P. Developer Financially and Technically Capable. 

Standard: Developer is financially and technically capable to meet the standards of this section. 

Finding: The applicant has received financing to construct the proposed car wash.     
Conclusion: This standard appears to be met. 

Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Kittery Planning Board adopts each of the foregoing Findings of Fact and based 
on these Findings determines the proposed Development will have no significant detrimental impact, and 
the Kittery Planning Board hereby grants final approval for the Development at the above referenced 
property, including any waivers granted or conditions as noted.   
 
 
 
Waivers:  
 

1. Section 16.8, Table 1c. 5ft. wide sidewalks not to be required along MacKenzie Lane. 
 
Conditions of Approval: (to be included on the final plan):   



 
PLAN REVIEW NOTES  September 24, 2020 
Rt 236 M28 L25D  Page 9  
Final Site Plan Review   
 

9 
 

 
3. No changes, erasures, modifications or revisions may be made to any Planning Board approved final 

plan unless conforming with the provision under §16.10.9.1.2, §16.10.9.2 and §16.10.9.3. 

4. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall execute and record at the York County 
Registry of Deeds an easement with the Town of Kittery to widen the easement for Mackenzie Lane 

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a revised site plan, to be reviewed 
and approved by the Town’s consultant engineer, that depicts and directs the excavation and removal 
of the existing soils between the foundation walls under the building and the volume of material between 
the bottom of the wash water tanks and native soils, and replaced with clean granular soils, as described 
in a review letter by CMA Engineers Inc., dated September 16, 2020.  

6. All Notices to Applicant contained in the Findings of Fact (dated: 9/24/2020). 
 
Notices to Applicant:  (not to be included on the final plan) 
 
1. Prior to the release of the signed plans, the applicant must pay all outstanding fees associated with 

review, including, but not limited to, Town Attorney fees, peer review, newspaper advertisements and 
abutter notification. 

2. State law requires all subdivision and shoreland development plans, and any plans receiving waivers or 
variances, be recorded at the York County Registry of Deeds within 90 days of the final approval.  

3. One (1) mylar copy and one (1) paper copy of the final plan (recorded plan if applicable) and any and 
all related state/federal permits or legal documents that may be required, must be submitted to the Town 
Planning Department.  Date of Planning Board approval shall be included on the final plan in the 
Signature Block. 

4. This approval by the Town Planning Board constitutes an agreement between the Town and the 
Developer, incorporating the Plan and supporting documentation, the Findings of Fact, and any 
Conditions of Approval.  

 

The Planning Board authorizes the Planning Board Chair, or Vice Chair, to sign the Final Plan and the 
Findings of Fact upon confirmation of compliance with any conditions of approval.  

 
Vote of 7 in favor 0 against 0 abstaining 

 

APPROVED BY THE KITTERY PLANNING BOARD ON September 24, 2020 
 
 

Dutch Dunkelberger, Planning Board Chair 
 

Appeal of Decision: 
 
1. Per Title 16.6.2.A - An aggrieved party with legal standing may appeal a final decision of the 

Planning Board to the York County Superior Court in accordance with Maine Rules of Civil 
Procedures Section 80B, within forty-five (45) days from the date the decision by the Planning Board 
was rendered. 

 



 

Stephen E.F. Langsdorf 
slangsdorf@preti.com 

 

 
 

 
16479090.1 

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: Kendra Amaral, Town Manager 
 

FROM: Stephen E.F. Langsdorf, Town Attorney 

DATE: January 20, 2021 

RE: Guidance for Sewer Extension Petition 

  
I. Introduction 

On January 4, 2021, the Town received a Petition for Sewer Main Extension on Route 
236. This proposal is scheduled to be considered at the January 25, 2021 Town Council Meeting. 
Guidance on relevant Town duties and authority in relation to the project is outlined below.   

II. The abutting properties to the new extension will be required to connect to 
the new force main when determined by the Town.  

The abutting properties to the new extension would be required to connect to the new 
main when determined appropriate by the Town. Pursuant to Kittery Town Ordinance § 
13.1.1.11 (a) “Owners of all structures with use requiring the disposal of sewage with public 
sewer located within 100 feet of the property line . . . are required, at their expense, to install 
suitable waste effuent [ ] facilities . . . and to connect such facilities directly to the public sewer . 
. . within 90 days after the date of official notice to do so.” Additionally, Kittery Town 
Ordinance § 16.8.7.1 (a) states that “connection to public sewer is required, provided said sewer, 
located within an abutting public way, is within 100 feet of the property line as measured along 
the said public way. Individual dwellings and structures . . . where public sewer becomes 
available . . . must connect per the requirements of Title 13, Chapter 13.1.” 

III. The Town may require abutting properties to connect to the new main upon 
failure of their septic system or within 90 days with an available deferral for 
any septic system less than 20 years old. 

Kittery Town Ordinance § 13.1.5.6 states that “when a public sewer becomes available, 
the building sewer must be connected to said sewer within 90 days after the date of official 
notice.” Strict reading of the ordinance indicates that the “date of official notice” is what triggers 
the 90-day period. Once the project has been completed, the Town can immediately send notice 
to abutting property owners. Once notice is received, an owner can request an extension for up to 
20 years if the septic tank and leach field system is less than 20 years old at the time of the 



 

 - 2 - 
16479090.1 

project completion date. See § 13.1.1.11 (D).  If the system has failed the exemption is not 
available. 

IV. The Town of Kittery can collect impact and entrance fees despite the Town 
not paying for the construction of the extension. 

The sewer extension proposal states that “[t]he proposed force main will become the 
property of the Town of Kittery once construction is complete and after passing all necessary 
inspections and testing requirements.” (Proposal, p. 3). Once constructed, the line becomes the 
property and responsibility of the Town. Pursuant to Kittery Town Ordinance § 13.1.1.6, “[t]he 
Department is responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the main or common sewer line . . 
.” Additionally, § 13.1.4.3(B) grants the authority for the Town Council to set fees in main 
extension projects: “The Town Council has the power to make assessments for the costs of any 
extensions it approves. The Council may also establish such rates for entrance and other charges 
for the use of said sewage system against the owners of the property served by said system or to 
which such service is available as it may deem necessary to help defray cost of maintaining and 
operating system.” These fees are collected pursuant to § 13.1.4.4 by the Tax Collector.  There is 
no stated or implied exemption based on who constructed the sewer. 

V. The Town is compelled to implement an assessment on the bettered 
properties; the Town is not compelled to implement an assessment on the 
bettered properties on behalf of the private developer constructing the 
extension. 

The Town is compelled to implement an assessment on the bettered properties. Kittery 
Town Ordinance § 13.1.4.3 (A) requires municipal officers, once construction is completed, to 
determine what lots or parcels of land are benefited by the sewer line and the officers must 
“estimate and assess upon said lots or parcels of land, and against the record owner or owners 
thereof or against a person against whom the taxes thereon are assessed, a sum not exceeding the 
benefit . . .”  The betterment can be a dollar figure or simply be the change in property value that 
will occur as a result of the sewer main being accessible to the property. 

There is nothing in the ordinance indicating an obligation to implement an assessment on 
the bettered properties on behalf of the private developer constructing the extension.  

 

SEFL:amm 
 
 
 



Chapter 13.1

SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM

13.1:1



ARTICLE I
In General

§ 13.1.1.1. Definitions and abbreviations.

A. Terms defined. Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the
meaning of terms used in this chapter are as follows:
BOD (DENOTING BIOCHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND) — The quantity
of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under
standard laboratory procedure in five days at 20° C., expressed in
milligrams per liter.
BUILDING DRAIN — That part of the lowest horizontal piping of a
drainage system which receives the discharge from soil, waste and
other drainage pipes inside the walls of the building and conveys it to
the building sewer, beginning five feet (1.5 meters) outside the inner
face of the building wall.
BUILDING SEWER — The extension from the building drain to the
public sewer or other place of disposal.
COMBINED SEWER — A sewer receiving both surface runoff and
sewage.
DEVELOPER — Any person or persons who undertake to construct
simultaneously or in planned sequence more than one housing unit on
a given tract or land subdivision.
EASEMENT — An acquired legal right for the specific use of land
owned by others.
ENGINEER — The professional engineer retained as Town Engineer by
the Town Council.
FLOATABLE OIL — Oil, fat or grease in physical state such as that it
will separate by gravity from wastewater by treatment in an approved
pretreatment facility. Wastewater is considered free of floatable oil if it
is properly pretreated and the wastewater does not interfere with the
collection system.
GARBAGE — Solid wastes from the domestic and commercial
preparation, cooking and dispensing of food, and from the handling,
storage and sale of produce.
INDUSTRIAL WASTES — The liquid wastes from industrial
manufacturing processes, trade or business as distinct from sanitary
sewage.
NATURAL OUTLET — Any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake
or other body of surface water or groundwater.
pH — The logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of hydrogen ions in
grams per liter of solution.
POLLUTANTS — Includes, but are not limited to, dredged spoil, solid
waste, junk, sewage sludge, munitions, chemicals, biological or

§ 13.1.1.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.1.1

13.1:3



radiological materials, oil, petroleum products or by-products, heat-
wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, dirt and industrial,
municipal, domestic, commercial or agricultural waste of any kind.
PROPERLY SHREDDED GARBAGE — The wastes from the preparation,
cooking and dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a
degree that all particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions
normally prevailing in public sewers, with no particle greater than 1/2
inch (1.27 centimeters) in any dimension.
PUBLIC SEWER — A sewer in which all owners of abutting properties
have equal rights and is controlled by public authority.
SANITARY SEWER — A sewer which carries sewage and to which
stormwaters, surface waters and groundwaters are not intentionally
admitted.
SEWAGE — A combination of the water-carried wastes from residences,
business buildings, institutions and industrial establishments, together
with such groundwaters, surface waters and stormwaters as may be
present.
SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT — Any arrangement of devices and
structures used for treating sewage.
SEWAGE WORKS — All facilities for collecting, pumping, treating and
disposing of sewage.
SEWER — A pipe or conduit for carrying sewage.
SLUG — Any discharge of water, sewage or industrial waste which in
concentration of any given constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds,
for any period of duration longer than 15 minutes, more than five times
the average twenty-four-hour concentration or flows during normal
operation.
STORM DRAIN (sometimes termed "STORM SEWER") — A sewer
which carries stormwaters and surface waters and drainage, but
excludes sewage and industrial wastes, other than unpolluted cooling
water.
SUPERINTENDENT — The Superintendent of Sewer Services of the
Town.1

SUSPENDED SOLIDS — Total suspended matter that either floats on
the surface of, or is in suspension in, water, wastewater or other liquids,
and that is removable by laboratory filtering as prescribed in Standard
Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, published by
the American Public Health Association; and referred to as
"nonfilterable residue."
UNPOLLUTED WATER — Water of quality equal to or better than
the effluent criteria in effect or water that would not cause violation
of receiving water quality standards and would not be benefited by

1. Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1.1, Code Adoption).

§ 13.1.1.1 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.1.1

13.1:4



discharge to the sanitary sewers and wastewater treatment facilities
provided.
WASTEWATER — The spent water of a community from the standpoint
of source, it may be a combination of the liquid and water-carried
wastes from residences, business buildings, institutions and industrial
establishments, together with such groundwater, surface water and
stormwaters as may be present.
WASTEWATER FACILITIES — The structures, equipment and processes
required to collect, carry away and treat domestic and industrial waste
and dispose of the effluent.
WASTEWATER TREATMENT WORKS — An arrangement of devices and
structures for treating wastewater, industrial waste and sludge.
WATERCOURSE — A natural or artificial channel for the passage of
water, either continuously or intermittently.

B. Abbreviations. For the purpose of this chapter, the following
abbreviations have the meanings ascribed to them under this
subsection. References to standards of the following organizations refer
to the latest edition of same.

ANSI means American National Standards Institute
ASCE means American Society of Civil Engineers
ASME means American Society of Mechanical Engineers
ASTM means American Society for Testing and Materials
cm means centimeter
CS means Commercial Standards
degrees C. means degrees Celsius
degrees F. means degrees Fahrenheit
DEP means Maine Department of Environmental Protection
EPA means United States Environmental Protection Agency
ICR means industrial cost recovery
kg means kilogram
l means liter
m means meter
mg/l means milligrams per liter
NEIWPCC means New England Interstate Wastewater Pollution
Control Commission
NPC means National Plumbing Code
ppm means parts per million
Sq. m. means square meter
WPCF means Water Pollution Control Federation

§ 13.1.1.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.1.2

13.1:5



§ 13.1.1.2. Violations and penalties; violator's liability; additional
remedies.

§ 13.1.1.3. Authority to enter properties to make inspections, etc.;
limited authority of inquiry.

A. Any person found to be violating any of the provisions of this chapter
except § 13.1.1.9 is to be served by the Town with written notice stating
the nature of the violation and providing a reasonable time limit for the
satisfactory correction thereof. The offender must, within the period of
time stated in such notice, permanently cease all violations. A person
who violates any provision of this chapter is subject to penalties set
forth in Town Code Title 1, Chapter 1.3, General Penalty.

B. Any person who continues any such violation beyond the time limit
specified in the notice is guilty of a misdemeanor and on conviction
thereof is to be fined in the amount not exceeding $100 for each
violation. Each day in which any such violation continues is deemed a
separate offense.

C. Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter is liable to the
Town for any expense, loss or damage occasioned the Town by reason of
such violation.

D. The Town Council, in addition to other remedies, may institute any
appropriate action or proceedings, including an injunction, to prevent
such unlawful use, construction or maintenance of cesspools, septic
tanks, sewage disposal systems, pipes or drains, to restrain, correct or
abate such violation and to prevent the occupancy of any building,
structure or land where said violations of this chapter are found.

A. The Superintendent and other duly authorized employees of the Town
bearing proper credentials and identification may be permitted to enter
all properties on consent of the owner or occupant thereof for the
purposes of inspection, observation, measurements, sampling and
testing in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.

B. The Superintendent has no authority to inquire into any processes,
including metallurgical, chemical, oil, refining, ceramic, paper or other
industries, beyond that point having a direct bearing on the kind and
source of discharge to the sewers or waterways of facilities for waste
treatment.

C. The Superintendent or other duly authorized employees of the Town are
authorized to obtain information concerning industrial processes which
have a direct bearing on the kind and source of discharge to
wastewater facilities. The industry must establish that the revelation to
the public of the information in question might result in an advantage to
competitors.

§ 13.1.1.2 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.1.4

13.1:6



§ 13.1.1.4. Liability for injuries, damages resulting from
inspections.

While performing the necessary work on private properties, the
Superintendent or duly authorized employees of the Town shall observe all
safety rules applicable to the premises established by the company, and
the company is held for injury or death to the Town employees, and the
Town must indemnify the company against loss or damage to its property
by Town employees and against liability claims and demands for personal
injury or property damage asserted against the company and growing out
of the gauging and sampling operation, except as such may be caused
by negligence or failure of the company to maintain safe conditions as
required.

§ 13.1.1.5. Authority to enter easement; terms of easement govern.

The Superintendent and other duly authorized employees of the Town
bearing proper credentials and identification may be permitted to enter all
private properties upon consent of the owner or occupant thereof through
which the Town holds a duly negotiated easement for the purposes of, but
not limited to, inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, repair and
maintenance of any portion of the sewage works lying within the easement.
All entries and subsequent work, if any, on such easement, must be done in
full accordance with the terms of the duly negotiated easement pertaining
to the private property involved.

§ 13.1.1.6. Maintenance responsibility of Sewer Department.

The Department is responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the main
or common sewer line only.

§ 13.1.1.7. Rates and charges.

A. The Town Council shall establish such rates as they deem necessary for
the maintenance, operation, repair and improvements to the system,
and establish and maintain an unencumbered fund reserve
(unencumbered surplus) of an amount equal to the equivalent of 22% of
the current year operating budget. Such rates may be changed from
time to time as they deem necessary. The user charge and appropriate
cost recovery system as set out in Appendix A is to be established in
accordance with appropriate federal and state laws, rules and
regulations. [Amended 6-11-2018 by Ord. No. 06-18]

B. Sewer charges levied pursuant to this chapter not paid by July 1 of the
following year are to be certified to the Treasurer of the Town who is to
place the same on the real estate property tax bill for that year with
interest and penalties allowed by law and collected as other Town taxes
are collected. [Amended 6-11-2018 by Ord. No. 06-18]

§ 13.1.1.4 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.1.7

13.1:7



§ 13.1.1.8. Basis for decisions of Superintendent.

In making decisions authorized pursuant to the terms of this chapter, the
Superintendent shall consider the effect of any proposed action or inaction
upon the public health, safety or welfare and the effects of such proposed
action or inaction upon the sewer works, processes, equipment and
receiving waters.

§ 13.1.1.9. Damaging or tampering with equipment prohibited.
[Amended 5-30-2018 by Ord. No. 04-18]

No person may maliciously, willfully or negligently break, damage, destroy,
uncover, deface or tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment
which is part of the wastewater facilities. Any person violating this provision
is subject to arrest under charge of criminal mischief as set forth in Title
17-A M.R.S. § 806, Criminal Mischief.

§ 13.1.1.10. Liability for damage caused by excavation work.

Any person doing excavation work near any mains owned by the
Department is responsible for any damage to such mains as a result of the
negligence of such person, the person's agents, employees, or servants and
is liable for all costs involved in repairing or replacing such damaged pipes.

C. An interest charge at the same rate as established by the Town Council
for uncollected taxes will be made on all bills not paid within 90 days
after date of billing.

D. A special sewer service charge is to be established for any industrial
firm or organization who, by virtue of the volume, strength or unusual
characteristic of its waste alone, would overload or upset the capacity
or efficiency of the sewage works or any part thereof if such waste
entered the public sewer, or whose waste disposal situation is such that
it would be in the public interest to waive the basic requirements. The
Town Council, after appropriate study, and advice from the Engineer,
shall establish a special sewer service charge to the industrial firm by
separate agreement with said firm. The applicable portions of the
preceding sections, as well as the equitable rights of the public, are the
basis for such an arrangement.

E. Rates for nonmeter residential customers are to be as set forth in Town
Code Appendix A, or the owner may install an approved meter at owner
expense.

F. Sewer user rate charges in accordance with this section will begin 90
days after notification by Town of the availability of the public sewer to
serve parcels and remain in force whether or not the premises are
occupied. Parcels not connected to the system are not liable for
quarterly usage charges.

§ 13.1.1.7 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.1.11

13.1:8



§ 13.1.1.11. Installation of toilet facilities and connection to public
sewer required.

A. Owners of all structures with use requiring the disposal of sewage with
public sewer located within 100 feet of the property line as measured
along any public way are required, at their expense, to install suitable
waste effluent and/or toilet facilities therein, and to connect such
facilities directly to the public sewer in accordance with the provisions
of this chapter, within 90 days after the date of official notice to do so.
Pursuant to Town Code Title 16, Chapter 16.8, Article VII, Sewage
Disposal, connection to the public sewer is required for a commercial or
industrial development or a residential subdivision, where public sewer,
within an abutting public way, is within 1,000 feet of the property line
as measured along said public way.

B. If an owner can demonstrate to the Town Manager diligent effort in
arranging the connection, but is unable to meet the ninety-day
connection deadline due to force majeure circumstances, the Town
Manager may grant an extension and waive the penalties of Town Code
Title 1, Chapter 1.3, General Penalty.

C. When gravity flow cannot be obtained from the building or the property,
connection to said public sewer is not required. However, this does not
preclude waste flows from being pumped to the public sewer should the
property owner so wish. Properties not required to connect at the time
of a main extension project for this reason must do so when the existing
septic/leach field system fails or must otherwise be replaced.

D. Owners of properties with a septic tank and leach field system installed
within 20 years of any main extension project completion date may
request deferral of connection until the system has reached the 20
years after installation anniversary.

§ 13.1.1.11 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.1.11

13.1:9

kamaral
Highlight



ARTICLE II
Dangerous and Harmful Wastes

§ 13.1.2.1. Effect on special agreements for discharge.

No statement contained in this article may be construed as preventing any
special agreement or arrangement between the Town and any industrial
concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may
be accepted by the Town for treatment, subject to payment therefor by the
industrial concern.

§ 13.1.2.2. Tests and analyses.

§ 13.1.2.3. Discharge of unpolluted drainage into sanitary sewer.

No person may discharge or cause to be discharged any stormwater, surface
water, groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, uncontaminated
cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters to any sanitary sewer
without the consent of the Superintendent.

A. All measurements, tests and analyses of the characteristics of waters
and wastes to which reference is made in this chapter are to be
determined in accordance with the latest edition of Standard Methods
for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, published by the
American Public Health Association, and are to be determined at the
control manhole provided or upon suitable samples taken at said
control manhole. In the event that no special manhole has been
required, the control manhole is considered to be the nearest
downstream manhole in the public sewer to the point at which the
building sewer is connected.

B. Sampling is to be carried out by customarily accepted methods to
reflect the effect of constituents upon the sewage works and to
determine the existence of hazards to life, limb and property. The
particular analyses involved will determine whether a twenty-four-hour
composite of all outfalls of a premises is appropriate or whether a grab
sample or samples should be taken. Normally, but not always, BOD and
suspended solids analyses are obtained from twenty-four-hour
composites of all outfalls whereas pHs are determined from periodic
grab samples.

C. All industries discharging into a public sewer must perform such
monitoring of their discharge as the Superintendent and/or other duly
authorized employees of the Town may reasonably require, including
installation, use and maintenance of monitoring equipment, keeping
records and reporting the results of such monitoring to the
Superintendent. Such records are to be made available upon request by
the Superintendent to other agencies having jurisdiction over
discharges to the receiving waters.

§ 13.1.2.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.2.4

13.1:11



§ 13.1.2.4. Required discharge of unpolluted drainage.

Stormwater and all other unpolluted drainage is to be discharged to such
sewers as are specifically designated as combined sewers or storm sewers
or to a natural outlet approved by the Superintendent. Industrial cooling
water or unpolluted process waters may be discharged, on approval of the
Superintendent, to a storm sewer, combined sewer or natural outlet.

§ 13.1.2.5. Discharge of specific waters, wastes into public sewers
prohibited.

No person may discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following
described waters or wastes to any public sewers:

§ 13.1.2.6. Superintendent's authority regarding acceptance of
harmful wastes.

A. Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive
liquid, solid or gas;

B. Any waters or pollutants containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids or
gases in sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other
pollutants, to injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment
process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public
nuisance or create any hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater
treatment plant;

C. Any waters or pollutants having a pH lower than 5.5 or having any other
corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures,
equipment and personnel of the wastewater works; or

D. Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of
causing obstruction to the flow in sewers or other interference with the
proper operation of the sewage works, such as, but not limited to,
ashes, bones, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags,
feathers, tar, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch
manure, hair and fleshings, entrails and paper dishes, cups, milk
containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders.

A. If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be
discharged into the public sewers, which waters contain the substances
or possess the characteristics enumerated in § 13.1.2.5, and which in
the judgment of the Superintendent may have a deleterious effect upon
the sewage works, processes, equipment or receiving waters, or which
otherwise create a hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the
Superintendent may:

(1) Reject the waters or pollutants;

(2) Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to
the public sewers; and/or

§ 13.1.2.4 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.2.6

13.1:12



§ 13.1.2.7. Interceptors when required.

(3) Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge; and/or

(4) Require payment to cover the added cost of handling and treating
the wastes not covered by existing taxes or sewer charges under
the provisions of § 13.1.2.1.

(5) When considering the above alternatives, the Superintendent must
give consideration to the economic impact of the last alternative on
the discharge.

B. If the Superintendent permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste
flows, the design and installation of the plants and equipment is to be
subject to the review and approval of the Superintendent and subject to
the requirements of all applicable codes, regulations, laws and
municipal waste discharge permit (NPDES).

C. The Superintendent may require a user of sewer services to provide
information needed to determine compliance with this chapter. These
requirements include:

(1) Wastewater discharge peak rate and volume over a specific time
period;

(2) Chemical analysis of the wastewater;

(3) Information on raw materials, processes and products affecting
wastewater volume and quality;

(4) Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, sludge, oil, solvent or
other materials important to sewer use control;

(5) A plot plan of the user's property showing sewers and pretreatment
facility locations; and

(6) Details of systems to prevent and control losses of materials
through spills to the municipal sewer.

D. The Town will develop and the Superintendent will enforce
pretreatment regulations for existing and new sources of pollution that
are discharged into the municipally owned wastewater treatment
facilities, as set forth in Title 40, Chapter I, Part 129 and Part 403 of the
rules of the United States Environmental Protection Agency.2

A. Grease, oil and sand interceptors are to be provided when, in the
opinion of the Superintendent, they are necessary for the proper
handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts, or
any flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients; except that
such interceptors may not be required for private living quarters or
dwelling units. All interceptors are to be of a type and capacity

2. Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1.1, Code Adoption).

§ 13.1.2.6 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.2.7

13.1:13



§ 13.1.2.8. Maintenance of treatment, flow-equalizing facilities;
cost.

Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided for any waters
or wastes, they must be maintained continuously in satisfactory and
effective operation by the owner at the owner's expense.

§ 13.1.2.9. Manholes.

§ 13.1.2.10. Specific harmful discharges enumerated.

No person may discharge or cause to be discharged the following described
substances, materials, waters or wastes if it appears likely in the opinion of
the Superintendent that such wastes can harm either the sewers, sewage
treatment process or equipment, have an adverse effect on the receiving
stream, or can otherwise endanger life, limb, public property or constitute
a nuisance. In forming an opinion as to the acceptability of these wastes,
the Superintendent will give consideration to such factors as the quantities
of subject wastes in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, materials
of construction of the sewers, nature of the sewage treatment process,
capacity of the sewage treatment plant, degree of treatability of wastes in
the sewage treatment plant and other pertinent factors. The substances
prohibited are:

approved by the Superintendent and located as to be readily and easily
accessible for cleaning and inspection.

B. In maintaining these interceptors, the owner(s) are responsible for the
proper removal and disposal by appropriate means of the captured
material and must maintain records of the dates and means of disposal,
which are subject to review by the Superintendent. Any removal and
hauling of collected materials not performed by the owner's personnel
must be performed by currently licensed waste disposal firms.

A. When required by the Superintendent, the owner of any property
serviced by a building sewer carrying industrial wastes must install a
suitable structure, together with such necessary meters and other
appurtenances, in the building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling
and measurement of the wastes.

B. Such structure, when required, must be accessibly and safely located
and constructed in accordance with plans approved by the
Superintendent. The structure must be installed by the owner at the
owner's expense, and maintained by such owner so as to be safe and
accessible at all times.

A. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than 150° F. (65° C.);

B. Any water or pollutants containing fats, wax, grease or floatable oils;

C. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. The installation and
operation of any garbage grinder equipped with a motor of three-

§ 13.1.2.7 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.2.10

13.1:14



quarter horsepower (0.76 hp metric) or greater is subject to the review
and approval of the Superintendent;

D. Any waters or pollutants containing strong acid iron-pickling pollutants
or concentrated plating solutions, whether neutralized or not;

E. Any waters or pollutants containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc and
similar objectionable or toxic substances; or pollutants exerting an
excessive chlorine requirement, to such degree that any such material
received in the composite sewage at the sewage treatment works
exceeds the limits established by the Superintendent for such
materials;

F. Any waters or pollutants containing phenols or other taste- or odor-
producing substances, in such concentrations exceeding limits which
may be established by the Superintendent as necessary, after treatment
of the composite sewage to meet the requirements of the state, federal
or other public agencies or jurisdiction for such discharge to the
receiving waters;

G. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as
may exceed limits established by the Superintendent in compliance
with applicable state and federal regulations;

H. Any waters or wastes having a pH in excess of 9.5;

I. Materials which exert or cause:

(1) Unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids (such as, but not
limited to, fuller's earth, lime slurries and lime residues) or of
dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to, sodium chloride and
sodium sulfate);

(2) Excessive discoloration (such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and
vegetable tanning solutions);

(3) Unusual BOD, chemical oxygen demand, or chlorine requirements
in such quantities as to constitute a significant load on the sewage
treatment works; or

(4) Unusual volume of flow or concentration of wastes constituting
"slugs," as defined in § 13.1.1.1.

J. Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to
treatment or reduction by the sewage treatment processes employed or
are amenable to treatment only to such degree that the sewage
treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other
agencies having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters; and

K. Wastewater containing more than 25 milligrams per liter of petroleum
oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oils or product of mineral oil origin.

§ 13.1.2.10 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.2.10

13.1:15



ARTICLE III
Building Sewers and Connections

§ 13.1.3.1. Permit required.

§ 13.1.3.2. Permit classes; application; fee.

§ 13.1.3.3. Technical codes, specifications to govern building sewer
installations.

The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building sewer,
and the methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing,
testing and backfilling the trench must all conform to the requirements
of the state and town building and plumbing code or other applicable
rules and regulations of the Town. In the absence of code provisions or in
amplification thereof, the materials and procedures set forth in appropriate
specifications of the ASTM and WPCF Manual of Practice No. 9 apply.

§ 13.1.3.4. Technical specifications.

A. No unauthorized person may uncover, make any connections with or
opening into, use, alter or disturb any public sewer or appurtenance
thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the
Superintendent.

B. Any person proposing a new discharge into the system or a substantial
change in the volume or character of pollutants that are being
discharged into the system must notify the Superintendent at least 45
days prior to the proposed change or connection.

A. There are two classes of building sewer permits:

(1) For residential and commercial service; and

(2) For service to establishments producing industrial wastes.

B. In either case, the owner or owner's agent is to make application on a
special form furnished by the Town. The permit application is to be
supplemented by any plans, specifications or other information
considered pertinent in the judgment of the Superintendent.

C. A permit and inspection fee for a residential or commercial building
sewer permit and for an industrial building sewer permit is as set out in
Appendix A and paid to the Town at the time the application is filed.

A. Code specifications to govern connections. The connection of the
building sewer into the public sewer may only be made by one duly
authorized to perform such work within the Town and must conform to
the requirements of the state and town building and plumbing code or
other applicable rules and regulations of the Town or the procedures
set forth in appropriate specifications of the ASTM and the WPCF
Manual of Practice No. 9.

§ 13.1.3.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.3.4

13.1:17



§ 13.1.3.5. Costs of installation; connection; owner's liability.

All costs and expense incident to the installation and connection of a
building sewer are to be borne by the owner.

§ 13.1.3.6. Separate sewer for each building; exception.

A separate and independent building sewer must be provided for every
building; except that where one building stands at the rear of another on
an interior lot and no private sewer is available or can be constructed to
the rear building through an adjoining alley, court, yard or driveway, the
building sewer from the front building may be extended to the rear building
and the whole considered as one building sewer.

§ 13.1.3.7. Use of old sewers with new buildings.

Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only
when they are found, on examination and test by the Superintendent, to
meet all requirements of this chapter.

§ 13.1.3.8. Elevation of building sewer.

Whenever possible, the building sewer is to be brought to the building at
an elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in which any building
drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary sewage
carried by such building drain must be lifted by an approved means and
discharged to the building sewer.

§ 13.1.3.9. Excavations for building sewer installation.

All excavations for building sewer installation are to be adequately guarded
with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets,
sidewalks, parkways and other public property disturbed in the course of
the work must be restored in a manner satisfactory to the Town.

§ 13.1.3.10. Inspection prior to connection; Superintendent to
supervise connection.

The applicant for the building sewer permit must notify the Superintendent
when the building sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public
sewer. The connection is only to be made under the supervision of the
Superintendent.

B. Deviations from standards. Any deviation from the prescribed
procedures and materials must be approved by the Superintendent
before installation.

C. Tightness required. All such connections must be made gastight and
watertight.

§ 13.1.3.4 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.3.11

13.1:18



§ 13.1.3.11. Specific connections to be approved.

No person may make connection of roof downspouts, exterior foundation
drains, areaway drains or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater
to a building sewer or building drain which in turn is connected directly
or indirectly to a public sanitary sewer without the consent of the
Superintendent.

§ 13.1.3.11 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.3.11

13.1:19



ARTICLE IV
Main Extensions

§ 13.1.4.1. Council's authority to make changes, extensions.

The Town Council may make such changes and extensions as it deems
necessary for the best interests of the public.

§ 13.1.4.2. Extensions generally.

§ 13.1.4.3. Assessment.

A. Petitions for extensions. Any person and/or persons may petition to the
Town Council for extension or extensions they propose, which petition
must be voted upon by the Council.

B. Authority to make assessments for costs of extensions. The Town
Council has the power to make assessments for the costs of any
extensions it approves. The council may also establish such rates for
entrance and other charges for the use of said sewage system against
the owners of the property served by said system or to which such
service is available as it may deem necessary to help defray cost of
maintaining and operating system.

C. Construction by property owner, builder or developer. If the Town does
not elect to construct a sewer extension under public contract, the
property owner, builder or developer may construct the necessary
sewer extension if such extension is approved by the Town Council. The
person(s) must pay for the entire installation, including all expenses
incidental thereto. Each building sewer must be installed and inspected
as previously required in Article III of this chapter and the inspection
fees paid. The design and construction specifications must bear the
signed approval of the Superintendent prior to construction.

A. Determination of benefits. When the sewer line construction has been
completed, the municipal officers shall determine what lots or parcels
of land, with or without structures thereon, are benefited by said sewer
line and estimate and assess upon said lots or parcels of land, and
against the record owner or owners thereof or against a person against
whom the taxes thereon are assessed, a sum not exceeding the benefit
the municipal officers deem fair and equitable towards defraying the
expenses of said sewer construction together with any sewage disposal
units and appurtenances that may be necessary for the proper
operation of said sewer line.

B. Definitions. For the purposes of this article, the following definitions
apply:
ASSESSED PARCEL — A benefited property included in an adopted
assessment plan obliging payment of an assessment fee.

§ 13.1.4.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.4.3

13.1:21

kamaral
Highlight

kamaral
Highlight

kamaral
Highlight



BENEFITED PARCEL — A property which has gained direct access to
a sewer main extension via frontage or an existing public right-of-way
less than 100 feet distant, whether gravity flow is readily achievable or
not.
DWELLING UNIT — A room or group of rooms forming a habitable
unit for one family with facilities used or intended to be used for living,
sleeping, cooking, eating, and sanitary facilities. It comprises at least
650 square feet of habitable floor space and includes any subcategory
definition of dwelling as found in Title 16, § 16.2.2 (e.g., inn, accessory
dwelling unit).
PER DWELLING UNIT — The basis of calculation of the number of
dwelling units for residences assessed in an adopted sewer main
extension assessment plan or to be assessed for a sewer special
entrance connection fee.
PER UNIT OF OCCUPANCY — The basis of calculation of the number
of occupied units for nonresidential structures assessed in an adopted
sewer main extension assessment plan or to be assessed for a sewer
special entrance connection fee.
UNASSESSED PARCEL — Those parcels of property that were not
benefited or assessed when sewer main extension assessments were
made; and those parcels that were thereafter found not benefited by
such sewers and therefore not subject to such assessments.
UNIT OF OCCUPANCY — The category of property use which carries
the unit charge as found in § 13.1.6.5, Sewer impact fee.

C. Limitation on assessment; formula for determining cost. The whole of
the assessments may not exceed 1/2 the cost of the entire project
contract price of constructing and completing the sewer line, including
all necessary appurtenances and sewage disposal units. The Town
Council shall devise and utilize a formula for determining the fair and
equitable cost to the owner or owners of land so benefited.

D. Responsibility for sewer lines. The municipality is responsible for such
sewer lines after construction and shall thereafter maintain and keep
the same in good repair.

E. Record of location of sewer line; notification of owner.

(1) The municipal officers shall file with the Clerk of the Town the
location of the sewer line and sewage disposal units and
appurtenances, with a profile description of the same and a
statement of the amount assessed upon each lot or parcel of land so
assessed and the name of the owner of the lots or parcels of land or
person against whom the assessment is made.

(2) The Clerk of the Town is to record the assessment in a book kept for
that purpose, and within 10 days after filing notice, each person so
assessed is to be notified of the assessment by having an authentic
copy of the assessment, with an order of notice signed by the Clerk

§ 13.1.4.3 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.4.3

13.1:22



§ 13.1.4.4. Collection of assessments and charges.

of the Town stating the time and place for a hearing upon the
subject matter of the assessments, given to each person so
assessed or left at their usual place of abode in the Town.

(3) If a person has no place of abode in the Town, then the notice may
be given or left at the abode of their tenant or lessee, if the person
has one in the Town; if the person has no tenant or lessee in the
Town, then by posting the notice in some conspicuous place in the
vicinity of the lot or parcel of land so assessed at least 30 days
before the hearing. The notice may be given by publishing it three
weeks successively in any newspaper published in the Town, the
first publication to be at least 30 days before the hearing.

(4) A return made upon a copy of the notice by any constable in the
Town or the production of the paper containing the notice is
conclusive evidence that the notice was given; and upon the
hearing, the municipal officers have power to revise, increase or
diminish any of the assessments, and any revisions, increase or
diminution is to be in writing and recorded by the Clerk.

F. Farmland and open space land exempt from assessment.

(1) Land classified and restricted for use for agricultural, forest/
woodland, open space or wildlife habitat purposes, as defined by 36
M.R.S. § 1102, is exempt from the assessment provided in §13.1.4.3
when no benefits are derived from the common sewer or drain.
Owners of such qualified land must notify the municipal officers
that their property may qualify for this exception. The municipal
officers are to revise the assessments against such land to exempt
it from assessment. Any revision of assessment provided by this
subsection is to be in writing and recorded by the Clerk.

(2) When the use of the land is changed from farmland, the owner
must, within 60 days, notify the Town Council, in writing, of the
change. The Town Council shall assess this land in an amount equal
to the assessment which would have been due but for the
provisions of this subsection. The municipality must notify the
owner of the assessment due, which the owner must pay within 60
days of notice or as provided by the Town Council under its
authority in 30-A M.R.S. § 4453.

A. All assessments and charges made pursuant to this article are to be
certified by the municipal officers and filed with the Tax Collector for
collection. A facsimile of the signatures of the municipal officers
imprinted at their direction upon any certification of an assessment or
charge under this article has the same validity as their signatures.

B. The Tax Collector may enter into a written mortgage agreement with
the owner(s) of land so assessed and provide the same with a

§ 13.1.4.3 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.4.4

13.1:23



promissory note and installment payment plan for the amount of the
assessment (“assessment payment plan”). This assessment payment
plan agreement is to provide for payment of said assessment to the
Town over a period not to exceed the shorter of 18 years, or two
years shorter than the Town's bond repayment period for the applicable
project, at an interest rate to be determined by the municipal officers.
Such agreement is also to specify the method of collection in the event
that such payment is in default, and, further, the mortgage agreement
is to be recorded by the Town in the York County Registry of Deeds.

C. Owners with household income less than or equal to 50% of the local
area median family income, as determined annually by the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development and varied by
household size, may request deferral of payment of the assessment
without penalty or additional interest incurred for the period of
eligibility. Should the Tax Collector find an owner ineligible under those
provisions, the Tax Collector may enter into a written agreement with
the owner under the same term and terms pursuant to Subsection B
above.

D. Should the Tax Collector decline to enter into such payment agreement,
aggrieved owner(s) may appeal the decision to the Board of Appeals
pursuant to Chapter 13.2, Sewer Service Decision Appeals.

E. Payment of the assessment is due in full upon demise of the owner(s); or
transfer to any other owner by gift, assignment, devise, sale, or
otherwise, except for:

(1) Transfers to a spouse or joint tenant, living or surviving, provided
the transferee executes a new mortgage agreement, promissory
note and installment payment agreement with the Town.

(2) Transfers to trusts, providing the trustee executes a new mortgage
agreement, promissory note and installment payment agreement
with the Town.

(3) Such new agreements to be executed for a period not to exceed the
final payment date of the original agreement.

F. The municipal officers shall annually file with the Tax Collector a list of
installment payments due the municipality under such written
agreements with the owner or owners of land so assessed.

G. If the person so assessed, within 30 days after written notice of the total
amount of such assessment and charges, or annual installment payment
and interest, fails, neglects or refuses to pay such municipality the
expense thereby incurred, or fails to enter into a written agreement as
provided herein for payment of the same, or fails to pay any installment
due under a written agreement so entered, then a special tax in the
amount of the total unpaid assessment and charge may be assessed by
the Municipal Assessor upon each and every lot or parcel of land so
assessed and buildings upon the same.

§ 13.1.4.4 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.4.4

13.1:24



§ 13.1.4.5. Materials.

The size and kind of pipe is to be determined by the Department in
accordance with conditions surrounding the extension, including the
possibility of future extensions or additions, and must conform to all state
and local regulations.

H. Such assessment is to be included in the next annual warrant to the Tax
Collector for collection and collected in the same manner as state,
county, and municipal taxes are collected. Interest at a rate of 12% per
year on the unpaid portion of assessments and charges due the
municipality accrues from the 30th day after written notice to the
person assessed and is to be added to and become part of the special
tax when committed to the Tax Collector.

§ 13.1.4.4 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.4.5

13.1:25



ARTICLE V
Private Sewage Disposal

§ 13.1.5.1. Connection to private system required.3

Where a public sanitary sewer is not available under the provisions of this
chapter, the building sewer must be connected to a private disposal system
complying with the requirements of the Maine State Department of Health
and Welfare dealing with septic tank installations.

§ 13.1.5.2. Permit required to construct system; application; permit
and inspection fees.

Before commencement of construction of a private sewage disposal system,
the owner must first obtain a written permit signed by the Plumbing
Inspector. The application for such permit is to be made on a form furnished
by the Town, which the applicant is to supplement by any plans,
specifications and other information as is deemed necessary by the
Plumbing Inspector. A permit and inspection fee as set out in Appendix A is
to be paid at the time the inspection is filed.

§ 13.1.5.3. Effective date of permit; inspections of construction.

A permit for a private sewage disposal system does not become effective
until the installation is completed to the satisfaction of the Plumbing
Inspector who is allowed to inspect the work at any stage of construction
and, in any event, the applicant for the permit is to notify the Plumbing
Inspector when the work is ready for final inspections and before any
underground portions are covered. The inspection is to be made within 24
hours of the receipt of notice by the Plumbing Inspector.

§ 13.1.5.4. Operation and maintenance of facilities by owner.

The owner must operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities
in a sanitary manner at all times at no expense to the Town.

§ 13.1.5.5. Effect on additional requirements of Health Officer.

No statement contained in this article may be construed to interfere with
any additional requirements that may be imposed by the Health Officer.

§ 13.1.5.6. Connection to public sewer required; cleaning and filling
of private system.

When a public sewer becomes available, the building sewer must be
connected to said sewer within 90 days after the date of official notice.
At the time of connection to the public sewer, any private septic tank or
cesspool shall be cleaned of sludge and filled with clean bank-run gravel or
dirt.

3. Editor's Note: Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1.1, Code Adoption).

§ 13.1.5.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.5.7

13.1:27

kamaral
Highlight



§ 13.1.5.7. Contents from private sewage treatment facilities.

A. Generally. The contents from septic tanks, holding tanks or other
approved facilities for private wastewater treatment located on
properties within the Town or any other town with which a duly
negotiated contract has been signed by the Town Council for the
purpose of wastewater treatment and disposal may be discharged to
the wastewater treatment works at a point designated by the
Superintendent under the following conditions:

(1) The contractor must be licensed by the State of Maine Department
of Environmental Protection and record name, address and license
number with the Sewer Department on forms supplied by the
Department;

(2) Must submit the owner's name and location of the property from
which the tank was pumped prior to discharge;

(3) The contractor must have a sight glass or other approved means
mounted on the truck tank in clear view to show the amount of
sludge contained within the tank prior to discharge. In the absence
of such equipment, the tank will be considered to be full and
charged accordingly;

(4) All discharges are to be made during normal working hours of the
Sewer Department. In emergencies, discharges may be made after
normal working hours on approval of the Superintendent. All
discharges made after hours are to be charged at the regular rate
plus a labor charge as set out in Appendix A;

(5) The Superintendent has the right to inspect, test and reject any and
all discharges which do not comply with the restrictions found in
§ 13.1.2.5 or in any way appears detrimental to the wastewater
treatment works; and

(6) Facilities used for the purpose of serving industries must submit
satisfactory evidence, prior to discharge, that the sludge contains
no waste deemed hazardous by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency. The Superintendent may request the sludge be
analyzed, at the owner's expense, for heavy metals and to ensure
compliance with § 13.1.2.10.

B. Rates for discharge.

(1) Septic tank contents are to be charged at the rate set out in
Appendix A.

(2) Holding tank contents are to be charged at the rate set out in
Appendix A.

(3) All discharges containing less than 1,000 mg/l total suspended
solids (0.1%) are considered to be holding tanks. All others are
considered septic tanks for the purpose of rate charges.

§ 13.1.5.7 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.5.7

13.1:28



(4) All fees are to be paid prior to discharge except when the
contractor has made previous arrangements with the Sewer
Department to be billed monthly. If fees are more than 60 days in
arrears, the contractor's discharge privileges terminate until
account is brought up-to-date.

C. Penalties for violation. Any person who willfully falsifies information or
in any other way violates this section loses the right of discharge for a
period not to exceed 90 days for each offense.

§ 13.1.5.7 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.5.7

13.1:29



ARTICLE VI
New Sewer Service Connection Fees

§ 13.1.6.1. Benefited and assessed properties.

Main extension projects include properties established by the Town Council
as benefited, and owners are obliged to pay an assessment fee as ordained
above. Except as may be required pursuant to §§ 13.1.6.2 and 13.1.6.3 as
a result of changes to a benefited and assessed parcel, fees required by
this article do not apply to connections to the municipal sewage collection
system of any structure existing at the time of adoption of an assessment
plan for such benefited and assessed properties.

§ 13.1.6.2. Changes to benefited and assessed properties - impact
fee.

An impact fee is assessed when there is a change in the use, character,
or size of any structure on a parcel or any other condition that results
in additional sewage flow from that parcel. Additional sewage flow is any
increase in the number of units of occupancy over that existing at the time
of adoption of an assessment plan resulting in an increase in the wastewater
discharge over that existing, or reasonably estimated to have existed, as of
the date of the benefit assessment plan adoption.

§ 13.1.6.3. New main entrance connection.

Changes in use for benefited properties and all properties not included in a
prior main extension assessment plan (not benefited or assessed) requiring
a new sewer main entrance connection must pay a special sewer entrance
connection fee, as reflected in § 13.1.6.6.

§ 13.1.6.4. Changes to unassessed properties - impact fee.

All properties not included in a prior sewer main extension assessment plan
(not benefited or assessed) must pay an impact fee as reflected in § 13.1.6.5,
except any which have an easement agreement granted to the Town in lieu
of other compensation.

§ 13.1.6.5. Sewer impact fee.

A. Time payable. Sewer impact fees, payable by the property owner
pursuant to this section, must be paid prior to the connection of any
sewer line to the municipal sewage collection system; or upon the
issuance of any plumbing permit for additional plumbing fixtures; or
change in use of any property already connected to the municipal
sewage collection system.

B. Amount determined. The sewer impact fee payable is determined by
multiplying the unit charge for the particular category(ies) of property
use as set forth in § 13.1.6.5C or D by the sewer impact fee set forth in
Town Code Appendix A.

§ 13.1.6.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.6.5

13.1:31

kamaral
Highlight

kamaral
Highlight

kamaral
Highlight

kamaral
Highlight



C. Categories of use and unit charge.

(1) The following categories of property use carry the unit charge set
forth herein to be used in the computation of the sewer impact fee
as provided above:

Category Unit Charge
Minimum charge 1/2 unit charge
Single-family dwelling or
condominium unit

1 unit charge

Multifamily dwelling or
condominium per unit

1 unit charge

3 hotel units (double occupancy) 1 unit charge
5 motel units (double
occupancy)

1 unit charge

4 boardinghouses (double
occupancy)

1 unit charge

7 cabins 1 unit charge
15 school students (day school) 1 unit charge
4 school students (boarding
school)

1 unit charge

2 hospital beds (medical) 1 unit charge
3 nursing home beds 1 unit charge
50 theater seats 1 unit charge
30 employees 1 unit charge
Retail store, per 1,500 gross
square feet

1 unit charge

30 full-service restaurant or
function room seats

1 unit charge

1 laundromat machine 1 unit charge
1 automobile service station 3 unit charges
Fast-food and/or drive-in service
restaurant (15 seats)

1 unit charge

10 yacht or country club
members

1 unit charge

50 church members 1 unit charge
Industrial and manufacturing
use

Base minimum on domestic use
plus any process water usage

§ 13.1.6.5 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.6.5

13.1:32



§ 13.1.6.6. Special sewer entrance connection fee.

§ 13.1.6.7. Off-premises construction costs.

All costs of extending sewage lines from the property to be serviced to
the municipal sewage collection system are to be assumed solely by the
owner or party having an interest in the property to be so serviced. No
such construction may commence until there is complete compliance with
all provisions of this chapter and all other relevant governmental statutes,
rules and regulations. Extension of the sewer lines and pumping station
must meet the standards of the Town, and capacity must be such as to
handle all anticipated sewage flows and allow for flow from all possible
future extension or development within the immediate drainage area as
determined by the Town.

Category Unit Charge
Commercial and retail uses: 5
plumbing fixtures added to
existing structures and
connected to wastewater
collection system

1 unit charge

(2) For any category of use or change in use not specifically set forth
above, the enforcing officer determines the total number of unit
charges based upon a per-unit load of 300 gallons per day.

D. Proportional factors. When the number of units within a category of use
does not exactly correspond to that listed in the schedule above, a
proportional factor is to be utilized to calculate the total sewer impact
fee. For example, to compute the total sewer impact fee for a seven-unit
motel, the following calculation is used:

7 motel units = 1 unit charge for 5 + 2/5 unit charge for 2 = $3,000 +
[2/5 X $3,000 ($1,200)] = $4,200

E. Multiple category factors. If two or more categories of use may apply to
a particular proposed use, the sewer impact fee is the higher of the two
or more calculations. However, when there are multiple uses within a
structure, each such use is subject to a separate sewer impact fee.

F. Fee determination. The sewer impact fee due and payable by the
property owner is to be calculated and determined by the Code
Enforcement Officer.

A. A special sewer entrance connection fee as set out in Town Code
Appendix A is established on a per-dwelling-unit basis for residences
and on a per-unit-of-occupancy basis for nonresidential structures for
each new sewer entrance connection to a system main.

B. The entrance connection fee is to be paid in full prior to the issuance of
a permit for the new connection.

§ 13.1.6.5 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.6.8

13.1:33

kamaral
Highlight



§ 13.1.6.8. Municipal contracts or agreements and Town property
exempted.

This article does not apply to sewage disposal covered by any agreement
or contract between the Town and any governmental body, or subdivision
thereof, nor does it apply to the treatment of any sewage flow from property
owned by the Town.

§ 13.1.6.9. Enforcement.

This article is enforced by the Code Enforcement Officer.

§ 13.1.6.8 KITTERY CODE § 13.1.6.9

13.1:34



ARTICLE VII
Special Entrance and Impact Fee Fund Accounting

§ 13.1.7.1. Special Entrance and Impact Fee Fund.

A. A Wastewater Treatment Department fund account is established and is
the depository for all special sewer entrance connection and impact
fees collected under the terms of this chapter. Said fund is to be
accounted as a Department-designated reserve and used solely and
exclusively towards expenses for capital improvements and repair/
replacement of capital components of the municipal wastewater
treatment system.

B. The proceeds in this fund may be expended in concert with other
revenues and planned expenditures or capital improvement funds of the
Town, but only for capital improvements to the municipal wastewater
treatment system as distinct from expenses for regular operations,
maintenance, and repair. All moneys accumulated in this fund are to be
expended by the Town for the specific purposes stated herein within 10
years of their collection and deposit therein, or within the amortization
period of any project bond created for the same purpose(s).

§ 13.1.7.1 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.1.7.1

13.1:35



Chapter 13.2

SEWER SERVICE DECISION APPEALS

§ 13.2.1. Arbitration appeal of assessment.

§ 13.2.2. Unbuildable parcel appeals.

A. Any person not satisfied with the amount of assessment pursuant to
§ 13.1.4.3 may appeal within 10 days after a hearing by the municipal
officers, pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3443, Arbitration of assessment, to
an independent arbitration panel as established by the municipal
officers as incorporated in the assessment plan adopted for any main
extension project.

(1) Arbitrators selected. The municipal officers shall nominate six
persons who are residents of the municipality. The applicant shall
select two of these persons, and these two persons shall select a
third person who is a resident of the municipality and who is not
one of the six persons nominated by the municipal officers.

(2) Arbitration procedure. The three persons selected under
Subsection A(1) shall fix the amount to be paid by the applicant.
Within 30 days from the hearing before the municipal officers
under 30-A M.R.S. § 3442, the arbitrators shall report their findings
to the Municipal Clerk, who shall record them. The arbitrators'
report is final and binding on all parties.

B. Appellants are referred to 14 M.R.S. Chapter 706, Uniform Arbitration
Act, et seq., for statutory provisions related to such appeals.

A. Definitions. The following definitions apply to this section only:
UNBUILDABLE — No structure containing or required to contain
sanitary facilities may be legally constructed due to zoning restrictions.
ZONING — Any land use and development statute, ordinance, rule,
or regulation promulgated by a federal, state, or local government or
agency.

B. Right to unbuildable parcel appeal. Any person owning a property,
included in an adopted assessment plan for a sewer main extension
project, not satisfied with the amount assessed pursuant to § 13.1.4.3
may, prior to the assessment fee payment due date and without
limitation of time thereafter, appeal the assessed amount to the Board
of Appeals (BoA) as an unbuildable parcel, provided that:

(1) The appellant was the record owner of the assessed property and,
excepting spousal or trust inclusions or exclusions, remains so
without interruption at time of appeal; and

§ 13.1.7.1 KITTERY CODE § 13.2.2

13.1:36



§ 13.2.3. Sewer service administrative decision appeals.

(2) The assessed property was vacant, or was improved by structure(s)
neither containing nor required to contain sanitary facilities.

C. Initiating an unbuildable parcel appeal.

(1) Unbuildable parcel appeals are to be filed in accordance with Town
Code Title 16, § 16.6.5, Board of Appeals appeal/request filing
procedures. The pertinent provisions of that Code section's
protocols for the Board to address such appeals apply.

(2) Filed applications must be accompanied by a written statement
from the Code Enforcement Officer and Town Planner regarding
whether the involved property is developable as defined in this
section.

A. Any person filing a permit application for a sewer special entrance
connection, or who is determined by the Code Enforcement Officer to
be obliged to pay an impact fee, who may be aggrieved by the
provisions set forth herein, may file an administrative decision appeal
to the BoA for a review of the determination.

B. Any person denied a payment plan by the Tax Collector may file an
administrative decision appeal to the BoA for such decisions.

C. Such administrative decision appeals are to be filed in accordance with
Town Code Title 16, § 16.6.5, Board of Appeals appeal/request filing
procedures. The pertinent provisions of that Code section's protocols
for the Board to address such appeals apply.

§ 13.2.2 SEWER SERVICE SYSTEM § 13.2.3

13.1:37





Rice Public Library Corporation  

  
February 2, 2021  
  
Dear Kittery Town Council:  
  
Please accept this gift of $50,000 for the Rice Library renovation and expansion project. This 
sum represents a grant awarded to the Rice Public Library Corporation last fall by the Stephen 
& Tabitha King Foundation, undesignated, but to be used for the Library project. The King 
Foundation is not sponsoring any particular location in the Library, and will be recognized on 
our Donor Wall and in our Book of Benefactors.  
  
Also, please approve the following sponsored spaces:  
  
The first floor turret tower Room:   
  
“Given by the Rosamond Thaxter Foundation”  
  
The second floor turret tower room:  
  
“Given by the Alvord Family in memory of Graham and Jean Alvord”.  
  
These donors will be recognized with a small plaque in the sponsored space, and on the Donor 
Wall (individual contributions of $2500 or higher) and in the Book of Benefactors (all 
individual donors).  
  
Upon acceptance of these sponsored spaces, we will forward a check to the Town of Kittery for 
$21,500, representing donations to the Rice Library Campaign for these sponsored spaces.   
  
Thank you for your support of the Rice Public Library and the wonderful expansion and 
renovation project.  
  
Best regards-  
  
  
Dianne Fallon  
Rice Library Campaign Chair  
  
Cc:   Rachel Dennis, RPLC President  
  Lee Perkins, Director, Rice Public Library  
  



  
  
  
P.O. Box 561 • 8 Wentworth Street • Kittery, ME 03904 • Tel 207-439-1553 • www.rice.lib.me.us  



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 1 of 11 

Application for an On-Premises License 

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly. 

Section I: Licensee/Applicant(s) Information; 
Type of License and Status 

Legal Business Entity Applicant Name (corporation, LLC): Business Name (D/B/A): 

Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Physical Location: 

Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Mailing address, if different: 

Mailing address, if different from DBA address: Email Address: 

Telephone #                 Fax #: Business Telephone #          Fax #: 

Federal Tax Identification Number: Maine Seller Certificate # or Sales Tax #: 

Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers Permit: Website address: 

1. New license or renewal of existing license? ܆ New Expected Start date: _____________ 

܆ Renewal Expiration Date: ________________ 

2. The dollar amount of gross income for the licensure period that will end on the expiration date above:

Food: _____________ Beer, Wine or Spirits: _____________ Guest Rooms: ____________ 

3. Please indicate the type of alcoholic beverage to be sold: (check all that apply)

Malt Liquor (beer) տ ����Wine ܆ տ ���Spirits

Division Use Only 
License No: 

Class:                  By: 

Deposit Date: 

Amt. Deposited: 

Payment Type: 

OK with SOS: Yes տ No տ

STATE OF MAINE 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES 

BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS 
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT 



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 2 of 11 

4. Indicate the type of license applying for: (choose only one)

܆ Restaurant  տ Class A Restaurant/Lounge տ Class A Lounge
(Class I, II, III, IV) (Class XI) (Class X) 

܆ Hotel տ Hotel – Food Optional տ Bed & Breakfast
(Class I, II, III, IV) (Class I-A) (Class V) 

܆ Golf Course (included optional licenses, please check if apply) ܆ Auxiliary ܆ Mobile Cart 
(Class I, II, III, IV) 

܆ Tavern տ Other: ____________________________________
(Class IV) 

܆ Qualified Caterer ܆ Self-Sponsored Events (Qualified Caterers Only) 

Refer to Section V for the License Fee Schedule on page 9 

5. Business records are located at the following address:

____________________________________________________________________________________

6. Is the licensee/applicant(s) citizens of the United States? տ Yes տ No

7. Is the licensee/applicant(s) a resident of the State of Maine? տ Yes տ No

NOTE: Applicants that are not citizens of the United States are required to file for the license as a 
business entity. 

8. Is licensee/applicant(s) a business entity like a corporation or limited liability company?

܆ Yes տ No If Yes, complete Section VII at the end of this application

9. For a licensee/applicant who is a business entity as noted in Section I, does any officer, director, member,
manager, shareholder or partner have in any way an interest, directly or indirectly, in their capacity in any
other business entity which is a holder of a wholesaler license granted by the State of Maine?

Yes տ No ܆

տ Not applicable – licensee/applicant(s) is a sole proprietor



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 3 of 11 

10. Is the licensee or applicant for a license receiving, directly or indirectly, any money, credit, thing of value,
endorsement of commercial paper, guarantee of credit or financial assistance of any sort from any person or
entity within or without the State, if the person or entity is engaged, directly or indirectly, in the manufacture,
distribution, wholesale sale, storage or transportation of liquor.

տ Yes տ No

If yes, please provide details: ___________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

11. Do you own or have any interest in any another Maine Liquor License? տ Yes տ No

If yes, please list license number, business name, and complete physical location address: (attach additional
pages as needed using the same format)

Name of Business License Number Complete Physical Address 

12. List name, date of birth, place of birth for all applicants including any manager(s) employed by the
licensee/applicant. Provide maiden name, if married. (attach additional pages as needed using the same
format)

Full Name DOB Place of Birth 

Residence address on all the above for previous 5 years 
Name Address: 

Name Address: 

Name Address: 

Name Address: 

Barbara Rita Jenny
Barbara R. Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny
Matthew D. Beebe



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 4 of 11 

13. Will any law enforcement officer directly benefit financially from this license, if issued?

տ Yes ܆ No 

If Yes, provide name of law enforcement officer and department where employed: 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Has the licensee/applicant(s) ever been convicted of any violation of the liquor laws in Maine or any State of
the United States? ܆ Yes տ No

If Yes, please provide the following information and attach additional pages as needed using the same 
format. 

Name: _____________________________________ Date of Conviction: _________________________ 

Offense: ___________________________________ Location: _________________________________ 

Disposition: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Has the licensee/applicant(s) ever been convicted of any violation of any law, other than minor traffic
violations, in Maine or any State of the United States? ܆ Yes տ No

If Yes, please provide the following information and attach additional pages as needed using the same 
format. 

Name: _____________________________________ Date of Conviction: _________________________ 

Offense: ___________________________________ Location: _________________________________ 

Disposition: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

16. Has the licensee/applicant(s) formerly held a Maine liquor license?  ܆ Yes տ No

17. Does the licensee/applicant(s) own the premises? ܆ Yes տ No

If No, please provide the name and address of the owner: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 5 of 11 

18. If you are applying for a liquor license for a Hotel or Bed & Breakfast, please provide the number of guest
rooms available: ___________________

19. Please describe in detail the area(s) within the premises to be licensed. This description is in addition to the
diagram in Section VI. (Use additional pages as needed)

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

20. What is the distance from the premises to the nearest school, school dormitory, church, chapel or parish
house, measured from the main entrance of the premises to the main entrance of the school, school dormitory,
church, chapel or parish house by the ordinary course of travel?

Name: ______________________________________________ 

Distance: ____________________________________________ 

Section II:  Signature of Applicant(s) 

By signing this application, the licensee/applicant understands that false statements made on this application are 
punishable by law.  Knowingly supplying false information on this application is a Class D Offense under Maine’s 
Criminal Code, punishable by confinement of up to one year, or by monetary fine of up to $2,000 or by both. 

Please sign and date in blue ink. 

Dated: __________________________________ 

_________________________________________ __________________________________________ 
Signature of Duly Authorized Person  Signature of Duly Authorized Person 

__________________________________________ __________________________________________ 
Printed Name Duly Authorized Person Printed Name of Duly Authorized Person 



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 6 of 11 

Section III: For use by Municipal Officers and County Commissioners only 

The undersigned hereby certifies that we have complied with the process outlined in 28-A M.R.S. §653 and 
approve this on-premises liquor license application. 

Dated: __________________________________ 

Who is approving this application? ܆ Municipal Officers of _____________________________________ 

 County Commissioners of ___________________________ County ܆

 Please Note:  The Municipal Officers or County Commissioners must confirm that the ܆
records of Local Option Votes have been verified that allows this type of establishment to 
be licensed by the Bureau for the type of alcohol to be sold for the appropriate days of the 
week.  Please check this box to indicate this verification was completed. 

This Application will Expire 60 Days from the date of  
Municipal or County Approval unless submitted to the Bureau 

Included below is the section of Maine’s liquor laws regarding the approval process by the municipalities or the 
county commissioners. This is provided as a courtesy only and may not reflect the law in effect at the time of 
application.  Please see http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/28-A/title28-Asec653.html 

§653. Hearings; bureau review; appeal

1. Hearings.  The municipal officers or, in the case of unincorporated places, the county commissioners of the county
in which the unincorporated place is located, may hold a public hearing for the consideration of applications for new on-
premises licenses and applications for transfer of location of existing on-premises licenses. The municipal officers or county 
commissioners may hold a public hearing for the consideration of requests for renewal of licenses, except that when an 
applicant has held a license for the prior 5 years and a complaint has not been filed against the applicant within that time, 
the applicant may request a waiver of the hearing. 

A. The bureau shall prepare and supply application forms. 

Signature of Officials Printed Name and Title 



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 7 of 11 

B. The municipal officers or the county commissioners, as the case may be, shall provide public notice of any hearing 
held under this section by causing a notice, at the applicant's prepaid expense, stating the name and place of hearing, to 
appear on at least 3 consecutive days before the date of hearing in a daily newspaper having general circulation in the 
municipality where the premises are located or one week before the date of the hearing in a weekly newspaper having 
general circulation in the municipality where the premises are located. 

C. If the municipal officers or the county commissioners, as the case may be, fail to take final action on an application 
for a new on-premises license or transfer of the location of an existing on-premises license within 60 days of the filing of an 
application, the application is deemed approved and ready for action by the bureau. For purposes of this paragraph, the date 
of filing of the application is the date the application is received by the municipal officers or county commissioners. This 
paragraph applies to all applications pending before municipal officers or county commissioners as of the effective date of 
this paragraph as well as all applications filed on or after the effective date of this paragraph. This paragraph applies to an 
existing on-premises license that has been extended pending renewal. The municipal officers or the county commissioners 
shall take final action on an on-premises license that has been extended pending renewal within 120 days of the filing of the 
application. 

D. If an application is approved by the municipal officers or the county commissioners but the bureau finds, after 
inspection of the premises and the records of the applicant, that the applicant does not qualify for the class of license applied 
for, the bureau shall notify the applicant of that fact in writing. The bureau shall give the applicant 30 days to file an amended 
application for the appropriate class of license, accompanied by any additional license fee, with the municipal officers or 
county commissioners, as the case may be. If the applicant fails to file an amended application within 30 days, the original 
application must be denied by the bureau. The bureau shall notify the applicant in writing of its decision to deny the 
application including the reasons for the denial and the rights of appeal of the applicant.  

2. Findings.  In granting or denying an application, the municipal officers or the county commissioners shall indicate
the reasons for their decision and provide a copy to the applicant. A license may be denied on one or more of the following 
grounds: 

A. Conviction of the applicant of any Class A, Class B or Class C crime; 

B. Noncompliance of the licensed premises or its use with any local zoning ordinance or other land use ordinance not 
directly related to liquor control; 

C. Conditions of record such as waste disposal violations, health or safety violations or repeated parking or traffic 
violations on or in the vicinity of the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed 
premises or other such conditions caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises that unreasonably 
disturb, interfere with or affect the ability of persons or businesses residing or located in the vicinity of the licensed premises 
to use their property in a reasonable manner; 

D. Repeated incidents of record of breaches of the peace, disorderly conduct, vandalism or other violations of law on 
or in the vicinity of the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises; 

D-1.  Failure to obtain, or comply with the provisions of, a permit for music, dancing or entertainment required by a 
municipality or, in the case of an unincorporated place, the county commissioners; 

E. A violation of any provision of this Title; 

F. A determination by the municipal officers or county commissioners that the purpose of the application is to 
circumvent the provisions of section 601; and 



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 8 of 11 

G. After September 1, 2010, server training, in a program certified by the bureau and required by local ordinance, has 
not been completed by individuals who serve alcoholic beverages. 

3. Appeal to bureau. Any applicant aggrieved by the decision of the municipal officers or county commissioners
under this section may appeal to the bureau within 15 days of the receipt of the written decision of the municipal officers or 
county commissioners. The bureau shall hold a public hearing in the city, town or unincorporated place where the premises 
are situated. In acting on such an appeal, the bureau may consider all licensure requirements and findings referred to in 
subsection 2. 

A. Repealed 

B. If the decision appealed from is an application denial, the bureau may issue the license only if it finds by clear and 
convincing evidence that the decision was without justifiable cause. 

4. Repealed

5. Appeal to District Court. Any person or governmental entity aggrieved by a bureau decision under this section
may appeal the decision to the District Court within 30 days of receipt of the written decision of the bureau. 

An applicant who files an appeal or who has an appeal pending shall pay the annual license fee the applicant would 
otherwise pay. Upon resolution of the appeal, if an applicant's license renewal is denied, the bureau shall refund the applicant 
the prorated amount of the unused license fee. 

Section IV: Terms and Conditions of Licensure as an Establishment that sells liquor for on-premises 
consumption in Maine 

x The licensee/applicant(s) agrees to be bound by and comply with the laws, rules and
instructions promulgated by the Bureau.

x The licensee/applicant(s) agrees to maintain accurate records related to an on-premise license
as required by the law, rules and instructions promulgated or issued by the Bureau if a license
is issued as a result of this application.

� The licensee/applicant(s) authorizes the Bureau to obtain and examine all books, records and
tax returns pertaining to the business, for which this liquor license is requested, and also any
books, records and returns during the year in which any liquor license is in effect.

x Any change in the licensee’s/applicant’s licensed premises as defined in this application must
be approved by the Bureau in advance.

x All new applicants must apply to the Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (TTB) for
its Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers permit.  See the TTB’s website at
https://www.ttb.gov/nrc/retail-beverage-alcohol-dealers for more information.

https://www.ttb.gov/images/pdfs/forms/f56305d.pdf
https://www.ttb.gov/images/pdfs/forms/f56305d.pdf
https://www.ttb.gov/nrc/retail-beverage-alcohol-dealers
https://www.ttb.gov/nrc/retail-beverage-alcohol-dealers


On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 9 of 11 

Section V:  Fee Schedule 

Filing fee required.  In addition to the license fees listed below, a filing fee of $10.00 must be included with all 
applications. 

Please note:  For Licensees/Applicants in unorganized territories in Maine, the $10.00 filing fee must be paid 
directly to County Treasurer.  All applications received by the Bureau from licensees/applicants in unorganized 
territories must submit proof of payment was made to the County Treasurer together with the application. 

Class of License Type of liquor/Establishments included Fee 

Class I  For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits)  $   900.00 
This class includes:  Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants: Clubs with catering privileges; 
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Vessels; Qualified 
Caterers 

Class I-A For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $1,100.00 
This class includes only hotels that do not serve three meals a day. 

Class II  For the Sale of Spirits Only      $   550.00 
This class includes:  Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges; 
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; and Vessels. 

Class III  For the Sale of Wine Only      $   220.00 
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges; 
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Vessels; 
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts. 

Class IV  For the Sale of Malt Liquor Only     $   220.00 
This class includes: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges; 
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Taverns; 
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts. 

Class III and IV For the Sale of Malt Liquor and Wine Only   $   440.00 
This class includes:  Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges; 
Dining Cars; Golf Courses; Hotels; Indoor Ice-Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants; Vessels; 
Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts. 

Class V For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $   495.00 
This class includes only a Club without catering privileges. 

Class X For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $2,200.00 
This class includes only a Class A Lounge 

Class XI For the sale of liquor (malt liquor, wine and spirits) $1,500.00 
This class includes only a Restaurant Lounge 

Barbara Rita Jenny



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 10 of 11 

Section VI Premises Floor Plan 

In an effort to clearly define your license premise and the areas that consumption and storage of liquor authorized 
by your license type is allowed, the Bureau requires all applications to include a diagram of the premise to be 
licensed. 

Diagrams should be submitted on this form and should be as accurate as possible. Be sure to label the following 
areas: entrances, office area, coolers, storage areas, display cases, shelves, restroom, point of sale area, area for 
on-premise consumption, dining rooms, event/function rooms, lounges, outside area/decks or any other areas on 
the premise that you are requesting approval. Attached an additional page as needed to fully describe the premise. 

Barbara Rita Jenny
attached



Barbara Rita Jenny
FIRST FLOOR

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny
“Pod
Canteen”

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny
storage shelving,
counter, 2 stools

Barbara Rita Jenny



Barbara Rita Jenny
GROUND FLOOR

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny

Barbara Rita Jenny
UTILITY SINK



N

M
AG

NA
IL

SE
T 

IN
 P

AV
EM

EN
T

N/
F

G
JE

 IN
VE

ST
M

EN
TS

, L
LC

TA
X 

M
AP

 2
2 

LO
T 

13
Y.

C.
R.

D.
 B

O
O

K 
16

01
4 

PA
G

E 
98

7

D
Y

H

M

T

W
V

W
V

M
an

ho
le

14
" 

Pi
ne

12
" 

O
ak

20
" 

Pi
ne

20
" 

Pi
ne

23
" P

in
e

UP
 3

5.
1

UP
 #

22
2F

UP
22

2/
1

UP
 3

7.
01

UP
37

.1
2

Ex
ist

in
g 

Bu
ild

in
g

 E
xis

tin
g

Bu
ild

in
g

 #
23

0

 
S

T
A

T
E

 
R

O
A

D

 G
r
a
v
e
l 
D

r
iv

e
w

a
y

FENCE (typ.)

N/
F

VE
NT

AS
 K

IT
TE

RY
 E

ST
AT

ES
TA

X 
M

AP
 2

2 
LO

T 
16

Y.
C.

R.
D.

 B
O

O
K 

16
70

2 
PA

G
E 

96
7

G
as

St
ru

ct
ur

e
N3

5°
24

'5
9"

E 
25

4.
5'

U.
S.

 R
O

UT
E 

O
NE

 B
Y-

PA
SS

"W
RONG W

AY"

SIGN

G
RA

SS

G
RA

SS

G
RA

SS

CR
O

SS
W

AL
K

PA
RK

IN
G

 S
PA

CE
S 

(T
YP

.)

TROUGH PLANTERS

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL

PE
DE

ST
RI

AN
 A

RE
A

PI
CN

IC
 T

AB
LE

S

PO
RT

A-
PO

TT
IE

S

SI
G

NA
G

E-
(1

) "
ST

O
P"

(2
) "

NO
 L

EF
T 

TU
RN

"

3-
4 

RE
M

O
VA

BL
E

NO
N-

LO
CK

IN
G

 4
"

BO
LL

AR
DS

ST
O

P

PA
IN

TE
D 

DI
VI

DE
D 

LA
NE

AN
D 

ST
O

P 
LI

NE
S

EXIT ONLY

PA
IN

TE
D 

LI
NE

AN
D 

TE
XT

"E
XI

T 
O

NL
Y"

(T
O

 B
E 

AD
DE

D)

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
IG

N:
"N

O
 T

HR
U 

TR
AF

FI
C"

5 MPH

5 M
PH

5 MPH

DE
CO

RA
TI

VE
 G

RA
SS

ES

TR
AF

FI
C 

CO
NE

S

EX
IS

TI
NG

 N
O

RW
AY

 S
PR

UC
E 

AN
D

 D
EC

ID
UO

US
 T

RE
ES

TH
IS

 A
RE

A 
FI

LL
ED

 W
IT

H 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 S

M
AL

L 
DE

CI
DU

O
US

 T
RE

ES
,

SH
RU

BS
, A

ND
 G

RA
SS

ES

EX
IS

TI
NG

 T
RE

ES
 (3

-P
IN

E,
 1

-O
AK

), 
SH

RU
BS

,
AN

D 
NA

TI
VE

 G
RA

SS
ES

 O
N 

SL
O

PE

G
RA

SS

TH
IS

 A
RE

A 
FI

LL
ED

 W
IT

H 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 N

AT
IV

E
SM

AL
L 

DE
CI

DU
O

US
 T

RE
ES

, G
RA

SS
ES

, A
ND

 S
EV

ER
AL

LA
RG

E 
DE

CI
DU

O
US

 T
RE

ES

EX
IS

TI
NG

 2
3"

 D
BH

 P
IN

E 
AN

D
NA

TI
VE

 G
RA

SS
ES

 O
N 

SL
O

PE

EX
IS

TI
NG

 P
IN

E 
TR

EE

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
LE

G
EN

D:

DE
CI

DU
O

US
 T

RE
E

EV
ER

G
RE

EN

NA
TI

VE
 S

HR
UB

EX
IS

TI
NG

 N
AT

IV
E 

G
RA

SS
ES

DR
O

UG
HT

 T
O

LE
RA

NT
AN

NU
AL

PL
AN

TI
NG

S 
@

 T
RO

UG
HS

RE
-S

EE
DE

D 
W

IT
H 

LU
SH

, L
O

W
 M

O
W

 G
RA

SS
ES

EX
IS

TI
NG

 G
UA

RD
RA

IL
 (N

O
 C

HA
NG

ES
)

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
NO

TE
S:

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
IS

 C
UR

RE
NT

LY
 E

DG
ED

 O
N 

TH
E 

NO
RT

HE
AS

T 
BY

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 T

RE
ES

,
SH

RU
BS

, A
ND

 G
RA

SS
. L

IK
EW

IS
E,

 T
HE

 S
LO

PE
D 

"I
SL

AN
D"

 A
T 

TH
E 

CE
NT

ER
 O

F
TH

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

JU
ST

 S
O

UT
H 

O
F 

TH
E 

M
UR

AL
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

 C
O

NT
AI

NS
 S

HR
UB

S,
BR

AM
BL

ES
, A

ND
 T

RE
ES

, A
S 

DO
ES

 T
HE

 B
O

TT
O

M
 S

O
UT

HE
AS

TE
RN

 C
O

RN
ER

O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y.
 T

HE
 L

O
NG

 S
TR

IP
 A

LO
NG

 T
HE

 B
YP

AS
S 

IS
 C

UR
RE

NT
LY

 G
RA

SS
ED

.

1.

ST
O

P 
SI

G
N

"N
O

 R
IG

HT
 T

UR
N"

 S
IG

N

UP
 P

RI
VA

TE

ENTER

DA
TE

2-
05

-1
9

C-
1

 K
IT

TE
RY

 F
O

O
D

 T
RU

CK
 P

O
D

@
 M

U
RA

L 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 L
O

T
23

0 
ST

AT
E 

RO
AD

, K
IT

TE
RY

, M
E 

03
90

4

M
D

B 
D

ES
IG

N
 L

LC
81

 L
IN

CO
LN

 A
VE

NU
E

PO
RT

SM
O

UT
H,

 N
H 

03
80

1
60

3.
43

6.
42

56
94

 P
LE

AS
AN

T 
ST

RE
ET

 P
O

RT
SM

O
UT

H 
NH

 0
38

01

SC
A

LE
: 1

"  
 =

 4
0'

1
PR

OP
OS

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

N O
W
N
ER

G
R

EE
N

BR
O

O
K

 L
LC

KI
TT

ER
Y 

PL
AN

NI
NG

BO
AR

D 
AP

PR
O

VA
L

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N/

FI
LE

9/
25

/1
8

RE
VI

SE
D 

4/
25

/1
9

SC
AL

E
1"

= 
40

'-0
"

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

G
PS

:
LA

TI
TU

DE
: 4

3.
04

66
68

, L
O

NG
IT

UD
E:

 7
0.

74
27

14
20

00
00

02
N 

43
º 6

'1
6.

8"
, W

 7
0º

 4
4'

33
.7

71
"

M
A

P 
22

LO
T 

14

KI
TT

ER
Y 

FO
O

D
TR

UC
KS

 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 P

LA
N

KF
TP

 C
oo

le
r C

ar
t f

or
ca

nn
ed

 b
ee

r, 
w

in
e,

ci
de

r o
n 

ic
e

“N
o 

liq
uo

r b
ey

on
d 

th
is

 p
oi

nt
”

rib
bo

n 
an

d 
si

gn
ag

e

“N
o 

liq
uo

r b
ey

on
d 

th
is

 p
oi

nt
”

rib
bo

n 
an

d 
si

gn
ag

e



On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 11 of 11 

Section VII: Required Additional Information for a Licensee/Applicant for an On-Premises 
Liquor License Who are Legal Business Entities 

Questions 1 to 4 of this part of the application must match information in Section I of the application above and 
match the information on file with the Maine Secretary of State’s office.  If you have questions regarding your 
legal entity name or DBA, please call the Secretary of State’s office at (207) 624-7752. 

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely.  Please print legibly. 

1. Exact legal name:  ____________________________________________________________________

2. Doing Business As, if any:  _____________________________________________________________

3. Date of filing with Secretary of State:  ________________ State in which you are formed:  __________

4. If not a Maine business entity, date on which you were authorized to transact business in the State of Maine:

_______________________________

5. List the name and addresses for previous 5 years, birth dates, titles of officers, directors, managers, members
or partners and the percentage ownership any person listed: (attached additional pages as needed)

Name Address (5 Years) 
Date of 
Birth Title 

Percentage 
of 

Ownership 

(Ownership in non-publicly traded companies must add up to 100%.) 

Barbara Rita Jenny
81 Lincoln Ave
Portsmouth NH 03801 

Barbara Rita Jenny
81 Lincoln Ave
Portsmouth NH 03801 

Barbara Rita Jenny
Managing
Member

Barbara Rita Jenny
Managing
Member



 
TOWN OF KITTERY 

                    Office of the Town Clerk 
               200 Rogers Road 

                        Kittery, Maine 03904                            
         Phone 207-474-1328 Fax 207-439-6806 

  
 

 
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL ACTIVITY/AMUSEMENT PERMIT 

(Pursuant to 28-A M.R.S.A. Sec. 1054) 
 
 
Name, address and legal status of individual(s) or entity seeking to hold permit: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                          
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name and mailing address of the premises where the special activity/amusement will occur:  
 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
       
                                                                                                                                                                 
Mailing address and telephone number of owner of the real estate:_______________________________ 
                                                                    
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
      
Describe the specific portion of the premises where the special activity/amusement will occur:  
 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
       
                                                                                                                                                                         
Set forth the specific time periods between which the special activity/amusement will occur:                        
      
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
      
Describe the specific activity or type of amusement for which the permit is requested: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
       
Has any individual(s), partner(s), majority shareholder(s) of the business entity, seeking to hold this permit, 
been convicted of a felony or had any similar type of amusement or activity permit been denied or revoked 
within the past ten (10) years by any other municipal or state authority, agency or board?  Yes___   No___ 
 
If so, give the state of conviction for any felony and describe specifically the circumstances of any such 
denial or revocation giving the state or city and date of such denial or revocation: 
 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
       

(Over) 

Green Brook LLC DBA Kittery Food Truck Pod - Paved Paradise

230 US-1 Bypass Kittery ME 03904

Green Brook LLC DBA Kittery Food Truck Pod - Paved Paradise

230 US-1 Bypass Kittery ME 03904

 603-234-7402 94 Pleasant St. Portsmouth NH 03801

within the food truck pod area

between 11 am and 8 pm; note—pod is only open until dark

live music

promotional events for local small businesses or non-profits

X



                                                                                                                                                                         
          
 
Give any additional information to support your request for the permit sought herein:  
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
       
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
        
As part of this application process, the individual or business entity seeking the permit herein acknowledges 
that the Municipal Officers, pursuant to 28-A M.R.S.A. Subsection 1054(7) may suspend or revoke the permit 
applied for herein on the grounds that the activity or amusement constitutes a detriment to the public health, 
safety or welfare, or violates municipal ordinances or regulations. 
 
Give the authority and legal relationship of the applicant signing below to the entity seeking permit: 
 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                         
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
    
                                                                                                                                                                       
NOTE:    In granting this permit, the Town relies on the accuracy and truth of the facts represented 
herein.  Any misleading or incorrect information set forth in this application shall be grounds for denial 
or immediate revocation of the permit issued.  By signing this application, the applicant represents the 
truth of the facts herein stated. 
 
 
DATE OF APPLICATION:_______________________________________________________ 
                                                 
 
SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT: ___________________________________________________ 
                                                                                          
 
APPLICANT’S NAME:__________________________________________________________ 
      (please print) 
 
ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                  (please print)                                                        
 
TELEPHONE NUMBER:________________________________________________________ 
                                                
 
           
FEE:   $20.00 per year    Must be renewed annually with liquor license. 
 
 
 
PLEASE SUBMIT THIS FORM AND APPROPRIATE FEE TO THE TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Managing Member of Green Brook LLC and Manager of the Kittery Food Truck Pod

Jan 25, 2021

Barbara Jenny

81 Lincoln Ave Portsmouth NH 03801

603-234-7402































































Report to Council

Fiscal Year 2021

Capital Transfers

Mid‐Year Transfers

OTHER FUNDS TRANSFERS

FROM CAPITAL PROJECT

2069 Boat Infrastructure Grant  $          1,583  4055 KPA Eqiupment Reserve  $       1,583 
2036 Kittery Community Center Bonds  $             373  4027 Municipal Facility Reserve  $           373 
2085 2016 Municipal Projects  $        30,949  4027 Municipal Facility Reserve  $     30,949 
2057 Open Space  $          6,889  4027 Municipal Facility Reserve  $       6,889 
2078 Athletic Field Master Plan (Design)  $          2,142  4027 Municipal Facility Reserve  $       2,142 
4031 Public Safety Base Station Radio  $        20,845  4056 Fire Dept Equipment Reserve  $     20,845 
4053 Pepperrell Cove Paving/Utilities  $          1,495  4116 KPA Facility Reserve  $       1,495 
4122 Zoning Recodification and GIS Upgrade  $          7,637  4020 Municipal Technology Reserve  $       7,637 
Total Other Funds Transfers  $       71,913   $     71,913 

TO CAPITAL RESERVE

DRAFT: February 8, 2021


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2021.02.08 TMR.pdf
	regional assessment complete 3 no reports
	Kennebunk_assessment_FINAL
	Kennebunkport_assessment_FINAL
	Kittery_assessment_FINAL
	Ogunquit_assessment_FINAL
	Wells_assessment_FINAL
	York_assessment_FINAL
	ADPC7AB.tmp
	This is to provide the Council with an update on the Fiscal Year 2021 (FY21) finances at the close of Quarter 2 (Q2) of the fiscal year.
	Revenue projections are difficult to make at this time.  We focus on watching revenue activity, and identifying any unanticipated variations.  This year we have the added challenge of COVID-19’s impacts on the economy and many of our revenue-generatin...

	ADP4DC6.tmp
	Town of Kittery
	Office of the Town Manager
	200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904
	Telephone: 207-475-1329 Fax: 207-439-6806
	kamaral@kitteryme.org


	2021.02.08 Title 8 Property Maintenance.pdf
	ADP831D.tmp
	PROPOSED TITLE 8 REVISIONS


	2021.01.08 Sewer Ext Petition Rte 236.pdf
	ADP59AD.tmp
	PROPOSED extension

	ADPB71D.tmp
	PROPOSED extension

	ADP7A68.tmp
	PROPOSED extension


	2021.01.08 Sewer Ext Petition Rte 236.pdf
	ADP59AD.tmp
	PROPOSED extension

	ADPB71D.tmp
	PROPOSED extension

	ADP7A68.tmp
	PROPOSED extension

	ADPEE32.tmp
	PROPOSED extension


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Legal Business Entity Applicant Name corporation LLC: Green Brook LLC
	Check BoxQ4: 
	1: Off

	Check BoxQ9NA: 
	Check BoxQ11Y: 
	rooms available: 
	1 Exact legal name: Green Brook LLC


